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SECTION I – GENERAL 

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS 
 
This Draft Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when 
reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalized terms used in this Draft Letter 
of Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/ prospective investor only and is not exhaustive. 
 
References to any legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such legislation, act, 
regulation, rules, guidelines or policies as amended, supplemented, or re-enacted from time to time and any 
reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that 
provision. 
 
In this Draft Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references to 
‘the/our Company’, ‘we’, ‘our’, ‘us’ or similar terms are to Abha Property Project Limited as the context 
requires, and references to ‘you’ are to the Eligible Shareholders and/ or prospective Investors in this Issue. 
 
The words and expressions used in this Draft Letter of Offer but not defined herein shall have, to the extent 
applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments thereto, the 
rules and regulations made there under. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in "Statement of Tax 
Benefits" and "Financial Statement" beginning on pages 49 and 94, respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer, 
shall have the meaning given to such terms in such sections. 
 
CONVENTIONAL/ GENERAL TERMS 
Term Description 
Articles  of Association or 
Articles or AOA 

The Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time 

Auditor or Statutory 
Auditor/ 
Peer Review Auditor 

M/s. Rajgaria & Associates 

Audit Committee The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s Audit 
Committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
For details, see “Our Management” on page 81 of this Draft Letter of Offer 

Board or Board of Directors The Board of Directors of our Company or a duly constituted committee 
thereof 

Company or Our Company 
or the Company or the 
Issuer or  APPL 

Abha Property Project Limited incorporated under the provisions of the 
erstwhile Companies Act 1956, having its Registered Office at 29, Ganesh 
Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata – 700 013 

Chief Financial Officer / 
CFO 

Aditya Agarwalla, the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. 

Companies Act Companies Act, 1956 and/ or the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time 
to time. 

Company Secretary and  
Compliance Officer 

Santanu Kumar Hazra, the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our 
Company. 

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996 and amendments thereto 
Depository Participant/ DP Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act 
Designated Stock 
Exchange/ DSE 

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 

Directors Directors on the Board, as may be appointed from time to time 
Eligible Equity 
Shareholders 

Holders of Equity Shares of the Company as on the Record Date 

Equity Shares Equity shares of face value of ₹10/- each of our Company 
Executive Directors Executive Directors of our Company. 
Financial Statement The audited consolidated financial statements of our Company for the period 

ended September 30, 2023 and financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March  
31, 2022 which comprises the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, 
including other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 
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Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India 
Independent Directors The Independent Directors of our Company, in terms of Section 2(47) and 

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act. 
IT Information Technology 
Key Managerial Personnel The key managerial personnel of our Company in terms of Companies Act 

and as per the definition provided in Regulation 2(1) (bb) of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations and Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Materiality Policy A policy adopted by our Company for identification of material litigation(s) 
for the purpose of disclosure of the same in this Draft Letter of Offer 

Memorandum of 
Association or 
Memorandum or MOA 

The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to 
time 

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

The committee of the Board of directors reconstituted as our Company’s 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with Regulation 19 
of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act. 

Non-Executive Directors Non-executive Directors of our Company 
Non-Executive and 
Independent   Director 

Non-executive and independent directors of our Company, unless otherwise 
specified 

Promoter(s) The Promoters of our Company are Mr. Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla & Mrs. 
Sita Agarwalla 

Promoter Group 1. Anshuman Agarwalla 
2. Dhruv Agarwalla 
3. Swati Agarwalla 
4. Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla HUF 
5. Basant Kumar Agarwalla HUF 

QC Quality Control 
Registered Office 29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata – 700 013 
Registrar of Companies/ 
ROC 

Registrar of Companies, West Bengal, Kolkata 

Rights Issue Committee The Committee of our Board constituted for purposes of this Issue and 
incidental matters thereof. 

SEZ Special Economic Zone 
Stock Exchange Stock exchange where the Equity Shares of our Company are presently 

listed, being only The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
We/ us/ our Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to Abha Property 

Project Limited 
w.e.f with effect from 

 
ISSUE RELATED TERMS 
Term Description 
2009 ASBA Circular The SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 

2009 
2011 ASBA Circular The SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011 

Abridged Letter of Offer or 
ALOF 

Abridged letter of offer dated [●] to be sent to the Eligible Equity 
Shareholders with respect to the Issue in accordance with the provisions of 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments thereto and the 
Companies Act 

Additional Rights Equity 
Shares 

The Rights Equity Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to 
the Rights Entitlement 

Allotment, Allot or Allotted Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue 
Allotment Account(s) The account(s) opened with the Banker(s) to this Issue, in to which the 

Application Money lying to the credit of the escrow account(s) and amounts 
blocked by Application Supported by Blocked Amount in the ASBA 
Account, with respect to successful Applicants will be transferred on the 
Transfer Date in accordance with Section 40(3) of the Companies Act 

Allotment Account Bank(s) Bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to 
an issue and with whom the Allotment Accounts will be opened, in this case 
being [●] 

Allotment Advice The note or advice or intimation of Allotment, sent to each successful 
Investor who has been or is to be allotted the Equity Shares pursuant to this 
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Issue 
Allotment Date/ Date 
of Allotment 

Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to this Issue 

Allottee(s) Persons to whom Right Shares are allotted/ issued pursuant to this Issue 
Applicant(s) or Investors Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who are entitled to apply 

or make an application for the Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue in 
terms of this Draft Letter of Offer 

Application(s) Application made through (i) submission of the Application Form or plain 
paper Application to the designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/electronic 
application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such 
SCSBs) under the ASBA process 

Application Form Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form under the ASBA 
process used by an Investor to make an application for the Allotment of 
Equity Shares in the Issue 

Application Money Amount payable at the time of Application, i.e., ₹10/- [Rupees Ten Only] per 
Rights Equity Share in respect of the Rights Equity Shares applied for in the 
Issue at the Issue Price 

Application Supported 
by   Blocked Amount or 
ASBA 

Application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Investor to 
make an application authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Money in 
at the ASBA Account maintained with the SCSB 

ASBA Account Account maintained with the SCSB and specified in the Application Form or 
the plain paper Application by the Applicant for blocking the amount 
mentioned in the Application Form or the plain paper Application 

ASBA Applicant/ ASBA 
Investor(s) 

As per the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 
22, 2020, all investors (including Renouncees) shall make an application for 
an Issue only through ASBA facility 

ASBA Bid A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modifications 
thereto as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

ASBA Circulars Collectively, SEBI circular bearing reference number 
SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/ 30/12 dated December 30, 2009, SEBI 
circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011dated April 29, 2011 
and the SEBI circular bearing reference number 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 

Banker(s) to the Issue Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank and the Refund Bank to the Issue, 
in this case being [●]; 

Banker to the Issue 
Agreement 

Agreement dated [●] amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue, the 
Lead Manager and the Bankers to the Issue for collection of the Application 
Money from Applicants/Investors making an Application, transfer of funds 
to the Allotment Account from the Escrow Account and SCSBs, release of 
funds from Allotment Account to our Company and other persons and where 
applicable, refunds of the amounts collected from Applicants/Investors and 
providing such other facilities and services as specified in the Agreement 

Basis of Allotment The basis on which the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful 
Applicants under this Issue, as described in "Terms of the Issue" beginning 
on page 116 of this Draft Letter of Offer 

Consolidated certificate The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted to each 
folio in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in 
physical form 

Controlling Branches or 
Controlling Branches of the 
SCSBs 

Such branches of the SCSBs which co-ordinate with the Registrar to the 
Issue and the Stock Exchanges, a list of which is available on 
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/ other/Other Action.do?doRecognised=yes      

Designated SCSB Branches Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Form or the 
plain paper application, as the case may be, used by the ASBA Investors and 
a list of which is applicable on 
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised =yes 

Draft Letter of Offer or 
DLOF 

The Draft Letter of Offer dated March 27, 2024 to be filed with the 
Designated Stock Exchange 

Escrow Collection Bank Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an 
issue and with whom Escrow Account(s) will be opened, in this case being 
[●] 

Eligible Equity Holder(s) of the Equity Shares of our Company as on the Record Date. 
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Shareholder(s) Please note that the investors eligible to participate in the Issue exclude 
certain overseas shareholder For further details, see “Notice to Overseas 
Investors” beginning on page 11 of this Draft Letter of Offer 

Fraudulent Borrower Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a fraudulent borrower 
by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act) or 
consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on fraudulent borrower 
issued by RBI 

IEPF Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Investor(s)/ Applicants Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) of our Company on the Record Date, [●]day, 

[●],[●] and the Renouncee(s) 
ISIN International Securities Identification Number i.e., INE964E01011 
Issue Agreement Issue agreement dated February 02, 2024 between our Company and the 

Lead Manager, pursuant to which certain arrangements are agreed to in 
relation to the Issue. 

Issue / Rights Issue Rights Issue of up to 94,99,900 (Ninety Four Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand 
Nine Hundred) Equity Shares of face value of ₹10/- each of our Company for 
cash at a price of ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) per Rights Equity Share for an 
amount of ₹9,49,99,000/- (Rupees Nine Crores Forty Nine Lakhs Ninety 
Nine Thousand Only) on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of 
our Company in the ratio of 5 (Five) right shares for every 1 (one) equity 
shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company on the 
Record Date i.e. [●]day, [●],[●]. 
*Assuming full subscription 

Issue Closing Date [●]day, [●],[●] 
Issue Opening Date [●]day, [●],[●] 
Issue Period The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, 

inclusive of both days, during which Applicants can submit their 
applications, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations 

Issue Price ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) per equity share 
Issue Proceeds / Gross 
Proceeds 

Gross proceeds of the Issue 

Issue Size Amount aggregating not exceeding up to ₹9,49,99,000/- (Rupees Nine 
Crores Forty Nine Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Only) 
#Assuming full subscription 

Lead Manager Intelligent Money Managers Private Limited  
Letter of Offer/ LOF The final Letter of Offer dated [●] to be filed with the CSE after 

incorporating the observations received from the CSE on the Draft Letter of 
Offer 

Listing Agreement The listing agreements entered into between our Company and the Stock 
Exchange in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations 

Multiple Application Forms Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder/ 
Renouncee in respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their demat 
account. However supplementary applications in relation to further Equity 
Shares with/without using additional Rights Entitlement will not be treated as 
multiple application 

Net Proceeds Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details, please 
refer to "Objects of the Issue" beginning on page 45 of this Draft Letter of 
Offer 

Non-ASBA Investor/ Non-
ASBA Applicant 

Investors other than ASBA Investors who apply in the Issue otherwise than 
through the ASBA process comprising Eligible Shareholders holding Equity 
Shares in physical form or who intend to renounce their Rights Entitlement 
in part or full and Renouncees 

Non-Institutional Investors An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional 
Buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 

Offer Document The Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer including 
any notices, corrigendum thereto; 

Off Market Renunciation The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed on the CSE. Since 
the trading platform of the CSE is not functional, the Applicants shall not be 
able to deal in the Rights Entitlements using the secondary market platform 
of CSE. The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to 
their respective demat accounts, either in full or in part through an off-market 
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transfer, during the Renunciation Period. Such renunciation shall result in 
renouncement of the Right Shares. The Investors should have the demat 
Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the 
renunciation. Eligible Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation 
through off- market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights 
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior 
to the Issue Closing Date. 

Qualified Institutional 
Buyers or QIBs 

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1) (ss) of the 
SEBI ICDR Regulations 

Record Date Designated date for the purpose of determining the Eligible Equity 
Shareholders eligible to apply for Rights Equity Shares, being [●]day, [●],[●]  

Refund Bank(s) The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, 
in this case being [●]  

Refund through electronic 
transfer of Funds 

Refunds through NECS, Direct Credit, RTGS, NEFT or ASBA process, as 
applicable; 

Registrar to the 
Company/ Registrar to the 
Issue/ Registrar 

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited 

Registrar Agreement Agreement dated February 05, 2024 between our Company and the Registrar 
to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar 
to the Issue pertaining to this Issue 

Renouncee(s) Person(s) who has/have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible 
Equity Shareholders through renunciation 

Renunciation Period Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation 
through off- market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights 
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee on or prior 
to [●]day, [●],[●], i.e., the Issue Closing Date 

Retail Individual 
Bidders(s)/ Retail Individual 
Investor(s)/ RII(s)/RIB(s) 

An individual Investor (including an HUF applying through Karta) who has 
applied for Rights Equity Shares and whose Application Money is not more 
than ₹2,00,000.00/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Only) in the Issue as defined under 
Regulation 2(1)(vv) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 

Rights Equity Shares Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to the Issue 

Rights Entitlement(s)/ RES Number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is 
entitled to in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible 
Equity Shareholder on the Record Date, in this case being 5 (Five) Rights 
Share for every 1 (One) fully paid- up Equity Shares held by an Eligible 
Equity Shareholder. 
The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN ‘[●]’ will be credited to your 
demat account before the date of opening of the Issue, against the Equity 
Shares held by the Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date, pursuant to 
the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue 
Circular, the Rights Entitlements shall be credited in dematerialized form in 
respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders before the 
Issue Opening Date 

Rights Equity Shares Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue 
Rights Entitlement Letter Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity 

Shareholders The Rights Entitlements are accessible on the website of our 
Company 

SCSB(s) Self-certified syndicate banks registered with SEBI, which acts as a banker to 
the Issue and which offers the facility of ASBA. A list of all SCSBs is 
available at 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes
&intmId=34 or 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=ye
s&intmId 
=35, as applicable, or such other website as updated from time to time, and 
(ii) in relation to ASBA (through UPI mechanism), a list of which is 
available on the website of SEBI at 
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&
intmId=40 or  such other website as updated from time to time; 

Transfer Date The date on which the Application Money blocked in the ASBA Account 
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will be transferred to the Allotment Account(s) in respect of successful 
Applications, upon finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation 
with the DSE 

Willful Defaulter Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a willful defaulter by 
any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act,) or 
consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters 
issued by RBI 

Working Day(s) In terms of Regulation2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day 
means all days on which commercial banks in Kolkata are open for business. 
Further, in respect of Issue Period, working day means all days, excluding 
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in 
Mumbai are open for business. Furthermore, the time period between the 
Issue Closing Date and the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange, 
working day means all trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding 
Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars issued by SEBI 

 
 
CONVENTIONAL AND GENERAL TERMS/ABBREVIATIONS 
Term Description 
Rs., ₹, Rupees or INR Indian Rupees 
AIF(s) Alternative investment funds, as defined and registered with SEBI under the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) 
Regulations, 2012 

AGM Annual General Meeting 
AY Assessment year 
CSE The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate 
CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
CIN Corporate Identity Number 
Companies Act, 1956 Erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 along with the rules made there under 
Companies Act, 2013 Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made there under 
COVID-19 A public health emergency of international concern as declared by the World 

Health Organization on January 30, 2020 and a pandemic on March 11, 2020 
CRAR Capital adequacy ratio/ Capital to risk assets ratio 
CrPC Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 
Depositories Act Depositories Act, 1996 
Depository A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018 
Depository Participant/ DP A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act 
DP ID Depository participant’s identification 
DIN Director Identification Number 
EBITDA Profit/(loss) after tax for the year adjusted for income tax expense, finance 

costs, depreciation and amortization expense, as presented in the statement of 
profit and loss 

EGM Extraordinary general meeting 
EPS Earnings per Equity Share 
FCNR Account Foreign currency non-resident account 
FDI Circular 2020/ FDI 
Circular 

Consolidated FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020 issued by the Department 
for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and 
Industry, Government of India 

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, together with rules and 
regulations thereunder 

FEMA Regulations The Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a 
Person Resident Outside India) Regulations, 2017 

FEMA Rules Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 
Financial Year, Fiscal Year 
or Fiscal 

Period of 12 months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise 
stated 

FIR First information report 
FPIs Foreign portfolio investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations 
Fugitive Economic An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 
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Offender of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 
FVCI Foreign venture capital investors as defined under and registered with SEBI 

pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture 
Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000 registered with SEBI 

GAAP Generally accepted accounting principles 
GDP Gross Domestic Product 
GoI or Government Government of India 
GST Goods and Service Tax 
HFC Housing finance companies 
HUF Hindu Undivided Family 
IBC Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
Income Tax Act Income-Tax Act, 1961 
Ind AS Indian accounting standards as specified under section 133 of the Companies 

Act 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, 
as amended 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 
Insider Trading Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015 as amended thereto 
ITAT Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 
LTV Loan to value ratio 
MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
Mutual Fund Mutual fund registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of (Mutual Funds) Regulations,1996 
Net Asset Value per Equity 
Share or NAV per Equity 
Share 

Net Worth/ Number of Equity shares subscribed and fully paid outstanding 

Net Worth Aggregate of Equity Share capital and other equity excluding other 
comprehensive income 

NBFC Non-banking financial companies 
NPA(s) Non-performing assets 
NRE Account Non-resident external account 
NRI A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India and shall have the 

same meaning as ascribed to such term in the Foreign Exchange 
Management (Deposit) Regulations, 2016 

NRO Account Non-resident ordinary account 
NSDL National Securities Depository Limited 
OCB or Overseas Corporate 
Body 

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or in 
directly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in 
which not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs 
directly or in directly and which was in existence on October 3, 2003 and 
immediately before such date had taken benefits under the general 
permission granted to OCBs under FEMA 

PAN Permanent account number 
PAT Profit after tax 
QP Qualified purchaser as defined in the U.S. Investment Company Act 
RBI Reserve Bank of India 
RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 
Regulation S Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act 
RTGS Real time gross settlement 
Rule 144A Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act 
SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 
SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 as amended thereto 
SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India 
SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 as amended thereto 
SEBI AIF Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) 

Regulations, 2012 as amended thereto 
SEBI FPI Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) 

Regulations, 2019 as amended thereto 
SEBI Listing Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
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Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended thereto 
SEBI Rights Issue Circulars SEBI circulars bearing reference number 

SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19, 2022 read with 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 as amended 
thereto 

SEBI ICDR Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended thereto 

Stock Exchange Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited / CSE 
STT Securities Transaction Tax 
Supreme Court Supreme Court of India 
Trade Mark Act Trade Marks Act, 1999 and the rules thereunder, including subsequent 

amendments thereto 
TAT Turnaround time 
Takeover Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended thereto 
Total Borrowings Aggregate of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and 

subordinated Liabilities 
U.S.$ , USD or U.S. dollar United States Dollar, the legal currency of the United States of America 
U.S. Investment Company 
Act 

Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended 

U.S. Person U.S. persons as defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act or 
acting for the account or benefit of U.S. persons (not relying on Rule 
902(k)(1)(viii)(B) or Rule 902(k)(2)(i) of Regulations) 

U.S. QIB Qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A 
USA, U.S. or United States United States of America 
U.S. SEC U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission 
U.S. Securities Act/ 
Securities Act 

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended 

VCF Venture capital fund as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or 
the SEBI AIF Regulations, as the case may be. 
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NOTICE TO OVERSEAS INVESTORS 

 
The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights 
Entitlement Letter (collectively “Issue Material”) and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares 
to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those 
jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or 
Application Form may come are required to inform by themselves about and observe such restrictions. 
 
Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch the 
Issue Material through email and courier only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in 
India or who have provided an Indian address to our Company. This Draft Letter of Offer will be provided, 
through email and courier, by the Registrar, on behalf of our Company, to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who 
have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale 
of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in 
this regard. Investors can also access the Issue Material from the websites of the Registrar, our Company, CSE 
and BSE. Those overseas shareholders who do not update our records with their Indian address or the address of 
their duly authorized representative in India, prior to the date on which we propose to dispatch the Issue 
Materials, shall not be sent any Issue Materials. 
 
No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that 
purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or 
indirectly, and this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements 
in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance 
with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Issue Material will not constitute an offer 
in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, the Issue 
Material must be treated as sent for information purposes only and should not be acted upon for subscription to 
the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the 
Issue Material should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, 
distribute or send the Issue Material to any person outside India where to do so, would or might contravene local 
securities laws or regulations. If the Issue Material is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their 
agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred 
to in the Issue Material. 
 
Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in 
the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorized to 
acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or any other person 
acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as in valid where they believe 
that Application Form is in complete or acceptance of such Application Form may in fringe applicable legal or 
regulatory requirements and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights 
Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form. 
 
Neither the delivery of the Issue Material nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any 
implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such 
information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of the Issue 
Material. 
 
THE CONTENTS OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS 
LEGAL, TAX OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO 
ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF 
THE OFFER OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, 
EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX 
ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE 
OFFER OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, NEITHER OUR COMPANY NOR THE 
LEAD MANAGER IS MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF 
THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE 
RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE 
LAWS OR REGULATIONS. 
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NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES 
 
The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the 
Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United 
States of America or the territories or possessions thereof ("United States"), except in a transaction not subject 
to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. The 
offering to which this Draft Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an 
offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States or as a solicitation 
therein of an offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register 
any portion of the Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to conduct a public 
offering of securities in the United States. Accordingly, the Issue Material should not be forwarded to or 
transmitted in or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of 40 days after the 
commencement of the Issue, an offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within the United 
States by a dealer (whether or not it is participating in the Issue) may violate the registration requirements of the 
Securities Act. 
 
Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any 
person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf 
has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application 
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from 
the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing 
for the Rights Equity Shares and wishing to hold such Rights Equity Shares in registered form must provide an 
address for registration of these Rights Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a rights 
basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Issue Material will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity 
Shareholders who have an address in India. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity 
Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not, and that at the time 
of subscribing for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and 
(ii) it is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all 
applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the 
certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorized to acquire the Rights 
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or 
our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address 
is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that the Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of 
such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be 
bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form. 
 
The Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States. 
 
The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and 
Exchange Commission (the "US SEC"), any state securities commission in the United States or any other US 
regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering 
of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States. 
The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Lead 
Manager are not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which 
may occur after the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent 
investigations and ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits 
under the applicable laws or regulations. 
 
THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR 
COMPANY, FROM THE LEAD MANAGER, FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT 
TO BE REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON. 
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND USE OF MARKET DATA 
 
Certain Conventions 
All references herein to ‘India’ are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions and the 
‘Government’ or ‘GoI’ or the ‘Central Government’ or the ‘State Government’ are to the Government of India, 
Central or State, as applicable. Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this 
Letter of Offer to the ‘US’ or ‘U.S.’ or the ‘United States’ are to the United States of America and its territories 
and possessions. 
 
Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time (“IST”). 
Unless indicated otherwise, all references to a year in this Draft Letter of Offer are to a calendar year. 
 
In this Draft Letter of Offer, references to the singular also refer to the plural and one gender also refers to any 
other gender, wherever applicable. 
 
Financial Data 
Our fiscal year commences on April 1 of each calendar year and ends on March 31 of the following calendar 
year, so all references to a particular “fiscal year” or “Fiscal” are to the 12-months period ended on March 31 of 
that year. 
 
Unless the context otherwise requires, our financial data in this Draft Letter of Offer is derived from the Audited 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Our audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the period ended 
September 30, 2023 and financial year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 have been prepared by our 
Company in accordance with Ind AS, Companies Act, and other applicable statutory and/or regulatory 
requirements (“Financial Statements”). Our Company publishes its financial statements in Indian Rupees. Any 
reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in this 
Draft Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. We have not attempted to explain those differences or 
quantify their impact on the financial data included herein, and we urge you to consult your own advisors 
regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. For details of financial statements, see 
“Financial Statement” beginning on page 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed 
are due to rounding-off, and unless otherwise specified, all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative 
figures. 
 
Currency of Presentation 
All references to the “Rupees “or “₹” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.  
 
Unless stated otherwise, throughout this Draft Letter of Offer, all figures have been expressed in lakhs. Exchange 
Rate 
 
The following table provides information with respect to the exchange rate for the Indian rupee per US$1.00. 
The exchange rates are based on the reference rates released by Foreign Benchmark India Private Limited which 
is available on their website. No representation is made that any Rupee amounts could have been, or could be, 
converted into U.S. dollars at any particular rate, the rates stated below, or at all. 
 

Currency As on September 30, 
2023 

As on March 31, 2023 As on March 31, 
2022 

1 US$ ₹ 83.06 ₹ 82.22 ₹ 75.81 
 
Source: FBIL Reference Rate as available on https://www.fbil.org.in (In case March 31 of any of the respective 
years is a public holiday, the previous working day has been considered.) 
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
This Draft Letter of Offer contains certain “forward-looking statements”. Forward looking statements appear 
throughout this Draft Letter of Offer, including, without limitation, under the chapters titled “Risk Factors”, 
“Objects of the Issue” and “History and Corporate Structure”. Forward-looking statements include statements 
concerning our Company’s plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues or financial 
performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, political & legal environment and geographical locations in 
which our Company operates, and other information that is not historical information. These forward- looking 
statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “continue”, 
“can”, “could”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend”, “likely”, “may”, “objective”, “plan”, “potential”, “project”, 
“pursue”, “shall”, “seek to”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue”, “forecast”, “target”, or other words or phrases 
of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the objectives, plans or goals of our Company are also 
forward-looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking 
statements. All statements regarding our Company’s expected financial conditions, results of operations; 
business plans and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include 
statements as to our Company’s business strategy, planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without 
limitation, any financial or operating projections or forecasts), new business and other matters discussed in this 
Draft Letter of Offer that are not historical facts. These forward-looking statements contained in this Draft Letter 
of Offer (whether made by our Company or any third party), are predictions and involve known and unknown 
risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements 
of our Company to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or 
implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections. Actual results may differ materially from those 
suggested by the forward- looking statements due to risks or uncertainties associated with our expectations with 
respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the industry in which our Company operates and 
our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, the 
competition in our industry and markets, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic 
and political conditions in India and globally which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the 
monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign 
exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and 
globally, changes in laws, regulations and taxes, incidence of natural calamities, pandemics and/or acts of 
violence. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our Company’s expectations 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 impact of any further COVID-19 pandemic on our business and operations; 
 any unforeseen situation / event having negative impact on the capital market; 
 any disruption in our sources of funding or increase in costs of funding; 
 our ability to obtain certain approvals and licenses; 
 engagement in a highly competitive business and a failure to effectively compete; and 
 our ability to manage our operations at our current size or to manage any future growth effectively 

 
For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, see the 
sections “Risk Factors”, beginning on page 19 of this Draft Letter of Offer. By their nature, certain market risk 
disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a 
result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated. 
 
Our Company or advisors does not have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting 
circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the 
underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with SEBI and Stock Exchange’ requirements, 
our Company shall ensure that Investors in India are informed of material developments until the time of the 
grant of listing and trading permission by the CSE. The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed on 
CSE, however there is no trading on CSE, for further details, kindly refer to the Risk Factor ‘Our Company is 
currently listed only on CSE, which does not have an active on-line market for trading of these Equity Shares and 
hence no benefit of listing and trading shall be available for the shareholders of the Company’ on page 21 of this 
Draft Letter of Offer. 
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SECTION II - SUMMARY OF THE DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER 
 
The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is 
qualified by the more detailed information appearing in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the sections titled 
“Risk Factors”, “The Issue”, “Capital Structure”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”,  
“Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” and “Terms of the Issue” on pages 19, 33, 39, 45, 67, 77 
,100 and 116 of this Draft Letter of Offer respectively. 

1. SUMMARY OF BUSINESS: 
 
Our Company was incorporated as “Abha Property Project Limited” as a public limited company under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated May 10, 1985, issued by Registrar of 
Companies, N.C.T of Delhi & Haryana. The Company has got Certificate of Commencement of Business dated 
June 06, 1985, issued by Registrar of Companies, N.C.T of Delhi & Haryana. The Corporate Identification 
Number of our Company is L51909WB2001PLC093941. 

In the year 1985, the Company came out with an IPO and got listing at Delhi Stock Exchange. Delhi Stock 
Exchange is ceases to be act a functional stock exchange as the same has been de-recognised by SEBI vide its 
order dated 23rd January, 2017. 
 
In the year 1989, the Company has been taken over by new management by virtue of change in directorship and 
controlling interest in the Shareholding in the phased manner from the year 1991 to 1997 and the present 
promoter Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla along with PAC’s completed the acquisition of shares from erstwhile 
promoters of the Company pursuant to an open offer made under Regulation 11(1) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Substantial Acquisitions of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 which commenced on June 
6, 2006 and expired on June 15, 2006. 

Our Company got Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC– Non Deposit Taking) registration certificate from 
RBI, New Delhi Regional Office, to carry on the NBFI (Non-Banking Financial Institution) activities under 
section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 bearing Registration no. B-14.00806 dated 13.09.2000.  

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled ‘Our Business’ beginning on page 77 of this Draft Letter of 
Offer. 

2. OUR PROMOTERS:  
 

Individual Promoters / Promoter Group Non-Individual Promoters / Promoter Group 
Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla HUF 
Sita Agarwalla Basant Kumar Agarwalla HUF 
Anshuman Agarwalla  
Dhruv Agarwalla  
Swati Agarwalla  

 
3. OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE: 
 
The details of Issue Proceeds are set forth in the following table: 

# assuming full subscription and allotment. 
*The Issue size will not exceed ₹949.99 Lakhs (Rupees Nine Crores Forty Nine Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand 
Only). If there is any reduction in the amount on account of or at the time of finalization of Issue Price and Rights 
Entitlements Ratio, the same will be adjusted against General Corporate Purpose. 

The Net Proceeds (gross proceeds less issue expenses) are proposed to be used in accordance with the details 
provided in the following table: 

Particulars Amount  
(₹ in Lakhs) 

Gross Proceeds from the Issue# 949.99 
Less: Estimated Issue related Expenses [●] 
Net Proceeds from the Issue# [●] 
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Particulars Amount  

(₹ in Lakhs) 
To augment the capital base of our company [●] 
For general corporate purposes [●] 
Total Net Proceeds [●] 
The amount utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds. 

For further details, please see chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page 45 of this Draft Letter of 
Offer. 

4. Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter(s) and Promoter Group in the Issue: 
 
The Individual Promoters/ Promoter Group through vide letters dated [●], and Non-Individual Promoters/ 
Promoter Group vide letters dated [●] (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Subscription Letters”), have 
confirmed that they intend to subscribe in part or to full extent of its Rights Entitlement in this Issue and to the 
extent of unsubscribed portion (if any) of this Issue and that they shall not renounce their Rights Entitlements 
except within the Promoter/ Promoter Group, in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 86 of the SEBI 
ICDR Regulations. Our Promoter and certain members of our Promoter Group have also confirmed that they 
intend to apply for and subscribe to additional Right Shares and any Equity Shares offered in the Issue that 
remain unsubscribed, subject to compliance with the minimum public shareholding requirements, as prescribed 
under the SCRR and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
Such subscription for Rights Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if allotted, may result in an increase 
in their percentage shareholding. Any such acquisition of additional Rights Equity Shares (including any 
unsubscribed portion of the Issue) is exempt in terms of Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations as 
conditions mentioned therein have been fulfilled and shall not result in a change of control of the management of 
our Company in accordance with provisions of the Takeover Regulations. The additional subscription by the 
promoters shall be made subject to such additional subscription not resulting in the minimum public 
shareholding of the issuer falling below the level prescribed in Regulation 38 of SEBI Listing Regulations and 
the provisions of the SCRR. As on date our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to this 
Issue. 
 
In case this Rights Issue remains unsubscribed or minimum subscription is not achieved, the Board of Directors 
may dispose of such unsubscribed portion in the best interest of the Company and in compliance with the 
applicable laws. 
 
5. Summary of Financial Information: 
 
The following table sets forth summary financial information derived from the Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the Financial Years ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and Audited financial statements for 
the half-year   ended period September 30, 2023, prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement 
principles of Ind AS 34 and Regulation 33 of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 

(₹ in lakhs other than share data) 

Particulars 

For Half-year 
period ended 

September 30, 
2023 

Financial Years ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Equity share Capital 190.00 190.00 190.00 

Reserves and Surplus 8,109.16 8,043.30 7,575.59 

Net Worth 8,299.16 8,233.30 7,765.59 

Revenue (total income) 80.04 176.59 203.34 

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax and 
extraordinary items 

70.55 170.80 196.04 

Profit after tax and extraordinary items 67.42 141.93 188.04 
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 
(Rs.) 

3.55* 7.47 9.90 
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Net asset value per equity share (Rs.) 436.80 433.34 408.72 

Return on Net Worth (%) 0.81 1.72 2.42 
* Non-annualized. 

6. Auditor Qualifications: 
 
There are no qualifications by the Statutory Auditors in their report to the Audited Financial Statements for 
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 and for the Half-year period ended September 30, 2023. 
 
7. Summary of Outstanding Litigations: 
 
A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings pertaining to our Company as on the date of this Draft Letter of 
Offer is provided below. For details of the material outstanding litigation proceedings including criminal 
proceedings and civil proceedings, please see “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on page 100 of 
this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
 Litigations involving our Company: 

 
a. Cases filed against our Company: 

 
Nature of Litigation Amount 

involved* 
(₹ in lakhs) 

Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities Nil 
Litigation involving Tax Liabilities (Direct Tax) Nil 
Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability on the part of our Company Nil 
Proceedings involving material violations of statutory regulations by our Company Nil 
Labour Matters Nil 
Economic Offences Nil 
Material civil litigations above the materiality threshold Nil 
*To the extent quantifiable. 

b. Cases filed by our Company: 
 

Nature of Litigation Number of matters 
outstanding 

Amount involved* 
(₹ in lakhs) 

Criminal Matters Nil Nil 
Other civil litigation considered to be material by our Company’s 
Board of Directors 

Nil Nil 

*To the extent quantifiable. 

 Litigations involving our Directors, Promoters, Promoter Group and Group Companies : 
 

Nature of Litigation Amount 
involved* 
(₹ in lakhs) 

Litigation involving our Directors, Promoters and Promoter Group (Tax Liabilities (Direct Tax)  13.67 

Litigation involving our Group Companies (Tax Liabilities (Direct Tax) 64.62 

*To the extent quantifiable. 

For further details, please refer to section titled ‘Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments’ 
beginning on page no. 100 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

8. Risk Factors 
 
For details of potential risks associated with our ongoing business activities and industry, investment in Equity 
Shares of the Company, material litigations which impact the business of the Company and other economic factors 
please refer  “Risk Factors” on page no. 19 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
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9. Summary of Contingent Liabilities of our Company 
 
For the half-year ending period on September 30, 2023, and for the Financials Years ending on March 31, 2023 
and March 31, 2022 the contingent liabilities that had not been provided for, details of the same as under: 
 

(Amount ₹ in Lakhs) 
Sl. No. Particulars September 

30, 2023 
March 31, 

2023 
March 31, 

2022 
a. Contingent Liabilities Nil Nil Nil 
b. Commitments Nil Nil Nil 

*Please refer “Financial Statement” on page no. 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer for more information. 
 
10. Summary of Related Party Transactions 
 
For details of the related party transactions, as reported in the Financial Statements for Financial Years ending 
March 31, 2023, please refer “Financial Statement” on page no. 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
11. Financing Arrangements 
 
There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of the Promoter Group, our 
Directors and their relatives, Directors of the company which is a Promoter of our Company have financed the 
purchase by any other person of securities of our Company other than in the normal course of the business of the 
financing entity during a period of six months immediately preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
12. Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the last one year 
 
Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash in the one year preceding the 
date of  this Draft Letter of Offer. 
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SECTION III - RISK FACTORS 
 

An investment in equity shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information 
in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment 
in the Equity Shares. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination 
of our Company and the terms of this issue including the merits and risks involved. Any potential investor in, and 
subscriber of, the Equity Shares should also pay particular attention to the fact that we are governed in India by 
a legal and regulatory environment in which some material aspects may be different from that which prevails in 
other countries. The risks and uncertainties described in this section are not the only ones relevant to us or our 
Equity Shares, the industry in which we operate or to India. Additional risks and uncertainties, not currently 
known to us or that we currently do not deem material may also adversely affect our business, results of 
operations, cash flows and financial condition. If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently 
known or are not currently deemed material, actually occur, our business, results of operations, cash flows and 
financial condition could be adversely affected, the price of our Equity Shares could decline, and investors may 
lose all or part of their investment. 

Unless otherwise stated in the relevant risk factors set forth below, we are not in a position to specify or quantify 
the financial or other implications of any of the risks mentioned herein. To obtain a better understanding, you 
should read this section in conjunction with the chapters titled “Industry Overview” beginning on page 67, “Our 
Business” beginning on page 77,and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations” beginning on page 96 respectively, of this Draft Letter of Offer as well as other financial 
information contained herein. 

The following factors have been considered for determining the materiality of Risk Factors: 

● Some risks may not be material individually but may be found material collectively; 
● Some risks may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; 
● Some risks may not be material at present but may have material impact in future. 

 
The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in 
the risk factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and 
hence the same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information of 
our Company used in this section is derived from our Audited Consolidated Financial Statement prepared in 
accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act. Unless otherwise stated, we are not in a position to 
specify or quantify the financial or other risks mentioned herein. For capitalized terms used but not defined in 
this chapter, refer to the chapter titled “Definitions and Abbreviations” beginning on page 3 of this Draft Letter 
of Offer. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not 
in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor over another. 

The Draft Letter of Offer also contains forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our 
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward- looking statements as a result of 
many factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in the Draft Letter of Offer. The risk 
factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding: 

 
 
 
 

 

Business Risk 
Internal 
Risk 

 Risk Factors Issue 
Related 

 External 
Risk 
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INTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

1. We have certain outstanding litigation against us, an adverse outcome of which may adversely affect our 
business, reputation and results of operations. 

A summary of outstanding matters set out below includes details of civil and criminal proceedings, tax 
proceedings, statutory and regulatory actions and other material pending litigation involving us, our Subsidiary, 
Directors, Promoter and Group Company, as at the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Cases against our Company:  

Nature of Cases No of Outstanding Cases Amount involved (In Lakhs) 

Criminal Complaints Nil Nil 

Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities Nil Nil 

Taxation Matters 

Income Tax Nil Nil 

TDS Nil Nil 

GST Nil Nil 

Excise Nil Nil 

Other Litigation Nil Nil 

  
Cases against our Promoters, Directors and Group Companies: 

Nature of Cases No of Outstanding Cases Amount involved (In Lakhs) 

Criminal Complaints  Nil Nil 

Taxation Matters 6 78.29 

Other Litigation Nil Nil 

 
The amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent ascertainable and include amounts 
claimed jointly and severally. If any new developments arise, such as a change in Indian law or rulings against us 
by appellate courts or tribunals, we may need to make provisions in our financial statements that could increase 
our expenses and current liabilities. 

For further details of certain material legal proceedings involving our Company, our Promoters, our directors, see 
“Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” beginning on page 100 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

The amounts claimed in these proceedings have been disclosed to the extent ascertainable and include amounts 
claimed jointly and severally. If any new developments arise, such as a change in Indian law or rulings against us 
by appellate courts or tribunals, we may need to make provisions in our financial statements that could increase 
our expenses and current liabilities.  

We cannot assure you that any of the outstanding litigation matters will be settled in our favor or that no 
additional liabilities will arise out of these proceedings. In addition to the above, we could also be adversely 
affected by complaints, claims or legal actions brought by persons, including before consumer forums or sector-
specific or other regulatory authorities in the ordinary course of business or otherwise, in relation to our business 



 

 

21 
 

operations, our intellectual property, our branding or marketing efforts or campaigns or our policies. We may also 
be subject to legal action by our employees and/or former employees in relation to alleged grievances, such as 
termination of employment. We cannot assure you that such complaints, claims or requests for information will 
not result in investigations, enquiries or legal actions by any regulatory authority or third persons against us.  

For further details of certain material legal proceedings involving our Company, our Promoter, our directors, see 
“Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” beginning on page 100 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

2. Our Company is currently listed only at CSE Limited, which does not have an active on-line trading 
Platform for trading of these Equity Shares and hence no benefit of listing and trading shall be available 
for the shareholders of the Company.  

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited was established in the year 1908. However, in terms of the exit circular 
May 30, 2012, SEBI, vide its various exit orders, derecognized regional stock exchanges during the period 
January 2013 to June 2015 including Inter-connected stock exchange and Over-The-Counter Exchange of India 
formed with the object of providing national level liquidity. CSE Limited has not been able to achieve the 
prescribed turnover on a continuing basis in terms of the Exit Policy. The explanation given for the failure to 
achieve such a turnover by CSE Limited is that SEBI had issued a notice dated April 3, 2013, under Section 12A 
of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 regarding non-compliance of Regulation 3 of Securities 
Contracts (Regulation) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing Corporations) Regulations, and thereby stopping the 
clearing house facility of the CSE Limited. Without the clearing house, the business of clearance has come to a 
stop, thereby preventing trade of securities at CSE Limited.  
 
As on date, CSE Limited is still a recognized stock exchange as it continues to meet certain guidelines specified 
by SEBI in the exit orders and circulars, however no trading is permitted on the said exchange. Due to the said 
factor, there shall not be any active trading in the Rights Shares to be issued by the Company, and hence the 
shareholders shall not be able to enjoy the listing gains. 
 

3. Our business model involves investment activities. The risks that we may face in our business include 
business risk, market risk, inflation risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, political risk, company risk, and 
credit risk.  

Our business model involves investment activities such as equity investment in group companies, new 
ventures/projects, and investment in quoted shares and securities, commodities, currency market, G Sec Bonds, 
liquid funds, and Debt Funds. 

The risks that the company may face in its investment activities are as below: 

1. Business Risk: This is the risk that the company may face due to the basic viability of its business 
model. For example, if the company invests in a new venture or project that fails to generate expected 
returns, it may face significant losses. 

2. Market Risk: This is the risk of losing investments due to factors such as political risk, macroeconomic 
risk, and other factors that affect the performance of the overall market. For example, if the stock 
market experiences a downturn, the company's investments in quoted shares and securities may lose 
value. 

3. Inflation Risk: This is the risk that inflation will reduce the purchasing power of the company's 
investments. For example, if the company invests in a bond that pays a fixed interest rate, inflation may 
reduce the real value of the interest payments. 

4. Interest Rate Risk: This is the risk that changes in interest rates will affect the value of the company's 
investments. For example, if the company invests in a bond that pays a fixed interest rate, and interest 
rates rise, the value of the bond may decline. 

5. Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the company may be unable to buy or sell investments quickly on 
the open market. For example, if the company invests in a small, illiquid stock, it may be difficult to sell 
the stock quickly if the company needs to raise cash. 

6. Political Risk: This is the risk that domestic or international regions may make significant changes to 
the business environment that affects the company's investments. For example, if any government 
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imposes new regulations that make it difficult for the company to operate, the company's investments 
may be affected. 

7. Company Risk: This is the risk that the company may make bad business decisions, struggle to maintain 
positive cash flows, or continually produce goods or services that cannot meet consumer demand. For 
example, if the company invests in a new venture that fails to generate expected returns, the company 
may face significant losses. 

8. Credit Risk: This is the risk that a company may default on its credit obligations. For example, if the 
company invests in a bond issued by a company that later defaults on its debt, the company may face 
significant losses. 

4. We are subject to periodic inspection by the RBI and any adverse action taken could affect our business 
and operations. 

As an NBFC, we are subject to periodic inspection by the RBI under Section 45N of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 (the “RBI Act”), pursuant to which the RBI inspects our books of accounts and other records for the 
purpose of verifying the correctness or completeness of any statement, information or particulars furnished to the 
RBI. Any irregularities found during such investigations by such regulatory authorities could, similarly, expose 
us to warnings, penalties and restrictions. During the course of finalization of inspection, regulatory authorities 
share their findings and recommendations with us and give us an opportunity to provide justification and 
clarifications. Further, such regulatory authorities also seek certain clarifications and share their findings in the 
ordinary course of business. We have responded to observations made by such authorities and addressed them; 
however, we cannot assure you that these authorities will not find any deficiencies in future inspections or 
otherwise/ the authorities will not make similar or other observations in the future. There can be no assurance 
that in the future the RBI will not pass any orders levying penalty, on our Company, on the basis of its periodical 
inspection of our Company, which may in turn adversely affect our reputation, business, operations and 
profitability. In the event we are unable to resolve such deficiencies or irregularity or noncompliance to the 
satisfaction of the relevant authority, we may be restricted in our ability to conduct our business as we currently 
do and may have an impact on our financial including our capital adequacy ratio. 

5. Fluctuations in the market value of our investments could adversely affect our results of operations and 
financial condition. 

Fluctuations in the market values of our investments as part of treasury management could cause us to write 
down the value of our assets, affect our liquidity and reduce our ability to enforce our security, which could 
adversely affect our result of operations and financial condition. We may not accurately identify changes in the 
value of our investments caused by changes in market prices, and our assessments, assumptions or estimates may 
prove inaccurate or not predictive of actual results. 

6. Our business is operating under various laws which require us to obtain approvals from the concerned 
statutory/regulatory authorities in the ordinary course of business and our inability to obtain, maintain 
or renew requisite statutory and regulatory permits and approvals for our business operations could 
materially and adversely affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition. 

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulations and supervision by the RBI. In addition to the numerous 
conditions required for the registration as a NBFC with the RBI, we are required to maintain certain statutory and 
regulatory permits and approvals for our business. Our business requires us to obtain and renew from time to 
time certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permits, some of which have expired and for which we have 
either made or are in the process of making an application for obtaining the approval or its renewal.  Further, 
these approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions under various regulations, guidelines, circulars and 
statutes regulated by various authorities for operating our business activities may contain conditions, some of 
which could be onerous. There can be no assurance that the relevant authorities will issue these approvals or 
licenses in a timely manner, or at all. In the event of any unanticipated delay in receipt of such approvals, it will 
have an adverse impact on our business operations.   
 
Failure by us to renew, maintain or obtain the required permits or approvals at the requisite time may result in the 
interruption of our operations and may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of 
operations. Further, we cannot assure that the approvals, licenses, registrations and permits issued to us would 



 

 

23 
 

not be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any terms or 
conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action. Any failure to renew the approvals that have expired or 
apply for and obtain the required approvals, licenses, registrations or permits, or any suspension or revocation of 
any of the approvals, licenses, registrations and permits that have been or may be issued to us, may impede our 
operations. For further details, see “Government and Other Approvals” on page 107 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
In the event that we are unable to obtain such approvals in a timely manner or at all, our business operations may 
be adversely affected.  

7. We depend on skilled personnel and if we are unable to recruit and retain skilled personnel, our ability to 
operate or grow our business could be affected. 

Our Business Operation required skilled and creative manpower. Further, we spend significant time and 
resources in training the manpower we hire. Our success is substantially dependent on our ability to recruit, train 
and retain skilled manpower. High attrition and competition for manpower may limit our ability to attract and 
retain the skilled manpower necessary for our future growth requirements. We cannot assure you that skilled 
manpower will continue to be available in sufficient numbers suitable to our requirements or that we will be able 
to grow our workforce in a manner consistent with our growth objectives, which may affect our business, 
financial condition, results of operations and prospects. 

8. If we are unable to successfully execute our growth strategies, our business, prospects and results of 
operations could be materially and adversely affected.  

We propose to expand our business by adopting a series of strategies. Our growth strategies could place 
significant demand on our management and our administrative, operational and financial infrastructure. We 
could also encounter difficulties and delays in executing our growth strategies due to a number of factors, 
including, without limitation, delays in implementation, lack of appropriate infrastructure, unavailability of 
human and capital resources, or any other risks that we may or may not have foreseen. Our management may 
also change its view on the desirability of current strategies, and any resultant change in our strategies could put 
significant strain on our resources. Further, we may be unable to achieve any synergies or successfully integrate 
any acquired business into our portfolio.  
 
In the year 2002, M/s. Sambhawnath Marketing (P) Ltd. was amalgamated with our company pursuant to an 
order of Hon’ble Calcutta High Court. Any business that we acquire may subject us to additional liabilities, 
including unknown or contingent liabilities, liabilities for failure to comply with laws and regulations, and we 
may become liable for the past activities of such businesses. We may also encounter other additional anticipated 
risks and significant competition in such markets. If we are unable to successfully execute our growth strategies, 
our business, prospects and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. 
 

9. Some of our corporate records including forms filed with the Registrar of Companies prior to the year 
2002 are not traceable. We cannot assure you that these forms filings will be available in the future or that 
we will not be subject to any penalties imposed by the relevant regulatory authority in this respect.  

Our Company is unable to trace certain corporate and other documents in relation to our Company including 
forms filed with the Registrar of Companies prior to the year 2002. The forms filed with the ROC like Change in 
Registered Office are not traced. Tripartite agreement between our Company, NSDL and Maheshwari 
Datamatics Private Limited are also not traced.   
 
Our Company may not be in a position to attend to and / or respond appropriately to any legal matter due to lack 
of lost records and to that extent the same could adversely affect our business operations.  
 

10. We do not have any insurance coverage to protect us against all potential losses to which we may be 
subject. 

We have not taken any insurance coverage for a number of the risks associated with our business, such as 
insurance cover against loss or damage by fire, explosion, burglary, theft and robbery. To the extent that we 
suffer any loss or damage that is not covered by insurance, our business and results of operations could be 
adversely affected. 
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11. Our measures to prevent money laundering may not be completely effective and we may be subject to 
scrutiny and penalties by the RBI for failure to implement effective measures. Moreover, various state 
government laws regulating money lending transactions could adversely affect our business, prospects, 
results of operations and financial condition. 

Our Company is required to comply with applicable anti-money-laundering and anti-terrorism laws and other 
regulations in India. Our measures to prevent money laundering as required by the RBI and other KYC 
compliance applicable in India, including the Reserve Bank of India (Know Your Customer) Master Directions, 
2016 dated February 25, 2016, as amended (“KYC Directions”) and the adoption of anti-money laundering 
policies and compliance procedures in all our branches may not be completely effective. Additionally, certain 
states in India have enacted laws to regulate money lending transactions, which may for instance establish a 
maximum rate of interest that can be charged. In the event, we are required to comply with the provisions of 
these state money lending laws and KYC Compliances, there may be severe civil and criminal penalties for non-
compliance with the relevant money lending statutes. In the event that the government of any state in India 
requires us to comply with the provisions of their respective state money lending laws, KYC Compliances, or 
imposes any penalty against us for prior non-compliance, our business and results of operations could be 
adversely affected. 
 

12. We are dependent on our Promoters, directors, and key managerial personnel of our Company for success 
whose loss could seriously impair the ability to continue to manage and expand business efficiently.  

Our Promoters, Directors and key managerial personnel collectively have vast experience in the industry and are 
difficult to replace. They provide expertise, which enables us to make well informed decisions in relation to our 
business and our future prospects. For further details of our Directors and key managerial personnel, please refer 
to Section ‘Our Management’ on page 81 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our success largely depends on the 
continued services and performance of our management and other key personnel. The loss of service of the 
Promoters and other senior management could seriously impair the ability to continue to manage and expand the 
business efficiently. Also, the loss of any of the management or other key personnel may adversely affect the 
operations, finances and profitability of our Company. Any failure or inability of our Company to efficiently 
retain and manage its human resources would adversely affect our ability to expand our business. Further, our 
future performance will depend upon the skills, efforts, expertise, and continued services of these persons and 
our ability to attract and retain qualified senior and mid-level managers. The loss of their services or those of any 
other members of management could impair our ability to implement our strategy and may have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.  
 

13. We have entered into, and will continue to enter into, related party transactions. 

We have entered into and may in the ordinary course of our business continue to enter into transactions with 
related parties that include certain of our Promoter, Promoter Group, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, and 
Group Companies. For further details in relation to our related party transactions, see “Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements - Note 16- Related Party Transaction” under Financial Statement beginning on page 94. 
While we have entered into such transactions on an arm’s length basis, there is no assurance that we could not 
have achieved more favorable terms had such transactions not been entered into with related parties. 
 

14. The Promoter and Promoter Group will continue to exercise control post completion of the Offer and will 
have considerable influence over the outcome of matters. 

Upon completion of this Offer, our Promoter and Promoter Group will continue to own a majority of our Equity 
Shares. As a result, our Promoters will have the ability to exercise significant influence over all matters requiring 
shareholders’ approval. Our Promoters will also be in a position to influence any shareholder action or approval 
requiring a majority vote, except where they may be required by the applicable law to abstain from voting. This 
control could also delay, defer or prevent a change in control of our Company, impede a merger, consolidation, 
takeover or other business combination involving our Company, or discourage a potential acquirer from 
obtaining control of our Company even if it is in the best interests of our Company. The interests of our 
Promoters could conflict with the interests of our other equity shareholders, and the Promoters could make 
decisions that materially and adversely affect your investment in the Equity Shares.  
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15. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such 
incidences could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation. 

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and 
cause serious harm to our reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter such 
misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity may not be effective in all 
cases. Our employees and agents may also commit errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for 
alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions on account of which our business, financial condition, results of 
operations, and goodwill could be adversely affected. 
 

16. As the Equity Shares of our Company are listed on CSE Limited, our Company is subject to certain 
obligations and reporting requirements under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and comply with other 
SEBI regulations. Any non-compliances/delay in complying with such obligations and reporting 
requirements may render us liable to prosecution and/or penalties. 

The Equity Shares of our Company are listed on CSE Limited, therefore we are subject to the obligations and 
reporting requirements prescribed under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, to the extent applicable and have to 
adhere to and comply with other applicable Regulations framed by SEBI. Our Company endeavours to comply 
with all such obligations and reporting requirements, any non-compliance which might have been committed by 
us, may result into CSE Limited and/or SEBI imposing penalties, issuing warnings and show cause notices 
against us and/or taking actions as provided under the SEBI Act and the rules and regulations made there under 
and applicable SEBI Circulars.  
 
The trading of the equity shares of the Company at CSE was suspended with effect from March 21, 2014 due to 
some non-compliance of the Listing Agreement via notice dated March 12, 2014 of CSE. Subsequently, the 
suspension of trading got revoked and are admitted for dealing effective from July 04, 2019 vide CSE letter ref 
no. CSE/LD/14703/2019 dated July 03, 2019.    
 
Any such adverse regulatory action or development in the future could affect our business reputation, divert 
management attention and result in a material adverse effect on our business prospects and financial 
performance. 
 

17. The Company has taken registration from only one of the Credit Information Company ("CIC") out of 
four as required under the provisions of CIC Act, 2005 

The Reserve Bank of India's Department of Banking Operations and Development directly regulates credit 
information bureaus. As per the provisions of CIC Act, 2005 every retail loan taken by a consumer shall be 
reported by all banks, financial institutions and NBFCs to all four credit information bureaus. Hence, It is 
mandatory for all NBFCs which provides/lends money to become members by obtaining registration of all four 
Credit Information Company ("CIC"), namely, TransUnion CIBIL, Equifax, Experian, and CRIF High Mark 
and submit data with regards to every retail loan taken by a consumer (including historical data) to them. All 
CICs and Credit Institutions shall keep the record of credit information collected/maintained by them in a 
proper manner and update their records regularly on a monthly basis or at such intervals as could even be 
mutually decided between the Credit institutions and the CIC in terms of Regulation 10(a) (i) and (ii) of the 
Credit Information Companies Regulations, 2006.  

However, the Company has taken registration from only one of the Credit Information Company namely 
Equifax.  

Any adverse regulatory action from RBI for non-compliance or any adverse development in the future could 
affect our business operation. 
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ISSUE SPECIFIC FACTORS  

18. There shall be no market for the Rights Entitlements. 

The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed on CSE Limited, however there is no trading on CSE 
Limited, for further details, kindly refer to the Risk Factor ‘Our Company is currently listed only CSE Limited, 
which does not have an active on-line trading Platform for trading of these Equity Shares and hence no 
benefit of listing and trading shall be available for the shareholders of the Company’ on page 21 of this Draft 
Letter of Offer. Since the trading platform of CSE Limited is not functional, the Applicants shall not be able to 
deal in the Rights Entitlements using the secondary market platform of CSE Limited. The Investors may 
renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts, either in full or in part through an 
off-market transfer, during the Renunciation Period. Such renunciation shall result in renouncement of the Right 
Shares. The Investors should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account 
prior to the renunciation. Eligible Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market 
transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the 
Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. As a result of which, no assurance can be given that an active 
trading market for the Rights Entitlements will develop on during the Renunciation Period. Also there shall not 
be sufficient liquidity in Rights Entitlements trading during this period as there is no trading platform on the CSE 
Limited.  

19. Investors shall not have the option to receive Right Shares in physical form. 

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with SEBI Rights 
Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of Right Shares shall be made in dematerialised 
form only. Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form. 

20. The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form may 
lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar. 

In accordance Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Circular 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of 
Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical 
Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow de-mat account opened by our Company during the Issue 
Period. The Physical Shareholders are requested to furnish the details of their de-mat account to the Registrar not 
later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in 
their de-mat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical 
Shareholders who do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working 
Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse. Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 3, 2018, 
issued by the SEBI, with effect from April 1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless 
the Equity Shares are held in dematerialized form (except in case of transmission or transposition of Equity 
Shares). For further details, please refer to the section titled ‘Terms of the Issue’ on page 116 of this draft Letter 
of Offer. 
 

21. Investment in Right Shares is exposed to certain risks.  

The Issue Price is ₹10 (Rupees Ten Only) per Rights Equity Share. The Right Shares offered under this Issue 
will be listed under a separate ISIN ‘[●]’. An active market for trading may not develop for the Right Shares. 
This may affect the liquidity of the Right Shares and restrict your ability to sell them.  
 

22. Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without 
compensation and result in a dilution of shareholding. 

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and become 
null and void, and Eligible Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The proportionate 
ownership and voting interest in our Company of Eligible Shareholders who fail (or are not able) to exercise their 
Rights Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your unexercised Rights Entitlements, the 
consideration you receive for them may not be sufficient to fully compensate you for dilution of your percentage 
ownership of the equity share capital of our Company that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncees 
may not be able to apply in case of failure in completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a 
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manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees prior to the Issue 
Closing Date.  
 
The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed on CSE Limited. Since the trading platform of CSE 
Limited is not functional, the Applicants shall not be able to deal in the Rights Entitlements using the secondary 
market platform of Limited. The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective 
demat accounts, either in full or in part through an off-market transfer, during the Renunciation Period. Such 
renunciation shall result in renouncement of the Right Shares. The Investors should have the demat Rights 
Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation.  
 

23. SEBI has recently, by way of Rights Issue Circulars streamlined the process of rights issues. You should 
follow the instructions carefully, as stated in such SEBI circulars and in this Draft Letter of Offer. 

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Shareholders has recently 
been introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by 
capital market intermediaries. Eligible Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the 
requirements as stated in the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation 
to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see ‘Terms of the Issue’ on 
page 116 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, 
the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Right Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior 
to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the 
Eligible Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow 
account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements 
relating to:  
 

(a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations; or  

 
(b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or  

 
(c) The demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or suspended for debit or 

credit or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; 
or  
 

(d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in the physical form on the 
Record Date the details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our 
Company or Registrar; or 

(e) Credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or  
 

(f) The ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings. 
 

24. Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our 
Company may dilute your shareholding.  

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares by our 
Company may dilute your shareholding in our Company. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional 
Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity Shares by any of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that 
such sales may occur may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that 
our Promoter and Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future. 
 

25. You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Right Shares and Rights 
Entitlement.  

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares 
of an Indian Company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment of long-term 
capital gains tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares held for more than 12 
months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the Equity Shares are sold. 
Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 (Twelve) months or less will 
be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares may be 
partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases where such exemption is provided under a treaty 
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between India and the country of which the seller is a resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s 
ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as 
well as in their own jurisdiction on gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares.  
 
Further, the Finance Act, 2019, which has been notified with effect from April 01, 2019, stipulates the sale, 
transfer, and issue of securities through exchanges, depositories or otherwise to be charged with stamp duty. The 
Finance Act has also clarified that, in the absence of a specific provision under an agreement, the liability to pay 
stamp duty in case of sale of securities through stock exchanges will be on the buyer, while in other cases of 
transfer for consideration through a depository, and the onus will be on the transferor. The stamp duty for 
transfer of securities other than debentures, on a delivery basis is specified at 0.015% and on a non-delivery basis 
is specified at 0.003% of the consideration amount. These amendments have been notified on December 10, 
2019, and have come into effect from July 01, 2020.  
 
The Finance Act, 2020 has also provided a number of amendments to the direct and indirect tax regime, 
including, without limitation, a simplified alternate direct tax regime and that dividend distribution tax will not 
be payable in respect of dividends declared, distributed or paid by a domestic company after March 31, 2020, 
and accordingly, such dividends would not be exempt in the hands of the shareholders, both resident as well as 
non-resident.  
 

26. You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until 15 (Fifteen) days after the 
date on which this Issue closes.  

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the depository 
participants until approximately 15 (Fifteen) days from the Issue Closing Date. You can through off-market 
transaction transfer such Equity Shares only after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. 
There can be no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to you will be credited to your demat account. 
 
The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed on CSE Limited, however there is no trading on CSE 
Limited, for further details, kindly refer to the Risk Factor ‘Our Company is currently listed only CSE Limited, 
which does not have an active on-line trading platform for trading of these Equity Shares and hence no 
benefit of listing and trading shall be available for the shareholders of the Company’ on page 21 of this Draft 
Letter of Offer. 
 

27. Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian 
law and could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position. 

Under the Companies Act, any Company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares pre-
emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing ownership 
percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have been waived by 
the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted on such resolution, unless our 
Company has obtained government approval to issue without such rights. However, if the law of the jurisdiction 
that you are in does not permit the exercise of such pre-emptive rights without us filing an offering document or 
registration statement with the applicable authority in such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-
emptive rights unless we make such a filing. We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation to pre-
emptive rights otherwise available by Indian law to you. To the extent that you are unable to exercise pre-
emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would be reduced. 

 
28. Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely affect 

the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results. 

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Rupees on the Stock Exchange. Any dividends in respect of our 
Equity Shares will also be paid in Rupees and subsequently converted into the relevant foreign currency for 
repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during the time that it takes to 
undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign investors. In addition, any adverse movement 
in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, 
for example, because of a delay in regulatory approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may 
reduce the proceeds received by equity shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the 
U.S. dollar has fluctuated substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, 
which may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent 
of our operating results. 
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29. Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions. 

Indian legal principles related to corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties and liabilities, and 
shareholders’ rights may differ from those that would apply to a Company in another jurisdiction. Shareholders’ 
rights including in relation to class actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as shareholders’ rights 
under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may have more difficulty in asserting their rights as 
shareholder in an Indian Company than as shareholder of a corporation in another jurisdiction. 
 
EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS 

30. The COVID-19 pandemic, or any future pandemic or widespread public health emergency, could 
materially and adversely impact our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.  

In late 2019, COVID-19 emerged and by March 11, 2020 was declared a global pandemic by The World Health 
Organization. Governments and municipalities around the world instituted measures in an effort to control the 
spread of COVID-19, including quarantines, shelter-in-place orders, school closings, travel restrictions, lock 
down of cities and closure of non-essential businesses. By the end of March, the macroeconomic impacts became 
significant, exhibited by, among other things, a rise in unemployment and market volatility. The outbreak of 
COVID-19 in many countries, including India, the United Kingdom and the United States, has significantly and 
adversely impacted economic activity and has contributed to significant volatility and negative pressure in 
financial markets, and it is possible that the outbreak of COVID-19 will cause a prolonged global economic 
crisis, recession or depression, despite monetary and fiscal interventions by governments and central banks 
globally. On March 24, 2020, the Government of India ordered a national lockdown in response to the spread of 
COVID-19. Although some governments are beginning to ease or lift these restrictions, the impacts from the 
severe disruptions caused by the effective shutdown of large segments of the global economy remain unknown 
and no prediction can be made of when any of the restrictions currently in place will be relaxed or expire, or 
whether or when further restrictions will be announced.  

The outbreak, or threatened outbreak, of any severe communicable disease (particularly COVID-19) could 
materially adversely affect overall business sentiment and environment, particularly if such outbreak is 
inadequately controlled. The spread of any severe communicable disease may also adversely affect the 
operations of our clients and service providers, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition 
and results of operations. The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in authorities implementing several measures 
such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, shelter in place orders, and shutdowns. These measures have 
impacted and may further impact our workforce and operations, the operations of our clients, and those of our 
respective service providers. There is currently substantial medical uncertainty regarding COVID-19. A rapid 
increase in severe cases and deaths where measures taken by governments fail or are lifted prematurely, may 
cause significant economic disruption in India and in the rest of the world. The scope, duration and frequency of 
such measures and the adverse effects of COVID-19 remain uncertain and could be severe. If any of our 
employees were suspected of contracting COVID-19 or any other epidemic disease, this could require us to 
quarantine some or all of these employees or disinfect the facilities used for our operations. In addition, our 
revenue and profitability could be impacted to the extent that a natural disaster, health epidemic or other outbreak 
harms the Indian and global economy in general.  

The outbreak has significantly increased economic uncertainty. It is likely that the current outbreak or continued 
spread of COVID-19 will cause an economic slowdown and it is possible that it could cause a global recession. 
The spread of COVID-19 has caused us to modify our business practices (including employee travel, employee 
work locations, and cancellation of physical participation in meetings, events and conferences), and we may take 
further actions as may be required by government authorities or that we determine are in the best interests of our 
employees, and partners. There is no certainty that such measures will be sufficient to mitigate the risks posed by 
the outbreak, and our ability to perform critical functions could be harmed. The extent to which the COVID-19 
further impacts our results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be 
predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of the coronavirus and the 
actions taken globally to contain the coronavirus or treat its impact, among others. The degree to which COVID-
19 impacts our results will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, 
including, but not limited to, the duration and spread of the outbreak, its severity, the actions taken to contain the 
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outbreak or treat its impact, and how quickly and to what extent normal economic and operating conditions can 
resume. The above risks can threaten the safe operation of our facilities and cause disruption of operational 
activities, environmental harm, loss of life, injuries and impact the wellbeing of our people. 

Further in case the lockdown is extended, it could result in muted economic growth or give rise to a recessionary 
economic scenario, in India and globally, which could adversely affect the business, prospects, results of 
operations and financial condition of our Company. The full extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic, or any 
future pandemic or widespread public health emergency impacts our business, operations and financial results 
will depend on numerous evolving factors that we may not be able to accurately predict, including: the scope, 
severity, and duration of the pandemic; actions taken by governments, business and individuals in response to the 
pandemic; the effect on customer demand for and ability to pay for our products; the impact on our capital 
expenditure; disruptions or restrictions on our employees’ and suppliers’ ability to work and travel; any extended 
period of remote work arrangements; and strain on our or our customers’ business continuity plans, and resultant 
operational risk.  

31. A slowdown in economic growth in India could adversely affect our business, results of operations, 
financial condition and cash flows.  

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance and 
growth are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health of the economy in which we operate. There have 
been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of India. Economic growth in the country in which we operate 
is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade movements, namely 
export demand and movements in key imports of materials, global economic uncertainty and liquidity crisis, and 
volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural production. Consequently, 
any future slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition 
and cash flows. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies could 
adversely affect economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general and our business in 
particular and high rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without proportionately increasing our 
revenues, and as such decrease our operating margin. 

32. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax laws, 
may adversely affect our business and financial performance.  

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by unfavorable changes in or interpretations 
of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and our business. Please refer 
to “Key Regulations and Policies” on page 53 of this Draft Letter of Offer for details of the laws currently 
applicable to us.  

There can be no assurance that the Government of India may not implement new regulations and policies which 
will require us to obtain approvals and licenses from the Government of India and other regulatory bodies or 
impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations. Any such changes and the related uncertainties 
with respect to the applicability, interpretation and implementation of any amendment to, or change to governing 
laws, regulation or policy in the jurisdictions in which we operate may have a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, we may have to incur expenditures to comply 
with the requirements of any new regulations, which may also materially harm our results of operations. Any 
unfavorable changes to the laws and regulations applicable to us could also subject us to additional liabilities.  

GST has been implemented with effect from July 1, 2017 and has replaced the indirect taxes on goods and 
services such as central excise duty, service tax, central sales tax, state VAT and surcharge being collected by the 
central and state governments. The GST has led to increased tax incidence and administrative compliance. Any 
future amendments may affect our overall tax efficiency, and may result in significant additional taxes becoming 
payable.  

Further, the general anti avoidance rules (“GAAR”) provisions have been made effective from assessment year 
2018-19 onwards, i.e.; financial Year 2017-18 onwards and the same may get triggered once transactions are 
undertaken to avoid tax. The consequences of the GAAR provisions being applied to an arrangement could result 
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in denial of tax benefit amongst other consequences. In the absence of any precedents on the subject, the 
application of these provisions is uncertain.  

The application of various Indian tax laws, rules and regulations to our business, currently or in the future, is 
subject to interpretation by the applicable taxation authorities. If such tax laws, rules and regulations are 
amended, new adverse laws, rules or regulations are adopted or current laws are interpreted adversely to our 
interests, the results could increase our tax payments (prospectively or retrospectively) and/or subject us to 
penalties. Further, changes in capital gains tax or tax on capital market transactions or sale of shares could affect 
investor returns. As a result, any such changes or interpretations could have an adverse effect on our business and 
financial performance.  

33. Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial 
condition.  

Inflation is typically impacted by factors such as governmental policies, regulations, commodity prices, liquidity 
and global economic environment. Any change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation 
policies could adversely affect the inflation rates. Continued high rates of inflation may increase our costs such 
as salaries, travel costs and related allowances, which are typically linked to general price levels. There can be no 
assurance that we will be able to pass on any additional costs to our clients or that our revenue will increase 
proportionately corresponding to such inflation. Accordingly, high rates of inflation in India could have an 
adverse effect on our profitability and, if significant, on our financial condition.  

34. You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on sale of Equity Shares.  

Under the current Indian Income Tax provisions, all transactions of purchase and sales of securities on Indian 
stock exchanges are subject to levy of securities transaction tax (STT) which will be collected by respective 
stock exchange on which the securities are transacted. Accordingly, the Indian Income Tax Act has special 
capital gains tax provisions for all transactions of purchase and sale of equity shares carried out on the Indian 
Stock Exchanges. Under the current Indian Income Tax provisions, unless specifically exempted, capital gains 
arising from the sale of equity shares in an Indian company are generally taxable in India. 

35. Any downgrading of India's debt rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise 
financing.  

Any adverse revisions to India's credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or international 
rating agencies may adversely affect our ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates and other 
commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on our 
capital expenditure plans, business and financial performance.  

36. We have not prepared, and currently do not intend to prepare, our financial statements in accordance 
with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). Our transition to IFRS reporting could 
have a material adverse effect on our reported results of operations or financial condition.  

Public companies in India, including us, may be required to prepare annual and interim financial statements 
under IFRS in accordance with the roadmap for convergence with IFRS announced by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, Government of India through a press note dated January 22, 2010 (the “IFRS Convergence Note”). The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs by a press release dated February 25, 2011 has notified that 35 Indian Accounting 
Standards are to be converged with IFRS. The date of implementation of such converged Indian accounting 
standards has not yet been determined. Our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows or changes in 
shareholders’ equity may appear materially different under IFRS than under Indian GAAP or our adoption of 
converged Indian Accounting Standards may adversely affect our reported results of operations or financial 
condition. This may have a material adverse effect on the amount of income recognized during that period and in 
the corresponding (restated) period in the comparative Fiscal/period.  
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37. Financial difficulty and other problems in certain long-term lending institutions and investment 
institutions in India could have a negative impact on our business.  

We are exposed to the risks of the Indian financial system which may be affected by the financial difficulties 
faced by certain Indian financial institutions because the commercial soundness of many financial institutions 
may be closely related as a result of credit, trading, clearing or other relationships. This risk, which is referred to 
as “systemic risk,” may adversely affect financial intermediaries, such as clearing agencies, banks, securities 
firms and exchanges with whom we interact on a daily basis. Our transactions with these financial institutions 
expose us to credit risk in the event of default by the counterparty, which can be exacerbated during periods of 
market illiquidity. As the Indian financial system operates within an emerging market, we face risks of a nature 
and extent not typically faced in more developed economies, including the risk of deposit runs notwithstanding 
the existence of a national deposit insurance scheme. The problems faced by individual Indian financial 
institutions and any instability in or difficulties faced by the Indian financial system generally could create 
adverse market perception about Indian financial institutions and banks. This in turn could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

38. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability to 
attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.  

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-residents and 
residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and 
reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not in 
compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions referred to 
above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the 
Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from 
India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority. There can be no 
assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other government agency can be obtained on any 
particular terms or at all.  

39. Political instability or changes in the Government could adversely affect economic conditions in India 
generally and our business in particular.  

Our business may be affected by interest rates, changes in Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest 
and other political, economic or other developments in or affecting India. Elimination or substantial change of 
policies or the introduction of policies that negatively affect the Company’s business could cause its results of 
operations to suffer. Any significant change in India’s economic policies could disrupt business and economic 
conditions in India generally and the Company’s business in particular.  

40. Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war involving India or other countries could 
adversely affect the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price of our Equity 
Shares.  

Any major hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events that are 
beyond our control, could have a material adverse effect on India’s economy and our business. Incidents such as 
the Mumbai terrorist attacks and other acts of violence may adversely affect the Indian stock markets where our 
Equity Shares will trade as well the global equity markets generally. Such acts could negatively impact business 
sentiment as well as trade between countries, which could adversely affect our Company’s business and 
profitability. Additionally, such events could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian 
companies, including the Equity Shares.  
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THE ISSUE 
 
This Issue has been authorised by way of a resolution passed by our Board of Directors on May 29, 2023, in 
pursuance of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The following is a summary of the Issue, which should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety 
by, more  detailed information in ‘Terms of the Issue’ on page 116 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the 
Issue 

18,99,980 (Eighteen Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine 
Hundred Eighty) equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each 

Rights Equity Shares offered in the Issue 94,99,900 (Ninety Four Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine 
Hundred) rights shares 

Equity Shares outstanding after the Issue 
(assuming full subscription for and 
allotment of the 
Rights Entitlement) 

1,13,99,880 equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each 

Rights Entitlement 5 (Five) rights shares for every 1 (One) equity share held as 
on the Record date 

Record Date [●]day, [●],[●] 
Fractional Entitlement For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the 

Issue, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity 
Shareholders is less than 1 (One) equity share shall be 
ignored for computation of the Rights Entitlement. However, 
Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements 
are being ignored earlier will be given preference in the 
Allotment of one additional Equity Share each, if such 
Eligible Equity Shareholders have applied for additional 
Rights Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if 
any. 

Face Value per Equity Share ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each 
Issue Price per Equity Share ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) per rights share 
Issue Size ₹9,49,99,000/- (Rupees Nine Crores Forty Nine Lakhs Ninety 

Nine Thousand Only) 

Terms of the Issue Please refer to the section titled ‘Terms of the Issue’
beginning on page 116 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Use of Issue Proceeds Please refer to the section titled ‘Objects of the Issue’
beginning on page 45 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Security Code/ Scrip Details ISIN: INE964E01011 
CSE Scrip Code: 011594 
ISIN for Rights Entitlements: [●] 

 
Issue Schedule: 

 
Issue Opening Date [●] 
Last date for Off-market renunciation of Rights 
Entitlements* 

[●] 

Issue Closing Date [●] 
 
* The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed on the CSE. Since the trading platform of the CSE is 

not functional, the Applicants shall not be able to deal in the Rights Entitlements using the secondary market 
platform of CSE. The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat 
accounts, either in full or in part through an off-market transfer, during the Renunciation Period. Such 
renunciation shall result in renouncement of the Right Shares. The Investors should have the demat Rights 
Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation. Eligible Shareholders are 
requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights 
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Our Company was incorporated as “Abha Property Project Limited” as a public limited company under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated May 10, 1985, issued by Registrar of 
Companies, N.C.T of Delhi & Haryana. The Company has got Certificate of Commencement of Business dated 
June 06, 1985, issued by Registrar of Companies, N.C.T of Delhi & Haryana. The Corporate Identification 
Number of our Company is L51909WB2001PLC093941.  
 
In the year 1985, the Company came out with an IPO and got listing at Delhi Stock Exchange. Delhi Stock 
Exchange is ceases to be act a functional stock exchange as the same has been de-recognised by SEBI vide its 
order dated 23rd January, 2017. 
 
In the year 1989, the Company has been taken over by new management by virtue of change in directorship and 
controlling interest in the Shareholding in the phased manner from the year 1991 to 1997 and the present 
promoter Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla along with PAC’s completed the acquisition of shares from erstwhile 
promoters of the Company pursuant to an open offer made under Regulation 11(1) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Substantial Acquisitions of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 which commenced on June 
6, 2006 and expired on June 15, 2006. 
 
Our Company got Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC– Non Deposit Taking) registration certificate from 
RBI, New Delhi Regional Office, to carry on the NBFI (Non-Banking Financial Institution) activities under 
section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 bearing Registration no. B-14.00806 dated 13.09.2000.  
 
Changes in the registered office of our Company 
 
Except as disclosed below, there has been no change in the address of the registered office of our Company since 
the date of incorporation: 
 

Effective Date From Address To Address Reasons for Change 
Documents not 
found  

F-33,Mansarover Garden, 
New Delhi (Address at 
the time of Incorporation) 

C-50, Preet Vihar, First 
Floor, Vikas Marg, Delhi  

For Better Administrative 
and economic control 

October 16, 2001 C-50, Preet Vihar, First 
Floor, Vikas Marg, Delhi  

29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 
4th Floor, Room No 407, 
Kolkata – 700 013 

For Better Administrative 
and economic control 

 
Registered Office of our Company 
  
Abha Property Project Limited 
29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, Kolkata – 700 013 
Phone No.: +91-33-6644 7200 
Fax No.: +91-33-6644 7201 
Email: abhaproperty@gmail.com;  
Website: https://abhaproperty.in/;  
CIN: L51909WB2001PLC093941  
Regn. No.: 093941 
 
Address of the Registrar of Companies (RoC) 
 
Registrar of Companies, Kolkata 
 
Registrar of Companies, Nizam Palace, 2nd MSO Building, 2nd Floor, 234/4, A.J.C.B. Road, Kolkata - 700020, 
West Bengal, India 
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Board of Directors 
 
The Board of our Company as on the date of filing this Draft Letter of Offer comprises of the following: 
 

NAME AGE 
(YRS.) 

DESIGNATION DIN ADDRESS 

Amit Agarwalla 51 Managing Director 00338081 Flat 2B, Heritage Mayfair, 3 Mayfair 
Road, Ballygunge, Kolkata – 700 
019 

Aditya Agarwalla 48 Executive Director 00140683 Flat 12B, Hiland Sapphire, 13/2 
Ballygunge Park Road, Ballygunge, 
Kolkata – 700 019 

Vishal Agarwalla 51 Non-Executive & Non-
Independent Director 

00129040 Hiland Sapphire, Flat 12B, 13/2 
Ballygunge Park Road, Ballygunge, 
Kolkata – 700 019 

Sumit Agarwalla 50 Non-Executive & Non-
Independent Director 

00336064 Flat 2B, Heritage Mayfair, 
Ballygunge, Kolkata – 700 019 

Mandeep Kaur 
Jaiswal 

33 Non-Executive  
Independent Director 

10077160 3/7, Tarkasiddhanta Lane, Bally, 
Howrah – 711 201 

Ayushi Khaitan 30 Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

10171829 109, Dwarik Jungle Road, 
Uttrarpara, Kotrung M, Hoogly, 
Bhadrakali, West    Bengal – 712232 

 
For further details of our Board of Directors, see “Our Management” on page no. 81 of this Draft Letter of 
Offer. 
 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer Chief Financial Officer 
Santanu Kumar Hazra 
Address: 29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, 
Room No 407, Kolkata – 700 013 
Phone No.: +91-33-6644 7200 
Email: abhaproperty@gmail.com  
PAN: ABQPH5232G 

Aditya Agarwalla 
Address: 29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, 
Room No 407, Kolkata – 700 013 
Phone No.: +91-33-6644 7200 
Email: abhaproperty@gmail.com  
PAN: ACMPA9304K 

 
Lead Manager to the Issue Registrar to the Company & Registrar to the Issue 
Intelligent Money Managers Private Limited 
 CIN: U65923WB2010PTC156220 
SEBI REGN. No.: INM000012169 
Validity of Registration: Permanent 
Contact Person: Mr. Amit Kumar Mishra  
YMCA Building,  25, Jawaharlal Nehru Road, 
2nd Floor, Kolkata  - 700 087 
Tel. No. : +91-33-4065 6289  
Email: info@intelligentgroup.org.in 
Website: www.intelligentgroup.org.in/  

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited   
\CIN: U20221WB1982PTC034886 
SEBI REGN. No.: INR000000353 
Validity of Registration: Permanent 
Contact Person: Mr. Ravi Kumar Bahl 
23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata – 700 001 
Tel. No.: +91-33-2248 2248/ 2243 5029 
Email : mdpldc@yahoo.com 
Website: www.mdpl.in 

Statutory Auditor of the Company Legal Advisor to the Issue 

Rajgaria & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 314241E  
135A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2nd Floor,  
Kolkata – 700 001 
Contact Person: CA. Rajesh Kumar Rajgaria, 
Partner  
Membership No.: 051957 
Tel. No.: +91-98311 81816 
Email: carkrajgaria@gmail.com 
Peer Review Certificate No.: 015470 

M/s. J Mukherjee & Associates 
D-1, MMS Chambers, 4A, Council House Street, 
Kolkata- 700001 
Contact Person: Mr. Jayabrata Mukherjee 
Tel. No.: 9830640366 
Email: jmukherjeeandassociates@gmail.com 

Banker to the Issue  
[●]  
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Changes in Statutory Auditors of the Company during the last 3 years 
 
Except as mentioned below, there has been no change in the auditors of our Company during the last 3 years: 
 

Sl. No. Particulars of Auditor Date of change Reason 
1. A. K. Gutgutia & Associates 

135A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2nd Floor,  
Kolkata – 700 001, West Bengal, India 
Firm Registration No: 327314E 
Contact Person: CA. Dibya Agarwal, Partner 
Membership No: 304601 
Email: carkrajgaria@gmail.com 
Peer Review No.: NA 

June 23, 2023 Resignation of Statutory 
Auditors of our Company 
before completion of term 

2. Rajgaria & Associates 
135A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2nd Floor,  
Kolkata – 700 001, West Bengal, India 
Firm Registration No: 314241E 
Contact Person: CA. Dibya Agarwal, Partner 
Membership No: 304601 
Email: carkrajgaria@gmail.com 
Peer Review No.: 015470 

July 18, 2023 Appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of our Company 
pursuant to casual vacancy 

 
Statement of responsibility of the Lead Manager 
 
Intelligent Money Managers Private Limited, being the sole Lead Manager will be responsible for all the 
responsibilities related to co-ordination and other activities in relation to the Issue. Hence, a statement of inter- 
se allocation of responsibilities is not required. 
 
Self-Certified Syndicate Bankers (SCSB) 
 
The list of SCSBs notified by SEBI to act as SCSB for the ASBA process is available on the website of SEBI 
on http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. For details of the Designated 
Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Forms, please see to the above-mentioned SEBI link. 
 
Experts 
 
Our Company has received a written consent from the Statutory Auditors namely, M/s. Rajgaria & Associate, 
Chartered Accountants, to include their name as required under Section 26(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and as “experts”, as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act 2013, to 
the extent and in their capacity as an auditor and in respect of their report on financials dated January 12, 2024 
and report dated February 23, 2024 on the Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits included in this Draft 
Letter of Offer and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. However, 
they should not be construed as “experts” as defined under U.S. Securities Act, 1933. 
 
Monitoring Agency 
 
Since the issue size is less than ₹100.00 crores, there is no requirement to appoint the monitoring agency to 
monitor the utilization of the Net Proceeds in terms of Regulation 82(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations by our 
Company. 
 
Appraising 
 
The objects of this issue have not been appraised by any bank or any other independent financial institution or 
any other independent agency. 
 
Credit Rating 
 
As this is an issue of Rights Equity Shares, there is no credit rating required for the Issue. 
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Debenture Trustee 
 
As this is an Issue of the Rights Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustee is not required. 
 
Underwriting 
 
The Issue of Rights Equity Shares is not being underwritten and/ or no standby support is being sought for the 
said Issue. 
 
Filing 
 
In terms of Clause 2(C) of SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2020/31 dated September 28, 2020, the 
minimum threshold limit of Rights Issue for filing the Letter of Offer with SEBI as specified in SEBI ICDR 
Regulations has been increased from ₹10 Crores to ₹50 Crores. Accordingly, the copy of this Draft Letter of Offer 
shall be filed with the   CSE, being the stock exchange where the equity shares of the Company are presently 
listed. The Letter of Offer shall also be filed with SEBI for information purpose only. 
 
Minimum Subscription 
 
Pursuant to the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2020, 
our Company is not required to achieve minimum subscription for the Rights Issue on account of the following 
reason: 
 
1. Objects of the issue being other than capital expenditure for a project; and 
 
2. Our Promoter and Promoter Group have confirmed that they will subscribe to their right entitlement and 

will not  renounce rights except to the extent of renunciation within the promoter group 
 
Issue schedule 

 
Last date for Credit of Rights Entitlement: [●] 
Issue Opening Date: [●] 
Last date for Off- market renunciation of rights # [●] 
Issue Closing Date*: [●] 
Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about) [●] 
Date of Allotment (on or about): [●] 
Date of Credit (on or about): [●] 
Date of Listing/ Trading (on or about): [●] 

# The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed only on the CSE. Since the trading platform of CSE is 
not functional, the Applicants shall not be able to deal in the Rights Entitlements using the secondary market 
platform of Limited. The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat 
accounts, either in full or in part through an off-market transfer, during the Renunciation Period. Such 
renunciation shall result in renouncement of the Right Shares. The Investors should have the demat Rights 
Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation. Eligible Shareholders are 
requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights 
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 

* Our Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as 
it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue 
Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue 
Closing Date. 

The above schedule is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company. 

Please note that if Eligible Shareholders holding Equity Shares who have not provided the details of their demat 
accounts to our Company or to the Registrar to the Issue, they are required to provide their demat account 
details to our Company or the Registrar to the Offer not later than [●], being 2 (Two) Working Days prior to 
[●], being the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat 



 

 

38 
 

suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least by [●], being 1 (One) day before [●], being 
the Issue Closing Date. 

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our 
Company or the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of 
Applications on or before the Issue Closing Date. For details on submitting Application Forms, please refer to 
the section titled ‘Terms of the Issue’ beginning on page 116 of this Draft Letter of Offer. The details of the Rights 
Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible Shareholders 
on the website of the Registrar to the Issue at www.mdpl.in after keying in their respective details along with 
other security control measures implemented there at. For further details, please refer to the paragraph titled see 
‘Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Shareholders’ under the section titled ‘Terms of the 
Issue’ beginning on page 116 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before Issue 
Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. 
No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were 
purchased from market and purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons 
who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an application to apply for Equity Shares offered 
under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under this Issue. 
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
 
The capital structure of our Company and related information as on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, prior to and 
after the proposed Issue, is set forth below: 
 

Particulars 
Aggregate 

Nominal Value 
Aggregate Value at 

Issue Price 
Authorized Equity Share capital 
1,14,00,000 (One Crore Fourteen Lakhs) Equity Shares of face 
value of ₹10/- each*  

₹11,40,00,000 - 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital before this Issue 
18,99,980 (Eighteen Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine 
Hundred Eighty) Equity Shares of face value of ₹10/- each 

₹1,89,99,800 - 

   
Present Issue in terms of this Draft Letter of Offer(a) (b) 
94,99,900 (Ninety Four Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand Nine 
Hundred) Issue of Equity Shares, each at an Issue Price of ₹10/- 
(Rupees Ten Only) per Equity Share 

₹9,49,99,000 ₹9,49,99,000 

   
Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital after the Issue 
1,13,99,880 (One Crore Thirteen Lakhs Ninety Nine Thousand 
Eight Hundred Eighty) Equity Shares of face value of ₹10/- 
each 

₹11,39,98,800 

   
Securities premium account   
Before the Issue Nil 
After the Issue(c) Nil 

 
Notes: 
 
*On August 25, 2023, the Company has got approval of the shareholders of the Company at the 37th Annual 
General Meeting for increasing the authorized Equity Share capital of the Company shown as below: 

i. 19,00,000 (Nineteen Lakhs) Equity Shares having face value of ₹10.00 (Rupees Ten Only) amounting to 
₹1,90,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Ninety Lakhs) to 1,14,00,000  (One Crore Fourteen Lakhs) Equity 
Shares having Face Value of ₹10.00(Rupees Ten Only) amounting to ₹11,40,00,000 (Rupees Eleven 
Crores Forty Lakhs Only); 

(a) The present Issue has been authorized by our Board of Directors pursuant to the resolution passed 
in their meeting conducted on May 29, 2023 in pursuance of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

(b) Assuming full subscription for allotment of Right Shares; 
 

(c) Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment, Allotment and deduction of Issue expenses; 
 
NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
 

1. Details of outstanding warrants, outstanding instruments with an option to convert or securities which 
are convertible at a later date into Equity Shares  

 
As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company does not have any outstanding warrants, 
outstanding instruments with an option to convert or securities which are convertible at a later date into 
Equity Shares. 
 

2. Details of Equity Shares held by the promoter and promoter group including the details of lock-in, 
pledge of and encumbrance on such Equity Shares 

 
As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, none of the Equity Shares held by the members of the Promoter 
and Promoter Group of the Company are locked-in, pledged and encumbered. 
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3. Details of Equity Shares acquired by the promoters and promoter group in the last one year prior to 
the filing of this Draft Letter of Offer 

 
None of the Promoters and Promoter Group of the Company has acquired any Equity Shares in the last one 
year prior to the filing of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
4. Intention and extent of participation by the promoter and promoter group  

 
Our Promoter and entities forming part of our Promoter Group have, vide their letters dated [●] (the 
"Subscription Letters") indicated their intention to subscribe/ to the full extent of their Rights Entitlement 
and not to renounce any portion of their rights entitlement. Further, they reserve the right to apply for, and 
subscribe to, additional Rights equity shares, including subscribing to the unsubscribed portion (if any), 
subject to compliance with the minimum public shareholding requirement as prescribed under the SCRR and 
the SEBI Listing Regulations.  
  
Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and will continue to 
comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue. 

 
5. The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited is non-operational, hence there has been no trading in the Equity 

Shares on CSE for last many years. Further, The ex-rights price arrived in accordance with the formula 
prescribed under clause (b) of Sub-Regulation 4 of Regulation 10 of the SEBI (SAST) Regulations, in 
connection with the Issue is ₹[●] (Rupees [●] Only). 

 
6. Our Company shall ensure that any transaction in the Equity Shares by the Promoters and the Promoter 

Group during the period between the date of filing the Draft Letter of Offer and the date of closure of the 
Issue shall be reported to the Stock Exchanges within 24 hours of such transaction. 

 
7. Our Company does not have any stock option scheme. 
 
8. At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the equity shares of our Company. 

 
9. All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as date of this Draft Letter 

of Offer. Further, the Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue, shall be fully paid up. 
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10. Shareholding Pattern of our company 
 
a. The shareholding pattern of our Company as on December 31, 2023, is as follows: 

 

 
 
 
 
  

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of 
securities (IX)

No of Voting Rights
Class  eg:x Class  eg:y Total

(A) Promoter & 
Promoter 
group 

7 1418120 0 0 1418120 74.6387 1418120 0 1418120 74.6387 0 74.6387 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 1418120

(B) Public 21 481860 0 0 481860 25.3613 481860 0 481860 25.3613 0 25.3613 0 0.0000         NA 481360

(C) Non 
Promoter - 
Non Public

        NA

(C1) Shares 
underlying 
DRs

        NA         NA

(C2) Shares held 
by 
Employee  
Trusts

        NA

Total 28 1899980 0 0 1899980 100.0000 1899980 0 1899980 100.0000 0 100.0000 0 1899480

As a % of 
total 

No of shares 
Underlying 
outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
Warrants)  
(X)

Shareholding as 
a % assuming full 
conversion of 
convertible 
securities (as a 
percentage of 
diluted share 
capital) 
(XI)=(VII)+(X) As 
a % of (A+B+C2)

Number of 
equity shares 
held in 
dematerialized 
form                            
(XIV)            

Total as a 
% of 

No. (a)

Number of Locked in 
shares  (XII)

Number of shares 
pledged or otherwise 

encumbered (XIII)

As a % of 
total shares 

No. (a)

Total nos.shares 
held       
(VII)=(IV)+ 
(V)+(VI)

Shareholding 
as a % of total 
no. of shares 
(calculated as 
per SCRR, 
1957)           
(VIII)               
As a % of 
(A+B+C2)

Categ
ory (I)

Category of 
shareholder 
(II)

Nos. of 
shareholde
rs (III)

No. of fully paid 
up equity shares 
held  (IV) 

No.of Partly 
paid-up equity 
shares held 
(V)

No. of shares 
underlying 
Depository 
Receipts     
(VI)
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b. Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Promoter and Promoter Group 
 

Class    x Class y Total No. (a) As a % of 
total shares 
held (b)

No. (a) As a % of 
total shares 
held (b)

(1) Indian
(a) Individuals/Hindu undivided Family 7 1418120 0 0 1418120 74.6387 1418120 0 1418120 74.6387 0 74.6387 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 1418120

JAGDISH PRASAD AGARWALLA Promoter ACMPA9295R 1 683730 0 0 683730 35.9862 683730 0 683730 35.9862 0 35.9862 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 683730
SITA AGARWALLA Promoter ACMPA9302R 1 479840 0 0 479840 25.2550 479840 0 479840 25.2550 0 25.2550 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 479840
SWATI AGARWALLA Promoter Group ACMPA9297P 1 96000 0 0 96000 5.0527 96000 0 96000 5.0527 0 5.0527 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 96000
BASANT KUMAR AGARWALLA 
HUF Promoter Group AABHB8301G 1 80050 0 0 80050 4.2132 80050 0 80050 4.2132 0 4.2132 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 80050
JAGDISH PRASAD AGARWALLA 
HUF Promoter Group AABHJ3737N 1 68500 0 0 68500 3.6053 68500 0 68500 3.6053 0 3.6053 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 68500
DHRUV AGARWALLA Promoter Group AJUPA7184J 1 5000 0 0 5000 0.2632 5000 0 5000 0.2632 0 0.2632 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 5000
ANSHUMAN AGARWALLA Promoter Group AJUPA7185K 1 5000 0 0 5000 0.2632 5000 0 5000 0.2632 0 0.2632 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 5000

(b)
Central Government/State 
Government(s) 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

(c) Financial Institutions/Banks 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

(d) Any Other (specify) 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

Sub Total 7 1418120 0 0 1418120 74.6387 1418120 0 1418120 74.6387 0 74.6387 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 1418120

(2) Foreign

(a)
Individuals (Non-Resident 
Individuals/Foreign Individuals) 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

(b) Government 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

(c) Institutions 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

(d) Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

(e) Any Other (specify) 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

Sub Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0

Total Shareholding of Promoter 
and Promoter Group 
(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2) 7 1418120 0 0 1418120 74.6387 1418120 0 1418120 74.6387 0 74.6387 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 1418120

Entity type i.e. 
promoter       OR           
promoter group 
entity (except 
promoter)

No of shares 
Underlying 
outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(as a 
percentage 
of diluted 

No of Voting Rights Total as a 
% of 
Total 
Voting 
rights

Shareholdi
ng  % 
calculated 
as per 
SCRR. 
1957)                          
As a % of 
(A+B+C2)  

Number of Locked in shares  
(XII)

Partly paid-up 
equity shares 
held (V)

Shareholding 
as a % 
assuming full 
conversion of 
convertible 
securities (as 
a percentage 
of diluted 

Number of equity 
shares held in 
dematerialized 
form                            
(XIV)            

Total 
nos.shares held       
(VII)=(IV)+ 
(V)+(VI)

Nos. of 
shares 
underlying 
Depository 
Receipts     
(VI)

No. of fully 
paid up equity 
shares held  
(IV) 

Nos. of 
sharehol
ders (III)

PAN          (II) Number of Voting Rights held in each class of 
securities (IX)

Number of shares pledged 
or otherwise encumbered 
(XIII)

Category & Name of the 
Shareholders (I)
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c. Statement showing shareholding pattern of the Public shareholder 
 

 

Class x Class y Total No. (a) As a % of 
total 

shares 
held (b)

No. 
(Not 
applic
able) 
(a)

As a % 
of total 
shares 
held 
(Not 
applica
ble) (b)

Sub- 
Category (i)

Sub- 
Category (ii)

Sub- 
Category (iii)

(1) Institutions (Domestic)

Sub Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA 0 0 0 0
(2) Institutions (Foreign)

Sub Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA 0 0 0 0

(3)
Central Government / State 
Government(s)

Sub Total 0 0 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 0 0.0000 NA 0 0 0 0
(4) Non-Institutions

Resident Individuals holding 
nominal share capital upto Rs.2 
lakhs 15 12020 0 0 12020 0.6326 12020 0 12020 0.6326 0 0.6326 0 0.0000 NA 11520 0 0 0

Resident Individuals holding 
nominal share capital in excess of 
Rs.2 lakhs 4 171500 0 0 171500 9.0264 171500 0 171500 9.0264 0 9.0264 0 0.0000 NA 171500 0 0 0

SANJAY SINGH 18794-S/CA 1 49500 0 0 49500 2.6053 49500 0 49500 2.6053 0 2.6053 0 0.0000 NA 49500 0 0 0
BABOO SHAHEB JHA 1 48500 0 0 48500 2.5527 48500 0 48500 2.5527 0 2.5527 0 0.0000 NA 48500 0 0 0
KAMAL KISHORE CHOUBEY 1217-C/CAL 1 40000 0 0 40000 2.1053 40000 0 40000 2.1053 0 2.1053 0 0.0000 NA 40000 0 0 0
SHEILA SRIVASTAV 1 33500 0 0 33500 1.7632 33500 0 33500 1.7632 0 1.7632 0 0.0000 NA 33500 0 0 0

Non Resident Indians (NRIs)

Foreign National

Foreign Company / OCB

Bodies Corporate 2 298340 0 0 298340 15.7023 298340 0 298340 15.7023 0 15.7023 0 0.0000 NA 298340 0 0 0

TIRUPATI MANSION PVT LTD AACCT8171G 1 178000 0 0 178000 9.3685 178000 0 178000 9.3685 0 9.3685 0 0.0000 NA 178000 0 0 0
ORCHID MERCHANTS PRIVATE 
LIMITED AAACO9910C 1 120340 0 0 120340 6.3338 120340 0 120340 6.3338 0 6.3338 0 0.0000 NA 120340 0 0 0

Any Other (specify)

Sub Total 21 481860 0 0 481860 25.3613 481860 0 481860 25.3613 0 25.3613 0 0.0000 NA 481360 0 0 0

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3) 21 481860 0 0 481860 25.3613 481860 0 481860 25.3613 0 25.3613 0 0.0000 NA 481360 0 0 0

Sub-categorization of shares (XV)

Shareholding (No of shares) under

PAN (II) Nos. of 
sharehold
ers (III)

No. of fully 
paid up 
equity 
shares held  
(IV) 

Partly paid-
up equity 
shares 
held (V)

Nos. of 
shares 
underlying 
Depository 
Receipts     
(VI)

Number of 
shares 

pledged or 
otherwise 

encumbered 
(XIII)

Category & Name of the 
Shareholders (I)

Number of 
equity 
shares held 
in 
dematerializ
ed form                            
(XIV)            

No of Voting Rights Total as a 
% of Total 
Voting 
rights

Total 
nos.shares 
held       
(VII)=(IV)+ 
(V)+(VI)

Sharehold
ing  % 
calculated 
as per 
SCRR. 
1957)  As 
a % of 
(A+B+C2)  
(VIII)

Number of Voting Rights held in each class of 
securities (IX)

No of shares 
Underlying 
outstanding 
convertible 
securities 
(including 
Warrants)  
(X)

Total 
Shareholding 
as a % 
assuming full 
conversion of 
convertible 
securities (as 
a percentage 
of diluted 
share capital) 
(XI)=(VII)+(X) 
As a % of 
A+B+C2)

Number of Locked in 
shares  (XII)
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d. Details of shareholders of our Company holding 1% or more of the paid-up capital of the issuer as last disclosed to 

the stock exchanges: i.e. as on December 31, 2023. 
 

Sl. No. Name of the Shareholders 
No. of Equity 

Shares 
% of Pre-Issue 

Equity Share Capital 

1. Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla 6,83,730 35.9862 

2. Sita Agarwalla 4,79,840 25.2550 

3. Tirupati Mansion Private Limited 1,78,000 9.3685 

4. Orchid Merchants Private Limited 1,20,340 6.3338 

5. Swati Agarwalla 96,000 5.0527 

6. Basant Kumar Agarwalla HUF 80,050 4.2132 

7. Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla HUF 68,500 3.6053 

8. Sanjay Singh 49,500 2.6053 

9. Baboo Shaheb Jha 48,500 2.5527 

10. Kamal Kishore Choubey 40,000 2.1053 

11. Sheila Srivastav 33,500 1.7632 
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 
 
The Issue comprises of an issue of up to 94,99,900 Equity Shares, aggregating up to ₹949.99 Lakhs by our Company. 
For further details see "The Issue" beginning on page 33 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
Our Company intends to utilize the proceeds of the Issue towards the following objects: 
 
The objects of the issue are: 
 

1. To augment our capital base and for increasing our operational scale with respect to our NBFC activities;  
2. General corporate purposes. 

(Collectively, referred to hereinafter as the “Objects”) 
 
We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the “Issue Proceeds”) after deducting the Issue related 
expenses (“Net Proceeds”) for the abovementioned Objects. The main Object Clause of Memorandum of Association 
of our Company enables us to undertake the existing activities and the activities for which the funds are being raised by 
us through the present Issue. Further, we confirm that the activities which we have been carrying out till date are in 
accordance with the Object Clause of our Memorandum of Association. 
 
Details of objects of the Issue 
 
The details of objects of the Issue are set forth in the following table: 

       (₹ in Lakhs) 
Particulars Amount 
Gross Proceeds from the Issue# 949.99 
Less: Issue related expenses [●] 
Net Proceeds from the Issue [●] 

# Assuming full subscription and Allotment. 

*The Issue size will not exceed ₹949.99 Lakhs. If there is any reduction in the amount on account of or at the time of 
finalization of Issue Price and Rights Entitlements Ratio, the same will be adjusted against General Corporate Purpose. 

Requirement of funds & utilization of Net Proceeds 
 
The proposed utilization of Issue Proceeds is set forth below: 

       (₹ in Lakhs) 
Sr. No. Particulars Amount 

1. To augment the capital base of our company [●] 
2. General Corporate Purposes# [●] 

 Total Net Proceeds* [●] 
# The amount to be utilized for General corporate purposes will not exceed 25.00% of the Gross Proceeds. 

*To be determined on finalization of the Issue Expenses and updated in the Letter of Offer at the time of filing with the 
Stock Exchange. 

Schedule of Utilization and Deployment of Funds 
 
We propose to deploy the Net Proceeds towards the aforesaid objects in accordance with the estimated schedule of 
implementation and deployment of funds set forth in the table below: 
 

             (₹ in Lakhs) 
Sr. No. Particulars Amount to be 

deployed 
from Net 
Proceeds 

Estimated 
deployment of 
Net Proceeds 

for the FY 
ending March 

31, 2024 

Estimated 
deployment of 
Net Proceeds 

for the FY 
ending March 

31, 2025 
1. To augment our capital base and for 

increasing our operational scale with 
respect to our NBFC activities 

[●] [●] [●] 

2. General Corporate Purposes# [●] [●] [●] 
 Total Net Proceeds* [●] [●] [●] 
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*Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted per 
the Rights Entitlement ratio. 
 
The above fund requirements are based on our current business plan, management estimates and have not been 
appraised by any bank or financial institution. Our Company’s funding requirements and deployment schedule are 
subject to revision in the future at the discretion of our Board and will not be subject to monitoring by any 
independent agency. In view of the competitive environment of the industry in which we operate, we may have to 
revise our business plan from time to time and consequently, our funding requirements may also change. 
 
Our historical funding requirements may not be reflective of our future funding plans. We may have to revise our 
funding requirements, and deployment from time to time on account of various factors such as economic and 
business conditions, increased competition and other external factors which may not be within our control. This may 
entail rescheduling the proposed utilization of the Net Proceeds and changing the allocation of funds from its planned 
allocation at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with applicable law. Further, in case the Net 
Proceeds are not completely utilized in a scheduled Fiscal Year due to any reason, the same would be utilized (in part 
or full) in the next Fiscal Year/ subsequent period as may be determined by our Company, in accordance with 
applicable law. 
 
For further details, see “Risk Factors” beginning on page 19 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
Means of Finance 
 
Our Company proposes to meet the entire requirement of funds for the proposed objects of the Issue from the Net 
Proceeds. Accordingly, our Company confirms that there is no requirement to make firm arrangements of finance 
through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised from 
the Issue. 
 
Details of the Objects of the Issue 
 
The details in relation to objects of the Issue are set forth herein below. 
 
1. To augment our capital base and for increasing our operational scale with respect to our NBFC activities. 
 
Our Company is a RBI Registered NBFC primarily involved in the business of making equity investment in small 
business and large corporate. We propose to augment our capital base by ₹[●] Lakhs through this Issue and utilize the 
funds raised to make investment in the form of debt and equity in various companies either directly or through its 
wholly owned subsidiary. We are not bound by predefined restrictions in regard to our search for investment 
opportunities. We invest in companies in a variety of markets and stages both listed and unlisted. Our management 
approach can take the form either of driving change or partnership with existing owners. 
 
No portion of the amount earmarked towards this object will be utilised for giving loans to our Promoters, Subsidiaries, 
Associates, Group Companies and Promoter Group Companies. 
 
2. General Corporate Purposes: 
 
In terms of Regulation 62(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the extent of the Issue Proceeds proposed to be used for 
general corporate purposes shall not exceeding 25% of the Gross proceeds of the Issue. Our Board will have flexibility 
in applying the balance amount towards general corporate purposes, including meeting our working capital 
requirements, capital expenditure, funding our growth opportunities, including strategic initiatives, meeting expenses 
incurred in the ordinary course of business including salaries and wages, administration expenses, insurance related 
expenses, meeting of exigencies which our Company may face in course of business and any other purpose as may be 
approved by the Board or a duly appointed committee from time to time, subject to compliance with the necessary 
provisions of the Companies Act. 
 
Our management will have flexibility in utilizing any amounts for general corporate purposes under the overall guidance 
and policies of our Board. The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the purposes will be determined by the 
Board, based on the amount actually available under this head and the business requirements of our Company, from time 
to time. 
 
Expenses for the issue: 
 
The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to the Lead Manager, Legal Counsel, statutory and processing fee to 
the SCSBs, Registrars to the Issue, advertising expenses and all other incidental and miscellaneous expenses for listing 
the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company will need approximately ₹[●] Lakhs towards these 
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expenses, a break-up of the same is as follows: 
     (₹ in Lakhs) 

Sl. No. Particulars Estimated 
expense 

% of Total 
Expenses 

(%) 

As a % of Issue size# 
(%) 

1. Fees payable to the intermediaries (including 
Lead Manager fees, Bankers to the Issue, 
Registrar to the Issue, Legal Advisor, Auditors 
fees, and other allied expenses) 

[●] [●] [●] 

2. Regulatory fees, filing fees, listing fees, 
depository fees and other miscellaneous 
expenses and Stamp Duty 

[●] [●] [●] 

3. Expenses relating to statutory advertising, 
printing, marketing, distribution and stationery 
expenses 

[●] [●] [●] 

 Total estimated issue expenses*^# [●] [●] [●] 
*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment. In case of any difference between the estimated Issue related expenses and 
actual expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount allocated towards General 
Corporate Purposes. All Issue related expenses will be paid out of the Gross Proceeds received at the time of receipt of 
the subscription     amount to the Rights Issue. 
^Excluding taxes. 
#Assuming full subscription. 
 
Appraisal 
 
None of the Objects of the Issue for which the Net Proceeds will be utilized have been appraised by any bank or 
financial institution. 

 
Strategic and/ or Financial Partners 
 
There are no Strategic and Financial partners to the objects of the Issue. 
 
Bridge Financing Facilities 
 
Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this Draft Letter of 
Offer, which are proposed to be repaid from the Issue Proceeds. 
 
Interim Use of Funds 
 
Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have flexibility to 
deploy the Net Proceeds. Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our Company 
intends to deposit the Net Proceeds only with scheduled commercial banks included in the second schedule of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 or make any such investment as may be allowed by SEBI from time to time. 

 
Monitoring of utilization of funds 
 
Since the proceeds from the Issue are less than ₹10,000 lakhs, in terms of Regulation 41(1) of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per SEBI Listing 
Regulation, the Rights Issue Committee appointed by the Board would be monitoring the utilization of the proceeds of 
the Issue. The Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue Proceeds under a separate head in our balance sheet 
along with the relevant details, for all such amounts that have not been utilized. The Company will indicate 
investments, if any, of unutilized Issue Proceeds in the Balance Sheet of the Company for the relevant Financial Years 
subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall, on a quarterly basis, disclose to the 
Audit Committee the uses and applications of the Issue Proceeds. In accordance with Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulation, the Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges, on a quarterly basis, a statement on material deviations, 
if any, in the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue from the objects of the Issue as stated above. This information will 
also be published in newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial results after placing the same 
before the Audit Committee. 
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Variation in Objects 
 
In accordance with Section 13(8) and Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, our Company shall 
not vary the Objects of the Issue without our Company being authorized to do so by the Shareholders by way of a 
special resolution through postal ballot. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of 
such special resolution (the "Postal Ballot Notice") shall specify the prescribed details as required under the 
Companies Act and applicable rules. The Postal Ballot Notice shall simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one 
in English and one in Bengali, the vernacular language of the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated. Our 
Promoters or controlling Shareholders will be required to provide an exit opportunity to such Shareholders who do not 
agree to the proposal to vary the Objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this 
regard. 
 
Key Industry Regulations for the Objects of the Issue 

 
No additional provisions of any acts, regulations, rules and other laws are or will be applicable to the Company for the 
proposed Objects of the Issue. 

 
Other Confirmations 
 
Except disclosed above, there is no material existing or anticipated transactions in relation to the utilization of the Net 
Proceeds with our Promoters, Directors or Key Management Personnel of our Company and no part of the Net Proceeds 
will be paid as consideration to any of them. Except disclosed above, none of our Promoters, members of Promoter 
Group or Directors are interested in the Objects of the Issue. No part of the proceeds from the Issue will be paid by the 
Company as consideration to our Group Companies, our directors, or Key Managerial Personnel. 
 
Our Company does not require any material government and regulatory approvals in relation to the Objects of the Issue. 
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS 
 
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
Abha Property Project Limited, 
29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, Room No 407, 
Kolkata – 700 013 
 
Dear Sir(s), 
 
Statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits available to Company and its shareholders under the Applicable 
Direct & Indirect Tax Laws in India 
 
Subject: Proposed Rights issue of equity shares of face value of ₹10.00 (Rupees Ten only) (hereinafter referred to 
as ‘Equity Shares’) of Abha Property Project Limited (‘Company’) (and such offering as the ‘Issue’) 
 
This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 13th February, 2024.  
 
The preparation of the Statement of possible special tax benefits available to the Company and its shareholders (the 
‘Statement’) is the responsibility of the management of the ‘Company’ for the ‘Issue’, including the preparation and 
maintenance of all accounting and other relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
‘Statement’ and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances.  
 
We have complied with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. We have 
complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, ‘Quality Control for 
Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related 
Services Engagements,’ issued by the ICAI.  
 
The Management of the ‘Company’ has prepared the ‘Statement’ under direct tax laws i.e. Income Tax Act, 1961 read 
with Income Tax Rules, 1962 (‘Income Tax Laws’), and indirect tax laws i.e. the Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 
2017, Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, Customs Act, 
1962, Customs Tariff Act, 1975 as amended, the rules and regulations, circulars and notifications issued there under, 
Foreign Trade Policy presently in force in India (collectively referred to as Indirect Tax’). 
 
The ‘Company’ has requested us to confirm that the benefits, as stated in the ‘Statement’ attached hereto in Annexure I 
and II, are available to the Company and its shareholders. 
 
We hereby confirm that the ‘Statement’ enclosed in the Annexures, prepared by the ‘Company’, provides the possible 
special tax benefits available to the ‘Company’. The benefits discussed in the enclosed ‘Statement’ cover only special 
tax benefits available to the ‘Company’ and its’ shareholders and are not exhaustive and also do not cover any general 
tax benefits available to the ‘Company’. Further, any benefits available under any other laws within or outside India 
have not been examined and covered by this ‘Statement’. 
 
This ‘Statement’ is only intended to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to 
be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax 
laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specific tax implications 
arising out of their participation in the Issue. Neither are we suggesting nor advising the investor to invest in the Issue 
based on this statement. 
 
We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether: 

 
1. The ‘Company’ or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future;  

 
2. The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met with; and 

 
3. the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views express herein. 

 
The contents of the enclosed ‘Statement’ are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the 
‘Company’ and on the basis of our understanding of the business activities and operations of the ‘Company.’ 

  
We hereby consent to the extracts of this certificate being used in the draft letter of offer/ letter of offer of the 
‘Company’ in connection with the ‘Issue’ or in any other documents in connection with the ‘Issue’, and the submission 
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of this certificate as may be necessary, to any regulatory authority and/or for the records to be maintained by the Lead 
Manager in connection with the ‘Issue’ and in accordance with applicable law, and for the purpose of any defense the 
Lead Manager may wish to advance in any claim or proceeding in connection with the contents of the Offer Documents 
related to the ‘Issue.’  
 
This certificate may also be relied upon by the ‘Company’, Lead Manager, their affiliates and the legal counsel in 
relation to the Issue. 
 
The above certificate shall not be used for any other purpose without our prior consent in writing and we do not accept 
or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is 
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
M/s Rajgaria & Associates  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 314241E 
 
Sd/- 
CA. R K Rajgaria  
Partner 
Membership Number: 051957 
 
UDIN: 24051957BKDGCP9573 
 
Date: 23rd February, 2024 
Place: Kolkata 
 
Encl.: As above 
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ANNEXURE I 

 
STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIMITED 
(‘COMPANY’) AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS 
 
1. Under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (‘Act’) 
 
a. Special tax benefits available to the ‘Company’ under the ‘Act’ 
 

There are no special tax benefits available to the ‘Company.’ 
 
b. Special tax benefits available to the shareholders under the ‘Act’ 
 

There are no special tax benefits available to the shareholders of the ‘Company.’ 
 
Notes 
 
1. The above Statement sets out the provisions of law in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis or 

listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of shares; 
 
2. The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any indirect tax law 

benefits or benefit under any other law; 
 
3. The above statement of possible tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws in force as on date of this 

Annexure relevant for the assessment year 2024-25; 
 
4. This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor 

intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax consequences, each 
investor is advised to consult his/her own tax advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his/her 
investment in the shares of the ‘Company’; 

 
5. In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and consequent taxation will be further subject to any benefits available 

under the relevant DTAA, if any, between India and the country in which the non-resident has fiscal domicile; 
 
6. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views 

are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. 
We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes; 

 
M/s Rajgaria & Associates  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 314241E 
 
Sd/- 
CA. R K Rajgaria  
Partner 
Membership Number: 051957 
 
UDIN: 24051957BKDGCP9573 
 
Date: 23rd February, 2024 
Place: Kolkata 
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ANNEXURE II 

 
STATEMENT OF INDIRECT TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIMITED 
(‘COMPANY’) AND ITS SHAREHOLDERS 
 
1. Under the The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 / the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 

2017 (‘GST Act’), the Customs Act, 1962 (‘Customs Act’) and the Customs Tariff Act, 1975 (‘Tariff Act’) 
(collectively referred to as ‘Indirect Tax’) 

 
a. Special tax benefits available to the Company under the ‘Indirect Tax’ 
 

There are no special indirect tax benefits available to the ‘Company.’ 
 
b. Special tax benefits available to the shareholders under the ‘Indirect Tax’ 
 

There are no special indirect tax benefits applicable in the hands of shareholders for investing in the shares of the 
‘Company.’ 

 
Notes 
 
1. The above statement is based upon the provisions of the specified Indirect Tax laws, and judicial interpretation 

thereof prevailing in the country, as on the date of this Annexure; 
 
2. The above statement covers only above-mentioned Indirect Tax laws benefits and does not cover any direct tax 

law benefits or benefit under any other law; 
 
3. This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor 

intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice; 
 
4. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views 

are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. 
We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes; 

 
 
M/s Rajgaria & Associates  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 314241E 
 
Sd/- 
CA. R K Rajgaria  
Partner 
Membership Number: 051957 
 
UDIN: 24051957BKDGCP9573 
 
Date: 23rd February, 2024 
Place: Kolkata 
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KEY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES 
 
The following description is a summary of certain sector-specific statutes, regulations and policies as prescribed by the 
Government of India and other regulatory bodies that are applicable to us in order to carry out our business and 
operations in India. The information detailed below has been obtained from various legislations, including rules and 
regulations promulgated by regulatory bodies that are available in the public domain. The description set out below is 
only intended to provide general information to the investors and may not be exhaustive and is neither designed nor 
intended to substitute for professional legal advice. The statements below are based on the current provisions of Indian 
law, and remain subject to judicial and administrative interpretations thereof, which are subject to change or 
modification by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative, or judicial decisions. The Company may be required 
to obtain licenses and approvals depending upon the prevailing laws and regulations as applicable. For details of such 
approvals, please see the section titled “Government and other Approvals” on page 107 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
APPROVALS  
 
For the purpose of the business undertaken by our Company, it is required to comply with various laws, statutes, rules, 
regulations, executive orders, etc. that may be applicable from time to time. The details of such approvals have more 
particularly been described for your reference in the chapter titled “Government and other Approvals” beginning on 
page 107 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
BUSINESS RELATED LAW 
 
The Reserve Bank of India Act, as amended (the “RBI” Act) 
 
The RBI Act defines an NBFC as: (a) a financial institution which is a company; (b) a non-banking institution which is a 
company and which is in the principal business of receiving deposits, under any scheme or arrangement or in any other 
manner, or lending in any manner; or (c) such other non-banking institution or class of institutions, as the RBI may, with 
the previous approval of the Central Government and by notification in the Official Gazette, specify. A company 
categorized as an NBFC is required to have a net owned fund of ₹2.5 million or such other amount, not exceeding ₹1,000 
million, as the RBI may, by notification in the official gazette specify from time to time. Further, NBFCs are required to 
obtain a certificate of registration from the RBI prior to commencement of the business as an NBFC. Every NBFC is 
required to create a reserve fund and transfer thereto a sum not less than 20% of its net profit every year, as disclosed in 
the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. No appropriation can be made from such fund by the 
NBFC except for the purposes specified by the RBI from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to 
the RBI within 21 days from the date of such withdrawal. 
 
Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company – Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and 
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016, as amended (the “Master 
Directions”) 
 
The Master Directions are applicable to the following categories of NBFCs (“Applicable NBFCs”): 
 
i. Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC-ND-sIs”) registered with the 
RBI under the provisions of the RBI Act; 
ii. Non-Banking Financial Company – Micro Finance Institutions registered with the RBI under the provisions of the 
RBI Act and having an asset size of ₹5,000 million and above; 
iii. Deposit taking NBFCs registered with the RBI under the provisions of the RBI Act; 
iv. NBFC-Factors (as defined in the Master Directions) and registered under Section 3 of the Factoring Regulation Act, 
2011, as amended, having an asset size of ₹5,000 million and above;  
v. Infrastructure Debt Fund – Non-Banking Financial Company (as defined in the Master Directions) registered with the 
RBI under the provisions of RBI Act; and 
vi. NBFC – Infrastructure Finance Company (as defined in the Master Directions) registered with the RBI under the 
provisions of the RBI Act, having an asset size of ₹5,000 million and above. 
 
An NBFC-ND-SI has been defined under the Master Directions to mean an NBFC not accepting or holding public 
deposits and having total assets of ₹5,000 million and above as shown in the last audited balance sheet and a minimum 
net owned fund of ₹20 million. 
 
Corporate Governance 
 
Constitution of Committees 
 
All Applicable NBFCs are required to constitute the committees disclosed below: 
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i. Audit Committee: An NBFC is required to constitute an audit committee consisting of not less than three members of 
its board of directors. The audit committee constituted by an NBFC as required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 shall be the audit committee for the purposes of the Master Directions as well, and its powers and functions shall be 
as provided under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
ii. Nomination Committee: NBFCs are required to constitute a nomination committee to ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of 
proposed or existing directors, which shall have the same powers and functions as the nomination and remuneration 
committee required to be constituted under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
iii. Risk Management Committee: NBFCs are required to constitute a risk management committee to manage the 
integrated risk. 
iv. Asset Liability Management Committee: NBFCs are required to constitute an asset liability management committee. 
The asset liability management committee is required to be headed by the chief executive officer/ managing director or 
the executive director of such NBFC, as prescribed under the Master Directions. 
 
Fit and Proper Criteria 
 
Applicable NBFCs are required to (a) maintain a policy approved by the board of directors for ascertaining the fit and 
proper criteria of the directors at the time of appointment, and on a continuing basis, in line with the guidelines 
prescribed under the Master Directions; (b) obtain a declaration and undertaking from directors giving additional 
information on the directors, in the format prescribed under the Master Directions; (c) obtain a deed of covenant signed 
by directors, in the format prescribed under the Master Directions; and (d) furnish to the RBI a quarterly statement on 
change of directors and a certificate from the managing director of the Applicable NBFCs that fit and proper criteria in 
selection of the directors has been followed. The statement must be submitted to the regional office of the Department of 
Non-Banking Supervision of the RBI where the Applicable NBFC is registered, within 15 days of the close of the 
respective quarter. The statement submitted for the quarter ending March 31, is required to be certified by the auditors. 
 
Disclosures and Transparency 
 
Applicable NBFCs are required to place before the board of directors, at regular intervals, as may be prescribed by their 
respective boards of directors, the following: 
i. progress made in putting in place a progressive risk management system and risk management policy and strategy 
followed by the concerned Applicable NBFC; and 
ii. conformity with corporate governance standards including composition of committees, their roles and functions, 
periodicity of the meetings and compliance with coverage and review functions and so on. 
 
Applicable NBFCs are required to disclose the following in their annual financial statements: 
i. registration/licence/authorization obtained from other financial sector regulators; 
ii. ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year; 
iii. penalties, if any, levied by any regulator; 
iv. information namely, area, country of operation and joint venture partners with regard to joint ventures and overseas 
subsidiaries and  
v. asset-liability profile, extent of financing of parent company products, non-performing assets and movement of non-
performing assets, details of all off-balance sheet exposures, structured products issued by them as also securitization/ 
assignment transactions and other disclosures, as prescribed under the Master Directions. 
 
Applicable NBFCs shall rotate the partners of the chartered accountant firm conducting the audit, every three years so 
that the same partner shall not conduct audit of such NBFC continuously for more than three years. Further, such NBFCs 
shall frame their internal guidelines on corporate governance with the approval of the board of directors which shall be 
published on their respective websites. 
 
Acquisition or Transfer of Control 
 
RBI notified Reserve Bank of India (Acquisition and Holding of Shares or Voting Rights in Banking Companies) 
Directions, 2023 on January 16, 2023. Under these directions, any person who intends to make an acquisition that is 
likely to result in major shareholding in a banking company, is required to seek previous approval of the RBI by 
submitting an application to it. These directions are issued to ensure that the ultimate ownership and control of banking 
companies are well diversified and the major shareholders of banking companies are ‘fit and proper’ on a continuing 
basis. Applicable NBFCs are required to obtain prior written permission of RBI for (a) any takeover or acquisition of 
control, which may or may not result in change in management, (b) any change in the shareholding, including 
progressive increases over time, which would result in acquisition or transfer of shareholding of 26% or more of the 
paid-up equity capital (no prior approval is required if the shareholding going beyond 26% is due to buy-back of shares 
or reduction in capital where it has approval of a competent court but must be reported to the RBI within one month of 
the occurrence), and (c) any change in the management of the Applicable NBFCs, which results in change in more than 
30% of the directors, excluding independent directors, provided that no prior approval shall be required in case of 
directors who get re-elected on retirement by rotation. 
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Prudential Norms 
 
All NBFCs are required to maintain CRAR consisting of Tier I and Tier II capital which shall not be less than 15% of its 
aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet items. The Tier I capital 
in respect of Applicable NBFCs, at any point of time, shall not be less than 10%. 
 
Liquidity Risk Management Framework and Liquidity Coverage Ratio 
 
Liquidity Risk Management Framework 
 
Applicable non-deposit taking NBFCs are required to adhere to the liquidity risk management guidelines prescribed 
under the Master Directions. The guidelines, inter alia, require the board of directors of the Applicable NBFC to 
formulate a liquidity risk management framework detailing entity-level liquidity risk tolerance, funding strategies, 
prudential limits, framework for stress testing, liquidity planning under alternative scenarios, nature and frequency of 
management reporting, and periodical review of assumptions used in liquidity projections. 
 
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 
 
Pursuant to the RBI circular dated November 4, 2019, on ‘Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non- Banking 
Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies’, all non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of ₹100 billion and 
above, and all deposit taking NBFCs irrespective of their asset size, are required to maintain a liquidity buffer in terms of 
liquidity coverage ratio which will promote resilience of NBFCs to potential liquidity disruptions by ensuring that they 
have sufficient high quality liquid asset to survive any acute liquidity stress scenario lasting for 30 days. The stock of 
high quality liquid asset to be maintained by the NBFCs is required to be a minimum of 100% of total net cash outflows 
over the next 30 calendar days. The liquidity coverage ratio requirement is binding on NBFCs from December 1, 2020 
with the minimum high quality liquid assets to be held being 50% of the liquidity coverage ratio, progressively reaching 
up to the required level of 100% by December 1, 2024, in accordance with the time-line prescribed below: 
 

   From December 1, 
2020 

December 1, 
2021 

December 1, 
2022 

December 1, 
2023 

December 1, 
2024 

 Minimum Liquidity 
Coverage Ratio                              

50% 60% 70% 85% 100% 

   
All non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of ₹50 billion and above but less than ₹100 billion are required to also 
maintain the required level of liquidity coverage ratio in accordance with the time-line given below: 
 

From December 1, 
2020 

December 1, 
2021 

December 1, 
2022 

December 1, 
2023 

December 1, 
2024 

 Minimum Liquidity 
Coverage Ratio                              

30% 50% 60% 85% 100% 

    
Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms 
 
All NBFCs are required to adopt the asset classification and provisioning norms as set forth below: 
 
Asset Classification 
 
i. a “standard asset” means the asset in respect of which no default in repayment of principal or payment of interest is 
perceived and which does not disclose any problem nor carry more than normal risk attached to the business; and 
ii. a “sub-standard asset” means (a) an asset which has been classified as non-performing asset for a period not 
exceeding 12 months; (b) an asset where the terms of the agreement regarding interest and/or principal have been 
renegotiated or rescheduled or restructured after commencement of operations, until the expiry of one year of 
satisfactory performance under the renegotiated or rescheduled or restructured terms. However, the classification of 
infrastructure loans as sub-standard assets is subject to the conditions stipulated in the Master Direction. 
iii. a “doubtful asset” means (a) a term loan, or (b) a lease asset, or (c) a hire purchase asset, or (d) any other asset, 
which remains a sub-standard asset for a period exceeding 12 months. 
iv. a “loss asset” means (a) an asset which has been identified as loss asset by an Applicable NBFC or its internal or 
external auditor or by the RBI during the inspection of the Applicable NBFC, to the extent it is not written off by the 
Applicable NBFC; and (b) an asset which is adversely affected by a potential threat of non-recoverability due to either 
erosion in the value of security or non-availability of security or due to any fraudulent act or omission on the part of the 
borrower. 
v. a “non-performing asset” means: (a) an asset for which interest or principal payment has remained overdue for a 
period of three months or more; (b) a term loan inclusive of unpaid interest, when the instalment is overdue for a period 
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of three months or more or on which interest amount remained overdue for a period of six months or more; (c) a demand 
or call loan, which remained overdue for a period of three months or more from the date of demand or call or on which 
interest amount remained overdue for a period of six months or more; (d) a bill which remains overdue for a period of 
three months or more; (e) the interest in respect of a debt or the income on receivables under the head ‘other current 
assets’ in the nature of short term loans/advances, which facility remained overdue for a period of three months or more; 
(f) any dues on account of sale of assets or services rendered or reimbursement of expenses incurred, which remained 
overdue for a period of three months or more; (g) the lease rental and hire purchase instalment, which has become 
overdue for a period of three months or more; (h) in respect of loans, advances and other credit facilities (including bills 
purchased and discounted), the balance outstanding under the credit facilities (including accrued interest) made available 
to the same borrower/beneficiary when any of the above credit facilities becomes non-performing asset. Provided that in 
the case of lease and hire purchase transactions, an Applicable NBFC is required to classify each such account on the 
basis of its record of recovery. 
 
Provisioning Norms 
In addition to provisioning norms under applicable accounting standards, and under the Master Directions, all Applicable 
NBFCs are required to, after taking into account the time lag between an account becoming nonperforming, its 
recognition as such, the realisation of the security and the erosion over time in the value of security charged, make 
provision against sub-standard assets, doubtful assets and loss assets as provided hereunder: 
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Standard Asset Provisioning 
All Applicable NBFCs are required to make provisions for standard assets at 0.40% of the outstanding, which 
shall not be reckoned for arriving at the net NPAs. The provision towards standard assets shall not be netted 
from gross advances but are required to be shown separately as ‘Contingent Provisions against Standard 
Assets’ in the balance sheet of the Applicable NBFCs.  
 
Balance Sheet Disclosures 
 
(i) Applicable NBFCs are required to separately disclose in their balance sheets the provisions made, as 
prescribed under the Master Directions, without netting them from income or against the value of assets. 
 
(ii) The provisions are to be distinctly indicated under separate heads of account as: 
(a) Provisions for bad and doubtful debts; and 
(b) Provisions for depreciation in investments. 
 
(iii) Such provisions shall not be appropriated from the general provisions and loss reserves held, if any, by the 
Applicable NBFC. 
 
(iv) Such provisions for each year are required to be debited to the profit and loss account. The excess of 
provisions, if any, held under the heads general provisions and loss reserves are required to be written back 
without making adjustment against them. 
 
(v) Additionally, Applicable NBFCs are required to disclose: (a) Capital to risk assets ratio; (b) exposure to 
real estate sector, both direct and indirect; and (iii) maturity pattern of assets and liabilities. 
 
Regulation of Excessive Interest Charged by NBFCs 
 
(i) The board of directors of each Applicable NBFC is required to adopt an interest rate model taking into 
account relevant factors such as cost of funds, margin and risk premium and determine the rate of interest to be 
charged for loans and advances. The rate of interest, the approach for gradations of risk and rationale for 
charging different rate of interest to different categories of borrowers are required to be disclosed to the 
borrower or customer in the application form and communicated explicitly in the sanction letter. 
 
(ii) The rates of interest and the approach for gradation of risks are also required to be made available on the 
website of the Applicable NBFCs or published in the relevant newspapers. The information published in the 
website or otherwise published is required to be updated whenever there is a change in the rates of interest. 
 
(iii) The rate of interest must be annualized rate so that the borrower is aware of the exact rates that would be 
charged to the account. Although rates of interest charged by NBFCs are not regulated by the RBI, rates of 
interest beyond a certain level may be seen to be excessive. The board of directors of Applicable NBFCs are 
required to layout appropriate internal principles and procedures in determining interest rates and processing 
and other charges. 
 
Accounting Standards 
Accounting Standards and guidance notes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are 
required to be followed by NBFCs insofar as they are not inconsistent with any of the provisions of the Master 
Directions. 
 
Fair Practices Code 
All Applicable NBFCs having customer interface are required to adopt a fair practices code in line with the 
guidelines prescribed under the Master Directions. The Master Directions stipulate that such fair practices code 
should cover, inter alia, the form and manner of processing of loan applications; loan appraisal and terms and 
conditions thereof; and disbursement of loans and changes in terms and conditions of loans. The Master 
Directions also prescribe general conditions to be observed by Applicable NBFCs in respect of loans, and 
requires the board of directors of Applicable NBFCs to lay down a grievance redressal mechanism. Such fair 
practices code should 
shall be in vernacular language or language understood by borrowers of the Applicable NBFCs. 
 
Further, all Applicable NBFCs are to frame internal guidelines on corporate governance, enhancing the scope 
of the guidelines without sacrificing the underlying spirit of the guidelines stipulated in the Master Directions. 
The guidelines framed are required to be published on the NBFC’s website for the information of various 
stakeholders. 
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Reserve Bank of India (Know Your Customer (KYC)) Master Directions, 2016 dated February 25, 2016, as 
amended (“RBI KYC Directions”) 
The RBI KYC Directions are applicable to every entity regulated by the RBI, specifically, scheduled 
commercial banks, regional rural banks, local area banks, primary (urban) co-operative banks, state and central 
co-operative banks, all India financial institutions, NBFCs, miscellaneous non-banking companies and 
residuary non-banking companies, amongst others. In terms of the RBI KYC Directions, every entity regulated 
thereunder is required to formulate a KYC policy which is duly approved by the board of directors of such 
entity or a duly constituted committee thereof. The KYC policy formulated in terms of the RBI KYC 
Directions is required to include four key elements, they being customer acceptance policy, risk management, 
customer identification procedures, and monitoring of transactions. It is advised that all NBFC’S adopt the 
same with suitable modifications depending upon the activity undertaken by them and ensure that a proper 
policy framework of anti-money laundering measures is put in place. The RBI KYC Directions provide for a 
simplified procedure for opening accounts by NBFCs. It also provides for an enhanced and simplified due 
diligence procedure. It has prescribed detailed instructions in relation to, inter alia, the due diligence of 
customers, record management, and reporting requirements to Financial Intelligence Unit – India. The RBI 
KYC Directions have also issued instructions on sharing of information while ensuring secrecy and 
confidentiality of information held by Banks and NBFCs. The regulated entities must also adhere to the 
reporting requirements under Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act and Common Reporting Standards. The 
RBI KYC Directions also require the regulated entities to ensure compliance with the requirements/obligations 
under international agreements. The regulated entities must also pay adequate attention to any money-
laundering and financing of terrorism threats that may arise from new or developing technologies and ensure 
that appropriate KYC procedures issued from time to time are duly applied before introducing new 
products/services/technologies. The RBI KYC Directions were updated on 20 April 2018 to enhance the 
disclosure requirements under the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 and in accordance with the 
Prevention of Money-Laundering Rules vide Gazette Notification GSR 538 (E) dated June 1, 2017 and the 
final judgment of the Supreme Court in the case of Justice K.S. Puttaswamy (Retd.) & Another v. Union of 
India (Writ Petition (Civil) 494/2012). The Directions were updated to accommodate authentication as per the 
AADHAR (Targeted Delivery of Financial and Other Subsidies, Benefits and Services) Act, 2016 and use of 
an Indian resident’s Aadhar number as a document for the purposes of fulfilling KYC requirement. The RBI 
KYC Directions were further updated on January 9, 2020 with a view to leveraging the digital channels for 
customer identification process by regulated entities, whereby the RBI has decided to permit video-based 
customer identification process as a consent based alternate method of establishing the customer’s identity, for 
customer onboarding. 
 
RBI circular on Co-lending by Banks and NBFCs to Priority Sector dated November 5, 2020 
The RBI introduced the co-lending model to increase the affordability and outreach of capital to underserviced 
sections of the economy. By entering co-lending arrangements, banks and non-banking financial companies 
can combine the relative advantages of the two to provide financial services. 
  
Banks are permitted to co-lend with all registered NBFCs (including HFCs) based on a prior agreement. The 
co-lending banks will take their share of the individual loans on a back-to-back basis in their books. However, 
NBFCs are required to retain minimum 20% share of the individual loans on their books. The bank and the 
NBFCs will have to maintain their own individual customer accounts but there is a requirement for the funds 
to be disbursed via an escrow account. The liability for the representations and warranties found in the master 
agreement will be ascribed to the originating NBFCs. The co-lenders will be mutually required to set up a 
framework for loan monitoring and recovery, grievance redressal mechanism, arrange for the creation of 
security and charge and ensure compliance with internal guidelines. 
 
Accounting Standards and Accounting policies 
Subject to the changes in Indian Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and regulatory environment applicable to a 
NBFC we may change our accounting policies in the future and it might not always be possible to determine 
the effect on the statement of profit and loss of these changes in each of the accounting years preceding the 
change. In such cases our profit/loss for the preceding years might not be strictly comparable with the 
profit/loss for the period for which such accounting policy changes are being made. The Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs has amended the existing IAS vide Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 
2017 on March 17, 2017 and the same is applicable to our Company from April 1, 2018. 
 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), in its press release dated January 18, 2016, issued a roadmap for 
implementation of Ind AS converged with IFRS for non-banking financial companies, scheduled commercial 
banks, insurers, and insurance companies, which was subsequently confirmed by the RBI through its circular 
dated February 11, 2016. The notification further explains that NBFCs whose equity and/or debt securities are 
listed or in the process of listing on any stock exchange in India or outside India and having a net worth of less 
than ₹500 crore, shall comply with Ind AS for accounting periods beginning from April 1, 2021 onwards with 
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comparatives for the periods ending on March 31, 2021 or thereafter. Accordingly, Ind AS is applicable to our 
Company with effect from April 1, 2021. 
 
RBI circular on Co-lending by Banks and NBFCs to Priority Sector dated November 5, 2020 
The RBI introduced the co-lending model to increase the affordability and outreach of capital to underserviced 
sections of the economy. By entering co-lending arrangements, banks and non-banking financial companies 
can combine the relative advantages of the two to provide financial services. 
 
Banks are permitted to co-lend with all registered NBFCs (including HFCs) based on a prior agreement. The 
Co-lending banks will take their share of the individual loans on a back-to-back basis in their books. However, 
NBFCs are required to retain minimum 20% share of the individual loans on their books. The bank and the 
NBFCs will have to maintain their own individual customer accounts but there is a requirement for the funds 
to be disbursed via an escrow account. The liability for the representations and warranties found in the master 
agreement will be ascribed to the originating NBFCs. The co-lenders will be mutually required to set up a 
framework for loan monitoring and recovery, grievance redressal mechanism, arrange for the creation of 
security and charge and ensure compliance with internal guidelines. 
 
Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 (“PMLA”) 
The RBI has issued a Master Circular dated July 1, 2015 to ensure that a proper policy frame work for the 
PMLA is put into place. The PMLA seeks to prevent money laundering and provides for confiscation of 
property derived from, or involved in money laundering and for other matters connected therewith or 
incidental thereto. It extends to all banking companies, financial institutions, including NBFCs and 
intermediaries. Pursuant to the provisions of PMLA and the RBI guidelines, all NBFCs are advised to appoint 
a principal officer for internal reporting of suspicious transactions and cash transactions and to maintain a 
system of proper record (i) for all cash transactions of value of more than ₹10 lakhs; (ii) all series of cash 
transactions integrally connected to each other which have been valued below ₹10 lakhs where such series of 
transactions have taken place within one month and the aggregate value of such transaction exceeds ₹10 lakhs. 
Further, all NBFCs are required to take appropriate steps to evolve a system for proper maintenance and 
preservation of account information in a manner that allows data to be retrieved easily and quickly whenever 
required or when requested by the competent authorities. Further, NBFCs are also required to maintain for at 
least ten years from the date of transaction between the NBFCs and the client, all necessary records of 
transactions, both domestic or international, which will permit reconstruction of individual transactions 
(including the amounts and types of currency involved if any) so as to provide, if necessary, evidence for 
prosecution of persons involved in criminal activity. Additionally, NBFCs should ensure that records 
pertaining to the identification of their customers and their address are obtained while opening the account and 
during the course of business relationship, and that the same are properly preserved for at least ten years after 
the business relationship is ended. The identification records and transaction data is to be made available to the 
competent authorities upon request. RBI Notification dated December 3, 2015 titled “Anti-Money Laundering 
(AML)/ Combating of Financing of Terrorism (CFT) – Standards” states that all regulated entities (including 
NBFCs) are to comply with the updated FATF Public Statement and document ‘Improving Global AML/CFT 
Compliance: on-going process’ as on October 23, 2015. 
 
Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs (“SBR Framework”) 
 
The RBI released the SBR Framework i.e. Framework for Scale Based Regulation for Non-Banking Financial 
Companies dated October 22, 2021 and put in place a revised regulatory framework for NBFCs. The SBR 
Framework contemplates the following layers of NBFCs: 
 
i. Base Layer: The Base Layer shall comprise of (a) non-deposit taking NBFCs below the asset size of ₹1000 
crore and (b) NBFCs undertaking the following activities- (i) NBFC-Peer to Peer Lending Platform (NBFC 
P2P), (ii) NBFC-Account Aggregator (NBFC-AA), (iii) Non-Operative Financial Holding Company (NOFHC) 
and (iv) NBFCs not availing public funds and not having any customer interface. 
 
ii. Middle Layer: The Middle Layer shall consist of (a) all deposit taking NBFCs (NBFC-Ds), irrespective of 
asset size, (b) non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of ₹1000 crore and above and (c) NBFCs undertaking 
the following activities (i) Standalone Primary Dealers (SPDs), (ii) Infrastructure Debt Fund- Non-Banking 
Financial Companies (IDF-NBFCs), (iii) Core Investment Companies (CICs), (iv) Housing Finance 
Companies (HFCs) and (v) Infrastructure Finance Companies (NBFC-IFCs). 
 
iii. Upper Layer: The Upper Layer shall comprise of those NBFCs which are specifically identified by the 
Reserve Bank as warranting enhanced regulatory requirement based on a set of parameters and scoring 
methodology. The top ten eligible NBFCs in terms of their asset size shall always reside in the upper layer, 
irrespective of any other factor. 



 

 

60 
 

 
iv. Top Layer: The Top Layer will ideally remain empty. This layer can get populated if the Reserve Bank is 
of the opinion that there is a substantial increase in the potential systemic risk from specific NBFCs in the 
Upper Layer The Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs also prescribes specific regulatory changes for 
each of the different layers in the regulatory structure, that is, capital guidelines, prudential guidelines, 
governance guidelines and the transition path. 
 
Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 29, 
2016 (“Monitoring of Frauds Directions”) 
The Monitoring of Frauds Directions are applicable to all Master Direction (Know Your Customer) 
Directions, 2016 dated February 25, 2016, as amended (the “KYC Directions”) The KYC Directions require 
regulated entities (as defined in such directions) to follow certain customer identification procedures while 
undertaking a transaction. These directions are applicable to every entity regulated by RBI, including 
scheduled commercial banks, regional rural banks, local area banks, primary (urban) cooperative banks, state 
and central co-operative banks, all India financial institutions, NBFCs, miscellaneous nonbanking companies 
and residuary non-banking companies, amongst others. Every entity regulated thereunder is required to adopt a 
‘know your customer’ (“KYC”) policy, duly approved by its board of directors, which shall include four key 
elements, namely, customer acceptance policy; risk management policy; customer identification procedures; 
and monitoring of transactions. Regulated entities are required to ensure compliance with the KYC policy 
through specifying ‘senior management’ for the purposes of KYC compliance; allocation of responsibility for 
effective implementation of policies and procedures; independent evaluation of compliance with KYC and 
anti-money laundering policies and procedures, including legal and regulatory requirements; 
concurrent/internal audit system for compliance to verify compliance with KYC and anti-money laundering; 
and submission of quarterly audit notes and compliance to the audit committee of the board of directors of the 
regulated deposit taking NBFCs and NBFC-nD-SIs, and requires them to put in place a reporting system for 
recording of frauds. All frauds are required to be reported to the RBI. Fraud reports are required to be 
submitted to the Central Fraud Monitoring Cell of the RBI in case amount of fraud ₹ 10 million and above. In 
cases where the amount of fraud is less than ₹10 million, reports shall be sent to the regional office of the 
Department of Non-Banking Supervision of the RBI, under whose jurisdiction the registered office of the 
related entity falls. The amounts involved in frauds reported by the entity shall be disclosed in its balance sheet 
for the year of such reporting. The Monitoring of Frauds Directions also requires submission of a copy of 
quarterly reports on frauds outstanding to the regional office of the RBI within 15 days of the end of each 
quarter to which it relates, in the format prescribed. 
 
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, dated 
September 29, 2016 (“Returns Master Direction”) 
The Returns Master Direction lists detailed instructions in relation to submission of returns prescribed by the 
RBI for various categories of NBFCs, including their periodicity, reporting time, due date, and the purpose of 
filing such returns. 
 
Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector Directions, dated June 8, 
2017 (“IT Framework Directions”) 
The IT Framework Directions have been notified with the view of benchmarking the information 
technology/information security framework, business continuity planning, disaster recovery management, 
information technology (“IT”) audit and other processes to best practices for the NBFC sector. Systemically 
important NBFCs (i.e., NBFCs with an asset size of above 5,000 million) are required to comply with the IT 
Framework Directions by June 30, 2018. The IT Framework Directions require all systemically important 
NBFCs to undertake IT governance through formation of an IT strategy committee and formulation of a board 
approved IT policy. They also require systemically important NBFCs to conduct an information system audit 
at least once in a year. In addition to the above IT Framework Directions, we are also required to comply with 
the Information Technology Act, 2000, as amended, and the rules framed thereunder. 
 
Master Direction - Non- Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 
dated September 29, 2016 (“Auditor’s Report Directions”) 
The Auditor’s Report Directions set out disclosures that are to be included in every auditor’s report on the 
accounts of an NBFC such as: (i) the validity of such NBFC’s certificate of registration and whether the NBFC 
is entitled to continue to hold such certificate of registration in terms of its principal business criteria as of 
March 31 of the applicable year; and (ii) compliance with net owned fund requirements as laid down in the 
Master Directions. 
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Directions on Managing Risks and Code of Conduct in Outsourcing of Financial Services by NBFCs, 2017 
dated November 9, 2017 (“Outsourcing Directions”) 
The Outsourcing Directions specify the activities that cannot be outsourced and provide the basis for deciding 
materiality of outsourcing. It mandates the regulatory and supervisory requirements and risk management 
practices to be complied with by every NBFC before outsourcing its activities. Further, an NBFC intending to 
outsource any of the permitted activities under the Outsourcing Directions is required to formulate an 
outsourcing policy which is to be approved by its board of directors. 
 
Guidelines on Risk-based Internal Audit (“RBIA”) System for Select NBFCs and Urban Co-operative 
Banks (the “RBIA Guidelines”) 
RBIA for non-deposit taking NBFCs with an asset size of ₹50 billion and above (the “RBIA Applicable 
NBFCs”), was mandated by the RBI through its notification dated February 3, 2021 bearing reference number 
DoS.CO.PPG./SEC.05/11.01.005/2020-21. Under the RBIA Guidelines, RBIA Applicable NBFCs are required 
to implement the RBIA framework by March 31, 2022. The RBIA Guidelines, inter alia, are intended to 
enhance the efficacy of internal audit systems and contribute to the overall improvement of governance, risk 
management and control processes followed by RBIA Applicable NBFCs. Under the RBIA Guidelines, the 
board of directors of the RBIA Applicable NBFC must approve a policy clearly documenting the purpose, 
authority, and responsibility of the internal audit activity, with a clear demarcation of the role and expectations 
from risk management function and the RBIA function. It’s also mandated that the policy be reviewed 
periodically, and that the internal audit function not be outsourced. Further, the RBIA Guidelines also require 
that the risk assessment of business and other functions of RBIA Applicable NBFCs should be conducted at 
least on an annual basis. 
 
Circular dated June 24, 2021 on Declaration of Dividends by NBFCs (“Dividend Circular”) 
The Dividend Circular specifies, inter alia, certain minimum prudential requirements (relating to its capital 
adequacy, net NPA and other criteria) for an NBFC to be eligible to declare dividend, the maximum 
permissible dividend payout ratio, the considerations to be taken into account by the board of directors of an 
NBFC while considering the proposal to declare dividend (such as supervisory findings of the RBI on 
divergence in classification and provisioning of NPAs, qualifications in the auditors’ report to the financial 
statements, and long term growth plans) and the manner of reporting details of dividends declared. The 
Dividend Circular will be applicable to NBFCs for the declaration of dividends from the profits of the financial 
year ending March 31, 2022 and onwards. 
 
Master Circular dated April 1, 2022 on Bank Finance to Non- Banking Financial Companies 
The circular lays down RBI’s regulatory policy regarding financing of NBFCs by banks. The circular 
specifies, inter alia, certain guidelines for bank finance to NBFCs registered with RBI and bank finance to 
NBFCs not requiring registration. The circular further specifies activities which are not eligible for bank 
credits (such as certain bills discounted/rediscounted by NBFCs, investments of NBFCs both of current and 
long-term nature and unsecured loans by NBFCs to any company) and other prohibitions on bank finance to 
NBFCs. The aforesaid circular also prescribes the prudential ceilings for exposure of banks to NBFCs. 
 
The Reserve Bank – Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (the “Ombudsman Scheme”) 
The RBI through its ‘Statement on Developmental and Regulatory Policies’ dated February 5, 2021, proposed 
the integration of the Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018 with the Banking 
Ombudsman Scheme, 2006 and the Ombudsman Scheme for Digital Transactions, 2019 under the ‘One Nation 
One Ombudsman’ approach for grievance redressal and has done the same through the Ombudsman Scheme 
effective from November 12, 2021. This is intended to make the process of redressal of grievances easier by 
enabling the customers of the banks, NBFCs and non-bank issuers of prepaid payment instruments to register 
their complaints under the integrated scheme, with one centralized reference point.  The Ombudsman Scheme 
was introduced by the RBI with the object of enabling resolution of complaints in respect of certain services 
rendered by particular categories of NBFCs, to facilitate the satisfaction or settlement of such complaints, and 
matters connected therewith. Further, the RBI through its notification on Appointment of Internal Ombudsman 
by Non-Banking Financial Companies dated November 15, 2021 has established the office of Internal 
Ombudsman for NBFCs along with its roles and responsibilities. The Ombudsman Scheme, inter alia, 
establishes the office of the ombudsman, specifies the procedure for the redressal of grievances and the 
mechanism for appeals against the awards passed by the ombudsman. 
 
Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial 
Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021. 
The circular puts in place ownership - neutral regulations, ensuring independence of auditors, avoiding conflict 
of interest in auditor’s appointments and to improve the quality and standards of audit in RBI Regulated 
Entities. These guidelines shall streamline the procedure for appointment of Statutory Auditors across all the 
Regulated Entities and ensure that appointments are made in a timely, transparent and effective manner. 
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Revised Guidelines on Securitization of Standard Assets dated May 7, 2012 and August 21, 2012, issued by 
the RBI (“Revised GSSA”) 
The RBI had issued the Revised GSSA to banks and made it applicable to NBFCs by circular dated August 21, 
2012. The Revised GSSA regulates assignment transactions, which were not covered under the earlier 
guidelines issued by the RBI. The Revised GSSA imposes a restriction on the offering of credit enhancement 
in any form and liquidity facilities in the case of loan transfers through direct assignment of cash flows. 
Further, the Revised GSSA provides that loans can only be assigned or securitized if the NBFC has held them 
in their books for a specified minimum period. They also provide a mandatory retention requirement for 
securitization and assignment transactions. 
 
Revised Guidelines on Priority Sector Lending - Targets and Classification, dated April 23, 2015, issued by 
the RBI (“Priority Sector Lending guidelines”) 
The Priority Sector Lending guidelines observed that the bank credit extended to MFIs for on-lending purposes 
to individuals and members of SHGs or JLGs would be eligible to be categorised as priority sector advance 
under respective categories being agriculture, micro, small, medium enterprises and others, as indirect 
finances, provided not less than 85% of total assets (other than cash balances with banks and financial 
institutions, government securities and money market instruments) of MFIs are in the nature of “qualifying 
assets” and the aggregate amount of loan, extended for income generating activity, is not less than 50%, of the 
total loans given by such MFIs. 
 
The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Licensing of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2002 
This regulation prescribes inter alia registration, qualification, practical training, examination remuneration 
and code of conduct for persons including entities which are engaged in the activity of sales and marketing of 
insurance products, approved by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (“IRDAI”). 
On August 20, 2015, the IRDAI (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015 were notified, which 
shall come into force from April 1, 2016. Pursuant to these regulations, a corporate agent who has been issued 
a license under the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Licensing of Corporate Agents) 
Regulations, 2002 is required to obtain a fresh certificate of registration to operate as a corporate agent by 
applying to the IRDAI. 
 
The Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 
The Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (the 
“SARFAESI Act”) regulates the securitization and reconstruction of financial assets of banks and financial 
institutions. The SARFAESI Act provides for measures in relation to enforcement of security interests and 
rights of the secured creditor in case of default. The RBI has issued guidelines to banks and financial 
institutions on the process to be followed for sales of financial assets to asset reconstruction companies. These 
guidelines provide that a bank or a financial institution may sell financial assets to an asset reconstruction 
company provided the asset is a Non-Performing Asset (“NPA”). Securitisation Companies and 
Reconstruction Companies (“SCs/RCs”) are required to obtain, for the purpose of enforcement of security 
interest, the consent of secured creditors holding not less than 60 per cent of the amount outstanding to a 
borrower as against 75 per cent. While taking recourse to the sale of secured assets in terms of Section 13(4) of 
the SARFAESI Act, a SC/RC may itself acquire the secured assets, either for its own use or for resale, only if 
the sale is conducted through a public auction. As per the SARFAESI Amendment Act of 2004, the 
constitutional validity of which was upheld in a recent Supreme Court ruling, non-performing assets have been 
defined as an asset or account of a borrower, which has been classified by a bank or financial institution as 
sub-standard, doubtful or loss asset in accordance with directions or guidelines issued by the RBI. In case the 
bank or financial institution is regulated by a statutory body/authority, NPAs must be classified by such bank 
in accordance with guidelines issued by such regulatory authority. The RBI has issued guidelines on 
classification of assets as NPAs. Further, these assets are to be sold on a “without recourse” basis only. A bank 
or financial institution may sell financial assets only if the borrower has a consortium or multiple banking 
arrangements and at least 75% by value of the total loans to the borrower are classified as an NPA and at least 
75% by the value of the banks and financial institutions in the consortium or multiple banking arrangement 
agree to the sale. These assets are to be sold on a “without recourse” basis only. 
 
The SARFAESI Act provides for the acquisition of financial assets by securitisation company or 
reconstruction company from any bank or financial institution on such terms and conditions as may be agreed 
upon between them. A securitization company or reconstruction company having regard to the guidelines 
framed by the RBI may, for the purposes of asset reconstruction, provide for measures such as the proper 
management of the business of the borrower by change in or takeover of the management of the business of 
the borrower, the sale or lease of a part or whole of the business of the borrower and certain other measures 
such as rescheduling of payment of debts payable by the borrower and enforcement of security. Additionally, 
under the provisions of the SARFAESI Act, any securitization company or reconstruction company may act as 
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an agent for any bank or financial institution for the purpose of recovering its dues from the borrower on 
payment of such fee or charges as may be mutually agreed between the parties. Various provisions of the 
SARFAESI Act have been amended by the Enforcement of Security Interest and Recovery of Debt Laws and 
Miscellaneous Provisions (Amendment) Act, 2016 as also the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (which 
amended S.13 of SARFAESI). As per this amendment, the Adjudicating Authority under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 shall by order declare moratorium for prohibiting inter alia any action to foreclose, 
recover or enforce any security interest created by the corporate debtor in respect of its property including any 
action under the SARFAESI Act. 
 
Further, in accordance with Ministry of Finance notification no. S.O. 652(E) dated February 12, 2021, the 
eligibility limit for to enforcement of security interest with respect to secured debt recovery by NBFCs (having 
assets worth ₹100 Crores and above) has been reduced from ₹50 lakhs to ₹20 Lakhs. 
 
SEBI Regulations 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") governs listed entities pursuant to the powers granted to 
it under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 as amended from time to time. In pursuance of 
these powers, SEBI prescribes regulations with respect to listed entities, ensuring high standards of investor 
safety and corporate governance. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, as amended 
from time to time, list out the continuous disclosure obligations of a listed entity for securing transparency in 
process and ethical capital market dealings. 
 
SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI NCS Regulations”) 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India, on August 9, 2021, notified the SEBI NCS Regulations, thereby 
merging the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations (“SEBI Debt Regulations”) and the 
SEBI (Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 (“NCRPS Regulations”) into a 
single regulation. The proposal to merge the two regulations was first introduced by way of a consultation 
paper released on May 19, 2021, which sought to align the extant regulations with the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013, and incorporate the enhanced obligations of debenture trustees, informal guidance and 
provisions of circulars issued by SEBI. The SEBI NCS Regulations came in to force from the seventh day of 
their notification in the gazette, i.e. from August 16, 2021. The SEBI Debt Regulations and the NCRPS 
Regulations stand repealed from this date. 
 
The SEBI NCS Regulations have aligned the extant regulations with the provisions of the Companies Act 
2013, and incorporate the enhanced obligations of debenture trustees, informal guidance and provisions of 
circulars issued by SEBI. The SEBI NCS Regulations apply to: (i) the issuance and listing of debt securities 
and nonconvertible redeemable preference shares (NCRPS) by an issuer by way of public issuance; (ii) 
issuance and listing of non-convertible securities by an issuer issued on private placement basis which are 
proposed to be listed; and (iii) listing of commercial paper issued by an issuer in compliance with the 
guidelines framed by the RBI. In addition to collating the existing provisions of the erstwhile regulations, the 
SEBI NCS Regulations, also provide for, change in disclosure requirements for financial and other information 
from past five years to three years; parameters for identification of risk factors; removal of restriction of four 
issuances in a year through a single shelf prospectus; and filing of shelf prospectus post curing of defaults. 
 
SEBI Operational Circular for issue and listing of Non-Convertible Securities (NCS), Securitised Debt 
Instruments (SDI), Security Receipts (SR), Municipal Debt Securities and Commercial Paper (CP) on 
August 10, 2021 (“SEBI Operational Circular”). SEBI Operational Circular for listing obligations and 
disclosure requirements for Non-convertible Securities, Securitized Debt Instruments and/or Commercial 
Paper on July 29, 2022. 
Following the SEBI’s notification of the SEBI NCS Regulations, to merge the SEBI Debt Regulations and the 
NCRPS Regulations into a single regulation, SEBI has issued the SEBI Operational Circular which has been 
further amended by circular number SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/0692 dated December 17, 2021, circular 
number SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2022/0028 dated March 8, 2022, circular number 
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/031 dated March 22, 2022, circular number SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 
dated April 13, 2022 and circular number SEBI/HO/DDHS/ DDHS_Div1/P/CIR/2022/00152 dated November 
10, 2022. Since the notification of the SEBI Debt Regulations and the NCRPS Regulations, SEBI had issued 
multiple circulars covering the procedural and operational aspects of the substantive law in these regulations. 
Therefore, the process of merging these regulations into the SEBI NCS Regulations also entails consolidation 
of the related existing circulars into a single SEBI Operational Circular, in alignment with the NCS 
Regulations. The stipulations contained in such circulars have been detailed chapter-wise in the SEBI 
Operational Circular. Accordingly, the circulars listed at Annex - 1 of the SEBI Operational Circular, stand 
superseded by the SEBI Operational Circular. 
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EMPLOYMENT LAWS 

The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 
The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 aims to provide for the payment of equal remuneration to men and women 
workers and for the prevention of discrimination, on the ground of sex, against women in the matter of 
employment and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. According to the Remuneration Act, no 
employer shall pay to any worker, employed by him/her in an establishment, a remuneration (whether payable 
in cash or in kind) at rates less favourable than those at which remuneration is paid by him to the workers of 
the opposite sex in such establishment for performing the same work or work of a similar nature. In addition, 
no employer shall for complying with the foregoing provisions of the Remuneration Act, reduce the rate of 
remuneration of any worker. No employer shall, while making recruitment for the same work or work of a 
similar nature, or in any condition of service subsequent to recruitment such as promotions, training or 
transfer, make any discrimination against women except where the employment of women in such work is 
prohibited or restricted by or under any law for the time being in force. 

 
The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressed) Act, 2013 (the 
“Act”) 
In order to curb the rise in sexual harassment of women at workplace, this Act was enacted for prevention and 
redressal of complaints and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. The terms sexual harassment 
and workplace are both defined in the Act. Every employer should also constitute an “Internal Complaints 
Committee” and every officer and member of the company shall hold office for a period of not exceeding three 
years from the date of nomination. Any aggrieved woman can make a complaint in writing to the Internal 
Committee in relation to sexual harassment of female at workplace. Every employer has a duty to provide a 
safe working environment at workplace which shall include safety from the persons coming into contact at the 
workplace, organizing awareness programs and workshops, display of rules relating to the sexual harassment 
at any conspicuous part of the workplace, provide necessary facilities to the internal or local committee for 
dealing with the complaint, such other procedural requirements to assess the complaints. 
 
Fire Prevention Laws and The National Building Code of India, 2016  
State governments have enacted laws that provide for fire prevention and life safety. Such laws may be 
applicable to our offices and Training Centres and include provisions in relation to providing fire safety and 
life saving measures by occupiers of buildings, obtaining certification in relation to compliance with fire 
prevention and life safety measures and impose penalties for non-compliance. the National Building Code 
(NBC) promulgates legal provisions governing the safety of individuals within specific categories of 
structures, encompassing public, residential, industrial buildings and others as stated within categories 
provided therein. These provisions encompass a wide array of critical aspects, including but not limited to fire 
safety, disaster management and precautions, as well as accessibility. 
 
ANTI-TRUST LAWS 
 
Competition Act, 2002 
An act to prevent practices having adverse effect on competition, to promote and sustain competition in 
markets, to protect interest of consumer and to ensure freedom of trade in India. The act deals with prohibition 
of agreements and Anti-competitive agreements. No enterprise or group shall abuse its dominant position in 
various circumstances as mentioned under the Act. The prima facie duty of the commission is to eliminate 
practices having adverse effect on competition, promote and sustain competition, protect interest of consumer 
and ensure freedom of trade. The commission shall issue notice to show cause to the parties to combination 
calling upon them to respond within 30 days in case it is of the opinion that there has been an appreciable 
adverse effect on competition in India. In case a person fails to comply with the directions of the Commission 
and Director General he shall be punishable with a fine which may exceed to ` 1 lakh for each day during such 
failure subject to maximum of Rupees One Crore.  
 
GENERAL CORPORATE COMPLIANCE 
  
The Companies Act, 2013  
The consolidation and amendment in the law relating to the Companies Act, 1956 made way to the enactment 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Companies Act 1956 is still applicable to the extent not repealed and the 
Companies Act, 2013 (and the amendments thereof) is applicable to the extent notified. The act deals with 
incorporation of companies and the procedure for incorporation and post incorporation. The conversion of 
private company into public company and vice versa is also laid down under the Companies Act, 2013. The 
procedure relating to winding up, voluntary winding up, appointment of liquidator also forms part of the act. 
The provision of this act shall apply to all the companies incorporated either under this act or under any other 
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previous law. It shall also apply to banking companies, companies engaged in generation or supply of 
electricity and any other company governed by any special act for the time being in force. A company can be 
formed by seven or more persons in case of public company and by two or more persons in case of private 
company. A company can even be formed by one person i.e., a One Person Company. The provisions relating 
to forming and allied procedures of One Person Company are mentioned in the act. Further, Schedule V (read 
with sections 196 and 197), Part I lays down the conditions to be fulfilled for the appointment of a managing 
or whole-time director or manager. It provides the list of acts under which if a person is prosecuted, he cannot 
be appointed as the director or Managing Director or Manager of the firm. The provisions relating to 
remuneration of the director’s payable by the companies is under Part II of the said schedule. 
 
The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 
The purpose of the 1996 Act is to amend and unify domestic arbitration and international commercial 
arbitration and enforce foreign arbitral awards. The law was also amended in 2015 and 2019 to reduce court 
involvement in the arbitration. Section 89 of the Civil Procedure Code focuses on the importance of 
arbitration. 
 
Shops and establishments legislations  
Under the provisions of local shops and establishments legislations applicable in the states in India where our 
establishments are set up and business operations exists, such establishments are required to be registered. 
Such legislations regulate the working and employment conditions of the workers employed in shops and 
establishments, including commercial establishments, and provide for fixation of working hours, rest intervals, 
overtime, holidays, leave, termination of service, maintenance of records, maintenance of shops and 
establishments and other rights and obligations of the employers and employees. These shops and 
establishments act, and the relevant rules framed thereunder, also prescribe penalties in the form of monetary 
fine or imprisonment for violation of provisions, as well as procedures for appeal in relation to such 
contravention of the provisions. 
 
The Registration Act, 1908  
Registration Act was introduced to provide a method of public registration of documents so as to give 
information to people regarding legal rights and obligations arising or affecting a particular property, and to 
perpetuate documents which may afterwards be of legal importance, and also to prevent fraud. Registration 
lends inviolability and importance to certain classes of documents. 
 
The Indian Stamp Act, 1899  
The Indian Stamp Act, 1899 prescribes the rates for the stamping of documents and instruments by which any 
right or liability is, or purports to be, created, transferred, limited, extended, extinguished or recorded. Under 
the Indian Stamp Act, 1899, an instrument not ‘duly stamped’ cannot be accepted as evidence by civil court, 
an arbitrator or any other authority authorized to receive evidence. However, the document can be accepted as 
evidence in criminal court.  
 
TAX RELATED LEGISLATIONS 
 
Income Tax Act, 1961 ("IT Act")  
The IT Act is applicable to every company, whether domestic or foreign whose income is taxable under the 
provisions of the IT Act or rules made thereunder depending upon its “Residential Status” and “Type of 
Income” involved. The IT Act provides for the taxation of persons resident in India on global income and 
persons not resident in India on income received, accruing or arising in India or deemed to have been received, 
accrued or arising in India. Every company assessable to income tax under the IT Act is required to comply 
with the provisions thereof, including those relating to Tax Deduction at Source, Advance Tax, Minimum 
Alternative Tax and like. Every such company is also required to file its returns by September 30 of each 
assessment year. 
 
Professional Tax  
The professional tax slabs in India are applicable to those citizens of India who are either involved in any 
profession or trade. The State Government of each State is empowered with the responsibility of structuring as 
well as formulating the respective professional tax criteria and is also required to collect funds through 
professional tax. The professional taxes are charged on the incomes of individuals, profits of business or gains 
in vocations. The professional tax is charged as per the List II of the Constitution. The professional taxes are 
classified under various tax slabs in India. The tax payable under the State Acts by any person earning a salary 
or wage shall be deducted by his employer from the salary or wages payable to such person before such salary 
or wages is paid to him, and such employer shall, irrespective of whether such deduction has been made or not 
when the salary and wage is paid to such persons, be liable to pay tax on behalf of such person and employer 
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has to obtain the registration from the assessing authority in the prescribed manner. Every person liable to pay 
tax under these Acts (other than a person earning salary or wages, in respect of whom the tax is payable by the 
employer), shall obtain a certificate of enrolment from the assessing authority. 
 
MUNICIPALITY LAWS 
 
Pursuant to the Constitution (Seventy-Fourth Amendment) Act, 1992, the respective state legislatures in India 
have power to endow the municipalities with power to implement schemes and perform functions in relation to 
matters listed in the Twelfth Schedule to the Constitution of India. The respective States of India have enacted 
law empowering the municipalities to issue trade license for operating stores and implementation of regulations 
relating to such license along with prescribing penalties for non- compliance. 
 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LEGISLATIONS 

Trade Marks Act, 1999 (“Trade Marks Act”)  
The Trade Marks Act provides for the application and registration of trademarks in India. The purpose of the 
Trade Marks Act is to grant exclusive rights to marks such as a brand, label and heading, and to obtain relief in 
case of infringement of such marks. An application for the registration of trademarks has to be made to 
Controller-General of Patents, Designs and Trade Marks who is the Registrar of Trade Marks for the purposes 
of the Trade Marks Act. It also provides for penalties for infringement, falsifying, and falsely applying 
trademarks and using them to cause confusion among the public. 
 
GENERAL LAWS 
Apart from the above list of laws – which is inclusive in nature and not exhaustive - general laws like the 
Negotiable Instrument Act 1881, Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959, 
Consumer Protection Act 2019, Indian Contract Act, 1872, Transfer of Property Act, 1882, Information 
Technology Act, 2000 etc. 
 
OTHER LAWS 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) 
The "Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999" (commonly known as "FEMA") was enacted by the 
Government of India to replace the earlier "Foreign Exchange Regulation Act, 1973" ("FERA"). FEMA was 
introduced with the primary objective of consolidating and amending the laws related to foreign exchange. Its 
overarching aim was to facilitate external trade and payments while promoting the organized development and 
maintenance of the foreign exchange market in India. FEMA brought about significant changes by removing 
many restrictions on the trade of goods and services to and from India. However, it retained a provision 
enabling the Central Government to impose reasonable restrictions in the public interest when necessary. 
 
Foreign Direct Investment 
Regarding "Foreign Direct Investment" (FDI), the Indian government has periodically communicated its 
policies through press notes and releases. The Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of 
Commerce and Industry, Government of India (referred to as "DIPP"), issued the consolidated "FDI Policy 
Circular of 2020" ("FDI Policy 2020"), which came into effect on October 15, 2020. This comprehensive 
policy consolidated and superseded all previous press notes, press releases, and clarifications on FDI policy 
issued by the DIPP. The government intends to update this consolidated circular on FDI policy annually, with 
FDI Policy 2020 remaining valid until the issuance of an updated circular. 
 
The "Reserve Bank of India" (RBI) also plays a crucial role in governing FDI in India through its "Master 
Directions on Foreign Investment in India," which are periodically updated. These directions specify that an 
Indian company may issue new shares to individuals residing outside India, subject to certain eligibility criteria 
and pricing guidelines outlined in the Master Directions. Companies conducting such share issuances are 
obligated to meet reporting requirements, including disclosing considerations for the issuance of shares, and 
filing relevant forms such as Form FC-GPR. 
 
OTHER REGULATIONS 

In addition to the above, the Company is required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, and 
other applicable statutes imposed by the Centre or the State for its day-to-day operations. 
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 
 
The information contained in ‘Industry Overview’ in this section is derived from publicly available sources. 
Neither we, nor any other person connected with the Issue has independently verified this information. 
Industry sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained 
from sources generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy, completeness and underlying 
assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry publications are also 
prepared based on information as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends.  

Shareholders should note that this is only a summary of the industry in which we operate and does not contain 
all information that should be considered before investing in the Equity Shares. Before deciding to invest in the 
Equity Shares, shareholders should read this Draft Letter of Offer, including the information in the sections 
"Risk Factors" and "Financial Statement" beginning on pages 19 and 94, respectively of this Draft Letter of 
Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. For a discussion of certain risks in 
connection with an investment in the Equity Shares, please see the section ‘Risk Factors’ beginning on page 19 
of this Draft Letter of Offer.  

GLOBAL ECONOMY 

The global economy proved more resilient than expected in the first half of 2023, but the growth outlook 
remains weak. With monetary policy becoming increasingly visible and a weaker-than-expected recovery in 
China, global growth in 2024 is projected to be lower than in 2023. While headline inflation has been 
declining, core inflation remains persistent, driven by the services sector and still relatively tight labour 
markets. Risks continue to be tilted to the downside. Inflation could continue to prove more persistent than 
anticipated, with further disruptions to energy and food markets still possible. A sharper slowdown in China 
would drag on growth around the world even further. Public debt remains elevated in many countries. 

GDP GROWTH  

The world economy is expected to grow by 3.0% in 2023, before slowing down to 2.7% in 2024. A 
disproportionate share of global growth in 2023-24 is expected to continue to come from Asia, despite the 
weaker-than-expected recovery in China. 
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INFLATION 

Inflation has continued to come down in many countries, driven by the decline of food and energy prices in the 
first half of 2023. However, core inflation – inflation excluding the most volatile components, energy and food 
– hasn’t significantly slowed. It remains well above central banks’ targets. A key risk is that inflation could 
continue to prove more persistent than expected, which would mean interest rates need to tighten further or 
remain higher for longer. 

  

MONETARY POLICY 

The tightening of monetary policy is working its way through economies. Alongside the rapid increase of 
policy rates, interest rates for new corporate loans and new mortgage loans have increased. While the rising 
borrowing costs are painful for households and firms, dampening households’ and firms’ demand through 
higher borrowing costs is a standard channel through which monetary policy normally takes effect.
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INDIAN ECONOMY 

Strong economic growth in the first quarter of FY23 helped India overcome the UK to become the fifth-largest 
economy after it recovered from the COVID-19 pandemic shock. Real GDP at constant prices (2011-12) in the 
first quarter of 2023–24 is estimated at Rs.40.37 trillion (US$ 484.94 billion), showing a growth of 7.8% as 
compared to the first quarter of 2022-23 estimated at Rs.37.44 trillion (US$ 449.74 billion). Given the release 
of pent-up demand and the widespread vaccination coverage, the contact-intensive services sector will 
probably be the main driver of development in 2022–2023. In 2023-24 (April-September), India’s service 
exports stood at US$ 164.89 billion. Furthermore, India’s overall exports (services and merchandise) in 2023-
24 (April-September) were estimated at US$ 376.29 billion. Rising employment and substantially increasing 
private consumption, supported by rising consumer sentiment, will support GDP growth in the coming months. 

Future capital spending of the government in the economy is expected to be supported by factors such as tax 
buoyancy, the streamlined tax system with low rates, a thorough assessment and rationalisation of the tariff 
structure, and the digitization of tax filing. In the medium run, increased capital spending on infrastructure and 
asset-building projects is set to increase growth multipliers, and with the revival in monsoon and the Kharif 
sowing, agriculture is also picking up momentum. The contact-based services sector has largely demonstrated 
promise to boost growth by unleashing the pent-up demand over the period of April-December 2022. The 
sector's success is being captured by a number of HFIs (High-Frequency Indicators) that are performing well, 
indicating the beginnings of a comeback. 

India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top 
three economic powers in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong 
partnerships. 

India's appeal as a destination for investments has grown stronger and more sustainable as a result of the 
current period of global unpredictability and volatility, and the record amounts of money raised by India-
focused funds in 2022 are evidence of investor faith in the "Invest in India" narrative. 
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MARKET SIZE 

India’s nominal gross domestic product (GDP) at current prices is estimated to be at Rs.301.75 trillion (US$ 
3.62 trillion) in 2023-24. Additionally, the Nominal GDP at current prices in Q1 of 2023-24 was Rs.70.67 
trillion (US$ 848.92 billion), as against Rs.65.42 trillion (US$ 785.85 billion) in 2022-23, estimating a growth 
of 8%. With 115 unicorns valued at more than US$ 350 billion, as of February 2023, India presently has the 
third-largest unicorn base in the world. The government is also focusing on renewable sources by achieving 
40% of its energy from non-fossil sources by 2030. India is committed to achieving the country's ambition of 
Net Zero Emissions by 2070 through a five-pronged strategy, ‘Panchamrit’. Moreover, India ranked 3rd in the 
renewable energy country attractive index. 

According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to boost its rate of employment growth and create 90 
million non-farm jobs between 2023 to 2030 in order to increase productivity and economic growth. The net 
employment rate needs to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023 to 2030 to achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth 
between same time period. India's current account deficit (CAD) decreases to US$ 9.2 billion in Q1 of 2023-24 
from US$ 17.9 billion in Q1 of 2022–2023. 

Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were 
losing steam in terms of their contribution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports 
may waver as several of India’s trade partners witness an economic slowdown. According to Mr. Piyush 
Goyal, Minister of Commerce and Industry, Consumer Affairs, Food and Public Distribution and Textiles, 
Indian exports are expected to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030. 

 

FINANCIAL SERVICES INDUSTRY 

India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion both in terms of strong growth of existing 
financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial banks, 
insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other 
smaller financial entities. The banking regulator has allowed new entities such as payment banks to be created 
recently, thereby adding to the type of entities operating in the sector. However, the financial sector in India is 
predominantly a banking sector with commercial banks accounting for more than 64% of the total assets held 
by the financial system. 

The Government of India has introduced several reforms to liberalise, regulate and enhance this industry. The 
Government and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) have taken various measures to facilitate easy access to finance 
for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs). These measures include launching Credit Guarantee 
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Fund Scheme for MSMEs, issuing guidelines to banks regarding collateral requirements and setting up a Micro 
Units Development and Refinance Agency (MUDRA). With a combined push by Government and private 
sector, India is undoubtedly one of the world's most vibrant capital markets. 

INVESTMENTS/DEVELOPMENTS 

The Financial Services Industry has seen major achievements in the recent past: 

 In November 2023, Unified Payments Interface (UPI) recorded 11.23 billion transactions worth Rs. 
17.39 Lakh crore (US$ 208.51 billion). 

 The number of transactions through immediate payment service (IMPS) reached 472million (by volume) 
and amounted to Rs. 5.35 trillion (US$ 64.14 billion) in November 2023. 

 India’s’s PE/VC investments were at US$ 77 billion in 2021, which was 62% higher than in 2020. 

 In 2021, Prosus acquired Indian payments giant BillDesk for US$ 4.7 billion. 

 In September 2021, eight Indian banks announced that they are rolling out—or about to roll out—a 
system called ‘Account Aggregator’ to enable consumers to consolidate all their financial data in one 
place. 

 In September 2021, Piramal Group concluded a payment of US$ 4.7 billion (Rs. 34,250 crore) to acquire 
Dewan Housing Finance Corporation (DHFL). 

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES 

Some of the major Government Initiatives are: 

 In 2023, the government revamped the credit guarantee scheme. The inflow of INR 9,000 crores into 
the corpus of the Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) will give 
MSMEs more access to collateral-free loans. 

 In September 2021, the international branch of the National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI), 
NPCI International Payments (NIPL), has teamed with Liquid Group, a cross-border digital payments 
provider, to enable QR-based UPI payments to be accepted in 10 countries in north and southeast 
Asia. 

 On September 30, 2021, the Reserve Bank of India communicated that the applicable average base 
rate to be charged by non-banking financial companies – micro-finance institutions (NBFC-MFIs) to 
their borrowers for the quarter beginning October 1, 2021, will be 7.95%. 

 On September 30, 2021, the IFSC Authority constituted an expert committee to recommend an 
approach towards the development of a sustainable finance hub and provide a road map for the same. 

 In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched e-RUPI, a person and purpose-specific 
digital payment solution. e-RUPI is a QR code or SMS string-based e-voucher that is sent to the 
beneficiary’s cell phone. Users of this one-time payment mechanism will be able to redeem the 
voucher at the service provider without the usage of a card, digital payments app, or Internet banking 
access. 

ROAD AHEAD 

India’s financial services industry has experienced huge growth in the past few years. This momentum is 
expected to continue. India’s private wealth management Industry shows huge potential. India is expected to 
have 16.57 lakh HNWIs in 2027. This will indeed lead India to be the fourth-largest private wealth market 
globally by 2028. India’s insurance market is also expected to reach US$ 250 billion by 2025. This will further 
offer India an opportunity of US$ 78 billion in additional life insurance premiums from 2020-30. 
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India is today one of the most vibrant global economies on the back of robust banking and insurance sectors. 
The relaxation of foreign investment rules has received a positive response from the insurance sector, with 
many companies announcing plans to increase their stakes in joint ventures with Indian companies. Over the 
coming quarters, there could be a series of joint venture deals between global insurance giants and local 
players. 

Source: https://www.ibef.org/industry/financial-services-india 

NBFC OVERVIEW 

After weathering countless challenges over the past three fiscals, exacerbated by the Covid-19 pandemic, fiscal 
2023 has brought growth back into focus for NBFCs. This is expected to continue into fiscal 2024, with assets 
under management (AUM) of NBFCs projected to increase 13-14% vis-a-vis single-digit growth over the past 
three fiscals (2020-22). The acceleration will ride on improving economic activity, strengthened balance sheet 
buffers, and better asset quality metrics.   

Indeed, NBFCs are critical to overall credit delivery in India, as indicated by exponential increase in AUM 
from Rs 3.6 lakh crore in fiscal 2008 to Rs 27 lakh crore at present. For a better understanding of their 
criticality in the credit space, NBFCs accounted for almost 16% share of overall credit in fiscal 2022.  

Over the past three fiscals, NBFCs largely focussed on liquidity, capital and provisioning buffer. These, 
combined with the consistent improvement in economic activity, have put the sector in a better position today 
to capitalise on growth opportunities.  

That said, two key monitorables remain. First, intensifying competition from banks, especially in the 
traditional retail segments of home loans and vehicle finance. Second, rising interest rates have increased the 
cost of borrowing for NBFCs, which is limiting their competitiveness in some asset classes.  

To be sure, NBFCs are realigning their portfolio strategies to combat these challenges. Their focus is shifting 
towards non-traditional asset classes—unsecured loans; micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME) finance; 
and used vehicle finance—which are expected to post higher growth. Consequently, these segments are 
garnering higher share in incremental disbursements. While the traditional segments will also grow, the rate is 
unlikely to surpass the pre-pandemic levels.  

As large NBFCs tap new segments, co-lending and partnerships with the emerging and mid-sized NBFCs will 
gain traction.  

With this shift and NBFCs being able to pass on the increase in cost of borrowing to consumers, at least in 
incremental disbursements, gross spreads are likely to compress 40-60 basis points (bps) this fiscal.  

However, improvement in asset quality will provide some cushion. NBFCs have created substantial 
management overlays in the past few fiscals, which will provide support going forward. In fact, NBFCs are 
expected to dip into previously created management overlays, which along with improving asset quality 
metrics should lower credit costs.  

Net-net, the overall earnings profile for NBFCs is expected to remain stable. 

NBFCs had steadily increased their market share till recent years, with AUM accounting for as much as 18% 
of the overall credit pie in March 2019, up from 12% in March 2008. Several challenges over the past three 
fiscals lowered their share to 16% in fiscal 2022, with banks making bigger growth strides. However, NBFC 
growth is expected to pick up from here on, which should help sustain their 16% AUM share.  

Increase in NBFCs’ AUM from just Rs 3.6 lakh crore in March 2008 to almost Rs 27 lakh crore in March 
2022, and expected to increase further, indicates the importance of the sector to overall credit delivery in the 
economy. 
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NBFC STRUCTURE 

 

KEY SEGMENTS 

In terms of asset size-wise mix, housing loans and infrastructure loans continue to account for a major chunk 
of the overall NBFC portfolio. Microfinance loans have increased their share from approximately 2 per cent to 
3 per cent between FY19 and FY23. Housing and infrastructure loans are expected to maintain their share in 
overall NBFC credit. In addition, auto loans, personal loans, MSME loans and microfinance loans are expected 
to perform better as compared to other segments in FY24. 
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EVOLUTION IN NBFC CATEGORISATION 

As of 30 September 2023, there were a total of 9,3561NBFCs registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). 
Based on liability structure, NBFCs have been traditionally categorised into deposit-taking NBFCs (NBFCs-
D), which are allowed to raise term depositsand non-deposit-taking NBFCs (NBFCs-ND). In October 2021, 
the RBI introduced a scale-based regulation for NBFCs to align its regulatory framework and further classify 
these financial institutions based on their evolving risk profile, considering the evolution of NBFCs with 
regard to size, complexity and interconnection within the financial sector. This framework categorises: 

 NBFCs in the base layer (NBFC-BL) with assets less than INR1,000 crore 

 Middle layer (NBFC-ML) with assets more than INR1,000 crore 

 Upper layer (NBFC-UL) and top layer (NBFC-TL) which are specifically identified by the RBI based 
on a set of parameters and scoring methodology 

A list of 16 NBFCs-UL, identified as per the methodology specified in scale-based regulation for NBFCs, was 
released on 30 September 2022. 

KEY REASONS FOR GROWTH 

 Deep demographic and addressable market understanding:  

With their operations in the unorganised and underdeveloped segments of the economy, NBFCs have created a 
niche for themselves by understanding what customers want from them and guaranteeing last-mile delivery of 
goods and services. 

 Tailored product offerings:  

NBFCs have adapted their product offering to meet the specific characteristics of a customer group and are 
focused on meeting appropriate needs by carefully analysing this target segment and customising pricing 
models. 

 Government and central bank Initiatives:  

The Government of India also unveiled several initiatives aimed at addressing some of the structural issues 
stressing the small business lending segment. These include granting licenses to account aggregators, initiating 
the Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana (PMMY),launching UPI platforms, unveiling platforms such as TReDS, 
GeMand Open Network for Digital Commerce (ONDC) and implementing GST. 
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 Wider and effective reach:  

NBFCs are now reaching out to Tier 2, Tier 3 and Tier 4 markets, distributing the loan across several customer 
touchpoints. In addition, they are building a connected channel experience that provides an omnichannel, 
seamless experience of sales and service 24 hours a day, seven days a week. 

 Co-lending:  

RBI, in November 2020, issued co-lending norms that enable banks and NBFCs to collaborate for priority 
sector lending (PSL). 

 Technology advancements and growing fintech ecosystem for improved efficiency and enhanced 
experience:  

The use of technology is helping NBFCs customise credit assessment. 

 

COST OF BORROWINGS OF NBFCS 

The rising interest rate scenario is expected to increase the cost of borrowings of NBFCs by 100-120 bps this 
fiscal. However, as NBFCs have the ability to pass on the higher borrowing cost for incremental disbursements 
in some of their asset segments, spreads are estimated to compress 40-60 bps. 
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BENEFITS OF NBFCs 

According to research and studies, it is proved that NBFCs are outperforming banks. The continued better 
performance from NBFCs has given rise to an uptick of 15% customer satisfaction as compared to the banking 
customers. The same is agreed by the RBI according to the recent Financial Stability Report. Banks and Non- 
Banking Financial 

Companies (NBFCs) are financial intermediaries and the services offered by them are pretty much the same as 
banks. 

However, the benefits of incorporating an NBFC and carrying on its activities are listed below: 

Competitive Interest Rates: 

Rate of interest is one of the main aspects of all types of loans. Non-Banking Financial Sectors have started to 
concentrate on this area in the recent decades and have brought down the interest rates to either equal to bank 
lending rates or at times even lower to bank rates. With all the other benefits when the rate of interest is also 
lowered, borrowers found this easier and more affordable. This has also resulted in lower EMI (Equated 
Monthly Instalment) for borrowers. Based on the income, credit scoring, and repayment, the rate of interest is 
charged on the borrowers However it is at competitive rates. 

Quick Processing: 

At banks, it is very important that the applicant should fulfill the eligibility criteria but NBFC is lenient in this 
aspect. This makes loan approval easier, a smoother process, and quicker. Most of the time, people apply for 
loans when they are in immediate need of money. NBFCs have taken this as an opportunity to meet the 
demand by quickly processing the loans at a competitive rate of interest. At times, borrowers are even ready to 
compromise on the interest rates if the loan amount is huge and if they could get it approved quickly. 

Fewer Rules and Regulations: 

As NBFC is incorporated under the Companies Act, (though regulated by the Reserve Bank of India), the rules 
and regulations for lending are not as stringent as banks. This helps borrowers to get loans easily. In view of 
less complicated loan processing requirements, borrowers are highly satisfied. Of course, the risk of default is 
high with NBFC and thus interest rates and other charges will be according priced by the NBFC. Even the loan 
amount approved will be quite lesser than the collateral value. This is due to the high risk of default. NBFCs 
do not have statutory reserve ratios and can open branches at will. 

Loan available for Individuals with Poor Credit Rating: 

Individuals with poor credit ratings generally will not get loans from banks. The reason for this is banks 
consider borrowers are high-risk individuals if the credit scoring is low. Unless the credit score is above 600 -
650, it is very difficult to get a loan sanctioned from banks. On the other hand, loans will be offered to 
individuals with low credit scores by NBFCs but most of the time the interest rates for such borrowers will be 
higher than market rates. Due to these aforementioned advantages, most of the NBFCs are growing. 

ROAD AHEAD 

Based on the various initiative taken by the government as it will not only help in providing the liquidity and 
easing the impact of coronavirus on the NBFC sector but also provide loans to the needy even in the current 
situation and help in building the economy. 
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OUR BUSINESS 
 
Following information is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read together with, the more detailed 
financial and other information included in the Draft Letter of Offer, including the information contained in 
the section titled ‘Risk Factors’, beginning on page 19 of the Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
This section should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more detailed 
information about our Company and its financial statements, including the notes thereto, in the sections titled 
‘Risk Factors’ and ‘Financial Statement’ and chapter titled ‘Management Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations’ beginning on page 19, 94 and 96 respectively, of the Draft 
Letter of Offer. 
 
Unless the context otherwise requires, in relation to business operations, in this section of the Draft Letter of 
Offer, all references to “we”, “us”, “our” and “our Company” are to Abha Property Project Limited and 
Group Entities as the case may be. 
 
Business Overview 
 
Our Company was incorporated as “Abha Property Project Limited” as a public limited company under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated May 10, 1985, issued by Registrar 
of Companies, N.C.T of Delhi & Haryana. The Company has got Certificate of Commencement of Business 
dated June 06, 1985, issued by Registrar of Companies, N.C.T of Delhi & Haryana. 
 
In the year 1985, the Company came out with an IPO and got listing at Delhi Stock Exchange. Delhi Stock 
Exchange is ceases to be act a functional stock exchange as the same has been de-recognised by SEBI vide its 
order dated 23rd January, 2017. 
 
In the year 1989, the Company has been taken over by new management by virtue of change in directorship 
and controlling interest in the Shareholding in the phased manner from the year 1991 to 1997 and the present 
promoter Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla along with PAC’s completed the acquisition of shares from erstwhile 
promoters of the Company pursuant to an open offer made under Regulation 11(1) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Substantial Acquisitions of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 which commenced on 
June 6, 2006 and expired on June 15, 2006. 
 
Our Company got Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC– Non Deposit Taking) registration certificate 
from RBI, New Delhi Regional Office, to carry on the NBFI (Non-Banking Financial Institution) activities 
under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 bearing Registration no. B-14.00806 dated 
13.09.2000.  
 
In the year 2002, M/s. Sambhawnath Marketing (P) Ltd. was amalgamated with our company pursuant to an 
order of Calcutta High Court. 
 
Our Company got listing at Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) dated 11.06.2002 and got trading permission from 
CSE vide letter No CSEA/LD/TN/1072/2003 dated 20.08.2003,  
 
The trading of the equity shares of the Company at CSE was suspended with effect from March 21, 2014 due 
to some non-compliance of the Listing Agreement via notice dated March 12, 2014 of CSE. Subsequently, the 
suspension of trading got revoked and are admitted for dealing effective from July 04, 2019 vide CSE letter ref 
no. CSE/LD/14703/2019 dated July 03, 2019.    
 
Our registered office sifted from NCT of Delhi to the state of West Bengal in the year 2001 pursuant to the 
Company Law Board (CLB), Northern Region Bench, New Delhi, order dated 16.10.2001. Subsequently, the 
Company got fresh NBFC Registration Certificate bearing registration no. B-05.06627 from RBI, Kolkata 
office dated 07.07.2006 in lieu of the earlier Certificate.  
 
BUSINESS MODEL 
 
Our Company’s business model is centered around investment activities such as equity investment in group 
companies, new venture/project and the companies having strong potential to grow and also investment in 
quoted shares and securities, commodities, currency Market and investment in G Sec Bonds, liquid funds and 
Debt Funds. 
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OUR BUSINES OPERATION 
 
Our Company started its commercial operations in 1985. The below table captures the financial information of 
the Company. 

 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements for 

the half-year ending 
September 30, 2023 

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for 
the Financial Years ending March 31, 

2023 2022 

Total Income from 
operations 

80.04 176.59 203.34 

EBITDA 70.55 170.80 196.04 
Profit after Tax 67.42 141.93 188.04 
Equity Share Capital 190.00 190.00 190.00 
Net worth 8,299.16 8,233.30 7,765.59 
Book Value per Share 
(Rs.) 436.80 433.34 408.72 

Investment 14,246.80 14,192.04 10,149.44 
 
COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS  
 
1. Strong professional and experienced execution/ management team allows the Company to develop a 

strong business  
 
Our Company’s business is supported by an experienced and professional management team with strong 
background in financial services. Our management team is backed by our Promoters who are having more than 
5 decades of experience in varied business. We believe that the relevant experience of our management and 
KMPs would provide us a competitive advantage as compared to other unorganized players in the financial 
sector.  
 
2. Focus on a disciplined business philosophy with internal controls and risk management  
 
Our Company is focused on providing long term investment. Our Company does not invest industry specific 
but gives weightage to the company’s potential to grow and quality management. Our Company believes that 
it has necessary internal controls and risk management systems to assess and monitor risks. 
 
OUR STRATEGIES  
 
Our key strategic priorities are as follows:  

1. Leverage on our experience and relationships  

We have steadily grown our business in recent years. We intend to continue to leverage our experience and 
relationships with our customers to expand and diversify.  

2. Focus on customer services by efficient use of technology  

We believe that customer service initiatives coupled with the effective use of technology can help us enhance 
our recognition and business operations. We intend to continue investing in technology to improve our 
operational efficiencies, functionality, reduce errors and improve our productivity. We also believe in 
deploying strong technology systems that will enable us to respond to market opportunities and challenges 
swiftly, improve the quality of services to our customers, and improve our risk management capabilities. We 
intend to remain committed to technological innovation to ensure our ability to respond to our increasingly 
sophisticated and competitive market and to mitigate the risks we face as a NBFC.  

3. Attract and retain experienced professionals  

Our Company believes in recruiting qualified professionals with experience in financial services sector, 
investment evaluation, research, risk management, technology, and marketing. 
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OUR SUBSIDIARIES  
 
We have two subsidiaries –  

1. Abha Ferro Alloys Ltd. (“AFAL”), was incorporated as a public limited company under the provisions 
of Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated March 09, 2017, issued by Registrar of 
Companies, West Bengal. The registered office of AFAL is situated at 3 Mayfair Road Flat - 2B, 2nd 
floor, Kolkata- 700019, West Bengal. It is became our wholly owned subsidiary on 09th March, 2017. The 
company was incorporated to deal into ferro alloys business but the company has yet to be started its 
business. The share capital of the Company is Rs.36,05,00,000.  

 
2. Abha Refractories Ltd. (“ARL”), was incorporated as a public limited company under the provisions of 

Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated March 08, 2017, issued by Registrar of 
Companies, West Bengal. The registered office of ARL is situated at Flat-12b, 13/2 Ballygunge Park 
Road, Kolkata-700019, West Bengal. It is became our wholly owned subsidiary on 8th March, 2017. The 
company was incorporated to deal into refractories business but the company has yet to be started its 
business. The share capital of the Company is Rs.28,60,00,000.  

INSURANCE 
 
We do not have any insurance policy as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
PLANT AND MACHINERY 
 
Since we are a service sector company, we do not own any major plant and machinery. 
 
COLLABORATIONS 
 
We have not entered into any technical or financial or any other collaboration agreement as on the date of 
filing this Draft Letter of Offer.  
 
UTILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES 
 
We require computers and laptops for our data preparation work. Our registered office is equipped with latest 
computer systems, relevant software’s, uninterrupted power supply, internet connectivity, security and other 
facilities, which are required for our business operations to function smoothly. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES  
 
We believe our employees are one of our most important assets and critical to maintaining our competitive 
position in our industry. As of September 30, 2023, we have 5 full time employees. The following table sets 
forth a bifurcation of the number of our employees as of September 30, 2023: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Description  No. of Employees 

1. Top Management 2 
2. Corporate support staff (Accounts, Secretarial, office staff) 2 
3. Others 1 
 Total:: 5 

 
COMPETITION  
 
We operate in a highly competitive industry. Many of our competitors may have greater resources than we do, 
may be larger in terms of business volume and may have significantly lower cost of funds compared to us, 
qualified professionals with experience in financial services sector, investment evaluation, research, risk 
management, technology, and marketing strategies. Competition in our industry depends on, amongst others, 
the ongoing evolution of government and regulatory policies, the entry of new participants etc. 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY  
 
We as a responsible corporate citizen are committed to take up different developmental projects, towards 
improving the quality of lives of the underprivileged sections of the society and other stakeholders. We are not 
required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as our Company does not fall within 
purview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We are also not required to formulate a policy on 
corporate social responsibility. 
 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY  
 
We do not own any trademarks and none of them are registered as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
OUR PROPERTY 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Details of the 
Deed/Agreement 

Particulars of the 
property, description 

and area 

Consideration/ 
License 

Fee/Rent 

Tenure/ Term Usage 

1. NOC of Maithan 
Ceramic Ltd. dated 
April 01, 2023 

29, Ganesh Chandra 
Avenue, 4th Floor, 
Room No 407, 
Kolkata- 700013 

Nil Valid until 
cancellation 

Registered 
Office 
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OUR MANAGEMENT 
Board of Directors 
 
Currently, our Company has 6 (Six) Directors on our Board comprising of 2 (Two) Executive Directors, and 2 
(Two) Non-Executive and Non Independent Directors and 2 (Two) Independent Directors. The composition of 
the Board of Directors is governed by the provisions of the Companies Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations 
and the norms of the code of corporate governance as applicable to listed companies in India. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, at least two-third of the total number of Directors, 
excluding the Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, with one-third of such number retiring at 
each Annual General Meeting. A retiring director is eligible for re-appointment. Further, an Independent 
Director may be appointed for a maximum of two consecutive terms of up to five years each. 
  
The following table sets forth details regarding our Board of Directors as of the date of this Draft Letter of 
Offer. 
 

Name, Father’s Name, 
Designation, Address, 

Occupation, Age, Nationality, 
Date of Birth, Permanent 

Account Number and Director 
Identification 

Number 

Date of Appointment/ 
Reappointment 

Other Directorships 

Mr. Amit Agarwalla 
 
Father’s Name: Basant Kumar 
Agarwalla 
 
Designation: Executive Director 
 
Address: Flat 2B, Heritage 
Mayfair, 3 Mayfair Road, 
Ballygunge, Kolkata – 700 019 
 
Occupation: Business 
 
Age: 52 years 
 
Nationality: Indian 
 
Date of Birth: August 27, 1971 
 
PAN: ACMPA9303Q  
 
DIN: 00338081 

Appointed as Director w.e.f 
August 14, 2017 
Re-designated as Managing 
Director w.e.f. June 01, 2019 upto 
May 30, 2024 

1. Kharkia Enclave Private 
Limited  

2. Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. 
3. Ornate Tie Up Pvt. Ltd. 

Mr. Aditya Agarwalla 
 
Father’s Name: Jagdish Prasad 
Agarwalla 
 
Designation: Executive Director 
 
Address: Flat 12B, Hiland 
Sapphire, 13/2 Ballygunge Park 
Road, Ballygunge, Kolkata – 700 
019 
 
Occupation: Business 
 
Age: 49 years 
 
Nationality: Indian 
 

Appointed as Director w.e.f  
August 14, 2017 

1. Indian Refractory Makers 
Association  

2. Maithan Ceramic Ltd. 
3. Maithan Advanced Materials 

Limited  
4. Sunidhi Tradelink Pvt. Ltd. 
5. R.H. Builders Pvt. Ltd. 
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Date of Birth: December 28, 
1974 
 
PAN: ACMPA9304K 
 
DIN: 00140683 
Mr. Vishal Agarwalla 
 
Father’s Name: Jagdish Prasad 
Agarwalla 
 
Designation: Non-Executive & 
Non-Independent Director 
 
Address: Hiland Sapphire, Flat 
12B, 13/2 Ballygunge Park Road, 
Ballygunge, Kolkata – 700 019 
 
Occupation: Business 
 
Age: 52 years 
 
Nationality: Indian 
 
Date of Birth: September 16, 
1971 
 
PAN: ACMPA9306M 
 
DIN: 00129040  

Appointed as Director w.e.f  July 
14, 2003 

1. Vanyaveda Greens Private 
Limited 

2. Aveda Seritech Private Limited  
3. Maithan Ceramic Ltd. 
4. Vanyaveda Alloys Private 

Limited 
5. Maithan Advanced Materials 

Limited  
6. Sunidhi Tradelink Pvt. Ltd. 

Mr. Sumit Agarwalla 
 
Father’s Name: Basant Kumar 
Agarwalla 
 
Designation: Non-Executive & 
Non-Independent Director 
 
Address: Flat 2B, Heritage 
Mayfair, Ballygunge, Kolkata – 
700 019 
 
Occupation: Business 
 
Age: 51 years 
 
Nationality: Indian 
 
Date of Birth: December 06, 
1972 
 
PAN: ACMPA9292J 
 
DIN: 00336064 

Appointed as Director w.e.f  July 
14, 2003 

1. Maithan Industries Ltd. 
2. Anjaney Ferro Alloys Ltd. 
3. Ornate Tie Up Pvt. Ltd. 
4. Kharkia Enclave Private 

Limited 

Ms. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal 
 
Father’s Name: Tarlok Singh 
 
Designation: Non-Executive  
Independent Women Director 
 
Address: 3/7, Tarkasiddhanta 
Lane, 

Appointed as Additional Director 
w.e.f. May 29, 2023 
 
Re-designated as Independent 
Director w.e.f May 29, 2023 by 
virtue of the members’ approval at 
the Annual General Meeting held 
on August 25, 2023   

1. Multicon Realty Limited 
2. Maithan Ceramic Ltd. 
3. Kaizen Agro Infrabuild 

Limited 



 

 

83 
 

Bally, Howrah – 711 201 
 
Occupation: Service 
 
Age: 33 years 
 
Nationality: Indian 
 
Date of Birth: May 26, 1990 
 
PAN: BWHPK8912P 
 
DIN: 10077160 
Ms. Ayushi Khaitan 
 
Father’s Name: Pawan Verma 
 
Designation: Non-Executive  
Independent Women Director 
 
Address: 109, Dwarik Jungle 
Road, Uttrarpara, Kotrung M, 
Hoogly, Bhadrakali, West    
Bengal – 712232 
 
Occupation: Service 
 
Age: 30 years 
 
Nationality: Indian 
 
Date of Birth: September 06, 
1993 
 
PAN: GHGPK4103M 
 
DIN: 10171829 

Appointed as Additional Director 
w.e.f. May 29, 2023 
 
Re-designated Independent 
Director w.e.f May 29, 2023 by 
virtue of the members’ approval at 
the Annual General Meeting held 
on August 25, 2023   

1. Maithan Ceramic Ltd. 
2. Visco Trade Associates Ltd. 

 
Relationship between Directors 
 
Except as stated below, none of the Directors of our Company are related to each other as per Section 2(77) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Sr. No. Name of the Director Name of the Director Relationship 

1. Mr. Amit Agarwalla Mr. Sumit Agarwalla Brothers 
2. Mr. Aditya Agarwalla Mr. Vishal Agarwalla Brothers 

 
Brief Profile of Directors 
 
1. Mr. Amit Agarwalla: 
 
Mr. Amit Agarwalla, aged about 52 years, is the Managing Director of our Company. He has completed 
Commerce Graduation. He is responsible for the company’s vision and strategy and operations. He is 
associated with our Company since 14th August, 2017. He holds position of key managerial personnel in 
Anjaneey Ferro Alloys Ltd. & also holds senior leadership positions/ directorship in some of the family owned 
companies having more than 25 years of working experience in various facets of Steel, ferro-alloys industries 
in the field of administration, production and management. 
 
2. Mr. Aditya Agarwalla: 
 
Mr. Aditya Agarwalla, aged about 49 years, is the Executive Director of our Company. He has done MBA 
(Finance) & Bachelor of Engineering (B.E.). He is the director in Maithan Ceramic Ltd. since 2003 and 
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working for more than 21 years of experience in various facets of Steel, ceramic, refractories and other 
industries including in the field of Finance, administration and production. 
 
3. Mr. Vishal Agarwalla: 
 
Mr. Vishal Agarwalla, aged about 52 years, is the Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director of our 
Company. He has done B Tech. He is working as Managing Director at Maithan Ceramic Ltd. and working 
more than 30 years of experience in various facets of Steel, Refractories and other industries including in the 
field of Finance, administration and production. 
 
4. Mr. Sumit Agarwalla: 
 
Mr. Sumit Agarwalla, aged about 51 years, is the Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director of our 
Company. He has completed Commerce Graduation. He is the Whole-time Director in Anjaneey Ferro Alloys 
Ltd. and having directorship in other Indian companies, working more than two decades of experience in 
various facets of steel, ferro-alloys, ceramic industries including in the field of administration, production and 
management. 
 
5. Ms. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal: 
 
Ms. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal, aged about 33 years, is the Non-Executive and Independent Director of our 
Company. She is a qualified Company Secretary and a member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (“ICSI”), New Delhi, having membership no. A51064. She is currently working as a Company Secretary 
in Adhunik Corporation Limited from July 2019 and having overall 7 years post qualification work 
experiences in corporate governance, statutory and legal provisions. 
 
6. Ms. Ayushi Khaitan: 
 
Ms. Ayushi Khaitan, aged about 30 years, is the Non-Executive and Independent Director of our Company. 
She is professionally qualified Company Secretary, from the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(“ICSI”), New Delhi, having membership no. A52589. She has an experience for more than 7 years in the field 
of corporate laws, SEBI etc. & was a full time company secretary in Niks Technology Limited from 31st 
January, 2023. 
 
Details of any arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others 
 
Our Company has not entered into any arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, 
suppliers or others, pursuant to which any of the above mentioned Directors have been appointed in the Board. 
 
Other Confirmations: 
 

1. None of Directors are currently, or have been in the past five years, on the board of directors of a listed 
company whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on the Stock Exchange. 

 
2. None of our Directors is or was, in the past ten years, a director of any listed company which has been or 

was delisted from any stock exchange in India during the term of their directorship in such company. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
Our Company stands committed to good corporate governance practices based on the principles such as 
accountability, transparency in dealings with our stakeholders, emphasis on communication and transparent 
reporting. 
 
We have a Board constituted the Board Committees in compliance with the Companies Act. The Board 
functions either as a full Board or through various committees constituted to oversee specific operational areas. 
Our executive management provides the Board detailed reports on its performance periodically. 
 
Currently, our Company has 6 (Six) Directors on our Board comprising of 2 (Two) Executive Directors, and 2 
(Two) Non-Executive and Non-Independent Directors and 2 (Two) Independent Directors. 
 
The following committees have been formed in compliance with the corporate governance norms: 
 
A) Audit Committee 
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B) Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
C) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Our Company has originally constituted the audit committee ("Audit Committee"), as per the provisions of 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 18 of SEBI LODR Regulations vide resolution passed 
at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on September 25, 2014. 
 
Our Company has reconstituted the audit committee ("Audit Committee"), as per the provisions of Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 18 of SEBI LODR Regulations vide resolution passed at the 
meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 29, 2023. 
 
The terms of reference of Audit Committee complies with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and 
regulation 18 of SEBI LODR Regulations.  
 
The committee presently comprises following three (3) directors: 
 

Sr. Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 
1. Ms. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
2. Ms. Ayushi Khaitan Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
3. Mr. Aditya Agarwalla Member Executive Director & CFO 

 
Role of Audit Committee 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are given below: 
 

 oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

 recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed 
entity; 

 approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
 reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 
o matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the 

board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013; 

o changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 
o major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
o significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
o compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; 
o disclosure of any related party transactions; 
o modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report; 

 reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 
approval; 

 reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter; 

 reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit 
process; 

 approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties; 
 scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
 valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 
 evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems; 
 reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage 
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and frequency of internal audit; 
 discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
 reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the matter to the board; 

 discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

 to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
 approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate; 
 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee. 
 reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 
including existing loans/advances/investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this 
provision; 

 consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, 
amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders; 

 such other terms of reference/role as may be amended from time to time. 
 
All the items listed in Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18(3) read with Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 are covered in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.  
 
In addition, to carry out such other functions/powers as may be delegated by the Board to the Committee from 
time to time. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
Our Company has originally constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("Stakeholders relationship 
committee") to redress the complaints of the shareholders in terms of section 178(5) of Companies Act, 2013 
and regulation 20 of SEBI LODR Regulations. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted vide 
resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on June 29, 2021. 
 
Our Company has reconstituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("Stakeholders relationship 
committee") to redress the complaints of the shareholders in terms of section 178(5) of Companies Act, 2013 
and regulation 20 of SEBI LODR Regulations. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted vide 
resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 29, 2023. 
 
The committee currently comprises of following three (3) Directors: 
 

Sr. Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 
1. Mr.Vishal Agarwalla Chairman Non-Executive Director 
2. Mr. Amit Agarwalla Member Executive Director 
3. Ms. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
 
Role of stakeholder Relationship committee 
 
The Stakeholder Relationship Committee of our Board look into: 
 

 Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of the annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 
issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

 Review of measures taken for the effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
 Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 
 Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices 
by the shareholders of the company. 

 Such other terms of reference/role as may be amended from time to time. 
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The status on various complaints received / replied is reported to the Board of Directors as an Agenda item. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
Our Company has originally constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee") in terms of section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 19 of SEBI 
LODR Regulations. The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was approved by a 
Meeting of the Board of Directors held on September 25, 2014. 
 
Our Company has reconstituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee") in terms of section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 19 of SEBI 
LODR Regulations. The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was approved by a 
Meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 29, 2023. 
 
The Committee currently comprises of following four (4) Directors.  
 

Sr. Name of the Director Status Nature of Directorship 
1. Ms. Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal Chairman Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
2. Ms. Ayushi Khaitan Member Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
3. Mr. Sumit Agarwalla Member Non-Executive Non Independent 

Director 
3. Mr.Vishal Agarwalla Member Non-Executive Director Non 

Independent Director 
 
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows: 
 

 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the 
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 

 For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such 
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The 
person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the 
capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the 
Committee may: 
o use the services of an external agencies, if required; 
o consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and 
o consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

 formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of 
directors; 

 devising a policy on diversity of board of directors; 
 identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their 
appointment and removal. 

 whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the 
report of performance evaluation of independent directors. 

 recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 
 such other terms of reference/role as may be amended from time to time. 

 
Our Key Management Personnel and Senior Management Personnel 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of key Management Personnel 
and Senior Management Personnel 

Designation Associated with the 
Company Since 

1. Mr. Amit Agarwalla Managing Director 01/06/2019 
2. Mr. Aditya Agarwalla Chief Financial Officer 01/06/2019 
3. Mr. Santanu Kumar Hazra Company Secretary 22/11/2021 

 
All our Key Managerial Personnel are permanent employees of our Company. 
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Relationship of Key Managerial Personnel with our Directors, Promoter and/ or other Key Managerial 
Personnel 
 
There is no relationship between Key managerial personnel with Our Directors, Promoters and/ or Other Key 
Managerial personnel except Mr. Amit Agarwalla & Mr. Sumit Agarwalla and Mr. Aditya Agarwalla & Mr. 
Vishal Agarwalla are brothers. 
 
Management Organization Structure 
 
Set forth is the organization structure of our Company: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Board of Directors 

Managing Director 

Executive Directors 

Company Secretary and 
Legal Department 

Accounts and Finance 
Department 

Business 
Operations 
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OUR PROMOTERS 
 
Details of Our Promoters are as under: 
 
1. Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla 
 
 

 

Mr. Agarwalla, aged about 76 years, is residing at Flat No. 
12B, Hiland Shappire, 13/2, Ballygunge Park Road, Kolkata – 
700 019 He is qualified as Bachelor of Science (BSC). He is a 
founder-Chairman and Director of Maithan Ceramic Ltd. which 
has been engaged into the chemical & refractory industry, 
having a long term working experiences for more than 50 years 
in various facets of Steel and other industries including in the 
field of finance, procurement, marketing, budget & planning, 
administration and production. He is one of the Trustee of Sri 
Raghunath Kharkia Charitable Trust, which is running for 
social & charitable purposes. 

 
Identification 
 
Name JAGDISH PRASAD AGARWALLA 
Permanent Account Number ACMPA9295R 
Passport No. N3408624 
Driving License NA 
Bank Account Details Axis Bank, M. K. Market, Chirkunda, Dhanbad – 828 202, 

Jharkhand, India, IFSC: UTIB0001897, Savings Account No.: 
913010025831087  

Education Qualification Bachelor of Science (BSC) 
Address Hiland Shappire, Flat No. 12B, 13/2, Ballygunge Park Road, 

Ballygunge, Kolkata – 700 019 
 
2. Sita Agarwalla 
 

 

Mrs. Agarwalla, aged about 72 years, is residing at 3 Mayfair 
Road, Flat No. 2B, Heritage Mayfair Road, Ballygunge, 
Kolkata – 700 019. She is qualified as Bachelor of Commerce 
Graduate. She is a Housewife. 

 
Identification 
 
Name SITA AGARWALLA 
Permanent Account Number ACMPA9302R 
Passport No. NA 
Driving License NA 
Bank Account Details Axis Bank, M. K. Market, Chirkunda, Dhanbad – 828 202, 

Jharkhand, India, IFSC: UTIB0001897, Savings Account No.: 
913010025445246 

Education Qualification Bachelor of Commerce 
Address 3 Mayfair Road, Flat No. 2B, Heritage Mayfair Road, 

Ballygunge, Kolkata – 700 019 
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Persons forming part of Promoter Group 
 
1. Anshuman Agarwalla 
2. Dhruv Agarwalla 
3. Swati Agarwalla 
4. Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla HUF 
5. Basant Kumar Agarwalla HUF 
 
Confirmations 
 
1. None of our Promoter has been declared as wilful defaulters by the RBI or any other governmental 

authority and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or are currently 
pending against them. 
 

2. Our Promoter has not been declared as a Fugitive Economic Offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive 
Economic Offenders Act, 2018. 
 

3. None of our Promoter or Promoter Group entities have been debarred or prohibited from accessing or 
operating in capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or 
governmental authority. Our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group are not and have never been 
promoters, directors or person in control of any other company, which is debarred or prohibited from 
accessing or operating in capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other 
regulatory or governmental authority. 
 

4. There are no litigation or legal action pending or taken by any ministry, department of the Government or 
statutory authority during the last 5 (five) years preceding the date of the Issue against our Promoter. 
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OUR GROUP ENTITIES 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, for the purpose of identification of “Group 
Entities”, our Company has considered those entities as our Group Entity with which there were related party 
transactions as covered under the applicable accounting standards, i.e. Accounting Standard 18 issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India in the Audited Financial Statements of our Company for the six 
months period ended September 30, 2023 and such other entities as considered material by our Board. 
 
Further, entities which are no longer associated with our Company have not been disclosed as Group Entities. 
 
DETAILS OF THE GROUP ENTITIES 
 
1. Abha Refractories Limited 
 

Name of the Company Abha Refractories Limited (AFL) 
Type of Company Public Limited Company 
Date of Incorporation of the Company March 08, 2017 
CIN of the Company U36999WB2017PLC219828 
Registered Office of the Company Flat: 12B, 13/2 Ballygunge Park Road, Kolkata – 700 019 
Registrar of Companies ROC Kolkata 
Nature of Business The company was incorporated to deal into refractories 

business but the company has yet to be started its business. 
 
Board of Directors of AFL   

Sr. No. Name of the Director DIN 
1. Abhijit Bhattacharjee 07722102 
2. Niranjan Kumar Agarwal 00504021 
3. Ajay Sharma 07752033 

 
Shareholding pattern of AFL as on September 30, 2023 is as under: 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Equity Shareholder No. of Shares % of Holding 

1. Abha Property Project Limited 60,99,940 99.999% 

2. Jagadish Prasad Agarwalla 10 0.0002% 

3. Swati Agarwalla 10 0.0002% 

4. Madhuri Agarwalla 10 0.0002% 

5. Vishal Agarwalla 10 0.0002% 

6. Aditya Agarwalla 10 0.0002% 

7. Abhijit Bhattacharjee 10 0.0002% 

  Total 61,00,000 100.00% 
 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Preference Shareholder No. of Shares % of Holding 

1. Abha Property Project Limited 2,25,00,000 100.00% 

  Total 2,25,00,000 100.00% 
 
Brief details of Audited Financials 

        (₹’ Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the six months 

period ended 
September 30, 2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2022 

Equity Share Capital 610.00 610.00 610.00 

Reserves (excluding revaluation reserve) 2,868.37 2,904.98 2,704.57 

Net worth 3,478.37 3,514.98 3,314.57 
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Other Income 0.14 61.32 107.17 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax (36.62) 1.73 50.53 

Earnings Per Share 
   

a.     Basic Earnings Per Share (in ₹) (0.60)* 0.03 0.83 

b.     Diluted Earnings Per Share  (In ₹) (0.60)* 0.03 0.83 

Net Asset Value per Equity Share (In ₹) 57.02* 57.62 54.34 

* Non-annualised 
 
2. Abha Ferro Alloys Limited 

 
Name of the Entity Abha Ferro Alloys Limited (AFAL) 
Type of Entity Public Limited Company 
Date of Incorporation of the Company March 09, 2017 
CIN of the Company U36999WB2017PLC219860 
Registered Office of the Company 3, Mayfair Road, Flat - 2B, 2nd Floor, Kolkata – 700 019 
Registrar of Companies ROC Kolkata 
Nature of Business The company was incorporated to deal into ferro alloys business 

but the company has yet to be started its business. 
 
Board of Directors of AFAL   

Sr. No. Name of the Director DIN 
1. Suresh Kumar Sharma 07760918 
2. Sajan Kumar Kharkia 07988183 
3. Vikash Kharakia 07760911 

 
Shareholding Pattern of AFAL as on September 30, 2023 is as under: 
 

Sr. No. Name of the Equity Shareholder No. of Shares % of Holding 

1 Abha Property Project Limited 1,35,49,940 100.000% 

2 Sita Agarwalla 10.00 0.0001% 

3 Sangita Agarwalla 10.00 0.0001% 

4 Nidhi Agarwalla 10.00 0.0001% 

5 Vidisha Agarwalla 10.00 0.0001% 

6 Amit Agarwalla 10.00 0.0001% 

7 Sumit Agarwalla 10.00 0.0001% 

  Total 1,35,50,000 100.00% 
 

Sr. No. 
Name of the Preference 

Shareholder 
No. of Shares % of Holding 

1 Abha Property Project Limited 2,25,00,000 100.00% 

  Total 2,25,00,000 100.00% 
 
Brief details of Audited Financials 

     (₹’ Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the six months 

period ended 
September 30, 2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 

2022 
Equity Share Capital 1,355.00 1,355.00 1,355.00 

Reserves (excluding revaluation reserve) 6,522.03 6,476.98 4,538.84 

Net worth 7,877.03 7,831.98 5,893.84 

Other Income 82.92 113.07 94.04 

Profit/ (Loss) after tax 45.04 25.56 30.59 

Earnings Per Share 
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a.     Basic Earnings Per Share (in ₹) 0.33* 0.19 0.23 

b.     Diluted Earnings Per Share  (In ₹) 0.33* 0.19 0.23 

Net Asset Value per Equity Share (In ₹) 58.13* 57.80 43.50 

* Non-annualised 
 

3. Maithan International 
 

Name of the Entity Maithan International 
Type of Entity Partnership Firm 
Incorporation Date of the Firm January 03, 2000 
Registration Status Unregistered 
PAN AAEFM9873F 
Principal Place of Business 9, A. J. C. Bose Road, 6th Floor, Kolkata – 700 017 
Nature of Activity Wholesale of Metal & Metal Ore and Investment activities 
Partners & Share of Profit 1. Vishal Agarwalla & 30% 

2. Aditya Agarwalla & 36% 
3. Abha Refractories Limited & 16% 
4. Dhruv Agarwalla & 6% 
5. Anshuman Agarwalla & 6% 
6. Raghav Agarwalla & 6% 

 
The audited financial results for the last financial year, preceding the date of this Draft Letter of 
Offer: - 
 

                (₹’ Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Year ended  

March 31, 2023 
Partner’s Capital 5,982.78 

Reserves (excluding revaluation reserve) NA 

Net worth NA 

Sales/ Turnover including Other Income 457.70 

Net Profit/ (Loss) 310.81 

Earnings Per Share (In ₹) NA 

Net Asset Value per Equity Share (In ₹) NA 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Page No. 
1. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the six months period 

ended September 30, 2023 
F- 1 to F - 16 

2. Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial Year 
ending March 31, 2023 

F- 17 to F - 41 
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- lncome Tax relatung to (a) above

b)ltem t|at ull b€ rEclaosif€d to Profit & Lort
- lncome Tax rehtrng to (b) abov€

Oth.i Comp.shln ivo lncolnr (.+bl

1

The notes rclered tc above form an intergal part of these consolidatad fnancial atatementrE.

This b ttte Consolidated StalcnEnt o{ Profit E Lo88 rohnbd to h our Epo.t of evsn dste
For and on behaif ol For & on bshafl of Boad qt Director3
R4g.da&A..ocLt.
Chartered Accountant6
Registatbn No.314241E

Qra,I
CA Dibyr Ag.ru.l aPErlner
Memb€rshio No. 30460'1

ka,*,^l-
,r16glng olr.cto.l^^;^/(Amlt AganYrlh,

td.tl^n 
^(adltyYa!.rwT., o

DIN:

l35ABRBBaEuRoad
Kolkatia - 700 001

Dat.di I 2 ri\r :^.,1 t,E, &q.o
Stntanu Kua'l.a Hazra

Co. Stctlt ry

17.658.77
17 .65A 77

TOTAL COTPHREI{SwE tttCOrE ,..,,,,,,,,,,,,,..g
EARIIIiIGS PER EOUTTY SHARE OF FAGE VALUE OF R..IO,. EACH

Basb & oiluted Earning 13 _-g

13,9S9.79

7.36

00140683

€-3
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AAHA PROPERTY PROJEGT LTO.
co soltoltso casH rlow stlteueNt ionltrE nnFleli-euoeo sorx seprrriesa zozg

nt ln Ru Tho

30.09.2023 31.03 2023
(A) G!.h Flow F.om Oporating Actjyitioa :-
Ngt Profu(Lo€s) Bebre Ta(

Adiualrnonb For:-
Share of P.ofU (Lo&s) of Arrociata6
lntEr€st Receked on Oepoditr

Galn on MutuEt Fund on Rerra0ng ot FEir
Value
Orvldgnd Receiled
Share ot Protit trom Parherghip Firm
Nel (Galnyloss on Sab Ot lnvqtrn€nt

operating ProfiU(Loss) Before Workng Capital Changes

905.69
(2,347.0t)

(5,632.381
(24.88)

203.61
(3,184.93)

(E,586.07)

(5,906.92)

6,1aa.Ea 16.876 53

(1,572.7sl

Adju6tierts For t-
Trade 8nd other Payabl6s

(7,098.66) _ 117,451.31\
1577.78\(94t.82)

(6.89)
2.62 (6 89)

Cash Geneaated Frorn Oporations :-
Dhect Taxe6 (Pard) / R€tund Received ( Net )

Cash Flow Eelor€ Exfa Ofttinery lt6m8
Exfa Ordinary ltems

N.t Cr.h Flow Fiom Opor.tlng Actlvlti-
(Bl Crah Flow From lnv..tlng Actiyitic! :.
Purchas€ / Sale of Fixed Assets

Sald (Purchas€) of lnveshenb (N69
Movoment lh Olher Financial &sels
lnlerest Receued

(lnvertrnent in)/Wdhdrawal from Pa.theMip Firm
Ovidend Received

Movement in Long Term Loans & Advances
l{.t Crth Flow From lnya.gng Actlvltlaa
(C) C.rh Flow From Fin.nclng Artlvltla :.

Changos in Sharo Capil,al
Net C..h Flow Frofi Fin.dcing Actlvltl..
Net lncreas€y'(Oec.ease) in Cash & Cash Equlvalenb r-

Op.ning B.hnc. ol C..h & C..h Equlv.lcnt!
Clo.lng 8.l.nc. oI C.sh e C..h Equiv.hnb (Not 2)

(9/r720)
(706.60)

(5M 67)
(988.12)

11,653.80)

(1,653.801

(1s,940.83)
2,3.17.09

26.599.l'l
(65.710.70)

3,16{.33
(20,000.m)

24.8824.88

(15,222.65)
28/409.83
'13,187.17

(55,921.78)

(57,494_57)

85,9M 40
28,409 83

Thr6 is tho Con6oldated Ca6h Flo, Statorn€nls rBfenrd to an our report of svon dats

For and on behalf ol
R.rg.,l. & A$ool.t!.
Chartered Accountant6
Registration No.314241 E

&'"d
CA Dlbr. Ag.d.l
Perfier

Memb€rshio No. 30460'1

l35A,BRBBasuRoad
Ko{kata - 700 001

t.ilE
(Amh Ag.ny.llr, tl.mgfng Olroctor)

For E on behalf of Eoard of oireclors

DIN

olN:001

&.l; t.t<a'

,@

ort*:l!Ji\li rJ?,l

Santanu Kuma. Ha2tt
Company Soc]lLry

NE

63rs6sJst

(1,572.79)



I. SU ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fimncial ArtoL rnd Llabiliu.!
Financial assets and financial liabilities (financial instruments) arB recognized when this unit of the
company becameE a party to thc cpniraclual provbionB of the lnsuuments.
Financial as3sl8 aM financial liabilities are initially rneasured at tair valus. TranSaction co3ts lhat are
di.octly ettributable to th€ acquisition or issue of financial .ssols End linancial liabitities (other than
financial assots and financial liabilitics at fair valu€ through profit or l6s) are added to o( deducted
from lho fair value ot th6llnsnciel assetg o. financial liabilitics, a9 appropriate, on initial recogniton.

Thc linancial essots and financi3l liabilitie3 are classified as cu,renl if they are expected to be realisod
or 8ettled within operating cycle of tho unit of the company which is generally takcn aB 12 month
otharwi8s thesa ar€ classified es non- c,uar6nt.

The classification of financ,ial instruments wh€ther to be measured at amortized cost, at Fair Value
Through Prolit and Loss (FVTPL) or at Fair Valua Throlgh Other Comprehensive lncom€ (FVTOCI)
depend3 on th€ objeslive and contadual termg lo wiich thoy rglate.

Cbssmcation of rinancial instruments are determinod on initial recognition.
(i) Fln.nchl....t .nd flmnclal llabllhlC narlu.td at AmonErd C6l
Financial assels hold within a business model whose objeclivo is to hold thes€ a38ets in od€r to
collocl contradual cash flows 8nd the contraclual terms of the financial assets give ris€ on gpociti€d

dates to cash llow8 are moasured at amortized cost.

Th€ finsncial assets and lin nciel liabilities subssqu€nt to initial recognitbn are maaauted al
amortized cost using Etfodive lnterost Rate (ElR) method.

(li) FlnrllcLl A$.t rt F.k V.lu. Through Othar Comprhcn.lv. l.rconE (FVTOCI)

Financial assetS arc meaiurld at lair value thrgugh other comprehensivs income if thess linancial

asscb are held within a busin€ss modsl rvhosc obiediva B achieved by both collec{ing contractual

caeh flows and s€lling financial ass€ts and th€ contractual terms of the financial assst give rise on

sp€cified dates to cash flow8 tiat aro solely payments of principal and interest on ths princiPsl amount

outstanding. Subsgquent to inltial recognition, they ars moasured at fair valuo and chang€s thsrein

a.6 recognized direc-tly in other comprehensive income.

(lll) Flnancl.l At ct o. LLbllhh..t F.lrvah. Thtough Protft o, Lo.. (FVTPL)

Financial instruments which do not meet lhe c{iteria of amortizsd cast or lair value lhrough other

comprehensiv€ lncome are measured al FairVaiu€ throwh Profi or Loss.

,@.

I 2 "rAlt ,::.1

ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LTD.
IOTEA TO THE GO'{AOUOATEO FII{AI'CIAL STATEf,EI{TS FOR TIIE IIALF YE.AR EI{OEO IOTH SEPTE BER 2023

Stltomont ot Compli.nc.
The8e Financial Ststements comply in all mat€rial aspecls with lndian Accountin0 Standard (|NO-AS)
notified und.r soction 133 ol thc Companie! Aci, 2013 (Thc A.i), Companigs (lndian Accounting
Standard) Ruls8, 201 5 and othar relevant provisiofl of the Act.

Barl! ot Prtp.r.tlon
Tho Financial Statements havc becn propared und6r th6 hi8torical cost convention on .ccrual basis
oxcspl lor c€rtain fnanclal lnstruments that are measurod in tarms of rehvant lnd AS at fair valu€d
amonizcd co8t8 st the gnd of cach roporting period.

{-6



ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LTO.
IIOTES IO THE COIISOLIDATEO FIX TiclAT STATETETTS FON E HAT-F YEAR EXDED3OTH SEPTEf,BER 2023

I.SU ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTII{G POUCIES
lnvc8tnontr: lnvestments are stated at co6t. Provision tor diminution in the value of €ach investment,
araived 6t on thc ba!a! ol .nalkoi value ih cale ol quoted lhaac! & brcak up valuc aB p€r lart available
auditsd accounts in cess of unquotsd shares, con8idor€d s€porately ls made in the eccounG unless
tho sam€ as consrdgred to b9 tamporary in nature.

Rcvsnuo Rocognluon: Revgnue is recognised on transfer o, significant risk & reward of ownership to
the buyor and so long a8 thsrc is a reasonabl€ assurancg for it8 collection. lf at the time of raising of
claim, it is unreasonable to expect ultimate collection, rev€nuo coll€ctionS aro postponed. Dividend
income iG recognized whcn right to rgceive the sams is established. lnte.est income b recognized on

tim€ proportion basiS takine into accrunt ths amount outstanding and .ate applicable.
lncomo E Erpandhuro: All items of income & expenSes ar€ accounled lor on their accural to lhe
extent possible & unless otherwioe gtatsd. Periodical expenses viz insurance, taxe8 etc. are not
apportioned over tho period but arg charged as & wh€o incurred.

Provblon tor Curant and Dciarrod Tar: Provision tff cunsnt tax is made after taking into

consideration bEn€llts admissiblg under th€ provisions ol thc lncome,tax Ad, '1961. Delen€d lax
resulting from "timing ditfeGnc€' betlre€n taxauo and accounting incpmo is accountld for using tha
tax ratos and laws that are enadod o. substantiyely enaclsd as on the balanca sheet dato. Defened
tax asset is rscagnisod and canied fgrward only to th€ sxtent that therq is a virtual certainty that the
asset will b6 realised in futurs. Defened Tax Assets & D€lened Tax Uability have baen offsat as they

rslate to th6 same goveming tax latrs.

Provisioor, Contingent Lirbiliti$ and Contlngent Ar$ts: Provision8 involving substantial degree

ot estimation in measurcment are re@gnized when thero is a presont obligatign as a result of past

events and il is probablg lhat thara will be an outflgw of .6sourcaa. Contingent Lisbilitigs 8rc not
rscognised but are disclg6ed in the notes. Contingent Assets ar€ neither recognized nor disclosed in
the fi nancial statgments.

C.!h Flow.i Cash flows are reporled using indired method, wheroby p(ofit for the year is adjusted
for the effects ot transactions ol non-cash natur€ and/or for it€ms of incqmo & exp€nse8 associated
wilh investing and tinancing activities. The ca8h flows ,rom oporating. invssting & fnaocing aclivities
of the company ar€ aegr€gated.

I 2 iAlt :ltI
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ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LIO,
NOTES ON CO}ISOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATETEIITTII FOR THE IIAI-F YEAR ENOED SOTH SEPTEIBER 2023

(Amounl ln RuFe. Tho!s.nd.)
rotE P f,TtcuL Ra
rr).

AS AT
3rr_09.2024 31.03.2023

20 CASH I CAS|{ EOUUAIT}JTS
c^s{ ota Hlrao
BAI-A!€EI wIlH BAIKA
ln Cufifit Aaaount
ln Fard 0.ro.1L

16r.35 456 83

6,121.61
19 431

f ,7@.f 1

a.555.r0 l2.ll5.Et
tl.la7.lt

Foabob: Fir.d o.pciB a.. dua lo .natlr! wlhln 12 mo.iln a hclude .osrJ.d ht3r.sl t lol!o.l, lllt oa IDS, f gly, R.
5.1o(Lr.t y.ar R..1 LO5)

NOTE PARTIC
30.09.2023

AS AT
31.032023NO-

3.0 lluEtuEu!
lUC9ITElLALC9lI
Unouot d Ecutv Shan. of Rr. 1 0l- e*h
lq-Alrgorrllg4Pcq!!
N.grr Ol.lrtblrort PY trd.

toT L (a)

Ito.otshrr$ A0gl0l No ol Shares AD9!4!

3,78.e00 ___-____l!J2!!q
r(1.?25 @

3.2
Umlrotad sharr. ot Rt- 1d- erch

^,indra 
S.L! Ad Ltd 2/a0,06 3,at2f

ArJ.n y F..Io Alor! 1ts. 6,2t,to f ,07,421.y
Abtot tlirk tnoFnLtd t,li,lr6 m,zrzol
xh.rk. Propdtea Pld Lt!. 1ua,aq 10,710.70
Subh dri.hli Conlunsrlb FY Ltd 1,2t,000 3,r,,a80.9a

lreilrun C.r.mc Ltd 8,0a,ll7 l.l+oae.a7

2,40.0m
5.28,500
1.11,E75
1,24,950
1,25,000
8,04,157

3.412 80
7,O7,A213,

20.232 59
10,750 70
34,460 9{

1,14,0€9.67

3.3@
IWEAT Er{I IN PREFEREI{CE SHATES
Unouot d Nm- Cumulrlive Non. Converdbl.. Radocmsbh- 0.1% Pr€hren ! Shar66 of RB 1U- .ech
pt!{.c!o!rnrnl0l!!!4!e9!IaEs
Maitsr Cdrmb Ltd t.38.42.t? 12.11817 ,3,45,47
tuj.n yFdmAloylL6 rr,00,000 -____JllJIg!9- 11,()0,(j00.(rc

TOT t (C) 2t.ll6.a7
3..@

Pua.ndElco,n€nl Ud. 5t,66,8,
lOT L (B)

Ht)Fc Lor our.tion FunG R.gd. Phn - 35l7,aA,
G.o*tr

TOT L (O)

r.E17B.ea 35.87,52.{.26

i,62.753.!!t

8,90,748 04

r2,536.S4
1r.515 45
24,152 39

1,76.085 62

1.76 045 62

F-C

I 2 -rAN:024

27 553 00
28.409 83

Gmou'n ln RuPe.. Iho6.nd.)
AS AT

/(l,668.48
t,x.316.52

'.6



AB''II PROPEi'Y PSOJECT III'.
NOTES OI{ COI{IOLIDATED FII{AIICIAL STATEXEI{IS FOf, TH€ HALF YEAR EI{DED 3}TH SEPTEIAER 2023

30.09.2023 31 03 2023NO.
I{VESTIEiars3.0

t.t l&lILEl'lI Il PARIi IRSHP FnI
M.ilt'.n lnbl'|3rirnr
At t. o.(rdirE ol tha 9.rDd/ F.r
AddiUd/(Witrdr.u.l) duint ho pqina}/c..
Sl'.I! ol ProfU(Lox) i, tE p€.lod,/y..r
At lha aM ot tr€ prtod/ys

roTA (.)
rod ol lnvc.h.nq^ b E,
D'IILdlIllhrdl!Prrrxrhto
tl@
VB|!aI&aw|.
Adity8 &8,rdE
Atlh. R.h..rorE L!d.
ohrw Ala ane
Amhl]mrn AoaivalL
REghav Agarwslla

2,E r.ag2.8it
14,24,679.56

2.U.492.82
!419 203 67

2.84,4t2.53 2,54,585 70
20.000.00
5,9C 92

492 62

6.00* r]0,ae4.0'l
6.9t.27E.11

ProtuLoss fo.lh. y.!, & i! net

% ol Share ir
elcfr&es AEsld

35 m96 81,815.21
ao_o% 1,16,@272
20.& 2,U,452.63
0.0sr 56.019 53
6.@,( 20,.{64 01
8.0016 rm,{t!t ol

5.e8 27E.11

43,926.01
(203.81)

Footnota csptal aB EEt.d sbow i! indu&va ot share il

Caryng Amounl ol lnv€&ianl

X ol Sh.E ln
erelEs

36.m*:
a0.mra
20.Oo.it
4.00,t
4.00*

A4glot
t1,rtt.2t

1,1a,O2ZrZ
2,8a,atz.Gt

55.0rt.53
m,au.01

lnvesurenB out31de hdl!
lnvodrn nB Wt in hdl.

l.a Aggt.gata Soot v.lu. of Unquotad hvaaln.nt
t., Ag!E!a!a Frir v.l!a ot UnquoEd lnv.atmadE

3.1 caLcuLAT(x oF caRRYlt{c Axou}{I oF tlvEsTitEt{t tt{ AssoctaTE cof,pat{tEs:
tL$! DlLiluaolt Art Ld,
CanymgAmountgF 43,t2t.0
Shse or PrcfiU(Lo6) Adlutbd (to6.t0)
Add R.vcGal ot Sha. ol Proft 11t.17

.3,568.4a

Footroi: ln tem! o, fter det6d 18lh S€pt€nbor,2@3 p$sed by tton'bta Natirnst CcITeny tai Tiboml Kotkst
Eench,M/s tlegus D.lmutor! P\i Ltd. war am.Em.bd wih Mt6 S{bn Od.ht CorEuttanE Pdyab t-hlrd wnid ultmei.ty
analgmal€d witrl liu. PelbarEhd Cemont Lld et..-l 1.r. A'l zOD AE€ordng b tho Sd.{a. ol Ananorment. approred by
the tlon'U. Natbnal Comp.ny Law Tdbun.l,lGlhair 8.nd, Equity 6har66 ol M/B Purb€rEhetCemoot !id. thal bc Ettoted b th.
Comp3ny, aga,rBt it8 holding of 3,78,900 Equiv !h.re! rn N6!u! Disinbuton F/t Ltd whioi hrv. b..n ahown e3 Compeny!
rnvestncnt heGin 3bo\6 al lho Fair valu€ of or8nrhile N69ua Ol3fiboton Prt Ltd
The F.j. v.lse of Sh.r!. of M/. Purbardd C6{n6rt Ltd 3s oo 3oft S€pt6mb.r2023 coutd noa bo dctdnDGd In Ur abs€nce ot
nrEncral atat{Enl ot Pu6.nchd C.mc.[.3 dt 3OUr S€d6.nber 2023.

NOIE
NO. 30.09.m23 31 03 2023
..0 qMtftMllgut.lggElt

Fii(.d O€pGn sifi Bank
A.crflJ€d lntarc3t on Firad Oaporita
Advr.rcl. Rc.ovorabl€ ln carh or in lnd
or ,o. v8lue to be r€cci\/td

tt,o0o.00
2,E69.r'l

8.80
9t ara qt

81,0m 00
935 0€

o

F-1

1 2 JAil :J.l

€725m

(Amount ln RuDear Thouaar(ta)

81 935 m



ABHA PROPERTY PROJEfi LTI).

I{OTES ON COT{!}OLIOATEO fINANCIAL STATEf,ENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR ENOED 3OTH SEPTEUBER M23

30.09.2023 31 03 2023NO,

!,0 SIBEEIIAXIE9EIS.IIED
Paym€.t of T8.xe3 {Nd ol Provl8lonB) 694.50

6921.50

(Amoutt ln Rup... ftou..nd.)
NorE-PAircutRs-asAT
NO. 30.09.2023 31 03 2023

8,0 OTTIER FINANCIAL LIABILTIIES
T20.11
1241l

AS
30.09.2023

AS AT
31 032m3

IIOTE
NO.
7.0 9EEE!E.ELIAtr.!SE!UI!E!U!$

!&!Unh!i
ln r.sp€<l of Timing difblona€ in lncoan6

For Curenl Pariod./ Y€a.
For Eanid PcrioO /YeE
ArAi
ln r€ p6d o, Tlming difErenco in unrelized lrEorne

96,307.a1
9!,111.62

(4.858.20)
1.17.360.73

96,41653
96 066 71

(4,8s8.20)
1.87.625.04

(Amount ln Rup.d Thou.and8)
I{OTE PARTICUI.ARS
ro.

A8 AT
10.0'.2023

AS AT
31 03.2023

8.0
8.1

SHARE CAPI|!
AUI}ORISED
Equity SMr6 of R!. 1(y- esch

!e.e!!Ere!
1.1ut,00,000

l49C$

1,14,000.00

!&.!!S!3cs

19.00,000

Aogld

19,0m.00

8.2 lgglJED.SllElCBlgEgrlllJLltEllD-llE
Equily Shar6 ol Rr. ICY- 6adl
Atthe b€grnlng c, S'r p.rid y€rr ll.l9,9t0 18,999.80 18,99,980 18.999.80
Chang€. dunng $€ p€rhd year
Atth€ 5nd olho o€nod/ y€at 1E.99.900 18.999.80 18.99.980
SIIAREHOu)ERS HOLDING 6* OR IilORE OF SHARE CAPITAL AS AT THE EIIO OF PERIOO' YEAR8.3

J.sdbt p'...d as.rw.r. -"--t"-l# Poo* "{#tr P"rrn
Ss.! Ar..w.lL Ca,ooo 5.0!tl( 86,000 5.05%
&drld Lrr,lunb Aa LE. 1,20,!lo &3:r% 1.20.3.0 6.33%
llnp.t Lnrlon A,t L6. 1,7E.000 L37* 1.78,(m 937%
Sit l8..w.lL +79,8a0 z&XX 1,79,W 25.24%

8.4@
les-sf-Eromhl r,to. ot sh.n i_Eclg lg.d-SEeres %-hel!
J.gdi.h Pnr.d A$rw.L HUF 64,500 3.tl* 68,500 3.61%
B-.r[ Xuiar Ag.rwdlr HUF E0,05O 1.21* 80,050 1.21%
J.gilah Pr.aad Aglrr.L 0,E3,?3O 36.tCf 6.E:),730 35.m%
otrw ae! alL 6,000 0.26i( 5,(m 026%
A.r.hufi$ Alsrtllr 5,000 0.26t4 5,000 0.26%
Surli 49..w.1L 36,000 5.05ta 9€,000 5.05%

Slt Ae. .ll. 4,79,8a0 z!'b* 4,79,840 25.b%
Foolhtar ln car€, wtl. a any atls.hold€r b holding mor€ li*l 5% ol 3haro cepital in on6 y€er b{ll bra than 5% ot 3h5re

cedbl h rtofl€r yrsr, he hib.malbn elqrt 3h.Enoking io. tr€ y.rr ln *l*$ trl€ shttohdding lr 1.53 h 5% hat not b€€n

fuflln€d.

| -ta
l2 JAt'tzt24

(Arnount ln Rupaaa Thol.t.and!)

ffi

9.92----------83

'lxt.f 3
122.73

(Amount h RuP.o thos.ndtl

__if99.!q_

,;9[i.

" .lu



ASHA PROPERTY PROJECT LID.
Notes oN consouoereo rnrrrct.[E E EIE]AiEEvana eroeo aorx sErrrrgen 2ozo

in
PARTICULARS

30.09.2023NO,
31.03.2023

8.0
0.5

6.6

A.d. Ch.no.. lt tnv. h
Tller€ ls rE chrrEa fi promoGaa holding dumo tn€ pofiod/ ycsr
Tha @mpaoy he3 only o.rc drss of.her6s viz. aquny $ar€s heving s par varu€ ot Ra. lo. p€r lhsrE, Eadr aharohotd€r ls
elgiue to( one rcb p€r rhs.r & L €nt'u€d b pro<ab dvid.M, it ehy, d6aared oo .qirty !har€;. h t"c 6vcnt ot ti{udation. fi6
€qdty 3h€r*roldrra aae e1i0ib5 b r6aiy€ he nftinng s|!€b ot ha comp6ny snEr ddrilxibn or ar p.et€aEntal anomt6, h
t\a p.opodion b rEir sha,rholding!.
Du.ing^rtenall y6ar erded . thcArfio.i..d EQity Sharc Cadh| of hc Comp..ry i. lns.s..d fiorn 10,@,oo0 Equty .he.es to
1 1il.oo.mo Equt 3hal€s vroc Reldutoh past d ln Annuc c€oerd rr€etrg dat€o 25u A.Eus!2023

8.7

It
PARIICULARS

NO, 30.09.2023
AS AT

31 03.2923
9.0
9.1 CAPTTAL RESERVE

Ar lhe b.grnrxng ol Ule p6rbd/ y€.r
Chan0€3 duing trl€ period/ y€ar
Al thc cnd ot lho penod yoar

80.267.a9 80,267.69

9.2 9[Ar1JTORY RESERVE lunder a5]c of RBt Aco
I,36,'t 90.83

E0,207.E9

1,38,190.83

5,94,4s7.04

1,U.4U.78

1 706 05

42.739 46

13,989.79

80.267 89

1 36 190 83

547.47172

Al tho b.ginnhg ol thc p€drd/ year
ChangB dudng lhc parbd/ y6sr

- Tr'|afs irom SuQlu6
Al th. ed ot nlo p€riod y€at

e.t 8E!4!EqEAEII!C
Al tho beginning of lhe p€.iod, y€ar
DG{br.d Tar br Ee.lar p6ri}d, Yoa
Aald: RElir€d Gain on Sale of lnv63tn€nt
lhrough FVTOCI
Aald: Invola,n€nl in A3!&tb! Eli,l{neLd

5,87,A71.72 5,12,80681
e,958.29

Pronv (Loss) to.lh€ peno<U Y.€r

,at.lf

5,838.15
6,94,457.(x 5.89.577 77

Alo.oriation drnho [ro p€nod/ y€ar

TEndor !o Shtutory RosaNa
At th6 6nd ol th€ p6rbd y63r

e.. QllE8-elUeEEEErStGtXeoUE
At fL b.ginnhg ol t1€ p.,bd/ yeer
Dofierad Tax tor Earii€r pado(U Y.ar
Laas: Rselisad Gein on Sah ol lftaafnsnt
trorgh FVTOCI

Ohar Co prahonirv6 lncorna lor h6

At flc €nd ol hc poriod 
't6r

1 706.05

5,1t,038.12 3,,rc,m3.32
86,458.24
12.735.6

3,07,542.50
5, rg.Oitc. t2

-lry
5.19 03t, r2

_____193,168_s6_

9.5 }ltun 3 Pllpa. ol Oth.r Eqity
i) Eqdty CglTononl ol Pref€llnce Shsres repreaoall6 aquiv cofitanl in PrBi€lonce !her!! EchaCiad h acaordenca witl
ii) R€t m€d Eamings gen6relt lEplc.rnb tho undishbui.d p.oftr/amounl ol .ccumulalad €aming. of the Comp3ny.

iii) Othcr Comp.ohensive ln€o.rE repro!€nE tho bdanca ln €qJlty relelhg to 06irvlocraa on lD-nl.arulsmeot of defrood ben€lit

ouig6troo6 & r€m€ssrr€.nont of l.rtalned.. n t ol i €.. Thill vrill mt be l!cl336ifad b SbbrBflt ol Prcfit and Lo$.AnY
sals ol invesfnsnB is l.andleer€d to retained €aminq

,0

?-tt

l2 -rAii,l24



ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LTO.
NOTES OI{ CONSOUDATEO FITIANCIAI. STATEIEII1S FOR THE HALF Y: R EI{DED IOTH 9EPTEIEEi 23

ln

O 31.03 2023
1

Gail o.l rsrnceltxm.ln ot lnwtn.nt
Sala.3 ol Plon ih P..irEr*ip Fi.tn

hul't lftofia qr Oapoaits
lnts !6ton T.I Ft tund

I,E32.la 8,544 07
5 906 €2

3,164.93
085

u.88
2.ta7.09

17.658.77

ENDEO YEAR ENDED
3103.2023NO.

11.0

155 50
'!55 50

PERIOO
NO. 30.m.2023 31.03 2023
12.0

B.l* Chr!€i
Ooporao.y S..yb. Cha!.a
Frhg F.6
U.ling F..
L4EIa Pdb.dor! F.e

R{ls t T.rea
Oemst Ch.o.l
Ulscoll€neur Eiecnt.a

9.C6 12 85

21.21
12.
17.20

1n.s
07.6
1o.(B
1.90

13.16
12}13

775D
7.!O

12 00
97 00

2a2a
f1a.a7
6a.to
12"0
E.m
t.76
1.ff
r.83

nau
l2.r DCTATL3 Of PAYIE TrO AUDiIORS

For St'iltory Ardn F.e
For lnc<rnr Ter M€Urrr
For Cartfic€tdt

E OEO
30.0t.2023

ENDEOt{o.

5,836.15

31.03.2023

13 989 79-tLt ft!6u(16) slnDutabt io shErDhotd.n
-Wa*!t{6d Avafagc numDor ot Equity

Sh6le! odstanding !t al th. and of hr

€ar&A O Jl.d E rinC p.r sllerr
18,98,A80

3.07
18,99,980

7.36

l? JrN:J24

E.004.35

76.00
76.t,l,

t.00

.p

f-rv



ABHA PROPERIY PROJECT LTD.
TOTEA OT COIISOUDAfEO FIXAI{CIAL STATEIEI{TS TOR TIIE HALF YEAR ENOED sOrH SEPYE BER M23

NO. 30.09.m23 31032023
I4.O CONTINGENT LIABILIT!ES AND COMfITHEl{IS

(To The Enenl Not P.ovd.d Fo4
14.1 CondnGntLl.biliUo.
14.2 commilrn€nE

ilrL
t{tL

NIL
NIL

(Amount ln Rupeea rhoq!.ndr)
IiOIE PARTrcUIIR,S PERIOD ENOEO
l{O. 30,09.2021

YEAR ENDED
3103.2023

1s.r E!eE!9IruBE!!LEOEBg!-qUBEE!q
r5.2 EA8!!!!99r]tf0BE!e!.!r9!A!eE

NIL
NIL

t{tL
NIL

in

NOTE
NO.

15.0
16.t

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
LLt ot ltLLd parrba ri$ who.tr traltactort. h.Ya taran PLc. dulng t ya{r
subsdBry company aDn R.tr.cto.l6 Lld.

Ahhr F.ro Alloyi L!d.
eout Dirrrlbutor! Plt Lld. ( Rof.r Footnote)

X€y Manaosm€nl Personn€l Vbnd {.,w.[. - Dtrlclot
Amlt A0.rr.[. - Irmging Dlllcto.
Eui.i Kunar an.tmr - f.n lkrg Dl.rctor
Surnlt A!.ru.llr - Dlrecto.
ldtty. Aer .lh - O{nctor & Cfo
S.l.n Krmr XIIrl . Oirlcror I UPto 2ltl X.y,2023)
s.hn xumr xh.rtir - cFo t olrrctor
Vik .h Kh.rkL . Dl.lctor
tlE nl.n Kum.r AgN.l . Olr.ctor
R.mrt Kurn r Podd.?. Dlllcior (t pto 2rh Ly,202!)
ADHllt Bh.luchri.. - Dlllclo.
4.y ah.nn - Dlrrcto.A CFO
Lrd..p l.,.ur JlLfll - DincioT I r...t 2tth Ly,2oza)
Ayu. rh.t n - Dlr.clor ( w .J 29ln lty,2023)
S.nt nu X'imar Ha:E Secrltarv !Y.e.l 22nd 2021

Ent€Ad$s ov6r wtich Key Managcmont
PolsonnalE Uleir rdativGa h6Ya 6ignilicant

.lrun lntrm.iiorl.l

r{tr
15.2 pgJE d

Erdlri
!BErd9! !!! ndlEd

Traradirr dlmg Outstandino aB at Tr€n!€djoo duri4 Arnount OuEtaoding

30.09.2023 31032023

I ) Crglhl hioductorv(altHnw.ll
Maihsn lnbmaton l

2) Sh.r. ol l,roth , {Loa.) ro.t Flml
tilalulan lfibrnauo.d

SaIEY Fad
Saoat.fir Kulmr HiEra

20,000.00

6,t06.92

t30.00

2,8a,a!2.63 2,84.492-83

75,@ 12.50
.t2.&

EootnoL: 1) T€macton! only dunflg the period ol cxilienaa of ralatlrBhip have be€n drsclo!€d herenabovo Also in c€ses

\ttt€re rBlatonohiP coas€d lo oxill a; st the 6M of lh€ year, Elsrlooa outdarung' d 6ny, lrom 5ucn Pad€s hav. not b€€n

2l ln term6 of ord6r datod 18li s€plsnb€r,2023 p.r6€d by tlo.l'bl. Nal'bnalCo[Pany L,tx Tribunal, KoltEta Bsoch ME NeguB

DEEinutors Ai Ltd vias amalgmetGd 'ri[l W6 Subh Dnshti consdtanb P.ivals Limned whicn ulrrmtely smargmaled wilh lws

Pua,Dsnchal Coment LtC w.!.t llt Apri, 2022' Howevor lh€ oro6r wB3 Ecaivcd in sodemb€r 2023 . henc€ lvs N3gu6

Oiqlrihut rAnIii wei.rri6 Lr h. a 
'riat'r!

1 2 JAN 202,r

,o

r-t5



, 
AABA PROPERfY PROJECI LTD,

NO.rES ON CONSOLIOATED FIIIANCIAL STATEXEiIS FOR THE HALF YEIAR EI{OEO 3OTH SEPTETBER M23

t{of E
l{o.
tr.o sEcfEgL[EEqBMli

Tha compony b en hvealllsnt comp.ny op€f€tjng in hdr only I 3 tuch lcgmaat ,rporsr! as d6fr16d h Acaountng
St nd.rd 17 b not.9plbabb.

P'ATGULARS

NOTE PARNCULARS
NO,

ll.0 As rEqutEd in tamr ol paragraph ,8 ot'Mester Oftcton- No.ltankng Fir,flcial Co.npany- Non-Syatemlcstty trnportant Non -
Oeposit lekng Compeny (R$€rv6 Bank) Di€ctons,2018", a schoduts containmg raquired informEton i! anclos€d s€paraiety

t{ofE
NO,

PARTrcULARS

19.0
19.'1
19.2

The Comgany do€. noa havo dry ralatjo.tahip wih llruc* olt comp€iy U! 2/A ot Compani6 Aat,2O13
Thr co.np-y h6a compli{ with th. number ot by€rs prBcribed und.r cteusd 87 of r6dion 2 of 0to Cornp6rl.. Ad20t3 rsad
willl Comoania (Redictbn on t{umb€. ot hyer! ) ruto3 201 7
Lrliliz3toi of bono$Ed funda E Sha.t Pre,nium: TtE cofipany he3 l)o bonowad fixldr E hs3 not uUlisod lt Straro prcmium
du.ing the y€ar
Tha cofip.ny haa noa tegl dodarEd er r Wlful Dshuler by afly Baa* or ffnsrxil indjtJtion o. ofEr brder
Tluo e! no dd9ar l.qJfld q aatdectbo lhaaot whid ars }st to bc rrgistsrcd rilh t'ro Rogta,.r ot Co.npaninr beyondIt .t no.y prioO.
The Cornpany har rcr b.6n .ancalion€d not awiLd ery rbrkhg c.pihl fiadtita. by btrtk rlquirtng I b fit qtrrtuny l!tu.n3 or
!6Bnslb wih ths brnlr
tto paocaadng! hevr be6n hlir(d o. 6'r perxrioo egaha thc aompany ls holdng any batarni prcfErt!, w|dor tl€ B€rEmi
Trem€cton! (Prohiblion) Ad 1988(45 of 1988) .nd rut6s ftada tnocuoder.

Additionrl .EguLtory lntoni|.ton rcqulr.d by Scnedub rrr ot Coh!.nlo. Acl2013

PARTICIJ LARS

The corEolkiahd tlndrill staBn€nE pr€s6nt! ttE con olk ated eocoonb ot AUu prog.ry prol.caLtd. yih6Subsirary
Comp3 el ( Drl. F..ro Abyr LE, e A!h. R.r..c,to.5 LUJ E fusociato Compsny (llegus DasUiMorE p\ LE , upto Jun€
2023) ail incorpomted n lndis.

PARTICULARS

n!!+Jell.e. (Tot lA!!.t.Iot l Slsc_et-Eldila!1jt-et at.a.t-
CoMltd.r.d N.t

aattE
Aorlrlllad CoBoltd.t d Nn A4erdj8 J

19.3

1l.a
1t.5

1t.6

19.7

I{OTE
NO.

20,0

e4!e!! 7,35.912.64

36.r0!t
8.63X

a.m.07E.tlt
1.14.712.35

130.96i(
{.97*

(1rl.66)

S$$Cierler
lndLn :

ADha Fcno Aloy6 LE.
Abln R€fiEdorio3 trd.
Foaalen :

NoaE

A$od.lE!
lndhn
N€001 [LtrlrJtoaa P\,/l Lld
Fotlgn:

{.031(

ll.l.

.tag.13

I.r

-15.52*

x"A

(r05.8E)

l..a

l{-a-.loinl VenlJres Ilndla,VForeronl - Non€

________l!9,!art_______!129.!6t-!!_lqLlorl 5.435.15

6

F- r4

l2 JAtii'r?4

{.{7X

7,8a279
(r21.30)



ABTIA PROPERTY PROJECT LTD.

NOTE PARTICIJ
NO,

Thi6 a6clion dv€3 en oyoM€, of 6; eqnificanc. of finenciat inrruDonts for ttte cfoup end provide. addt/onal inbnhrlron on
consoldatsd brlan€a shsot item6 lhat contah finrncial inltrulrrenb Th. (bt it! ol *rifc.nt accounting poki€a. induding th€
c.itati. t', reaognilicn. t € b.Eii of moslur€'na snd tho Ds.is on whk ! irBm and e)(pon5t6 316 r€cognis6d in r$p6ct ot
each da!3 of FmandllAr..t. Fimnoat Liatility ard Equity tnEtumont arE drscl@ed in Noie No 1 !o h. in6rriat statomenls.

CATEGORIES OF FIiII}ICI,AL II{STRUTE TA  A AT
30.09.2rxr! 3r.03.2023

Flnancial Arr.t
Iaaau[(, at Alnonbad co.t
Caih andC.sh Equ ahnt

Oher flon Finacral AsB€t!
Totrl FlnaftLl Laata Larultd at A.mrtiaad Cot

Fln.nclrl Ulbiliua
La.lurod at AmorU..d Co.1
OttG. Fin.rdal Uabilitirr
Tqtsl Fll|.rElrl LLbgltL. La.{l.rd .t Amorlt d Ca!

2
3
5

3

3

l1'1E7.17 26..109 83
1,67,2a8.af 5,04,303.24
97,875.8t 81.935.09

5,71,3(rr.65 61a.64a.1t

f,..tuod .t F.i. V.lu. Uroush Otno, Comprrhi.}ltln trcorrle
lnv€slrnenls - Non Cur€nt

X...urd rt Frk V.lu. tnrooqh Strtement ot proffl & Lor.
lnveslrnonts - Non Curont

122.f36 120 11
127 77 12011

NOIE IICULARS
NO.
22.0

The Comperv8 linarxjal li*ililies .omprls6 cerbl Ed dhcr p.ysttc., The rEin purpo.. ot th€.6 fnandd labititir]! ir to
linanaa $o comparya oparalih!. Tha aoanpaa!,,! firEoclC a6!alt. indrde dr€( Gc.ivabL.. caah ard ca€h aqdv6l€flE,
inv€at'renE al co3t leia valuo ond rhpo6it
Th. Company b alpolcd b mafiat nd( Tho cdnpaya !€nior nramgomar oy6naaa tha mslegsmonl of thc nak!. Tho
Soad ot Oir6cto.! rBvbia and agr6e! to Edicj.t lo( ruherirE €ach of ttora dal€, rl*,l sr! &ftmzisod balo$
L*.r nU(
Mertot rlsfi 6 th€ nak fiel tho fair velua of fulur€ calh Ib' ot ! limnaisl iElrunGnl will ttuct 6ia bocause ot ch.ng€: in msrtel
Fbea. Ifark€l rial meiniy compaiaas of riat. lrdr a! rdw malGaial paice nd( FlrEndal ilrflrumar|tr ef€abd Dy n|ErkE{ rilk
i.Euda FVIPL inv€slnlcnL. .E
The labls providos undilcounlad ceah llow loweftli non- donvativ€ finanqal liabilly inb rtlcvart mat dtiea brt€d on lha
rernaining p€riod ai batama dE€t d6te b conhdual rElurty d5E

A. .t !l.t f.rch 20iu

Otn.I f l.ln.i. Llrbililio!

Anlotn S.pt nt .2O2!

oih6l FLn.nci.r LDblili..

120.11

122,73

12011

122.73

f-t{

I 2 JAil:0?4

_rJalltrl ________alal!€_93_

_____:t^1lo.{l __-_2!J5?,39-
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ABH  PFOPERTY PROJECT LTO.
IIOTES OII CONSOTJDAiED FII{ I{CIAL STATETENTS FOR THE HALF YEAR EXOED IOTH SEPTEXEER 2023

NOTE
NO.

23.0
For th. pupoic ol tho Compa,Va aapiLt lllansgamsnl capilat includ.. t3auad Equ$ Capitet, C€Ditat R6€w. and ai othor
Eqotty Raaaw€l attribuiubL to llla aqdty hotdera ot th6 company Th! pnmsry obtcctt of t l. cohpsn/! capitst manogemsnt
i! to ma$nh. $a ShrB hold.r v.lu.. Tha Compery ,rEnag.a itt cadtat atudr! 6fld rEhe! adjlBlnantt n tino \Nlh changst
in .cssric cond ifiE. To rt ilin or .dju* the C3P|.tat shrcur.r. UE Comp.ny m.y .djust h. divir€nd payt|Ert !o
shar6lrdda[, rsNm capiht b airrehddar! of i3!u. n w shsrr! or sstc s.€€t! to .sduc! d.bt, The company moniio6 capilrl
uthg . leaing r.lo, rhk r l. n.l d€bt divided by toi.t c.pirEt plu. nct d.bt Tha compeny tncturt€s within net d.bl rnisrost
Derilg bn{ Erm los,B aid Do.ro*im! t.3! cd.l rE caah aquivstenla

iIOIE PARTEULARIT
ito.

For the porio{U year endod
SOIH 3rST t6.9. V.ri.hce

CH 202SEPTEMBER
24.0 lL ELm.n!.

(a) C59tat io r6f - xrtg Gd araata fto
!t10{!lg I Pid U9 C.t td
D$eoilclg r Acgl.bd Rbt w.aght d tu ![
R6a.on ol Vadanc€: ilol ApCItda at thaaa b rp cradtt lla.tqt q opordimei daf

(b] T.rn CRAR
Num.ribr i ShaEhotd.[ Equity
D.nominato. r Arglrbd Rilk W6ightcd Aelsb
Rarlon of V.d.nca: ilot Applirt{a ar t|c a b rp .,!d( Martet oa oparaJo.d nat

(c) Ts-2 CIUR
Xum.rEior: Sh.E*toEort, Equiry + Supddri.flsry CrpttC (provision fo. Loan Loa!. Rev.luotio.t Ro.dya, tJnrtiaaiosed

D!I{O!EE i &!red Rr!* We{a{.d a!..o
Radorl of Vri.rE : Xo(Apdir!{aaatlor! i. mqtdit, lL etoroP.Glion.ld.k

(d) Lhuid'ty Coycr.g. Rdo (0.!?) (0.4e) 0.75
$&f019r: Liturd 4...t 1.. Cllli t C.th Equh/.r.nt
OileEimq: rolgl Ncr C{rt Fto'r.
8ralon of V.ri$c.; Not Af9{c.U. ar b€tor 2516

NOTE PARTICULARS
NO.
25.0 ysai6 figurss havs b€€n regrouped/redassrned, whor.ver rle .66ary, lo conlorm tb lh! cr]nonl yoEl pre6ontatron

Ralg.rl. E AttocLti
Charl€rod Accountanb
R.gLtn,on No.llaztE

&..rS
cA dlsr. a!.|t.l

Lm!]tnh Xo, 3oa50l

t35A,aRBa.auRo.d

Fo. & on b€hrll ot Bosd ol Oimdol.

(Arnn Ae.fi.llr, Olcctor)
0lN:00334081

6
(Adity. cFo)

Dlfl: a0663

5*li- Ur. *"rar'

@

o.l.<, I
700 001

2 Jln rr:.i

F- t6

slrlllnu Kumar llrrra
Co.8acr.try
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A. K. Gutgutia & Associrtti

INDf,pENDElrr A,DIT,RS, RxpoRT 
cbadered Accounlstrls

To the Members of
ABIIA PROPERTY PROIECT LIMITED

Rcport otr the Audit ofthe Cotriolidated Fiutrcisl Slalemetrt!

Opioioo
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Abh. Propcrty project LiEited (..the
company"), its Subsidiaries and its Associates (to8ethe. .efered to as..the Croup',) which comp.ise the
Balance Sheet as at 3l,M.rch, 20a1, the Slatement of Profit and Loss and the Statement ofCash Flows
for the y€ar then ended arld ootes to the financial statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statemenls give the information required by the Act in the manner so
rcquired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accouoting principles generally accepted in
lndi4 ofthe state of affairs ofthe company as at 3lr March,2023, its Prolit 6nd its Cash Flows fo. the
year endod on that date.

Barb for Opitriotr

We conducted oui audit in accordance with the Stadards on Auditing (SAs) specified urder section 143 ( l0)
of the Companies Acl, 2013. Our respoosibilities under those Standards are funher described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities fo, the Audit of the Financial Statements s€ction of our report. W€ are independent of the
Company in acco.dance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia
logether with the ethical re{uiements that a.e relevant to our audit of the hnancial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rul€s thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requircments and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we luve obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fo. our opinion.

Emphasis of Mstt€rs

We dIaw attention to lhe following:
i) Paragraph (s) under 'Principle ofconsolidation' in Nole no. I -'Significant Acoounting Policies" which
states that in the abs€nce of information in respe€t of net assets ard profit/(loss) of the Associate as on the
date of acquisition of shares of associate, Coodwill or Capital Resene as the c.se may be, on consolidatiorL
has been calculated on the basis of audited financial statements available for the year ended immediately
prcceding the date oftransaction in the shrres ofAssociate company.

ii) Paragraph (c) under 'Principle of Consolidation' in Note no. I - "Significant Accouoting Policies"
which states that dilference of cost of iovestmeot in share of Associate and share of n€t asset in the
Associate is identified and disclosed in the consolidated finaocial statements as Goodwill or Capital
Reserve, as the case may be with lnvestment in share ofassociate.

ln our opinion, the above principles constitute a departure from the complialce ofAccounting Standard-

23 - Accounting for lnvestmenl in shares of Associates in consolidated financial statements", impact of
which on the consolidated financial statements could not be ascertained and our opinion is not qualified
on lhese matters 

contd...
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135A. B. R. B. Basu Road, 2d Floor, Kolkala - 700 0O I ; Pnftla: 7242 9107

Itrformrtiotr Other thstr the FirrDci.l Strtcments & Audilor's Report There{o

The Company s Board of Direclors is resDonsible for the other information The other information

...rrU.'t',irJ l"f.-"ion included in the Board's RePon including Annexures lo Board's Repon etc but

doeJ not inclurle the financial statements and out Auditor's Report thereon'

Our opinion on the finarcial statements does not cover the other information and \ve do not express any

form of assurance conclusion therEon'

ln connection with our audit ofthe linancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

"di;;;i;; 
.;,;";tider whether such other information is matetially inconsistent with the financial

;;;;;;L";iedge obtained in the audit or othsrwise appears to be materially misstated lf' based

""'ii" ".if 
we have plrformed, we conclude that there ii a material misstatement of this other

iri..r",i*, "" i" i"qui'red to report that fact we have nothing to rcport io this regard

Respotrsibility of M8[sgem.trt for CoNolidr'ed Fina[cial StrtemcDts

The Company s Board of Direclors is responsible for the matte6 stated in. seclion 134 (5) of the

ii.p-i"! ai,. zollt'Ihe Acf') with respeci to the preparation ofthese consolidatd 6nancial stalements

;h" ;;; ;; ;'f"ir view of the financiat poirrion' financial performance and cash flows of the

comoanr in o""o162699 with the 
^t"o*ting irinciples generally.accepted .in. 

lndia' including the

i"i"Jiri,"r't'""#i' 
-tp*in"a--o* 

s"iio-" il: or tlJe"t This rcsponsibiliq also includes the

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisio[ ofthe Act for safeguarding

ofthe assets ofthe comp-y -a to' p'"'"nri'g and detecting trauds and other irregularities; selection and

;;;l#;;";i il;pii"t" i.pr"i'"ntuiloi and main-te nance of accountins policies; making

iudsnents and estimate, thut *" r"uronuui" una prudenl: 6nd d-esign. implementation and maintenance of

i,',:il;',;ffii"ffi;i"i'*"o"r'. rt''t "ei"'op"'atille 
effeciivelv for ensuring the accunc} and

comoleteness of the accounttng recoros. relsvant'to the-preparation and presentation of th€ financial

;:;#.e;ffi;,;il; ili"J'iiini"" -a"," r*e from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud or

errol,

ln preparing the financial statemenls. management is rcsponsible for assessing the Company s ability to

continue as a soing concem. dotl"''ng ;;;;ii;;le ma(ers relaled to Soing concem and using the

;;#;il;;;;f"iaccounting unles; management either intends to liquidate fte companv or ro cease

ip.rition.. o, h* no ."alistic alternative but Io do so'

Th€ Board ofDirectors are also responsible foa overseeing the company's financial reporting process'

Contd...
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Abha Property Prpiect Limited - Ind€oendent Auditor3' Report oo Consolideled Fila[cial
Statcments-3 1.03.2023 Cotrtd.,.

Auditon' R€3poDsibililier for the Audit ofthe Coosolideted Filarcial Slat.meDts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuranc€ about whetherthe financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issue an auditor's repon that includes our
opinion. Reasonable asslrance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a rnaterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fiaud or eror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions ofusels talien on the basis of these fmancial statements.

As part of an sudit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional j udgment snd maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentiry and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatemsnt ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design aad perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficienl and appropriate to paovide a basis foa our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from frdud is higher than for one resulting from erroa, as fmud may involve
collusion, forgery, int€ntional omissions, misrepr€sentations, orthe ovenide of intemal control.

. Obtain an undeEtanding ofintemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under secrion 143 (3) (i) ofthe Companies Ac! 2013, we are also
responsible for €xpressing our opinion on whether the company hns adequate intemal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectivedess ofsuch conEols.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used alld the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on th€ audit evidence obtained, \f,hether a material uncertainty exists related to ev€nts or
conditiohs that may cast significant doubt on the Cornpany's ability to continue as a going concern. lf
we conclude thal a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
lo the related disclosues in the hnancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modiry
ot]I opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the dat€ of our auditor's
report. However, fulure evenls or conditions may cause the Company to cease to contintre as a going
concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, sfucture and content of the financial statemenls, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the ufldealying fansactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair paesentation.

Materiality is the magnitude ofmisstatements in the consolidaled financial stat€m€nts that, individually or
in aSgregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably kaowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect ofthe identified misstatem€nts in th€ consolidated fioancial statemeols

I 35A, B. R. B. Basu Road, 2d Floor, Kolk ra - 700 001 ; Pl:rrnet 2242 9107
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Sletemeuts-31.03.2023Contd..,

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among olher matters, the plann€d scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findin8s, including any sigrificant deficiencies in internal
control lhat we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independenc€. and to communicat€ v,,ith them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably bo thought to bear on our independence, and whero applicable, related
safeguards.

From the mafters communicated wilh lhose charged with gov€rnance, we determine those matteB that
were of most significance in the audit of lhe financial statements of the culaent period and arc therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matl€rs in our auditor's rcport unless law or regulatioo precludss
public disclosure about the matter or when. in exuemely rare circurnstances, we detemine lhat a matter
should not be commuricated in our r€port because the adveB€ consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest b€nefits ofsuch communication.

Report on other Legal aDd Regulatory RequiremeDts

As required by section 143 (3) oflhe Act, we report thal:

a. We hav€ sought and obtained all the information alld explanalions which to the best of our
knowledge and b€lief were nec€ssary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financialstatem€nls.

b. In our opinion, proper book of account as required by law relating to preparatioo ofthe aforesaid
coNolidat€d financial statements hav€ been kept by the company so far as it appears from our
examination of those book.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet. the Consolidated Stalement of Profit and lrss and lhe
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt wilh by
this report arc in agleement wilh the relova books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated fi naocial statements.

d. ln oul opinion, the aforesaid consolidated fnancial st&tements comply with th€ Indian Accou i.g
Standards(lnd As) specified und€r Section 133 of the Act, re.d with Rule 7 of lhe Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of written repres€ntations rcceived from the ditectoas of lhe Company as on 3lst
Mlrch, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the ComPany & of subsidiary
companies incorpomted in India and the reporls of the statutory auditors of the subsidiary

companies, none of the directors ofthe Group companies incorporated in India are disqualified as on

3l'r Mrrch, 2023, from beinS appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act-

f. With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls oYer financial reporting of the

company and the opeEti[g effectiveness of such controls, refel to our sepaBte report in Annexue 'A'
whiah is based on the auditors' reports of the companies & its subsidiary compani€s incorpomted in

India 
contd...
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Abha ProDertv Proi€ct Limited - Iodepetrden I Audilors' ReDort on CoDsolidated Fin:rncial

Statemerts-31.03.2023Contd'.'

g. No managerial r€muneration has been paid during th€ year &provisions of Section 197 r€ad with
schedule V lo the Act are not applicable 10 the company.

h. With r€spect to thc othcr matters to be included in the Auditor's Repon in accordance with Rule
ll of the Companies (Audit and Auditon) Rules.2014, in our opioion and to the best ofour
information and accordinB lo the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact ils frEncial position
other than those, is any, akeady disclosed in the financial statements.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts includinS derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable loss€s.

(iii) Th€re were no amou[ts vhich were requircd to be trarsfe.red to the lnvestor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.
(it) (a)The management has represented lhal, to the best of ils knowledge and belief no filnds
have be€n advanced ff loaned or invested (either from bonowed funds or sharc premium or an)
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other peffon or entity, including
foreign entities ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, direclly or indirectly lerd or invest in oth€r persons

or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by or or behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any Suarant€e, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

(b) The managemenl has furth€r represented that, to the best of its Inowledge and belief, no

funds have been received by th€ Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"), with the unde.standing, whether rccorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Company shall, whelher, directly or indi.ectly, lend or invest in other percons or entities identified
in any manner whatso€ver by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate B€neficiari€s') or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bedeficiaries; and

(c)Based on such audit ptoceiures performed that have been consid€ted reasonable and

appropaiate in the circumstances, nothing has come to olrr notice that bas caused !s to believe lhal

the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any matgrial misstat€ment.

135,1. B. R. B. Balu Road,2a Floor, Kotkala - 700 001; Phone:2242 9107
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Abha Promrtv Proiect Limited - lndcpendenl Audito6'Reporl on Cotrsolidrted Financiel
Strlemcnls-31.03.2023Contd...

(v) No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Company requiring
compliance with section 123 oflhe Act

{vi)Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companaes (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recordint audit trail (edit log)

facility is applicable to the Company with etfect from 1st April 2023, and accordingly,

reportint under Rule 11(t) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 is not applicable
for the financialyearended 3llt March, 2023.

For A.K. Gutgutia& Associates
Chartered Accountants

Regisration No. 32731,1E

Kolkata;29ti May,2023
UDIN: 23304601BGzCxslt76

(CA Dibyr Agarwal)
Partner

Membership No.304601

135A. B. R. B. Basu Road,2d Floor, Kolkal.a- 700 001; Phonet 224:2 9to7
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Report on the Irteroel FinaDcirl Codtrolc utrder Chuse (i) sub -{eclion 3 of SectioD 1,l3 of the
CoDpanies Act,2013 ('tbe Act')

Opiniotr

We have audit€d the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Abha Property project
Limited ('the holding company') and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, as at 3lct March
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on the
date.

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all maleaial respccts, an adequate intemal financial controls system
over frnancial reporting and such intemal imancial contIols ovea financial reportilg were opemting
effectively as at 3l'i March 2023, based od the intemal cont,ol over firancial r€porting c.it€ria
established by lhe Company considering the essential components of intehal conkol stated in the
Cuidance Note on audit oflntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountanls of lndia.

Malag.meut'r Respotrsibility for Iolerosl Fitrstrcial Cortrols

Th€ resp€ctive Company's management is responsible for establishing aod maintdning internal financial
cont.ols based orl the internal control over financial reporting crite,ia established by the respective
Companies considering the essential compon€nts of intemal control stated in the Cuidance Note on Audit
oflntemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementatio[ 8od maintenance of adequate
intemal financial controls that were op€rating effectively for ensuring the orderly and emcie[t conduct of
its busiDess, including adherence to the Company's Policies, the safeguarding ofits assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and enors. the accuracy and complet€ness of the accounting records, and the
timely pr€paration ofreliable financial information, as required under the Companies Acl, 2013.

Auditors' Resporsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial contols with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on ou! audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Conuols over Financial ReporrinS (the 'Cuidance Note') and the standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed io b€ prescrib€d under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Int€mal Financial Controls and, both issu€d by the Institut€ of Chartered Accountants of Indi.. Those
slandards and the Guidance Note require that \i.e comply with ethical requirements and plan and pedorm
the audit to obtain reasonable assuance about whether adequaie intemal fioancial controls over financial
reporting werc established and maintained and if such controls op€rated effectively in all material

res,ects 
contd....
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial conrols system over fulancial aeponing and their operating effecliv€ness. Our audit of intemal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understaoding of intemal financial
controls over financial repodng, assessing the risk that a rnaterial weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating lhe design and operating effectivencss of intemal controls based on the assessed risk. The
procedues selected dep€nd on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement ofthe financial statements. whether due to fraud and effor.

we b€lieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls wilh reference to consolidated fiDancisl statements.

Merdng oflDtertral Fitrancial Controls ovcr Fitratrcirl Reporting

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assuraoce regarding the reliability of financial r€porting and the preparation of financial
statements for external puposes in accoadance wilh geneally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(l) pertain to the maintenarce of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the company's assets; (2) provide reasonable assuraoce that lransaction
aae recorded as necessary lo peamit preparation of financial stalemenls ro accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditues of the Company are being made only in
accordance wilh authorizations of the Man.gement and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assuance regarding preveDtion or tifiely det€clion of unauthorized acquisition. use. or
disposition ofthe Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statem€nts,

lnher€trt Limitrtiotrs oflotertrrl FiDstrcial Cotrtrob over Finrncial Reportitrg

Because of th€ inherent limitations of inl€mal financial controls over financial repo(ing, iocluding th€
possibility ofcollusion or improper management overide ofcontrcls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occrlI and not b€ d€tected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial
controls over finaocial rcporting to future p€riods arc subject to the tisk that the intemal financial conrols
over financial aeporting may become inad€quate b€cause of changes in conditions, or that the dege€ of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriordte.

For A.L Gutgutia& Associates
Chadered Accountants

Registration No. 32731{E

Kolkata;29't Msy, 2023
tlDlN: 23304601BGZ'CXS1876

(CA Dibyr Ag.rfl.l)
Pannea

Membership No.304601

ll5A, B. R- B. Brsu Ro64 2d Floor, Kolk la-7m 00li Phone: 2242 9107
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AEUAPBAEEBUTBO.IECLD.
CIN: L5t909WB200lPLC0939a,

CONSOLIDATEO BALANCE SHFFT AS AT3IST i'ARCH 2023

(Amount ln Rupees Thousrnds)
PARTICULARS AS AT

31.03.2023 31 03 2022

ASSEIS
EMICIALASSEIIi

Cash and Cesh Equivalentg
lnveslinenls
Other Financial Assets

latrIlUAUClAtSStEM
cunent Tar Assets (Net)

IOTAL ASSETS

LIAEILIUET3UD.EqI/III
LIAEIIIIIEi-
EMTCAUJAEIUIIEi

Olher Financial Liabilities

lotrfluAdclA!.laEl[IlEs
Defefied Tax Liabilitres (Net)

EOUE
Equily Share Capital
Other Equity

2 28,rO9.83
3 1.419,203.67
4 81.93s.09 1,529,5,18.59

85,904.40
1,014,943.71

16,224.39 1,117,072.50

5

1,530,113.51
307 -11

1,117,379.61

127.43

1.117.379.61

564.92

6

7

120.11

187,625.04

I 18,999.80
9 1,323,368.56 1,342,358.35

18,999.80
1 ,098,252.78 1 .117 ,252.58

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EOUITY

Slgnilic.nt AccounU ng Policisi 1

This is the Consolidaled Balance Sheet refened to in our report of even date
For and on behall of For & on behalf of Board of Directoas

A K Gutguti. E Associates
Chanered Accounlants
Registration No.327314E (Amlt Agaiw.ll., Managing Dl.ector)

DIN:00338081

CAOlbya Aga,wal
Partner

Membership No.30460'l

1354 BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 007

Dated:29th May, 2023

(Aditya Agarwalla, Dlrector& CFO)
DlNr 00140683

Santanu Hazaa

Co. Secretary

€-9{

't,530J13.51

Th6 notes .efen6d to above fom an integEl part of thes€ Consolidated linancial statemonb.



ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LTO
CIN: L5l909WF2001Pl C0939!t,t

CONSOI INATFD STATFUENT OF PROFI & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENNED 3.t ST I'ARCH 2023

(Amount ln Rupees Thousands)

PARTICULARS YEAR ENOEO
31.03.2023

YEAR ENOEO
31.03-2022NO.

INCOME
Olherlncom€

TOTALREVENUE
EXPET{SES

Employee Senefrt Expenses
OlherExpsnses

TOTALEXPENSES
PROFIT{LOSS) BEFORE TAX
TAx EXPENSE

Curenl Tax
For Earlier Years
Defened Tax

PROFIT(LOSS) AFTERTAX BUT BEFORE
SHARE OF PROFTT(LOSS) OF ASSOCIATES

Share ot ProfiU(Loss) of Associates

l0 17,658,77 20.334.29
17,658.77 20.334.2A

11

12

155.50
423.13

404.66
326_O7

578.63 730_73

726.00

4.30
2,166.4

17,080.14

2,886.74

800.00

19603.55

800.00

OTHERCOMPREHENSIVEINCOME
a)llem thalwillnot be reclassitied to Prollt & Loss

- lncomeTax relating to (a) above
b)llem lhalwlllbe reclass red lo Profil & Loss

- lncome Tax relatrng to (b) above
Otho. Comprehenslvo lncome (a+b)

14,193,lo

(203.6r)
13,989.79

395,594.57

89,052.07

307,542.50

f,17

18,803.55

550.27
19,353.82

88,581.10

80,581.10

TOTAL COMPHRENSIVE INCOME

SignificantAccounting Policies

EARNINGS PER EaUlTY SHAREOF FAcE VALUE OF Rs.l0l EACH
Basic & Dilutod Earning 13

107,9y.92

9.90

1

The notes refened to above form an intergalpart ol these consolidaled financial statements-

CA Dlby. Agarwal
Pa(ner
I\,,lembershio No. 304601

l35A,BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 001

oated:29th May,2023

Santanu Ha2aa

Co. Socretary

NOTE

x21,532.29

This is the Consolidated Stat€ment of Profit & Loss refened to in our report of €ven date
For and on bohalf of For & on bohalf of Board of oirectors
A K. Gutgutla & Arsociatd
Chartered Accountants
Regisration No.327314E (Amit Agaiwrll., ll.naging DlEcto.)

DIN:00338081

(Adlty. Aga.w.lh, Director & CFO)
OIN:001,10683



AEHAEBAPEEIIfEA,ECLL&.
CONSOLINAIED CASH FLOW STATEMEN'T FOR'THE YEAR FNDFN 31ST MARCH 2023

(Amount in Rupees Thousands)

AS AT
3t-03.2023

AS AT
31.03.2022

(A) Cash Flow F.omOpar.llng activitjoa :-
Net Prcfiu(Loss) Before Tax

Adjustrnents For :.
Share of Profiu (Loss) of Associates
lnterest Received on Oeposits
Garn on Mutual Fund on Restating of Fairv
Share of Profit from PartI|elship Firm
Net (Gain)/Loss on Sel6 Of lnvestment

203.61
(3,r6.{.93)
(8,586.071

(5,906.92)

(550.27)
(3,s01.83)
(6,325.70)

(10,506.75)

16,876.53

(17,45{.31)

20,153.82

Operating Profiu(Loss) Before Working Capital Changes
AdjusUnents For:-

Trade and olher Payables (6.90)

Cash Gen€rated From Operations !
Drrect Taxes (Paid) / Rstund Roceived ( Net)

Cash Flow Before Extra Ordinary ltems
Extra Odinary ltems

Net Cash Flow From Opelatlng Activltles
(B) Cash Flory From lnveatlng Activltlos :.
Purchase / Sale of Flxed Assets

Sale/ (Purchase) of lnvestments (Neo

Movement in Other FinancialAssets
lnterest Received

(lnvesmenl rn)ryVilhdrawal lrom Parlnershrp Firm

Dividend Received
Movement in Long Tem Loans & Advances

Net Gaah Flow From lnvosting Activitios
(C) Cash Flow From Fln.nclng Actlvltl6 r

Changes in Share Capital
Nel Cash Flow From Flnancing Activitlos
Net lncrease/(Decreaso) in Cash & Cash Equivalents t
Oponing Balance ofCash & Cash Equlvalenb
Closlng Balance ofCash a C.sh Equlvalenls (Noto 2)

(584-57)
(988.12)

(745.81)
(1,439.83)

(577.78)

(6.89)

(15.08)

(730.73)

(15.08)

26,599.11
(65,710.70)

3,164.93
(20,000.00)

24.84

11,s72.791 (2,185.64)

(1,572.791 (2,185.64)

(55,921.78)

(s7,494,57)
85,904.40

1.452.19
u,452.21

28.409.83 85.904.40

This is lhe Consolidated Cash Flow Statements refened to in our eport of even date

For and on b€half of For & on behalf of Board of Directors

A K, Gutguu. & A$ocl.t€!
CharteGdAccountianb (AmltAg.rualh' il.naging Dlrccto4

Registration No.327314E Dlt{: 00338081

CADiby. Agarwal

lllembe6hio No. 304601

l35A.BRBBasuRoad
Kolkata - 700 00'1

Dated:29th May,2023

(Santanu Hazra)
Co. S€.cretary

EAEICULABi

(20.884.55)

3.50'1.83
(5,000.00)

11.00
5,125.00- 3,63?€3

(Adit. Agarwalla, Dlrector & cFo)
DIN:001'10683
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ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT LTD.
NOTES TO THE CONSOI IDATEN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THF YFAR EiIDED 31ST MARCH 2O'3

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compllance
These Financial Statements comply in all maledal aspects with lndian Accounting Standard (INDAS)
notified under seclion 133 ot the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act), Companies (tndjan Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provision of the Act.

Basis of P.epaEtlon
The Financial Statemenls have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments that are measured in terms ot relevant lnd AS at fair values/
amortized costs at the end of each reporting period.

Financlal Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities (financial instruments) are recognized when this unit ot the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions ol the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
direct,y attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilitjes (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as current if they are expecled to be realised
or settled within operatjng cycle of the unit ot the company which is generally taken as 12 month
otheMise these are classified as non- cunent.

The classification of financial instuments whether to be measured at amortized cost, at Fair Value
Through P.ofit and Loss (FVTPL) or at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVTOCI)
depends on the objective and contractual terms to which they relate.

Classificatjon oftinancial instruments are determined on initial recognition.
(l) Flnancial a$ets and flnancial llrbllltl.3 measu,€d .t Amoatlzed Cost
Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to
collect contractual cash frows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified
dates to cash ffows are measured at amortized cost.

The financial assets and financial liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized
cost using Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) method.

(ii) Flnancial Asset at Fal, Value Through Oth.. Comprehensive lncome (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are measured at fair valug through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein are
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

(iii) Fln.ncialArsets or Llabaliti* at Fal, Value Th.ough Proflt or Lo33 (FWPL)
Financial instruments which do not meet the criteria ol amortized cost or lair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at Fair Value through Protit or Loss.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

lnvestmenbr lnvestments are stated at cost. Provision fo. diminution in the value of each inyestrnent,
arrived at on the basis of market value in case of quoted shares & break up value as per last available
audited accounts in case of unquoted shares, considered seperately is made in the accounts unless
the same is considered to be temporary in nature.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue is re@gnised on Aansfer oI significant risk & revrard of ownership to
the buyer and so long as there is a reasonable assurance for its collection. lf at the time of raising ol
claim, it is unreasonable to expec{ ultimate collection, revenue collections are postponed, Dividend

income is recognized when right to receive the same is established. lnterest income is recognized on

time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.

lncome & Expenditure: All items of income & expenses are accounted for on their accural to the
extent possible & unless otherwise stated. Periodical expenses viz insurance, taxes etc. are not
apportjoned over the period but are charged as & when incurred.

Provision for Current and Deferred Tax: Provision for current ta( is made after traking into

consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the lncome-tax Act, 1961. Defe(ed tax
resulting fIom liming differenca" between taxable and accounting income is accounted for using the
tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred

tax asset is recognised and carried iorward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty lhat the
asset will be realised in future. Deferred Tax Assets & Oefened Tax Liability have been offset as they
relate to the same governing tax laws.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Provisions involving substantial degree
of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past

events and it is probable that there will be an oumow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not
recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclo*d in

the f inancial statements.

Cash Flows: Cash ffows are reportd using irdirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted ,or
the effects of transaclaons of norr'cash nature and/or lor items of income & expenses associated with

investing and financing activities. The cash flows from operating, investing & financing activities of the

company are segregated.
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of conaolldation:
The consolidated tinancial statements have been prepared on the following basis:
a) These consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, its
subsidiaries & its associate companies. The consolidation of subsidiaries has been done on a line.by- line
basis by adding togethe. the book values of like items ot assets. liabilities, income and expenses after fully
eliminating intra{roup balances, intra-group transactions and the unrealised profits, to the extent possible,

in accordance with Accounting Standard on "Consolidated Financial Statement' (AS 21). lnvestrnents in
Associate Company have been accounted under the equity method as per accounting standard (AS 23) -
"Accounting for investrnent in Associates in Consolklated Financial Statements". Hott€ver, since the
portion of net assets & profiU (loss) as on the date of acquisitaon of shares of Associate company is not
available, the same has been taken as per the latest audited financial statements available for the year
ended immediately preceding the date of transaction in the shares of respective associate companies tor
the purpose of determining goodwilucapital reserye, as the case may be, on consolidation and also for the
purpose of determining shares of profit in Associate. Similady, in case where a company ceases to be an

Associate, the proportionate share in prollu loss of the Associate in respect ol the year in vrhich such change
takes place, is not recognised due to non-availability of such information as on the date of change. ln case
the accumulated losses of an Associate Company exceed the carrying amount of invest nent in respective
associate company, such excess is not recognized in the accounts and the carrying amount is taken as Nil.

b) The company accounts for its shares of post-acquisition changes in net assets of associates, after
elaminating unrealized profrts or losses resulting from transaction, if any, between the compaoy and its
Associate to the extent of its share, through its Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss, to lhe extent such
change is attributable to the Associates' Statement ol Profit and Loss and through its reserves Ior the
balance, based on available information.
c) The Difference bet!,€en the cost of investrnent in the subsidiary/associates, over the net assets at the
time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiary/ associates is recognised in the financial statements as

Goodwill or Capilal Reserve, as the case may be. However, in case of consolidated financial
statement ot Associates companies, such Goodwilu Capital Res€rve has been disclosed by way of notes
only.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the group company is made in accordance with Companies Act,

2013 read with Schedule lll. However, for a better comparison of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, profit in respect of years prior to the previous year 2015-2016 has been directly adjusted in

Surplus by way of separate disclosure.
d) Minority lnterest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of the amount of equity
attributable to the mlnority shareholders at the dates on which lnvesknents in the subsiCiary company were

made and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of lnvestments and the Net
profiUloss for the year ofthe subsidiary.
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ARHA PROPFRTV PROJECT LTD
NOTES ON CONSOLIDATEN FINANCIAI STATEMENfS FOR THE YEAR EiIDFN 3I ST IILARCH 2O21

31.A3.2022NOTE
NO.

PARTICULARS 31.03.2023

?.0 ca! tltaluEolJltatE[Is
CASH OT IIA}ID
&{ranlcEs wftt aatKs
ln Currcnt Accounlr
ln FiJGd Oapositg

8,014.30
77,404.87

056,83 441.2X

27,553.00 85.423.17
28,409.a3 05.904.40

Footnots: Firod Oaposils a€ dw ro marure within 12 montls E inclu& accar€d int r6.t ln6roon, n€l ot TDS. tf any, Rs. 1 1 .0s

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
3.1

3.2
tlvEsluElrs
UESIIEUIALCASI
Unouoted Eouitv Sharcs ofRs. 10/- €.ch
EAse!ielel!E!!!r!!
Negus Disinbutols h,t. LE.

TOTA! (a)

&4lslerE.: AEalJll llo olSnares &a!!!

17E,900

3.3 
1

Unouotsd Shares of Rs.10reacn
Anindrasabs P!,ittd. 240.000 3rt2.80
Aqaney Foro Alloys Lld. 526500 707,A21.?1
AbbotMarketng Pvr td 1113f5 20,212.59
Kha*ia Prcponi$ PvtLtd. '12u1,950 '10,750.70

SdnarhJ,lspatud
Subh drisht Consull.nts Pvl Ltd 125,000 34160.94
I$ailhan cer.mic Ltd E0a,157 'l'l/1,069.67

378,900

a04 157

43.928.61

240 000
526,500
111 875
124,950
305.300

3.196_18

365,431_25

0,425.74
10.565.E0
37,005.99

96,127,53
TOTAL(B) 890,7,t8.04

3.a@
IIYESIIEIIJUTEEEEEEIq I
Unauoied Non-Cumulalive. Non- Conv6tuble. Redeemabl6.0.1% PE alenc6 Sharcs ol Rs. 10/- each

DeEclErglsllil.errlerelca-rllrg!
Mailhan Ceomlc Ltd - 12,530,84
Anjanoy Fo.roAlloys Lld t,'100,000 11,61515 1,100,000.00

TOrAL(C) 24,,t52.39

3.5W

520,752.57

12,325.29
11 397.99

HoFC Low Ouroton Fund- Regul.r Phn -

TO]AL(O)

3,587,52a 176,085.62 3.*7,624.26

176,085.62

167.953.55

167,953.55

r - )?

E,'t21.61
't9,43t.39

NOTE
NO-

113,725.00

213,725.00 43 92461
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(Amount ln Rupe9l Ihousands)
NOIE

31.03.2023 31.03.2022NO.
---5-o-...l!yEsx{E!rt

3.5 tlyEilI[E[Lltrea8rlEESEEEIBE
Madhanlnlemalonal
Atthe beqinning otth€ y€.r
add ion/(Wthdra*al)dunng heFa(Net)
Sharcof Prcfu(Loss) tor lhe year

A! lhe end ol th6 y6.t

243,07E.95
5,000.00

10,506.75

25E 505.70
258 585.70

1414943.71

467 196.79

1.014 943.71
1014,943.71

1 014 943.71
1.014 943.71

IoIAL (e)
Total ot lnv$trn.n(a to E)

DEfelE-cl-lqt:lqt[LblrrEsEIis
EirE

Abha Retradon$ 1ts.

E1,Et5,2i
116,022.72
28a,,192.63

55,0t9.53
20.464.01
40,464.01

598,278.11
Footnole Cap tal as slal6d above s rncl! sive ol share rn ProfiVLoE;1671fi'ol- fElsilel orrirm's lax, ifany

lnvestmBnls Oulsde lndra

l.vestments lnsdo lnd13

35.00.n

20.00%
0.00%
6.00%
6.00%

35.00%
40.00%
20.00%

5.00%

71,323.42
103,899.54
25E,545.70

33,388.13

3,6

3.1

AggEgab Bool valuo or Unquot d lnvostmont!
Agglggab Falry.lu. ol Unquoiod lnv€rtMntt

3.8

N.gu. Dbtibutolt Pvl Ltd.
Canying Amounl B/F a!,928.61

sharo of Prcfiu(loss) Adjusted (203.61)
43,378.34

554.27

Carying Amounl of lnvesllnsnt 43.725.00 43.928 61

PARTICULARS
31.03.2023

NOTE
NO.

4.0 qIIEEIIMICI&ASSEIS
Fixed Depositwiih Bank
acclrued lnlerest on Fixod oeposits
Advances Rscov€rabl€ h cash or in kind
of lor value to b€ rscaivd

81,00t).oo

935.09 2,124_39

14,100.00

AS AT
31.03.2023 31.43.?022NO

NOTE

5! CIIBEEIIIAIASSEIS.IIEII
PaymenlolTaxes (Neiot Prcssions)

t'55

307.11

25E,585.70
20,00q.00

5,900.92

241,192.42
241,192.6?

-....ry

1,4t9,203_67
17r9Jo3.67-
1,419,203.67

........ry

31.03.2022

81,935_09 1€'2,!,39

564.92----i1-.ir- 307.11
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(Amountin Rupee3 Thousands)
NOTE
NO. 3t.03.2023 31.03.2022

6.0 QIHEBTIIAI9IAI.LIAEIIUIEIi
ExpensesPayable '120.11 127.03

120.11 127.03

(Amount ln Rups€s Thousands)

NOTE
NO.

PARIICULARS
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

7.0 DEEEBEEIJAIIIAEIIIIIES.(IEII
Lielilili8ri
ln respectofTiming difierence in ln@me
ForCurentYear

ln rcspectofTiming diffs13nc€ in unrealized lncome

96,4't6.53
96,006.7r

3't,03.2023 31.03.2022

8.0
8.1

SBABE.CAEII3I
AUIIABIiED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each

6.2 ISSUEO- SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID UP
Equiiy Shares of Rs. 101each

Atihe beginning ol ihe Year
Changes durin9 lhe year
At the end ofthe year

!8..cl!i!arBi

1,900,000

AEqull

19,000.00

No. ofShares

1,900,000

AE9!!r

19,000.00

E.3

6.4

8.5

8.6

18,999.80 1 899.960 18,999.80

1,899,980 18 999.80

!g..cIS!erE %-EdC No. orsha€s %-hEld

JagdishPEsedAgaMalh 683,730 35.99% 683 730 35.99%

SwatiAgarwalh 96,000 5.05% 96,000 5.050,6

orchid Msrchanrs lvr Ltd. 120,340 6.33% 120,340 6.33%

Tirupali Mansion PvL Ltd. t7E,000 9.37'/. 176000 9-37ya

SitaAga alh a79,840 25-25% 479,840 25.26%

@
li.@s-efElleolEl !!.!lstartt %-bEld No. orsharcs %-beld

Jigdish PEsad AgaB.lla HU F 68,500 3.51% 6a,500 3.61%

Basant Xum.rAgarwalla HUF !0,050 4.21% 80,050 4 21oa

JagdirhPrasad AgaMalla 6E3,730 35.99% 683,730 3s 99%

DhruvAg.rwalla 5,000 0.26% 5,000 o26a/'

AnshumanAg.Nalh 5,ooo O.25cA 5 000 0'26r/'

SwatiAg.rwalE 96,000 5.05% 96 000 5.45'k

SitaAgarw.lL 4Tg!840 25,26% 479'640 25 26%'

Foobote: ln case where any shareholder is holding more than 5% of shars caPilal in one vear boi bss l,han 5% of share

capllalin anotheryear. |he informaiion abou| sha,eholding 
'ol 

the year in which ih3 sharcholding is less lha.5% has not been

@
Thereis nochange in prcmote.s holdlngduing lheyear
Thecompanyhasonlyoneclassofsharcsviz.equigshareshavingaparvalusofRs.'l0/ipershar6'Eachshareholde'is
etigLble tor onevote pershare & is enriued to pro-rcta drvidend, ifany. declared on equityshares. ln the svent of liquidatioi. the

equity sharehotde|S arc etigible to rc€eive lhe rcmaining as*ts ol lhe comprny after distibution of all prcfeE ntial amou nts. in

the propodon io iheir shaleholdings.

P-zt

(4,E50.20)

1E7,625.q

NOTE PARTICULARS
NO.

1,899,9E0
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NOTES ON CONSOT TTATFN FIiIANCIAI STATEMEN'S FOR THE YE R ENDFN 3IST UARCH 2023

NOTE
NO. 31.03.2023 31 .03 2422
9.0
9.1

AIUEAEq,IE
CAEII3IAESEEYE
Allhe b.ginning oltt6 y6.r
Chang6s dui.g lh3 y€ar

SIA![OELEEEEEyElorlrtrlEIQ.sIaE&{
Atlh8 b8grnnrng oftl€ ysar
Chan9es dunng lh€ y€Br

-Translorlrom Surplus

EEISBE!,EA8UIS
Atiho b69inning of ihe year
Dsft red Ta)(IorEsii€rY€a,
Add Rsalised Gain on Srle oflnveshenl
lhrou0hFVIOCl
Protu(Lo$) lor tho Yoar
La$ lnwrlnent h Associat€s Eliminat8d

80,257.89 80.267.89

9.3

13,989.79

80,267.89

136,t90.43

5E7,E11.72

519,03E.r2

527,118.83

19 353 E2

80,267.49

134 484.78

542.406 61

340.693.32

542,E06.E1

9,958.29
12,739.16

\1.527 57)

ap!I!!dal9!.i&nlt!tdlar
Tlsnrf€r to SLtulory Re3.rvs
At flo 8nd ol tl€ ye.r

e.. qrlE8cqtE8EuElstrEllq@E
Attho borinnho of tho y€er
D€llar€d T6)( ior E8dier Yosr
L3!3r R€alb.d G3in on Sal€ of lnvaslngnt
lhrough FVTOCI

O|nerCompllh€nlav€ lncom€ lort|1s yeaa

At lh. snd o, lh€ year

6tt1r,5n.n

t,706.05

544.945.0E

2.134.27

340,693.32

E6,45E.24

42,739.a6

252,'t'12.20

88.581.12107,542.50

1,323,368.56 109A,252.79

9.5 Ndurc & Purpor. otothrr Equity
l) Equ{y Componenl ol PreleGnce Sha.* repGs€nb oquity cont€nt in Profsrsnce siares reclassilied in accodancE with
.i) tuLined EEmings genelally rcprcs€nls lhe undiElribul€d proft9amountolaccumulaled e.rnings oltne Cohp.ny.

'ii) 
Oin8r Compr€h8nsive ln€om€ rEpresenis the balancs in oquily rel.ting to grin/lols$ on rHneasuremsnt ol dslined ben€ft

obligalorc E rcmaasuEm€nt ol lnvasimants, net of taxe8. This will nol b6 r€da$iliGd lo Siabm€nt o, Profir and Loss.Any
lEalisad gainlo6s on sal€ ol inv€stnents is transleered lo rotainad aeming

1o.o oMSJ!qQIE
G.in on nm...!rmsnl ot lnvo€tnents
Shar€ of Profn in P.rhor$ip Firm
lnt rc6t lncom. on O€posils
lntollst on T.r Rslund

E,586.07

5.905.92
1,164.93

0.85

6,325.70
10,506.75
3,501.83

(Amount in RupeGs Thousands)

NO. 3r.03.2023 31.A3.2022

17,658.77

NOTE
NO.

YEARENDED
3r,03,2023

YEARENDED
31 03.2A22

1 1.0 EUEIqIEEEEIEEIIEtrEENE
Salary AAllowaoe

l-55

134/aa47l

t,706.05

132,346_51

2,13A.27

20,334.20

101.66-----------?83-t5550

-iE3r
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NOTE
NO.

NDED
31.03.2023

YEARENOED
31.03.2022

r2.r QMSEi[eE!SEi

BankCha€Bs
Deposilory$ ic€ Chercos

Legal& Probss'onalFee
PrymentToAudi!or.

DematCh.qes
MEcdlan€ous E46ns€s

13.10
0.02

21.24
7.20

29.50
116.34
94_50
10.05

.1.29

32.E3

12.85

?l.u
12.26
17.20

177 t6
97.00
10.06
t.90

13.10
423,13 326.07

I2.2 DEIAILS.qEEAIIEIiLIQ3IJIEIQ8Ii
For Slatutory Audit Fee
ForlncomeT MatteG
For Cerbtcabon

2.50
7.50

12,0t)

60.00
23.50
11.00

97.00 94.50

NO. 31.03.2023 3't 03.202?

13.0@
-Ner P,oliu( Loss) atrribulabla ro Sh.rsholdsls
-Weighled Average numb€r ol Equity

Shares oobtanding as at the 6nd ol th€

-Aasic& Oiluted Eaming p€rSharo

14,193.40 18.803.55

1.699,9E0

7.a7
1.899.980

(Amount in Rupr!s Thousands)

NOTE
NO.

YEAREI{OEO
31.03.2023

YEARENOEO
31.8.24?2

't4.'l @
(To The Exrenr Nol Provded Fo4

Clllillrlll.hli&isr
ClrodlEtdr

'14.2

't4.3
NIL
NIL

untin Rupeo3Thousands)

NOTE
NO.

PARTICULARS YEARENOED
3t.03.2023

YEARENOED
31 03.2Q22

15.1

15.2

15.3

@
geEuDul8EuEa8gs!.c
EABIIIIS.I!'EAEEIqUEEIIAIGE

NIL
NIL

P-3t

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
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NOTES ON CONSOUOAYEO FINAiICIAI STATFMENTS FOR YHE YEAR FNNEN 3ISr MARCH 

'O'3

{Amountln Rupess Ihousaods}
NOTE
NO.
t6.t
16.2

BEISIEEABILAECIqSIAEi
Li3i ot Elaiad panL3 whh whom t' m.crron.h.v.t len pLc. du rtng th. yo..
Subsrdiary Comp€ny Abh. R.fncto.i.. Ltd,

Abha Forro Allov.lrd.

Key Manaaemsnt Pe160nnsl
Diltriburo6 Pvt Ltd.

Vhh.lAgErwrlL - Dlr.cbr
SumltAg.rwrlL " Olrcctor
S.J.n Kum.r Kh.rtL - Dir.ctor
vlrl.h (hrrki. . Dlrector
Nlrar).r Kum.rAg. rl.Olr.ctol
Sunsh Xum.r Sh.rm. . tLn.glng Dlractor
R.mr3h Kum.r Poddtr - Olricto.
AmltAgrff.lL - M.n glng Olr.ctor
Abhijlt Bh.li.ch.rjee . Dlreclo.
AJay Sh.rm. - Dlr.ctor A CFO
Adlty. Ag.rr.llt - Dn cror3CFO
Xhu.booAg.rw.l4omp.nyS€cllt ry.Upto22nd ltoycmDorzozl
S.nLnll Kum.r tlaz.|.comp.n),Socr.t ryW.o.f 22nd llov.mD.r,202l

EnteQi66s over $hidr Xoy M.mgamonl f.iul.n lnt m.don.l
P6r$nnola 0loi. rolaliwr n.ve lrgnficent

Relatves ol Key M.nag€manl Polsonnol l{l

16.2 l&tdb---d-!oEecti0!-ui$-Elrtt4
lrfiEri

3't.03.2023
Amounl

Tr.sactionduring Outltandingas al
ih€ y€6r hoyoarond

31.03.2022
Amount

TEnsactondunng Outslan! ng as at
Ih6 yea. lho yeare.d

'l)Capnrllntroduction/(withdnw.l)
Ma hanllltemalional

2) Sh.o of Profft / {Los.) Lom Firn
Ma$anlnGmalional

SalalvPaid

Sanaianu KumarHaz ra

20,000.00

5,906.92

5.000.q)

10.5{t€.7t

284,492.63

130,00 12.50
10{.00
50.00

178.56

NOTE
NO.

17.0 SEGSEUIEEPQEIIIq
The Company is an investnsntcompany op€raiing in lndia only E as su€h sagm€nlrcponing as d€lined in Accounling

NOTE
NO.

ita AsECulleiln tgr lparaglapn 16 ol'Mastor onodion- Nont.nking Financial company- Non-syslemically lmportantNon -
Deposittaking Company (Resoruo Bank) Dr€clrons, 2016', . sch6dulo cont ining r€q'rircd inlomalion is snclosed separatsly.

PARTICULARS

I -5*

258,585.70

10.00
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19.0

19.1

19.2

19.3
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19.5

19.6

19.7

Addldon l ttguLto.y hronndton r.quL.d by Sch.duL ll ol Comp.nh. Act 2013
Th€ Company do€3 nol hav3 an, rchtion$ip wih 3h/ck of company u/3 246 of Comprnio! ,at2ol3

Th. compny h.t compli.d wifl the numD€r of by.It pEsc.ibod lndar dsu3s 67 of s€ctbn 2 or h. Comp.nbs Acl2ol 3 ,Bad

Utlialion ol bo.rowod tundt a Sh.re Pllmlum: Th3 compcny hrs no borowd tunds a ha' nor ulitit d tB Sh.ro Promaum

Th€ compeny ha5 not b€.n dedaod ar . Wllul Ostaulbr by rny B.nk or fn.ncirtl instluton or 0t,1or tond6r.

Thol€ ar6 no che,go3 roqui€d or l.lBLclion har.ot whidr are yei to be regisbrsd wiltl th6 R€gastrsr ot Companid boyond tl€

Th€ Company hi. nol bcen l.nc.iioned nol .v.il€d any worting capital hciliti€! by b.nt5 roquidng lt to fila qued6rty r3tume ot

No proc€€dingr h.v€ been iniu.i3d or .r. p.ndin, ag.inst hs compef,y for holding any Enaml progcrty undor h€ B€n.ml
Tran6acuon3 (Prohioltion) Acll886(45of l96E) and rulo3 madori€reundor.

NO
NOTE PARTICULARS

20.0 Th€ consolidsl€d frnandslilisl€msnts prosenb lhe.onaolidabd ac.ounF of Abh. Prop.rty ProJ.ct ltd. vrilh it! Subidiary
Companios (Abh. F.no Alk y.Ltd.EAbhr R rlctorbs Ltd.) P6sociata compani${Nogur Dbtdbuto6 Pyl Ltd.},.ll
incorporabd in lndia.
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2,556.'r5
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NO.
21.0 FTNANCIAI TNSTRUMFNTS&RErrrFnnrScr OUSRFS

Th's s6cton gvas an overview olthe 3qnitc.nco ol financial instrum.nB ror the Grcup and protd6s additionat into.mation on
consolidat€d balance sheet it6ms lhstcontarn nnancialrnslrum6nls. Thsdstiails ol s€nilicrntscco!nnng poticies, inctuding ths
cntsra torr€cognilion, the besis ormsasuromsntEnd lne basis on which incom€.nd oxp€n$ssrs r€cognBed in.€specrot
sach clsss of FinancialAss€t, FinancialLiabilily and Equity lnstrumenl al€ disclos€d in Noto No. 1 to the financist staroments.

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL II./SIRUMENTS AS AT

3',1.03.2023 31.03.2022

2E,409.83

6't,935.09

8't,935.09

05,m4.40

14,221.39

1,529,54E.59

U...urtd .t F.ir Yaluo th.ough Strbm.ntolProflt&Lo3r

lnv6irn6nls - Non cunent

EllllfJ.llLlilitiE
UElre!.alAesrlsgLcql
Othsr Fi.anci6l Li6bililies
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3

192,280.01 1.631.677.38
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120.11 1?7.03
120.11 127.03
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Eilaldalatl.lr
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Calh snd Casn Equivalents

Other Non Finacial Assel3
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2

3
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NOTE
NO

22.0@
Th6 Company's fnanoallleb it6. comp.iso capnaland o0lsr payables, The main purposo ot th€s€ tinanciat labihnos rs to
linance lhe compary'r op€rston.. Th€ company's financi.l .ss€ts indude oth€r r€ceivsbles, cash.nd cash 6quivatenis,
inv6slm6nb al c6vtat valu€ and d6posrr.

The Cornpany ls €x9o36d lo ma*al ,Bk. The companys senior management oveEoss ti€ managem€nt ot iho risks. Th€
Eoard ol otr€clors revl€w! and agro€s lo polloes for managing eacn of these nsl(s, which ar€ summaris€d below

.rt tRit
Martol rilt ir tlla mt liat lra l:ir valuo of fuirrr6 ca3h flow of a fnancial instvm€nt will lluctr€E !.aaG6 ol dang€3 in mari€t
pnc63. Ma €l n* m.inly compri!€. of rbk, ruct .3 .re m.bri.l p.i6 ns& Fanandal intEum€nb srldsd b, m.rlot drl
includ€ FVTPL inv€3tnentr, otc.

Tho tabl6 provid6s undiscountod crsh llow lowarG non-danvanrc finandalliabiljly inb relevanl maturlli€s brsod on ti6
Bfiaining ponod atbalsncs 5hs€tdato io .ontrrctual mrtJrity d.b.

olhq Fin.nclal LiabilliB

a..l3r.t Mrrch 2023

Olher Financi.l Li.billi€3

127.03

120,11

127.03

120.11

NOTE

NO.

23.o lalllAl,l[alaqE[Etrr
For 0'3 purpG€ ol|na Cornpeny'. cepit lm.nagom€nt, c.pil,alindudes ls5u€d Equity Capitsl, CapitalRo6€rv6 and alloiher
Equiiy R€s€rv$ atlributabb lo th€ equity holdsrs ol ttl€ company. The primary obieclive ol tho company'E cepital manag€ment
is lo manmise ths Shar€ holdsr vallo- The Cornpany manages ils .€piial slructuro and m6k3s adiuslms.ts in lins with
changss in .conomic condilons. To mamlain or adjusi tlo capllal stucture, lhe Compary may adju{ tn€ divid6nd payment to
sharchold€rs ralu.n capitallo sharoholdorsorissus now shares or$le ass€ls to reducs dabl. Th€ company monirors capital
using a g€anng lato. which is n€ldebl divdod by lolalcapilalplus netdebt.lhe comp.ny indudoswiuin n€l d.bt. rntar6st
b€an.g bng b,m loan3 .nd borcwrng3 bs! cash and cash equivalenb.

I{OTE PARTICUL.ARS

NO.
3I ST I{ARCH

2023
31ST MARCII

2022
24.1 Ralio An ly.F A ll, ELnrnr.

(r) C.prl]'llo n3k - waEhbd a$els r.!o
!!g!sElgt: P.d Up Cepital

Dglgoilepf,r Algrcted Rbk Wbishted A3s€rs

E9glg!jlllkin!!9: Not Applicabls as tnsrs b no crodit, Market or operelionel risl
(b) Tr€F1CRAR

ti um€rator : Shal€holdels' Equity

!e!!Oj!!&t: Aggr€lEd Rllk Woightod A$€13

Belrlljlolgiallgr NotApplicsbl6 ss lhers i! no crcdit, Ma etorope6lion6l sk
(c) Ti€F2 CRAR

!!4gaEf,:Stu.oholdoB Equity + Suppbm€ntary Capitsl (Provision tor Loan Loss, Rovalueton R€e.rve, undBdosed

pg!gQj!eE!: Aggrctad REk W€ight d A$€l3
8e$g!jll!&a$9: Not ApplicsbL as tt€rs is no credit, I'larket or op€lalional lis*

(d) Liq'rid'ty Covarage Ralio

!]l4glelqL: Lhlid &8d8 i... Caih a Caih Equival€nb

€'qo
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Denomi.alor Iotal NetCash Ftows
Reason ot varian6: Not Appl.c!bta

NOTE
NO.

251 St hd.rd t..uod/rmonded but noty.t.ff;tive

NOTE
NO,

26.0 PEvious ysals tigur€s harc been res.oupsd/Gclassifled N/hor€var necessary, to conlorm to tis curant y€ar pr€sent t on_

A" K. Gutgub A AlrocLt .
Chaiered Account nts

RegislraUon No.327314E

CA Dlby. Agarw:ll

M6tnb6lshio No. 30460 r

135A.ARBa3suRoad
Kolkah-700001
Dated:291hM.y,2023

(AmitAgarwall., M.oaging Diroctod
DIN:00338081

(Adllyr Ag.r*.Ir, Dlrector a CFO)
Dlt{:001a066!

€- 4t

Ministry of co,po*t€ Afiai," ('McA'), vids noiifcarion darod 31st March 2023, has mad€ ho rolowing smondrn6ot3 ro rhe
exisling slandgrdswhich ar€ sfiectivo from 1stAp t2O23l
(a) lnd As I Preiont rion of Financi8t statomanB: Ths smendmsnb requiG companies ro disdos€ rh€ir mstanat ac.ounl,ng
policies r.&€r thin thei. signilclnl sc.ounling potid€!. ,€counting potrcl intonn.lion. togeuE wiln orh€r intomation. is
mabrid wnen .l c.n r6a3onably bs oxp€ctod to innuoncs dedlion! ot pnmsry u3€r! ot 9sne6l purpos€ linanciEt st tsments.

(b) lnd AS I A..ountng Policig8. Cn.nges in Accountng EBrihatss and Error] Th6 amendm€.b wil hetp entjtiss ro
disiinguish b.twsen accounling polici€s and rc.ounting as!mat63. The definition ot a changs in acaounlng estimates has
bsen replac6d with a defndaon of.ccounting estimates. undarths n€w deinilion, 6ccountng estjrnat€s ars'mon6t.ry amounts
in financial 6t tomenls tlal are subi€ct lo measursm€nr unc€rtainty'. Enrlie3 dsv€lop accounting sGtimatos if accounting
policios rEquiro itsms in fnancial sEtemants to be m€asurod in a \rsy thatinvotv6! mo.sursmsnt uncsrlsinty.

(c) lnd AS 12 lncom€ Taresr Th6.mondmenb dadt ho* companies e..ount ror det€nod rrx on tansactom 3uch as teases
and d€commEgoning ouigations. Ths am6ndh6nts narmwed $€ scop€ ot th6 r€aogniton €xsmption i. paraglaphs 1S and 24
ol lnd AS 12 (rocognitjon ax€mpUon) so 0i6t ( no tongor appti6s to transactiom lhet, on iniiiat recognition, give rjse ro equat
laxabl€ and dsducliblo tempolary difigrsncs6.
(d) other lnd AsAmsndments; Th€le er€ also consequentist or .ditoriat .nandm€nE in tnd AS 101, 102, i03, 107, t09, 115.

Based on prsliminary a$essm€nt. tho Compahydoss not€rp6ctsrgndicantampactofi|l€ss changes on iB!t ndaton€
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ACCOUNTING RATIOS 
 
The following table presents certain accounting and other ratios derived from audited consolidated financial 
statements for the six months period ended September 30, 2023 and financial years ending March 31, 2023 and 
March 31, 2022. For further details please refer to “Financial Statement” page 94 of this Draft Letter of 
Offer. 
 

Particulars For the six months period 
ended September 30, 

2023* 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

Earnings Per Share    
a. Basic Earnings Per Share (after 

extraordinary items) (in ₹) 
3.55 7.47 9.90 

b. Diluted Earnings Per Share (after 
extraordinary items) (In ₹) 

3.55 7.47 9.90 

Return on Net Worth (after 
extraordinary items and excluding 
Revaluation reserves) (%) 

0.81 1.72 2.42 

Net Asset Value per Equity Share each 
(In ₹)  

436.80 433.34 408.72 

Face Value per Equity Share (In ₹) 10.00 10.00 10.00 
EBITDA (₹ in Lakhs) 70.55 170.80 196.04 

* Non-annualised 
 
The formula used in the computation of the above ratios is as follows: 
 

Basic earnings per share Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax after exceptional items/ 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares as 
outstanding at the end of the year 

Diluted earnings per share Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax after exceptional items/ 
Weighted average number of Equity Shares as 
outstanding at the end of the year 

Return on net worth (%) Net Profit/ (Loss) after tax for the period/ year 
attributable to Equity Shareholders divided by net 
Worth at the end of the period multiplied by 100. 

Net Assets Value per Equity Share Net worth as at the period/ year end/ period end divided 
by total number of equity shares outstanding at the end 
of the period. 

EBITDA EBITDA is profit before exceptional items and tax 
minus other income plus finance costs, depreciation and 
amortization Expense 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

 
You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations together with our 
audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022 and our Audited 
consolidated financials for the half year ended September 30, 2023 included in this Draft Letter of Offer. Our 
audited consolidated financial statements for Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2022 and Audited consolidated financials 
for the six months period ended September 30, 2023, are prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Unless 
otherwise stated, the financial information used in this chapter is derived from the Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements of our Company.  

Our fiscal year ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a particular fiscal year are to the twelve-
month period ended March 31 of that year.  

In this section, unless the context otherwise requires, any reference to “we”, “us” or “our” refers to Abha 
Property Project Limited, our Company. Unless otherwise indicated, consolidated financial information 
included herein are based on our “Financial Statement” for the Financial Year 2023 and 2022 and the six 
months period ended on September 30, 2023 included in this Draft letter of offer on page 94 of this Draft 
Letter of Offer. 

Note: Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing our objectives, outlook, 
estimates, expectations or prediction may be “Forward Looking Statements” within the meaning of applicable 
securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. 
Important factors that could make a difference to our operations include, among others, economic conditions 
affecting demand/supply and price conditions in domestic and overseas market in which we operate, changes 
in Government Regulations, Tax Laws and other Statutes and incidental factors. 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW 

Our Company was incorporated as “Abha Property Project Limited” as a public limited company under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 vide Certificate of Incorporation dated May 10, 1985, issued by Registrar 
of Companies, N.C.T of Delhi & Haryana. The Company has got Certificate of Commencement of Business 
dated June 06, 1985, issued by Registrar of Companies, N.C.T of Delhi & Haryana. The Corporate 
Identification Number of our Company is L51909WB2001PLC093941.  

In the year 1985, the Company came out with an IPO and got listing at Delhi Stock Exchange. Delhi Stock 
Exchange is ceases to be act a functional stock exchange as the same has been de-recognised by SEBI vide its 
order dated 23rd January, 2017. 

In the year 1989, the Company has been taken over by new management by virtue of change in directorship 
and controlling interest in the Shareholding in the phased manner from the year 1991 to 1997 and the present 
promoter Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla along with PAC’s completed the acquisition of shares from erstwhile 
promoters of the Company pursuant to an open offer made under Regulation 11(1) of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Substantial Acquisitions of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 which commenced on 
June 6, 2006 and expired on June 15, 2006. 

Our Company got Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC– Non Deposit Taking) registration certificate 
from RBI, New Delhi Regional Office, to carry on the NBFI (Non-Banking Financial Institution) activities 
under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 bearing Registration no. B-14.00806 dated 
13.09.2000.  

For further details, please refer “Our Business” on page 77 of this Draft Letter of Offer.  
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SIGNIFICANT FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Our business is subjected to various risks and uncertainties, including those discussed in the section titled 
“Risk Factor” on page 19 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our results of operations and financial conditions are 
affected by numerous factors including the following: 

 Any adverse changes in central or state government policies; 
 
 Company’s results of operations and financial performance; 

 
 Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel; 

 
 The performance of the financial market in India and globally; 

 
 Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which we are involved; 

 
 Market fluctuations and industry dynamics beyond our control; 

 
 Conflict of interest with our promoter and other related parties; 

 
 Other factors beyond our control; 

 
 Changes in political and social conditions in India or in countries that we may enter, the monetary and 

interest rate policies of India and other countries, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in 
interest rates, equity prices or other rates or prices; 

 
 Inflation could trigger increase in consumer price inflation, which would dampen growth. 

 
 Inflation could trigger increase in consumer price inflation, which would dampen growth. 

 
 Un-favourable economic development. 

 
 Market risk arising from changes in the value of financial instruments as a result of changes in market 

variables like interest rate and exchange rates. 
 

 Availability of cost- effective sources of capital; 
 

 Credit quality and provisioning; 
 

 Our ability to successfully execute our growth strategies; 
 

 General Economic and Market Conditions; 
 

 Changes, if any, in the regulations / regulatory framework/ economic policies in India and/ or in foreign 
countries, which affect national & international finance. 

 
 Changes in the value of the Indian rupees and other currencies; 

 
 Arising any type of pandemic situation. 

 
OUR SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

For disclosure of our Significant Accounting policies as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, as required 
by Ind AS and other applicable standards, see section titled “Financial Statement” on page 94 of this Draft 
Letter of Offer. 

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Except as mentioned in chapter “Financial Statement” on page 94 of this Draft Letter of Offer, there has been 
no change in the accounting policies as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023 and six months period ended 
September 30, 2023. 
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SUMMARY OF THE RESULT OF OPERATIONS 

Our Results of Operations 

The following table sets forth select financial data from our Audited consolidated financial statement of profit 
and loss for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 and Audited consolidated financials for the six 
months period ended September 30, 2023, the components of which are also expressed as a percentage of total 
revenue for such period and financial years:  

(₹ in Lakhs) 

Particulars  
 For the period 

ended 30th 
September, 2023  

 (%)*  
 For the year  

ended 31st 
March, 2023  

 (%)*  
 For the year  

ended 31st 
March, 2022  

 (%)*  

   Audited     Audited     Audited    
 INCOME  

 
 

 
 

   Revenue from Operations  - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% 

 Other income  80.04 100.00% 176.59 100.00% 203.34 100.00% 
Total Revenue from 
Operations  80.04 100.00% 176.59 100.00% 203.34 100.00% 
  

 EXPENSES  

 Employee Benefit Expenses  0.75 0.94% 1.56 0.88% 4.05 1.99% 

 Other Expenses  8.75 10.93% 4.23 2.40% 3.26 1.60% 

 Interest  - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% 

 Depreciation  - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% 

 Total Expenses  9.50 11.87% 5.79 3.28% 7.31 3.59% 
  

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 70.55 88.13% 170.80 96.72% 196.04 96.41% 
  

 Current Tax  5.77 7.21% 7.26 4.11% 8.00 3.93% 

 Earlier Years Tax  - 0.00% 0.04 0.02% - 0.00% 

 Deferred Tax  -2.64 -3.30% 21.56 12.21% - 0.00% 

Total Tax Expenses 3.13 3.91% 28.87 16.35% 8.00 3.93% 
  

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 67.42 84.23% 141.93 80.38% 188.04 92.47% 
 * (%) column represents percentage of total revenue from Operations 
 
Revenue and Expenses 
 
Our revenue and expenses are reported in the following manner: 

Total Revenues 

 Revenue of operations: 
 
Our Company’s revenue from operation is Nil. 

 Other Income: 
 
Our Company’s other income comprises Gain on re-measurement of Investments, Share of Profit in 
Partnership Firm, Interest Income on Deposits and Dividend Income. 

Expenses 

Our expenses primarily consist of Employee Benefits Expenses and Other Expenses.  
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 Employment Benefit Expenses: 
 
It includes Salary Expenses and Staff Welfare Expense related to Employees. 

 Other Expenses: 
 
Other expense mainly comprises of expenses related to Advertisement, Depository Service Charges, 
Filing Fees, Listing Fees, Legal & Professional Fees, Rates & Taxes, Demat Charges, Impairment in 
Value of Investment and Miscellaneous Expenses. 

 Tax Expenses 
 
Tax expense comprises of current tax, Earlier Years Tax and deferred tax. 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23 COMPARED WITH THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 

Total Revenue 

Other Income 

Other income decreased by 13.16% from ₹203.34 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 to ₹176.59 Lakhs for 
the financial year 2022-23. 

Total Expenses 

Total Expenses decreased by 20.81% from ₹196.04 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 to ₹170.80 Lakhs for 
the financial year 2022-23. 

Employee Benefit Expenses 

Employee Benefit Expenses decreased by 61.57% from ₹4.05 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 to ₹1.56 
Lakhs for the financial year 2022-23. 

Other Expenses 

Other Expenses increased by 29.77% from ₹3.26 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 to ₹4.23 Lakhs for 
the financial year 2022-23. 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax decreased by 12.87% from ₹196.04 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 to ₹170.80 
Lakhs for the financial year 2022-23. 

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax decreased by 24.52% from ₹188.04 Lakhs for the financial year 2021-22 to ₹141.93 
Lakhs for the financial year 2022-23. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Related party transactions with certain of our promoters, directors and their entities primarily relate to share of 
profit from partnership firm. For further details of related parties kindly refer chapter titled “Financial 
Statement” on page 94 of this Draft letter of offer. 

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 THAT MAY AFFECT OUR 
FUTURE RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Other than as disclosed in this Draft Letter of Offer, there have been no significant developments after 
September 30, 2023, the date of the latest balance sheet included in this Draft Letter of Offer that may affect 
our future results of operations.  
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OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Except as stated in this section, there are no: (i) criminal proceedings; (ii) actions by statutory or regulatory 
authorities; (iii) claims relating to direct and indirect taxes; (iv) disciplinary actions including penalties 
imposed by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoter in the last five financial years, including 
outstanding action; or (v) Material Litigation (as defined below); involving the Company, its Directors and 
Promoters.  
 
A. LITIGATION INVOLVING THE COMPANY 

(a) Criminal proceedings against the Company 

There are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated against the Company. 

(b) Criminal proceedings filed by the Company 

There are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated by the Company. 

(c) Actions by statutory and regulatory authorities against the Company 

There are no outstanding actions by statutory or regulatory authorities initiated against the Company. 

(d) Tax Proceedings:  

Except as mentioned as below, there are no outstanding Tax Proceedings against the company. 

(I) Direct Tax: - NIL  

 (ii) Indirect Tax – NIL  

 (e) Other pending material litigations against the Company 

There are no outstanding litigations initiated against the Company, which have been Considered material by 
the Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy. 

(f) Other pending material litigations filed by the Company 

There are no outstanding litigations initiated by the company, which have been considered Material by the 
Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy. 

B. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE PROMOTERS & DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

(a) Criminal proceedings against the Promoters & Directors of the company 

There are no outstanding criminal proceedings against the Promoters and Directors of the Company. 

(b) Criminal proceedings filed by the Promoters & Directors of the company 

There are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated by the Promoters and Directors of The Company. 

(c) Actions by statutory and regulatory authorities against the Directors of the company 

There are no outstanding actions by statutory or regulatory authorities initiated against the Promoters &amp; 
Directors. 

(d) Tax Proceedings: Except as mentioned as below, there are no outstanding Tax 
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Proceedings against the Promoters & Directors. 

(i) Direct tax –  

Amit Agarwalla- 

Assessment Year Section Code Date of Demand Amount (Rs.) Particular 
 

2013-14 
 

143(1)(a) 
 

28-07-2014 
 

21,240 
No Appeal has 

been preferred. The 
matter is pending. 

 
 Sumit Agarwalla  

Assessment Year Section Code Date of Demand Amount (Rs.) Particular 
 

2017-18 
 

143(1)(a) 
 

15-04-2019 
 

11,882 
No Appeal has 

been preferred. The 
matter is pending. 

 
 (ii) Indirect Tax – NIL 

(e) Other pending material litigations against the Promoters & Directors of the company 

There are no outstanding litigations initiated against the Directors, which have been considered material by the 
Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy. 

(f) Other pending material litigations filed by the Promoters & Directors of the company 

There are no outstanding litigations initiated by the Directors, which have been considered Material by the 
Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy. 

C. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE GROUP COMPANIES & PROMOTERS GROUP WHICH 
CAN HAVE A MATERIAL IMPACT ON THE COMPANY 

(a) Criminal proceedings against the Promoter Group & Group Companies 

There are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated against the Promoter Group and Group Companies. 

(b) Criminal proceedings filed by the Promoter Group & Group Companies  

There are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated by the Promoter Group and Group Companies. 

(c) Actions by statutory and regulatory authorities against the Promoter Group & Group Companies 

There are no outstanding actions by statutory or regulatory authorities initiated against the Promoter Group and 
Group Companies. 
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(d) Tax Proceedings: 

(i) Direct Tax: - 

  Basant Kumar Agarwalla HUF 

Assessment 
Year 

Section Code Date of 
Demand 

Amount 
(Rs.) 

Particular 

 
2016-17 

 
144 

 
24-12-2018 

 
8,48,550 

The assessee filed its income tax 
return for Assessment Year 2016-
17 electronically on July 21, 2016, 
declaring an income of 
Rs.4,29,885/-. Subsequently, the 
case being transferred to ITO Ward 
30(1) by order u/s 127, a notice u/s 
143(2) was issued by ACIT, 
Central Circle 2 (1), Kolkata. After 
the objection raised by the assessee 
regarding jurisdiction, the records 
were transferred to ward 30(1), and 
a notice under 142(1) was issued. 
The assessment was completed by 
the Ld. A.O. under Section 143(3), 
assessing the income at 
Rs.33,29,632/-. The assessment 
included the disallowance of 
Rs.38,21,610/-, representing the 
difference between the claimed 
exemption under u/s 10(34A) and 
the distributed income declared by 
M/s Purbanchal Cement Ltd. The 
assessee contended that the claimed 
exemption was valid, calculated 
based on the buyback price and the 
cost of acquisition. However, the 
A.O. computed the long-term 
capital gain (LTCG) using 
indexation and added it to the total 
income. The assessee asserts that 
the A.O.'s computation of LTCG 
was contrary to the provisions of 
the Act, particularly Section 
10(34A), which provides total 
exemption for income arising from 
the buyback of unlisted shares. It is 
contended that the A.O. 
misinterpreted the statute and 
ignored legal principles of 
construction and interpretation.  

Aggrieved by the above the 
Assessee has filed this Instant 
Appeal before the Commissioner of 
Income-tax (Appeals) on 
25.01.2018. 
 
The matter is pending. 
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Jagdish Prasad Agarwalla HUF 

Assessment 
Year 

Section Code Date of 
Demand 

Amount 
(Rs.) 

Particular 

2016-17 144 24-12-2018 4,85,380 The assessee filed its income tax 
return for Assessment Year 
2016-17, electronically declaring 
an income of Rs. 6,68,600/-. It is 
alleged that, despite a transfer of 
the case to ITO Ward 30(1), a 
notice u/s. 143(2) was issued by 
ACIT, Central Circle 2 (1), and 
Kolkata. The assessee raised 
jurisdictional objections, leading 
to the transfer of records to Ward 
30(1) and subsequent issuance of 
a notice u/s 142(1). The 
assessment was then completed 
by the Ld. A.O. under section 
143(3), assessing income at 
Rs.29,01,041/-. The assessment 
included the disallowance of 
Rs.29,42,160/-, representing the 
difference between the claimed 
exemption u/s 10(34A) and the 
distributed income by M/s 
Purbanchal Cement Ltd. The 
A.O. computed the Long-Term 
Capital Gain (LTCG) in a 
manner contested by the 
assessee, who maintains that the 
computation was contrary to the 
provisions of the Act, 
specifically section 10(34A), 
which provides exemption for 
income arising from buyback of 
unlisted shares. The A.O.'s 
interpretation of the statute and 
application of section 46A, as 
well as the misidentification of 
the relevant statutory section in 
the assessment order, are points 
of contention. The assessee has 
lodged an appeal before the 
Commissioner of Income-tax 
(Appeals) on 25.01.2018 against 
the assessment order. In 
summary, the appeal challenges 
the A.O.'s assessment and 
computation of LTCG, arguing 
that it runs contrary to the 
specific provisions of section 
10(34A) and fails to adhere to 
established legal principles of 
statutory interpretation. 

The matter is pending. 
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(ii) Indirect Tax – NIL 

(e) Other pending material litigations against the Promoter Group & Group Companies 

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, except as mentioned below, there are no outstanding litigations 
initiated against the Company, which have been considered material by the Company in accordance with the 
Materiality Policy. 

Commissioner of CGST & CX, Kolkata South Commissionerate……Petitioner. 

 V/s 

M/S Maithan International & ANR………….. Respondent. 

Case No. WPA/23723/2019 

Court/ Authority High Court, Calcutta 
 

Case Details  The company has no information related to this matter. 

Status  The case is Pending. 

 

(f) Other pending material litigations filed by the Promoter Group & Group Companies 

There are no outstanding litigations initiated by the Promoter Group & Group Companies, which have been 
considered material by the Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy. 

D. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE SUBSIDIARIES                                                                                                 

(a)Criminal proceedings against the Subsidiaries 

There are no criminal actions initiated against the subsidiaries of the company. 

(b) Criminal proceedings filed by the Subsidiaries 

There are no outstanding criminal proceedings initiated by the subsidiaries of the company. 

(c) Actions by statutory and regulatory authorities against the Subsidiaries 

There are no outstanding actions by statutory or regulatory Authorities initiated against the Subsidiaries of the 
company. 

(d) Tax Proceedings:  

There are no outstanding Tax Proceedings against the subsidiaries of The Company. 
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i) Direct Tax:  

Abha Ferro Alloys Ltd. 

Assessment 
Year 

Section Code Date of 
Demand 

Amount (Rs.) Particular 

2020-21 154 08-06-2023 4,81,293 The assessee company filed its income 
tax return for A.Y. 2020-2021, 
showing a total income of 
Rs.39,55,070/- after claiming a set-off 
of a brought forward loss of 
Rs.12,53,927/- from A.Y. 2018-19. 
However, the income was assessed at 
Rs.52,09,000/- under Section 143(1), 
denying the set-off of the brought 
forward loss. The assessed loss 
available for set-off, as per 
communication reference No. CPC 
/1819/ A6/ 1875564991 dated 
December 25, 2018, amounted to 
Rs.14,60,949/-. A portion of this loss 
was claimed as set-off for A.Y. 2019-
20, which was allowed as per the 
intimation order bearing 
communication reference No 
CPC/1920/A6/1967599011 dated 
February 19, 2020. The assessee 
submitted rectification requests on two 
occasions, on May 10, 2022, and June 
8, 2023, seeking reprocessing of the 
return due to the denial of the set-off. 
Despite this, two separate orders under 
Section 154 were issued, both 
maintaining the assessed income at 
Rs.52,09,000/-. 

Aggrieved by the above the Assessee 
has filed this Instant Appeal before the 
Commissioner of Income-tax 
(Appeals) on 25.01.2018. 
 
The Commissioner of Income-tax 
(Appeals) vide its order dated 
14/11/2023 has allowed the Appeal. 
The Income Tax Department is yet to 
act on the matter. 

 

Abha Refractories Ltd. 

Assessment Year Section Code Date of Demand Amount 
(Rs.) 

Particular 

 
2019-20 

 
143(1)(a) 

 
12-05-2020 

 
59,80,590 

 
 No Appeal has been 
preferred. The matter is 
pending. 

 
ii) Indirect Tax – NIL. 
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(e) Other pending material litigations against the Subsidiaries: 

There are no outstanding litigations initiated against the Subsidiaries, which have been considered material by 
the Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy. 

(f) Other pending material litigations filed by the Subsidiaries 

There are no outstanding litigations initiated filed by the Subsidiaries, which have been Considered material by 
the Company in accordance with the Materiality Policy. 
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS 
 
Our Company has received the necessary licenses, permissions and approvals from the Central and State 
Governments and other government agencies/regulatory authorities/certification bodies required to undertake 
the Issue or continue our business activities. In view of the approvals listed below, we can undertake the Issue 
and our current business activities and no further major approvals from any governmental/regulatory authority, 
or any other entity are required to be undertaken, in respect of the Issue or to continue our business activities. It 
must, however, be distinctly understood that in granting the above approvals, the Government of India and 
other authorities do not take any responsibility for the financial soundness of our Company or for the 
correctness of any of the statements or any commitments made or opinions expressed in this behalf. 

The main objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of our Company and the objects incidental, enable 
our Company to carry out its activities. 

I. APPROVALS FOR THE ISSUE 

The following approvals have been obtained or will be obtained in connection with the Issue: 

1. The Board of Directors have, pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, by a 
resolution passed at its meeting held on May 29, 2023 authorized the Issue, subject to the approval of 
the shareholders and such other authorities as may be necessary. 

 
2. In-principle approval dated [●] from the CSE Limited to use the name of CSE Limited for listing of 

the Equity Shares issued by our Company pursuant to the Issue;  
 
3. The ISIN of the Company is INE964E01011. 

II. APPROVALS PERTAINING TO INCORPORATION OF OUR COMPANY. 

Sr. 
No. 

Description Registration 
Number/Corpo

rate 
Identification 

Number 

Applicable 
law 

Issuing 
Authority 

Date of 
Issue 

Validity 

 
1. 

 
Certificate of 
Incorporation 

 
U70109DL1985

PLC020893 
 

 
Companies 
Act, 1956 

Registrar of 
Companies, 

N.C.T of Delhi 
& Haryana 

 
May 10, 

1985 

Valid until 
Cancelled 

2. 
Certificate of 

Commencement 
of Business 

 
- 

 
Companies 
Act, 1956 

Registrar of 
Companies, 

N.C.T of Delhi 
& Haryana 

 
 

June 06, 
1985 

Valid until 
Cancelled 

3. 

Certificate of 
Registration of the 

Order of 
Company Law 
Board (CLB) 
confirming 

transfer of the 
Registered office 

from NCT of 
Delhi to West 

Bengal 

L51909WB200
1PLC093941# 

Companies 
Act, 1956 

Asstt. 
Registrar of 
Companies, 
West Bengal 

November 
19, 2001 

Valid until 
Cancelled 

# Presently the date of incorporation and year of incorporation linked with the Corporate Identification 
Number of the Company as shown in the MCA portal are November 21, 2001 and  2001 respectively. The 
Company has filed Form GNL-1 on 28.09.2023 with Registrar of Companies, West Bengal to amend the date 
of Incorporation and year of incorporation linked with the Corporate Identification Number of the Company 
as shown in the MCA portal. The form was duly approved on 26.10.2023. The company has also made 
correspondences with Registrar of Companies, West Bengal on 20.10.2023 and 29.11.2023 respectively with 
respect to amendment in the date of incorporation and year of incorporation linked with the Corporate 
Identification Number of the Company as shown in the MCA portal. However, the same is yet to be corrected 
on MCA portal as on the date filing of this Draft Letter of Offer.      
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III. BUSINESS APPROVAL 

Sr. 
No. 

Description 
Registration/ Licence 

Number 
Applicable law 

Issuing 
Authority 

Date of 
Issue 

Validity 

1. 
Certificate of 
Registration 

B-05.06627 
Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 

Reserve Bank 
of India, 

Department of 
Non-Banking 
Supervision 

Kolkata 

07-07-2006 Valid until 
Cancelled 

2. 
Certificate of 
Enlistment 

000211014874 KMC Act, 1980 

License 
Department, 

Kolkata 
Municipal 

Corporation 

01.04.2023 

 

31.03.2024 

 

 

IV. TAX RELATED APPROVALS  

 

Sr. 
No. 

Description 
Registration 

Number 
Applicable law 

Issuing 
Authority 

Date of 
Issue/Filing 

Validity 

 
1 

 
Permanent 
Account 
Number 
(PAN) 

 
AACCA1967F 

 

 
Income Tax Act, 

1961 

 
Income Tax 
Department 

Govt. of 
India. 

10-05-1985 
Valid until 
Cancelled 

 
2 

 
TAN (Tax 
Deduction 
Account 
Number) 

 

CALA04655A 
 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

 
Income Tax 
Department 

Govt. of 
India. 

 
Document 
not found 

 
Valid until 
Cancelled 

 
V. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RELATED APPROVALS. 

We regard our intellectual property as one of the most important factors in contributing to our success, and our 
intellectual property rights include trademarks associated with our businesses and other rights arising from 
confidentiality agreements relating to our database, website content and technology. 

 
Sr. 
No 

 
Trade Mark 

Logo 

 
Class 

 
TM mark 

Type 

 
Owner 

Application 
No./ 

Registration 
Certificate No. 

Date of 
Registration 
/Application  

Current 
Status 

1 
NA 

 
VI. Approvals applied for but not yet received / Renewals made in the usual course of business: NA 

VII. Material licenses / approvals for which our Company is yet to apply for / Statutory Approvals / Licenses 
required: NA 
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 
 
Authority for the Issue 

 
This Issue is authorized by our Board pursuant to a resolution passed in its meeting held on May 29, 2023 as 
per Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Our Company has received ‘in-principle’ approval from the CSE for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be 
allotted in the Issue pursuant to their letter no. [●] dated [●] being the Designated Stock Exchange. 
 
The Board of Directors of our Company in their meeting held on May 29, 2023  have determined the Issue 
Price as ₹10/- per Rights Equity Share and the Rights Entitlement as 5 Rights Equity Share for every 1 Equity 
Share held on the Record Date i.e., [●]day, [●],[●]. The Issue Price has been determined at in consultation with 
the Lead Manager to the Issue. 
 
Our Company has been allotted the ISIN [●] for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the respective demat   
accounts of the Equity Shareholders of our Company. 

 
Prohibition by SEBI or RBI or other governmental authorities  

 
Our Company, the Promoters, the members of the Promoter Group and the Directors of our Company have not 
been prohibited or debarred from accessing or operating in the capital markets, or restrained from buying, 
selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or 
governmental authority. Further, SEBI has not initiated any action against any entity with which the Directors 
are associated. 
 
The Companies with which our director or the persons in control of our Company are or were associated as 
promoter, directors or persons in control have not been debarred from accessing the capital market under any 
order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority. 
 
Neither our Promoters, the members of the Promoter Group nor our Directors have been declared as fugitive 
economic offender under Section 12 of Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2018). 
 
None of our Directors currently holds nor have held directorship(s) in the last five years in a listed Company 
whose shares have been or were suspended from trading on any stock exchange or in a listed Company which 
has been / was delisted from any stock exchange. 
 
There are no proceedings initiated by SEBI, Stock Exchange or ROC, etc., against our Company, Directors, 
Group Companies. 
 
Prohibition by RBI 
 
Neither our Company, nor our Promoters, and Directors have been categorized or identified as wilful defaulters 
by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful 
defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 
 
Compliance with Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018 
 
Our Company, our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group are in compliance with the Companies 
(Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018, to the extent it may be applicable to them as on date of this 
Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
Eligibility for the Issue 
 
Our Company is a listed company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. Our Equity Shares are 
presently listed on the CSE. Our Company is eligible to offer and issue Right Shares pursuant to this Issue in 
terms of Chapter III and other applicable provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 
 
Our Company is undertaking this Right Issue in compliance with Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations. Our Company undertakes to make an application to the CSE for listing of the Right Shares to be 
issued pursuant to this Issue. 
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Compliance with Regulations 61 and 62(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 
 
Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations, to the extent applicable. Further, in relation to compliance with Regulation 62(1)(a) of the SEBI 
ICDR Regulations, our Company undertakes to make an application for “in-principle” approval for listing of 
the Rights Equity Shares to CSE. We have received such approval from the CSE vide its letter no. [●] dated 
[●]day, [●]. We will apply to CSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares. 
CSE is the Designated Stock Exchange for the Issue. 
 
Disclaimer Clause of SEBI 
 
The Draft Letter of Offer has not been filed with SEBI in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations as the size of issue 
is less than ₹5,000.00 lakhs. However, the Letter of Offer will be filed with SEBI. 
 
Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the 
SEBI ICDR Regulations as explained below: 
 
Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the Listing 
Agreement or the SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable for the last one year immediately preceding the date 
of filing of the Letter of Offer with the SEBI and until date; 
 
The reports, statements and information referred to above in clause (1) are available on the website of the CSE; 
 

1. Our Company has an investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by our 
Board our Directors as regards share transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely 
and satisfactory redressal of investor grievances. 

 
2. As our Company satisfies the conditions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI 

ICDR Regulations, disclosures in this Letter of Offer have been made in terms of Clause (4) of Part B of 
Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPANIES (SIGNIFICANT BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP) RULES, 
2018 
 
Our Company is in compliance with the provisions of the Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) 
Rules, 2018. 

Caution 
 
Our Company shall make all the relevant information available to the Eligible Shareholders in accordance with 
the SEBI ICDR Regulations and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of the 
Eligible Shareholders in any manner whatsoever, including at presentations, in research or sales reports, etc., 
after filing this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not 
contained in this Draft Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. 
This Draft Letter of Offer is an offer to sell only the Right Shares and the Rights Entitlement, but only under 
circumstances and in the applicable jurisdictions. Unless otherwise specified, the information contained in this 
Draft Letter of Offer is current only as at its date of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
Disclaimer from our Company and Lead Manager: 
 
Our Company and Lead Manager accept no responsibility for the statements made otherwise than in this Draft 
Letter of Offer or in any advertisement or other materials issued by us or by any other persons at our instance 
and anyone placing reliance on         any other source of information would be doing so at his/ her own risk. 
 
Investors who invest in this Issue will be deemed to have represented by our Company, Lead Manager and 
their respective directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire Equity Shares of our Company, and are 
relying on independent advice/ evaluation as to their ability and quantum of investment in this Issue. 
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Disclaimer with respect to jurisdiction 
 
This Draft Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and other applicable rules and regulations there 
under. Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate court(s) in 
Kolkata, India, only. 
 
Designated Stock Exchange 
 
The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of this Issue will be The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited 
only. 
 
Disclaimer clause of the Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (“CSE”/ “Exchange”): 
 
As required, a copy of the Draft Letter of Offer has been submitted to the CSE. CSE has given, vide its letter [●] 
dated [●]day, [●] permission to this Company to use the Exchange’s name in the Letter of Offer as the Stock 
Exchange on which this Company’s securities are proposed to be listed. The CSE does not in any manner:  
 

i. Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of the Letter of 
Offer; or’ 

 
ii. Warrant that this Company’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the CSE; or 

 
iii. Take any responsibility for the financial or their soundness of this Company, its promoters, its 

management or any scheme or project of this Company; 
 
It should not for any reason be deemed or construed that the Letter of Offer has been cleared or approved by 
the CSE. 
 
Every Investor who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any Equity Shares of our Company may do so 
pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the CSE 
whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection with 
such subscription/ acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any 
other reason whatsoever. 
 
DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF BSE LIMITED 
 
The Equity Shares of the Company are not listed on BSE Limited. Based on the application made by the 
Company, BSE Limited has given permission to the Company to use the bidding platform of BSE Limited i.e. 
Internet based-Book Building Software (iBBS) for the Rights Issue. BSE Limited does not in any manner: 
 

 Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness, accuracy, or completeness of any of the contents of the 
Letter of Offer; and 

 Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of the Company, its promoters, its 
management or any scheme or project of the Company; and 

 Monitor any compliances / non-compliances, as the case may be, with respect to the filings made by 
the Company; and 

 Will allow any person associated, directly or indirectly, including but not limited to the subscriber to 
the rights issue, any recourse to the investor grievance redressal mechanism including arbitration 
mechanism for any action undertaken in consonance with or pursuant to the Letter of Offer or even 
otherwise also. 

 
And it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that the Letter of Offer has been scrutinized, cleared, 
or approved by BSE Limited. 
 
Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of the Company may do so pursuant 
to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against BSE Limited 
whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection with 
such subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any 
other reason whatsoever. 
 
Every person who desires to participate in the Rights Issue of the Company expressly understands that BSE 
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Limited is only providing its iBBS platform to the Company for its Rights Issue, that securities of the 
Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited, that any complaint/grievances with regards to 
Rights Issue has to be filed with The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and that Equity Shares issued by the 
Company will not be listed at BSE Limited pursuant to Rights Issue. 
 
In addition to the aforesaid, to the full extent possible and permissible by law, BSE Limited disclaims all the 
contents of the Letter of Offer, express or implied, including but not limited to the particular purpose of letter of 
offer vis-à-vis rights issue. It is understood and agreed that the Company’s access to and use of the iBBS is at 
Company’s own risk. BSE Limited will not be liable for any damages of any kind arising from the use of 
iBBS. BSE Limited shall not be liable for any direct, indirect, incidental, special, consequential, or punitive 
damages, or any loss of capital, profit or revenue, whether incurred directly or indirectly, or any loss of data, 
use, goodwill or other intangible losses resulting from the letter of offer, rights issue or the use of iBBS. Any 
use of the iBBS and the related services are subject to Indian laws and Courts exclusively situated in Mumbai. 
 
Filing: 
 
In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the minimum threshold limit of Rights Issue for filing the Letter of 
Offer with SEBI as specified in SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from ₹10 Crores to ₹50 Crores. In 
light of the above, the Company may open the Rights Issue if the size is less than ₹50 Crores subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

i. The issuer shall prepare the final letter of offer in accordance with requirements as specified in SEBI 
ICDR Regulations, 2018 and file the same with the Stock Exchange and SEBI 

 
ii. The eligibility and general conditions as specified in Regulation 61 & 62 SEBI ICDR Regulations, 

2018 respectively   shall be complied with. 
iii. All other provisions in SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Circulars shall continue to apply. 

 
iv. Abridged letter of offer and the common application form shall be sent to all the shareholders on 

record date as specified in SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018 and Circulars issued there under. 
 
Further, this Draft Letter of Offer is being filed with the CSE. 
 
Selling Restrictions 
 
Each person who exercises Rights Entitlement and subscribes for Rights Equity Shares or excess Rights Equity 
Shares, or who purchases Rights Entitlement or Rights Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the 
restrictions set out below: 
 
The distribution of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights Entitlement 
Letter (collectively “Issue Material”) and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares to persons 
in certain jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. 
Persons into whose possession the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form may 
come are required to inform by themselves about and observe such restrictions. 
 
Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch the 
Issue Material through email and courier only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in 
India or who have provided an Indian address to our Company. The Letter of Offer will be provided, through 
email and courier, by the Registrar, on behalf of our Company, to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have 
provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of 
the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in 
this regard. Investors can also access the Issue Material from the websites of the Registrar, our Company, the 
Lead Manager, BSE Limited, and CSE. Those overseas shareholders who do not update our records with their 
Indian address or the address of their duly authorized representative in India, prior to the date on which we 
propose to dispatch the Issue Materials, shall not be sent any Issue Materials. 
 
No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for 
that purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly 
or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements 
in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, except in 
accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Issue Material will not 
constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those 
circumstances, the Issue Material must be treated as sent for information purposes only and should not be acted 
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upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, 
persons receiving a copy of the Issue Material should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity 
Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Issue Material to any person outside India where to do 
so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If the Issue Material is received by any 
person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights 
Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Issue Material. 
 
Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered 
in the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorized 
to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or any other person 
acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as in valid where they believe 
that Application Form is in complete or acceptance of such Application Form may in fringe applicable legal or 
regulatory requirements and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights 
Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form. 
 
Neither the delivery of the Issue Material nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any 
implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such 
information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of the Issue 
Material. 
 
THE CONTENTS OF THE LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX 
OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE 
FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF THE OFFER 
OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, EACH 
INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX 
ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE 
OFFER OF RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, NEITHER OUR COMPANY NOR THE 
LEAD MANAGER IS MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER 
OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE 
RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE 
LAWS OR REGULATIONS. 
 

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES 

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the 
Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the 
United States of America or the territories or possessions thereof ("United States"), except in a transaction not 
subject to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities 
laws. The offering to which this Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, 
an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States or as a solicitation 
therein of an offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register 
any portion of the Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to conduct a public 
offering of securities in the United States. Accordingly, the Issue Material should not be forwarded to or 
transmitted in or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of 40 days after the 
commencement of the Issue, an offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within the United 
States by a dealer (whether or not it is participating in the Issue) may violate the registration requirements of 
the Securities Act. 
 
Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any 
person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf 
has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application 
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from 
the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons 
subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares and wishing to hold such Rights Equity Shares in registered form must 
provide an address for registration of these Rights Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a 
rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Issue Material will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity 
Shareholders who have an address in India. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights 
Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not, and that at 
the time of subscribing for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United 
States, and (ii) it is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 



 

 

114 
 

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the 
certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorized to acquire the Rights 
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us 
or our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian 
address is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that the Application Form is incomplete or 
acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our 
Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any 
such Application Form. 
 
The Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States. 
 
The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities 
and Exchange Commission (the "US SEC"), any state securities commission in the United States or any other 
US regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the 
offering of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Letter of 
Offer. 
 
Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States. 
 
The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors Our Company and the Lead 
Manager are not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, 
which may occur after the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent 
investigations and ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable 
limits under the applicable laws or regulations. 
 
THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR 
COMPANY FROM THE LEAD MANAGER FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT 
TO BE REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON. 
 
Investor Grievances and Redressal System: 
 
Our Company has made adequate arrangements for redressal of investor complaints in compliance with the 
corporate governance requirements under the SEBI Listing Regulations as well as a well-arranged 
correspondence system developed for letters of routine nature. We have been registered with the SEBI 
Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as required by the SEBI Circular bearing reference number 
CIR/OIAE/2/2011 dated June 3, 2011. Consequently, investor grievances are also tracked online by our 
Company through the SCORES mechanism. 
 
Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when 
required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of shareholders in relation to 
transfer of shares and effective exercise of voting rights. All investor grievances received by us have been 
handled by the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. 
 
The Investor complaints received by our Company are generally disposed of within 15 (Fifteen) days from the 
date of receipt of the complaint. Any investor grievances arising out of the Issue will be handled by the 
Registrar to the Issue i.e., Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited. The agreement between the Company and 
the Registrar provides for a period for which records shall be retained by the Registrar in order to enable the 
Registrar to redress grievances of Investor. 
 
Status of outstanding investor complaints in relation to Our Company: 

As on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer, there were no outstanding investor complaints in relation to our 
Company.  

 
Investor Grievances arising out of the Issue 

Our Company’s investor grievances arising out of the Issue will be handled by M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics 
Private Limited, the Registrar to the Issue. The Registrar will have a separate team of personnel handling only 
post- Issue correspondence. The agreement between our Company and the Registrar provides for retention of 
records with the Registrar for a period of at least three years from the last date of dispatch of Allotment 
Advice/ demat credit/ refund order to enable the Registrar to redress grievances of Investors. 
 
All grievances relating to the Issue may be addressed to the Registrar or the SCSB in case of ASBA Applicants 
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giving full details such as folio number / demat account number, name and address, contact telephone / cell 
numbers, email id of the first Applicant, number of Rights Equity Shares applied for, amount paid on 
application and the name of the bank and the branch where the application was deposited, along with a 
photocopy of the acknowledgement slip. In case of renunciation, the same details of the renouncee should be 
furnished. In case of non-routine grievances where verification at other agencies is involved, it would be the 
Endeavour of the Registrar to attend to them as expeditiously as possible. Our Company undertakes to resolve 
the investor grievances in a time bound manner. The investor complaints received by our Company are 
generally disposed of within 30 days from the date of receipt of the complaint. Investors may contact our 
Compliance Officer or the Registrar in case of any pre-Issue/post-Issue related problems such as non-receipt of 
Allotment advice/demat credit/refund orders etc. 
 
Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our 
Company of our Company for any pre-Issue or post-Issue related matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA 
process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process), 
giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e mail address of the sole/ first 
holder, folio number or demat account number, number of Right Shares applied for, amount blocked, ASBA 
Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form or the plain paper 
application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement 
slip. For details on the ASBA process, please refer to the section titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 116 of this 
Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
The contact details of the Compliance Officer and Registrar to the Issue are as follows: 

 
Registrar to the Issue Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited 
SEBI REGN. No.: INR000000353 
Validity of Registration: Permanent  
CIN: U20221WB1982PTC034886 
Contact Person: Mr. Ravi Kumar Bahl 
Address: 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, 
Kolkata – 700 001,  
Tel. No.: +91-33-2248 2248;  
Fax No.: +91-33-2248 4787 
Email ID: mdpldc@yahoo.com  
Website: www.mdpl.in 

Santanu Kumar Hazra 
Address: 29, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 4th Floor, 
Room No 407, Kolkata – 700 013  
Telephone: +91-33-6644 7200 
Email: abhaproperty@gmail.com  
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TERMS OF THE ISSUE 
 

This section is for the information of the Investors proposing to apply in this Issue. Investors should carefully 
read the provisions contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the 
Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, before submitting the Application Form. Our Company 
and the Lead Manager are not liable for any amendments or modifications or changes in applicable laws or 
regulations, which may occur after the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their 
independent investigation and ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up. Unless otherwise 
permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, Investors proposing to 
apply in this Issue can apply only through ASBA or by mechanism as disclosed in this section. 
 
Investors are requested to note that application in this Issue can only be made through ASBA facility. 
 
Overview 

This Issue and the Right Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and conditions 
contained in the Offer Documents, and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of our 
Company, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, FEMA, FEMA Rules, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of 
India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from the RBI or other 
regulatory authorities, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the CSE and the 
terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice by the BSE Limited. 
 
Important 

1. Dispatch and availability of Issue materials 
 
In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, ASBA Circular, our Company will send/dispatch at least 
three days before the Issue Opening Date, the Offer Documents only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who 
have provided an Indian address to our Company and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale 
of the Rights Entitlement or Right Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in and 
may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have 
provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in 
case the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be 
dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them. 
 
Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched, by the Registrar to the Issue on behalf of our Company to 
the Eligible Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses and have made a request in this regard. In 
case such Eligible Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only 
to their valid email address and in case such Eligible Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then 
the Letter of Offer will be  dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them 
or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Right Shares is permitted under laws of 
such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. Investors can access the Offer 
Documents (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Right Shares under 
applicable securities laws) on the websites of: 

 Our Company’s website at https://abhaproperty.in/  
 Merchant Banker’s website at www.intelligentgroup.org.in/  
 Registrar to the Issue’s website at www.mdpl.in  
 BSE Limited’s website at www.bseindia.com  
 CSE’s website at www.cse-india.com 

Eligible Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the 
Registrar to the Issue’s website at www.mdpl.in by entering their DP-ID and Client-ID or Folio Number (in 
case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the same 
shall also be available on the website of our Company at https://abhaproperty.in/. 

 
Further, our Company along with the Lead Manager will undertake all adequate steps to reach out to the 
Eligible Shareholders who have provided their Indian address through other means, as may be feasible. 
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2. Facilities for Application in this Issue 
 
In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circular and ASBA 
Circular, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use the ASBA 
process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their 
Application through ASBA. For details, please refer to the paragraph titled “Procedure for Application 
through the ASBA Process” on page 129    of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
a. ASBA facility 

 
Investors can submit either the Application Form in physical mode to the Designated Branches of the 
SCSBs or online/ electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such 
SCSB) authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Money in an ASBA Account maintained with 
the SCSB. Application through ASBA facility in electronic mode will only be available with such 
SCSBs who provide such facility. 

 
Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI circular bearing 
reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012, within the periods stipulated 
therein, Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. 

 
Further, in terms of the SEBI circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 
02, 2013, it is clarified that for making Applications by SCSBs on their own account using ASBA 
facility, each such SCSB should have a separate account in its own name with any other SEBI 
registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the purpose of making an Application in 
this Issue and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account for such an Application. 

 
Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN 
in the Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic Application 
through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Please note that incorrect 
depository account details or PAN or Application Forms without depository account details shall be 
treated as incomplete and shall be rejected. For details see ‘Grounds for Technical Rejection’ on page 
no. 137 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our Company, the Lead Manager, the Registrar, and the SCSBs 
shall not be liable for any incomplete or incorrect demat details provided by the Applicants. 

 
Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors may choose to 
accept the offer to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note that 
Eligible Shareholders making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not 
be permitted to renounce any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see ‘Application on 
Plain Paper under ASBA process’ on page 131 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
b. Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders 

 
In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI - Rights Issue 
Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in 
dematerialized form only. 

 
Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to: (i) The demat 
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialized form; and 
(ii) a demat suspense escrow account titled as ‘APPL – Rights Entitlement Unclaimed Suspense 
Account’ opened by our Company, for the Eligible  Shareholders which would comprise Rights 
Entitlements relating to: (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 
39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) 
The demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or suspended for debit or 
credit or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; 
or (d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in the physical form 
on [●]day, [●],[●], being the Record Date the details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible 
Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (e) Credit of the Rights Entitlements 
returned/reversed/failed; or (f) The ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including 
any court proceedings. 

 
Eligible Shareholders as on Record Date are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of 
self-attested PAN and client master sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal 



 

 

118 
 

and beneficial ownership of their respective Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar to the 
Issue not later than [●]day, [●],[●], being 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., 
[●]day, [●],[●] to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat 
suspense escrow account to their demat account at least 1 (One) day before the Issue Closing Date, to 
enable such Eligible Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall 
serve as an intimation to such Eligible Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Shareholders are 
also requested to ensure that their demat account is active, details of which have been provided to the 
Company or the Registrar to the Issue, to facilitate the aforementioned transfer. 

 
c. Application by Eligible Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form 

 
Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the 
SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be 
made in dematerialized form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in 
physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are advised 
to furnish the details of their demat account to our Company or Registrar at least 2 (Two) Working 
Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their 
respective demat accounts at least 1 (One) day before the Issue Closing Date. 

 
In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold 
Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold 
Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their 
demat account to our Company or Registrar at least 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing 
Date, desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares may also apply in this Issue during the Issue 
Period. Application by such Eligible Equity Shareholders is subject to following conditions: 

 
a. The Eligible Equity Shareholders are residents; 
b. The Eligible Equity Shareholders are not making payment from non-resident account; 
c. The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall not be able to renounce their Rights Entitlements; 

and 
d. The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall receive Rights Equity Shares, in respect of 

their Application, only in demat mode. 
 

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those resident Eligible Equity 
Shareholders, among others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account 
details are not available with our Company or Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow 
account titled as “APPL – Rights Entitlement Unclaimed Suspense Account” opened by our 
Company. 

 
Accordingly, such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders are required to send a communication to our 
Company containing the name(s), Indian address, email address, contact details and the details of their 
demat account along with copy of self- attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their 
demat account either by post, speed post, courier, electronic mail, or hand delivery, to enable process 
of credit of Rights Equity Shares in such demat account. 

 
d. Application for Additional Equity Shares 

 
Investors are eligible to apply for additional Rights Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, 
provided that they are eligible to apply for Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for 
all the Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in 
part. Where the number of additional Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for 
Allotment, the Allotment would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalized in consultation with 
the Designated Stock Exchange. Applications for additional Equity Shares shall be considered and 
Allotment shall be made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner as set out 
in “Basis of Allotment” beginning on page 140 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional 
Equity Shares. Non- resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for 
additional Equity Shares. 

 
Investors are requested to kindly note that after purchasing the Rights Entitlements through Off 
Market Renunciation, an application has to be made for subscribing to the Rights Equity Shares. If no 
such Application is made by the renouncee on or before Issue Closing Date, then such Rights 
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Entitlements will get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date and no Rights 
Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited. For procedure of Application by 
shareholders who have purchased the Right Entitlement through Off Market Renunciation, please refer 
to the heading titled “Procedure for Application through the ASBA process” on page 129 of this 
Draft Letter of   Offer. 

 
Other Important Links and Help Lines 

 
The Investors can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes: 

 
I. Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on 

the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors: www.mdpl.in 
 

II. Updating of Indian address/ e-mail address/ mobile number in the records maintained by the 
Registrar to the Issue or our Company: www.mdpl.in 
 

III. Updating of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical 
form: www.mdpl.in 
 

IV. Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by non-resident 
Eligible Shareholders: www.mdpl.in 
 

e. Renouncees 
 

I. All rights and obligations of the Eligible Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds 
pertaining to this Issue shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well. 

 
f. Authority for the Issue 

 
I. The Issue has been authorized by a resolution of Board of Directors of our Company passed at 

their  meeting held on May 29, 2023 in accordance with the provisions of Section 62 of the  
Companies Act. 
 

II. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 29, 2023 have determined the Issue 
Price at ₹10/- per Equity Share and the Rights Entitlement as 5 Rights Equity Shares for every 
1 fully paid-up Equity Share held on the Record  Date. 
 
The Issue Price has been arrived at in consultation with the Lead Manager. 
 

III. Our Company has received in-principle approval from the CSE in accordance with Regulation 
28 of the SEBI Listing Regulations for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted in the 
Issue pursuant to letter dated [●], [●]. 

 
g. Basis for the issue 

 
I. The Right Shares are being offered for subscription for cash to the Eligible Shareholders 

whose names appear as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in 
respect of our Equity Shares held in dematerialized form and on the register of members of 
our Company in respect of our Equity Shares held in physical form at the close of business 
hours on the Record Date. 

 
h. Rights entitlements 

 
Eligible Shareholders whose names appear as a beneficial owner in respect of the issued and paid-
up Equity Shares held in dematerialized form or appears in the register of members of our Company 
as an Eligible Equity Shareholder in respect of our Equity Shares held in physical form, as on the 
Record Date, you may be entitled to subscribe to the number of Rights Equity Shares as set out in 
the Rights Entitlement Letter. 

 
The Registrar will send/dispatch a Rights Entitlement Letter along with the Abridged Letter of 
Offer and the Application Form to all Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian 
address to our Company and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights 
Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not 
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result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions, which will contain 
details of their Rights Entitlements based on their shareholding as on the Record Date. 

 
Eligible Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the 
Registrar to the Issue’s website at www.mdpl.in by entering their DP-ID and Client-ID or Folio 
Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. 
The link for the same shall also be available on our Company’s website at https://abhaproperty.in/. 

 
Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders 
before the Rights Issue Opening Date only in dematerialized form. If Eligible Equity Shareholders 
holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have not provided the details of their 
demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide their demat account 
details to our Company or the Registrar not later than 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the Rights 
Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat 
suspense escrow account titled as “APPL – Rights Entitlement Unclaimed Suspense Account” to 
their respective  demat accounts, at least 1 (One) day before the Rights Issue Closing Date. Such 
Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form can update the details of their 
respective demat accounts on the Registrar’s website at www.mdpl.in. Such Eligible Equity 
Shareholders can make an application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective 
demat accounts, except in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in 
physical form as on Record Date and (an additional optional facility). 
 
Our Company is undertaking this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Shareholders and will send 
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application 
Form only to email addresses of Eligible Shareholders who have provided their Indian address to 
our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where this Issue and sale of the Rights 
Entitlements or Right Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in and 
may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. 

 
The Letter of Offer will be provided, only through email, by the Registrar on behalf of our 
Company and the Lead Manager to the Eligible Shareholders who have provided their Indian 
addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights 
Entitlement or Right Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does not result in and 
may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request 
in this regard. The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form may also 
be accessed on the websites of the Registrar, our Company, and the Lead Manager through a link 
contained in the aforementioned email sent to email addresses of Eligible Shareholders (provided 
that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Right Shares under applicable 
securities laws) and on the BSE Limited’s website and CSE’s website. The distribution of the Letter 
of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Right Shares on a 
rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements 
prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken to permit this Issue in any 
jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Draft Letter of Offer 
filed with CSE and the Letter of Offer to be filed with SEBI, BSE and the CSE. Accordingly, the 
Rights Entitlements and Right Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter 
of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement   Letter, the Application Form or any 
Issue related materials or advertisements in connection with this Issue may not be distributed, in any 
jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of 
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application 
Form (including by way of electronic means) will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in 
which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, the Letter of Offer, the 
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form must be treated as 
sent for information only and should not be acted upon for making an Application and should not 
be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Letter of Offer, the 
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, or the Application Form should not, in 
connection with the issue of the Right Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the 
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form 
in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would, or might, contravene local securities laws or 
regulations. If the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the 
Application Forms received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, 
they must not seek to make an application or acquire the Rights Entitlements referred to in the 
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form. 
Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements or makes and Application will be deemed to have 
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declared, warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged 
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, that it is entitled to 
subscribe for the Right Shares under the laws of any jurisdiction which apply to such person. Further, 
our Company along with the Lead Manager will undertake all adequate steps to reach out the 
Eligible Equity Shareholders by other means if feasible. 

 
i. Principal Terms of This Issue. 

 
1. Face Value 

 
Each Right Shares will be having face value of ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. 

 
2. Issue Price 

 
Each Rights Equity Share is being offered at a price of ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) per Rights Share 
and shall be payable by the Eligible Shareholders while making an Application for this Issue. 

 
The Issue Price for Rights Equity Shares has been decided by our Company in consultation with 
the Lead Manager. 

 
3. Rights Entitlements Ratio 

 
The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders 
in the ratio of 5 (Five) Rights Shares for every 1 (One) fully paid-up Equity Share held by the 
Eligible Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date. 

 
4. Mode of Payment of Dividend. 

 
In the event of declaration of dividend, our Company shall pay dividend to the shareholders of 
our Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act and the provisions of the Articles of 
Association. 

 
5. Terms of Payment 

 
Each Rights Equity Share is being offered at a price of ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) per Rights Share. 
On Application, Investors will have to pay the Issue Price of ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) per Right 
Share aggregating to Rs.50/- (Rupees Fifty Only) for 5 (Five) Rights Share for every 1 (One) 
Equity Share held. Where an Applicant has applied for additional Right Shares and is allotted a 
lesser number of Right Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall 
be refunded /unblocked. The un-blocking of ASBA funds / refund of monies shall be completed be 
within such period as prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a 
delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed under applicable law, our Company 
shall pay the requisite interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable law. 

 
6. Separate ISIN for Right Shares 

 
In addition to the present ISIN “INE964E01011” for the existing Equity Shares, our Company 
would obtain a separate ISIN “[●]” for the Right Shares. The ISIN “[●]” representing the Right 
Shares will be terminated on payment of the Application Money in respect of the Right Shares and 
merged with the existing  ISIN “INE964E01011” of our Equity Shares. 
 

7. Renunciation of Rights Entitlements 
 

This Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Shareholders to renounce the Rights 
Entitlements credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part. 

 
The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice 
versa shall be subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines 
issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation 
shall not be available to or operate in favour of an Eligible Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB 
unless the same is in compliance with the FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or 
guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. 
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The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed on the CSE. Since the trading platform 
of the CSE is not functional, the Applicants shall not be able to deal in the Rights Entitlements 
using the secondary market platform of the CSE. The Investors may renounce the Rights 
Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts, either in full or in part through an off-
market transfer, during the Renunciation Period. Such renunciation shall result in renouncement 
of the Right Shares. The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can 
be made by sale of such Rights Entitlements through an off-market transfer. 

 
In accordance with SEBI Right Issue circulars the Eligible Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares 
in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account 
to the Registrar or our Company at least 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, 
will not be able to renounce their Rights Entitlements. 

 
8. Process of Credit of Rights Entitlements in dematerialized account 

 
In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI - Rights 
Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be 
made in dematerialized form only. 

 
Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to: (i) The 
demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialized 
form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account titled as “APPL – Rights Entitlement 
Unclaimed Suspense Account” opened by our Company, for the Eligible Shareholders which 
would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to: (a) Equity Shares held in a demat   suspense 
account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in 
the account of IEPF authority; or (c) The demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder 
which are frozen or suspended for debit or credit or details of which are unavailable with our 
Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity 
Shareholders holding Equity Shares in the physical form on [●]day, [●],[●], being the Record Date 
the details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or 
Registrar; or (e) Credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (f) The ownership 
of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings. 

 
In this regard, our Company has made necessary arrangements with NSDL and CDSL for the 
crediting of the Rights Entitlements to the demat accounts of the Eligible Shareholders in a 
dematerialized form. A separate ISIN for the Rights Entitlements has also been generated which 
is [●]. The said ISIN shall remain frozen (for debit) till the Issue Opening Date and shall become 
active on the Issue Opening Date and remain active for renunciation or transfer during the 
Renunciation Period. It is clarified that the Rights Entitlements shall not be available for transfer 
or trading post the Renunciation Period. The said ISIN shall be suspended for transfer by the 
Depositories post the Issue Closing Date. 

 
Eligible Shareholders whose Rights Entitlement are credited in demat suspense account are 
requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and client master sheet 
of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their 
respective Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar not later than [●]day, [●],[●], being 2 
(Two) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., [●]day, [●],[●]  to enable the credit of 
their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their 
demat account at least 1 (One) day before the Issue Closing Date, to enable such Eligible 
Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall serve as an 
intimation to such Eligible Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Shareholders are also 
requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been provided to the 
Company or the Registrar account is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer. Eligible 
Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form can update the details of their demat 
accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e., www.mdpl.in). Such Eligible Equity Shareholders 
can make an application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective demat 
accounts. 

 
Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to the 
demat accounts of the Eligible Shareholders and the demat suspense escrow account to the Stock 
Exchanges after completing the corporate action. The details of the Rights Entitlements with 
respect to each Eligible Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible Shareholders on 
the website of the Registrar after keying in their respective details along with other security 
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control measures implemented thereat. 
 

PLEASE NOTE THAT CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS IN THE DEMAT 
ACCOUNT DOES NOT, PER SE, ENTITLE THE INVESTORS TO THE RIGHTS 
EQUITY SHARES AND THE INVESTORS HAVE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION FOR 
THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ON OR BEFORE THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE AND 
MAKE PAYMENT OF THE APPLICATION MONEY. FOR DETAILS, PLEASE REFER 
TO THE PARAGRAPH TITLED ‘PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION THROUGH THE 
ASBA PROCESS’ ON PAGE NO. 129 OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER. 

 
9. Fractional Entitlements 

 
The Right Shares are being offered on a rights basis to existing Eligible Shareholders in the ratio of 
5 (Five) Rights Shares for every 1 (One) fully paid-up Equity Share held as on the Record Date. As 
per SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the fractional entitlements are to be ignored. 

 
For example, if an Eligible Equity Shareholder holds 1 Equity Shares, such Equity Shareholder 
will be entitled to 5 Rights Equity Shares and will also be given a preferential consideration for the 
Allotment of one additional Rights Equity Share if such Eligible Equity Shareholder has applied 
for additional Right Shares, over and above his/ her Rights Entitlements, subject to availability of 
Right Shares in this Issue post allocation towards Rights Entitlements applied for. 

 
10. Ranking of Equity Shares 

 
The Right Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to this Issue shall be subject to the 
provisions of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the 
Application Form, and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association, the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, FEMA, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of 
India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, the terms of the Listing 
Agreements entered into by our Company with the CSE and the terms and conditions as stipulated 
in the Allotment advice. 

 
The Right Shares being issued and allotted shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum 
of Association and Articles of Association. The Right Shares shall rank pari-passu, in all respects 
including dividend, with our existing Equity Shares. 

 
The voting rights in a poll, whether present in person or by representative or by proxy shall be in 
proportion to the paid-up value of the Shares held, and no voting rights shall be exercisable in 
respect of moneys paid in advance, if any. 

 
11. Trading of the Rights Entitlements 

 
The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed on the CSE. Since the trading platform 
of the CSE is not functional, the Applicants shall not be able to deal in the Rights Entitlements 
using the secondary market platform of the CSE. The Investors may renounce the Rights 
Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts, either in full or in part through an off-
market transfer, during the Renunciation Period. Such renunciation shall result in renouncement 
of the Right Shares. The Investors should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in 
his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation. Investors shall be able to trade their Rights 
Entitlements through Off Market Renunciation. The trades through Off Market Renunciation will 
be settled by transferring the Rights Entitlements through the depository mechanism. 

 
Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company will obtain the approval from the CSE for listing 
and trading approval of Rights Entitlements. The Rights Entitlements shall be tradable in 
dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights Entitlements is one Rights 
Entitlement. Eligible Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market 
transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat 
account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. For details, see “Procedure for 
Renunciation of Rights Entitlements – Off Market Renunciation’ on page no. 130 of this 
Draft Letter of Offer. 
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Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the 
Investors on or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the 
Issue Closing Date. 
 

12. Credit Rating 
 

As this Issue is a rights issue of Rights Equity Shares, there is no requirement of credit rating for 
this Issue. 

 
13. Listing and trading of the Right Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue 

 
Subject to receipt of the listing and trading approvals, the Right Shares proposed to be issued on a 
rights basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on the Stock Exchange. Unless otherwise 
permitted by the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Right Shares Allotted pursuant to this Issue will be 
listed as soon as practicable and all steps for completion of necessary procedures for listing and 
commencement of trading in the Right Shares will be taken within such period prescribed under 
the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Company has received in-principle approval from the CSE 
through letter bearing reference number ‘[●]’ dated [●] day, [●],[●]. Our Company will apply to 
the CSE for final approvals for the listing and trading of the Right Shares subsequent to their 
Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Right 
Shares or the price at which the Right Shares offered under this Issue will trade after the listing 
thereof. 

 
The existing Equity Shares are listed and traded on CSE Bearing Scrip Code ‘011594’ under ISIN 
INE964E01011. The Rights Equity shall be credited to temporary ISIN [●] which will be frozen 
until the receipt of the final listing/ trading approvals from the Stock Exchange. Upon receipt of 
such listing and trading approvals, the Right Shares shall be debited from such temporary ISINs 
and credited to the existing ISIN as fully paid-up equity share of our company. 

 
The listing and trading of the Right Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall be based on the 
current regulatory framework then applicable. Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime 
would affect the listing and trading schedule. In case our Company fails to obtain listing or trading 
permission from the CSE, we shall refund through verifiable means/unblock the respective ASBA 
Accounts, the entire monies received/blocked within 4 (Four) days of receipt of intimation from 
the CSE, rejecting the application for listing of the Right Shares, and if any such money is not 
refunded/ unblocked within 4 (Four) days after our Company becomes liable to repay it, our 
Company and every director of our Company who is an officer -in-default shall, on and from the 
expiry of the eighth day, be jointly and severally liable to repay that money with interest at rates 
prescribed under applicable law. 

 
For further details, kindly refer to the Risk Factor ‘Our Company is currently listed only on the 
CSE, which does not have an active on-line market for trading of these Equity Shares and hence 
no benefit of listing and trading shall be available for the shareholders of the Company’ 
beginning on page no. 21of this Draft Letter of Offer. The procedures for listing and trading of 
Right Shares shall be completed within 7 (Seven) Working Days from the date of finalization of 
the Basis of Allotment. 
 

14. Subscription to this Issue by our Promoter and our Promoter Group 
 
For details of the intent and extent of subscription by our Promoter and the Promoter Group, see 
the paragraph titled ‘Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter 
Group’ under the section titled ‘Capital Structure’ beginning on page no. 39 of this Draft Letter 
of Offer. 

 
15. Rights of holders of Right Shares of our Company 

 
Subject to applicable laws, holders of the Right Shares shall have the following rights: 

 
a. The Right Shares shall rank pari-passu with the existing Equity Shares in all respects; 
b. The right to receive dividend, if declared;` 
c. The right to vote in person, or by proxy, except in case of Right Shares credited to the demat 

suspense account for resident Eligible Shareholders; 
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d. The right to receive surplus on liquidation; 
e. The right to free transferability of Right Shares; 
f. The right to attend general meetings of our Company and exercise voting powers in 

accordance with law; and 
g. Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public Company under the 

Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association. 
 
Subject to applicable law and Articles of Association, holders of Right Shares shall be entitled to the 
above rights in proportion to amount paid-up on such Right Shares in this Issue 

 
General Terms of the Issue 

1) Market Lot 
 

The Right Shares of our Company shall be tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot 
for the Right Shares in dematerialized mode is 1 (One) Equity Share. For further details, kindly 
refer to the Risk Factor ‘Our Company is currently listed only on the CSE, which does not have an 
active on-line market for trading of these Equity Shares and hence no benefit of listing and trading 
shall be available for the shareholders of the Company’ beginning on page no. 21 of this Draft 
Letter of Offer. 

 
2) Minimum Subscription 

 
Pursuant to the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) 
Regulations, 2020, our Company is not required to achieve minimum subscription for the Rights 
Issue on account of the following reason: 

 
 Objects of the issue being other than capital expenditure for a project; and 

 
 Our Promoter and Promoter Group have confirmed that they will subscribe to their right 

entitlement, in part or to full extent and will not renounce rights except to the extent of 
renunciation within the promoter group 

 
The objects of the Rights Issue involve augment our capital base and for increasing our 
operational scale with respect to our NBFC activities i.e., other than the financing of capital 
expenditure for a project. 

 
3) Joint Holders 

 
Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be 
deemed to hold the same as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the 
provisions contained in our Articles of Association. In case of Equity Shares held by joint holders, 
the Application submitted in physical mode to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs would be 
required to be signed by all the joint holders (in the same order as appearing in the records of the 
Depository) to be considered as valid for allotment of Right Shares offered in this Issue. 

 
4) Nomination 

 
Nomination facility is available in respect of the Right Shares in accordance with the provisions of 
the Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and 
Debenture) Rules, 2014. Since the Allotment is in dematerialized form, there is no need to make a 
separate nomination for the Right Shares to be allotted in this Issue. Nominations registered with 
the respective Depository Participants of the Investors would prevail. Any Investor holding Equity 
Shares in dematerialized form and desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to 
inform its Depository Participant. 

 
5) Arrangements for Disposal of Odd Lots 

 
The Right Shares are traded in dematerialized form only and therefore the marketable lot is 1 (One) 
Equity Share and hence no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required. For further details, 
kindly refer to the Risk Factor ‘Our Company is currently listed only on the CSE, which does not 
have an active on-line market for trading of these Equity Shares and hence no benefit of listing 
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and trading shall be available for the shareholders of the Company’ beginning on page no. 21 of 
this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
6) Restrictions on transfer and transmission of shares and on their consolidation/splitting 

 
There are no restrictions on transfer and transmission and on their consolidation/splitting of shares 
issued pursuant to this Issue. However, the Investors should note that pursuant to provisions of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of transmission or 
transposition of securities, the request for transfer of securities shall not be affected unless the 
securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository. 
 

7) Notices 
 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and MCA General 
Circular No. 03/2022, our Company will send the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement 
Letter, Application Form and other issue material only to the Eligible Shareholders who have 
provided an Indian address to our Company and who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and 
sale of the Rights Entitlement or Right Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdiction and does 
not result in and may not be construed as, a public offering in such jurisdictions. In case the 
Eligible Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Issue Materials will be sent 
only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible Shareholders have not provided their e-
mail address, then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian 
addresses provided by them. 
 
The Letter of Offer will be provided by the Registrar to the Issue on behalf of our Company to the 
Eligible Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company and who make a 
request in this regard. In case the Eligible Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, 
the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case the Eligible 
Shareholders have not provided their email address, then the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a 
reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them. 
 
All notices to the Eligible Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in 
one English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation, one Hindi language national 
daily newspaper with wide circulation and one Bengali language daily newspaper with wide 
circulation (Bengali being the regional language of Kolkata where our Registered Office is 
situated). 
 
The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be submitted 
with the CSE and BSE for making the same available on their website. 

 
8) Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Shareholders/Investors 

 
As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, the RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to 
issue Right Shares to non-resident shareholders including additional Right Shares. Further, as per 
the Master Direction on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4, 2018 issued by the RBI, 
non-residents may, amongst other things: 

 
1. Subscribe for additional Rights Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements; 
2. Renounce the Right Shares offered to them either in full or in part thereof in 

favour of a person named by them; or 
3. Apply for the Equity Shares renounced in their favour. 

 
Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of Right Shares shall be, 
amongst other things, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI under 
FEMA in the matter of Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment of Right Shares, 
and issue of Rights Entitlements Letters/ letters of Allotment/Allotment advice. If a non-resident 
or NRI Investor has specific approval from RBI, in connection with his shareholding in our 
Company, such person should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application details and 
send it to the Registrar by email on mdpldc@yahoo.com or physically/postal means at the 
address of the Registrar mentioned on the cover page of this Draft Letter of Offer. It will be the 
sole responsibility of the investors to ensure that the necessary approval from the RBI or the 
governmental authority is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue and the Lead 
Manager and our Company will not be responsible for any such allotments made by relying on 
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such approvals. 
 

The Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and Application Form shall be sent 
to the e-mail address of non-resident Eligible Shareholders who have provided an Indian address 
to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Right Shares is 
permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. Investors can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged 
Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible 
to subscribe for the Right Shares under applicable securities laws) from the websites of the 
Registrar, our Company, the Lead Manager and the Stock Exchange. The Board of Directors may 
at its absolute discretion, agree to such terms and conditions as may be stipulated by the RBI 
while approving the Allotment. The Right Shares purchased by non-residents shall be subject to 
the same conditions including restrictions in regard to the repatriation as are applicable to the 
original Equity Shares against which Right Shares are issued on rights basis. 
 
In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account 
must be opened. Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status 
of the Applicant is liable to be rejected at the sole discretion of our Company and the Lead 
Manager. 
 
Please also note that pursuant to Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003, issued by the RBI, 
Overseas Corporate Bodies (hereinafter referred to as ‘OCBs’) have been derecognized as an 
eligible class of investors and the RBI has subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange 
Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBs)) 
Regulations, 2003. Any Investor being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of 
the RBI and to obtain prior approval from RBI for applying in this Issue. 

 
Procedure for Application How to Apply 

 
In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circular and ASBA 
Circular, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use the 
ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before 
making their Application through ASBA. 
 
The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed on CSE. Since the trading platform of CSE is 
not functional, the Company shall be using the bidding platform of BSE Limited i.e., Internet based-
Book Building Software (iBBS) for the Rights Issue. Hence, Applicants desirous shall use the ASBA 
platform of BSE Limited for applying in the Issue. Please note that the Equity Shares being issued in this 
Rights Issue shall not be listed on BSE Limited. 
 
The Lead Manager, our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective 
directors and officers and the Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, 
omissions and commissions etc. in relation to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded by 
SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded 
without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts. 
 
For details of procedure for application by the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity 
Shares in physical form as on the Record Date, see “Procedure for Application by Eligible Equity 
Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form” on page no. 134 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
Application Form 

 
The Application Form for the Rights Equity Shares offered as part of this Issue would be sent to 
the Eligible Equity Shareholders only to: 
1. E-mail addresses of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their e-mail 

addresses; 
2. Indian addresses of the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, whose 

e-mail addresses are not available with our Company or the Eligible Equity Shareholders have not 
provided the valid email address to our Company; 

3. Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, 
who have provided an Indian address to our Company; and 

4. E-mail addresses of foreign corporate or institutional shareholders. 
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The Application Form along with the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter shall be 
sent through email or physical delivery, as applicable, at least 3 (Three) days before the Issue Opening 
Date. 

 
In case of non-resident Eligible Shareholders, the Application Form along with the Abridged Letter of 
Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter shall be sent through e-mail address if they have provided an 
Indian address to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Right 
Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. 

 
Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar nor the Lead Manager shall be 
responsible for delay in the receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 
Entitlement Letter or the Application Form attributable to non- availability of the e-mail addresses 
of Eligible Shareholders or electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the Application Forms or 
the Rights Entitlement Letters are delayed or misplaced in the transit or there is a delay in physical 
delivery (where applicable). 
 
To update the respective e-mail addresses/ mobile numbers in the records maintained by the Registrar or 
our Company, Eligible Shareholders should visit www.mdpl.in. Investors can access the Letter of Offer, 
the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is 
eligible to subscribe for the Right Shares under applicable securities laws) from the websites of: 

 Our Company at https://abhaproperty.in/; 
 The Registrar at www.mdpl.in; 

 The Lead Manager at www.intelligentgroup.org.in/;  

 The Designated Stock Exchange at www.cse-india.com; 

 BSE Limited’s website at www.bseindia.com;  
 

The Eligible Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website 
of the Registrar at www.mdpl.in by entering their DP-ID and Client-ID or Folio Number (in case of 
resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the 
same shall also be available on the website of our Company at  https://abhaproperty.in/. 
 
The Application Form can be used by the Eligible Shareholders as well as the Renouncees, to make 
Applications in this Issue on the basis of the Rights Entitlements credited in their respective demat 
accounts or demat suspense escrow account, as applicable. Please note that one single Application Form 
shall be used by the Investors to make Applications for all Rights Entitlements available in a particular 
demat account or entire respective portion of the Rights Entitlements in the demat suspense escrow 
account in case of resident Eligible Shareholders holding shares in physical form as on Record Date and 
applying in this Issue, as applicable. 

 
In case of Investors who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations, such Investors will have to apply for the Right Shares from the same demat account in 
which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are 
required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat account. 

 
Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Right Shares by: 

 
I. Submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic 

Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such 
SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts, 
or 

 
II. Please note that Applications made with payment using third party bank accounts are liable to be 

rejected. Investors are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating 
therein: 

 
III. The ASBA Account (in case of Application through ASBA process) in which an amount 

equivalent to the amount payable on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked 
by the SCSB; or 
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Please note that Applications without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete and 
shall be rejected. 
 

Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and 
PAN number in the Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic 
Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Incorrect 
depository account details or PAN number could lead to rejection of the Application. For details 
see “Grounds for Technical Rejection” on page no. 137 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our 
Company, the Lead Manager, the Registrar and the SCSB shall not be liable for any incorrect 
demat details provided by the Applicants. 
 

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors may choose to accept 
the offer to participate in this Issue by making an application that is available on the website of the 
Registrar, BSE, CSE and Lead Manager or on a plain paper with the same details as per the Application 
Form available online. Please note that Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application in this Issue 
by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted to renounce any portion of their Rights 
Entitlements. For details, see “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 131 of this 
Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
Options Available To The Eligible Shareholders 

 
The Rights Entitlement Letter will clearly indicate the number of Right Shares that the Eligible 
Equity Shareholder is entitled to. If the Eligible Equity Shareholder applies in this Issue, then such 
Eligible Equity Shareholder can: 
I. Apply for its Right Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements; or 

II. Apply for its Right Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements (without renouncing the 
other part); or 

III. Apply for Right Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements and renounce the other 
part of its Rights Entitlements; or 

IV. Apply for its Right Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements and apply for additional 
Right Shares; or 

V. Renounce its Rights Entitlements in full. 
 

Procedure For Application Through the ASBA Process 
 

The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed on the CSE. Since the trading platform of the CSE 
is not functional, the Company shall be using the bidding platform of BSE Limited i.e., Internet based-
Book Building Software (iBBS) for the Rights Issue. Hence, Applicants desirous shall use the ASBA 
platform of BSE Limited for applying in the Issue. Please note that the Equity Shares being issued in the 
Issue shall not be listed on BSE Limited. 
 
An investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA 
enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. Investors desiring to make an 
Application in this Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Application Form to the Designated 
Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available 
by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their 
respective ASBA Accounts. 
 
Investors should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form, or have otherwise 
provided an authorization to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account 
equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the Application Form, as the case may be, at the time 
of submission of the Application. 

 
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks 

 
Self-certified syndicate banks registered with SEBI, which acts as a banker to the Issue and which offers 
the facility of ASBA. A list of all SCSBs is available at 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34 or 
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId =35, as 
applicable, or such other website as updated from time to time, and (ii) in relation to ASBA (through UPI 
mechanism), a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at 
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=40 or such other 
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website as updated from time to time For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the 
Application Form, please refer the above- mentioned link. 

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular bearing reference 
number ‘CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012’ dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA 
Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs, in case of Applications made 
through ASBA facility. 

 
Acceptance of This Issue 

 
Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Right Shares by submitting the Application Form to the 
Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if 
made Available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the 
Application in their respective ASBA Accounts, or 

 
Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 
5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the BSE Limited. 

 
Applications submitted to anyone other than the Designated Branches of the SCSB are liable to be 
rejected. 

 
Investors can also make Application on plain paper under ASBA process mentioning all necessary 
details as mentioned under the section “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process” on page 131 
of this Draft Letter of Offer. 
 
Additional Right Shares 

Investors are eligible to apply for additional Rights Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, 
provided that they are eligible to apply for Rights Equity Shares under applicable law and they have 
applied for all the Rights Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing 
them in whole or in part. The Rights Entitlements comprise of 1 Rights Equity Share. Where the number 
of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for Allotment, the Allotment 
would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalized in consultation with the Designated Stock 
Exchange. Applications for additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment shall be 
made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner prescribed under the section 
“Basis of Allotment” on page 140 of this Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional 
Rights Equity Shares. 

 
Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for additional Rights 
Equity Shares. 

 
Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date 
cannot renounce until the details of their demat account are provided to our Company or the Registrar and 
the dematerialized Rights Entitlements are transferred from suspense escrow demat account to the 
respective demat accounts of such Eligible Equity Shareholders within prescribed timelines. However, 
Such Eligible Equity Shareholders, where the dematerialized Rights Entitlements are transferred from the 
suspense escrow demat account to the respective demat accounts within prescribed timelines; can apply for 
additional Rights Equity Shares while submitting the Application through ASBA process. 

 
Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements 

 
The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed on the CSE. Since the trading platform of the CSE 
is not functional, the Applicants shall not be able to deal in the Rights Entitlements using the secondary 
market platform of the CSE. The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their 
respective demat accounts, either in full or in part through an off-market transfer, during the Renunciation 
Period. Such renunciation shall result in renouncement of the Right Shares. The Investors should have the 
demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation. The 
Rights Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialized form only. Eligible Shareholders are requested 
to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights 
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 
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The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will have 
to do so through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the ISIN [●] 
(for Rights Entitlement) that shall be allotted for the Rights Entitlement, the details of the buyer and the 
details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to transfer. The buyer of the Rights Entitlements (unless 
already having given a standing receipt instruction) must issue a receipt instruction slip to their 
depository participant. 

 
The Investors can transfer Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their 
demat account. The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working 
hours of the depository participants. The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-
market transfer shall be as specified by the Depositories from time to time. 

 
The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa 
shall be subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI 
or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available 
to or operate in favor of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in 
compliance with the FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the 
Ministry of Finance from time to time. 

 
Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of trading 
in the Rights Entitlements. Investors who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should consult their 
tax advisor or stockbroker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses (including 
brokerage) that may be levied for trading in Rights Entitlements. 

 
THE LEAD MANAGER AND OUR COMPANY ACCEPT NO RESPONSIBILITY TO BEAR 
OR PAY ANY COST, APPLICABLE TAXES, CHARGES, AND EXPENSES (INCLUDING 
BROKERAGE), AND SUCH COSTS WILL BE INCURRED SOLELY BY THE INVESTORS. 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS WHICH ARE NEITHER RENOUNCED 
NOR SUBSCRIBED BY THE INVESTORS ON OR BEFORE THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE 
SHALL LAPSE AND SHALL BE EXTINGUISHED AFTER THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE. 
 
Application on Plain Paper Under ASBA Process 
 
An Eligible Equity Shareholder who is eligible to apply under the ASBA process may make an 
application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper. An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain 
paper Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block Application 
Money in the said bank account maintained with the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be 
accepted from any address outside India. 

 
Please note that the Eligible Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall not be 
entitled to renounce their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any 
purpose including renunciation even if it is received subsequently. 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT APPLICATION ON PLAIN PAPER CANNOT BE SUBMITTED 
THROUGH ASBA FACILITY. 

 
The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders, in 
the same order and as per specimen recorded with his bank, must reach the office of the Designated 
Branch of the SCSB before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars: 

 
(i) Name of our Company, being ‘Abha Property Project Limited’; 
(ii) Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same 

order and as per specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository. 
(iii) Registered Folio No./DP and Client ID No.; 
(iv) Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date; 
(v) Allotment option – only dematerialized form; 
(vi) Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to; 
(vii) Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for. 
(viii) Number of additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any; 
(ix) Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for; 
(x) Total amount paid at the rate of ₹10/- (Rupees Ten Only) for Rights Equity Shares 

issued in one Rights Entitlement; 
(xi) Details of the ASBA Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the 
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relevant SCSB; 
(xii)  In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian 

address, details of the NRE/FCNR/NRO Account such as the account number, name, address, 
branch of the SCSB with which the account is maintained and a copy of the RBI approval 
obtained pursuant to Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules; 

(xiii) Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim 
and the officials appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for 
each Eligible Equity Shareholder in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the 
Rights Equity Shares applied for pursuant to this Issue; 

(xiv) Authorization to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the 
Application Money in the ASBA Account; 

(xv)  Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same 
sequence and order as they appear in the records of the SCSB); and 

(xvi) Additionally, all such Applicants are deemed to have accepted the following: 
 

I/ We understand that neither the Rights Entitlement nor the Equity Shares have been, or will be, registered 
under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “US Securities Act”) or any United 
States state securities laws, and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the 
United States or to the territories or possessions thereof (the “United States”) except in a transaction 
exempt from, or not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act. I/ we understand 
the offering to which this application relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an 
offering of any Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States, or as a solicitation 
therein of an offer to buy any of the said Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in the United States. 
Accordingly, I/ we understand that this application should not be forwarded to or transmitted in or to the 
United States at any time. I/ we understand that none of the Company, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or 
any other person acting on behalf of the Company will accept subscriptions from any person, or the agent 
of any person, who appears to be, or who we, the Registrar, the Lead Manager or any other person acting 
on behalf of the Company has reason to believe is in the United States, or if such person is outside India 
and the United States, such person is not a corporate shareholder, or is ineligible to participate in the 
Issue under the securities laws of their jurisdiction. I/ We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of 
the Equity Shares which may be acquired by us in any jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which 
such offer or sale is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or 
invitation except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws or 
regulations. We satisfy, and each account for which we are acting satisfies, all suitability standards for 
investors in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the jurisdiction of our residence. 

 
I/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares may not be reoffered, resold, 
pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S under 
the US Securities Act (hereinafter referred to as ‘Regulation S’), or otherwise pursuant to an exemption 
from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act. I/We (i) 
am/are, and the person, if any, for whose account I/we am/are acquiring such Rights Entitlement, and/or 
the Equity Shares, is/are outside the United States, and (ii) is/are acquiring the Rights Entitlement and/or 
the Equity Shares in an offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation S. 

 
I/ We acknowledge that the Company, the Lead Manager, their affiliates and others will rely upon the 
truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations and agreements. 

 
In cases where multiple Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights 
Entitlements credited to the same demat account or in demat suspense escrow account, including cases 
where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application, such Applications 
shall be liable to be rejected. Investors are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do 
so could result in an Application being rejected, with our Company, the Lead Manager and the Registrar 
not having any liability to the Investor. The plain paper Application format will be available on the 
website of the Registrar at www.mdpl.in. 

 
I/ We acknowledge that Our Company, the Lead Manager and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the 
Applications are not uploaded by SCSB or funds are not blocked in the Investors’ ASBA Accounts on or 
before the Issue Closing Date. 

 
Mode of Payment 

 
All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA. The Registrar will not 
accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA 
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facility or internet banking. 
 

In case of Application through ASBA facility, the Investor agrees to block the entire amount payable on 
Application with the submission of the Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block an amount, 
equivalent to the amount payable on Application, in the Investor’s ASBA Account. 

 
After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account, details of which are provided in 
the Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned 
in the Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer Date, upon receipt of intimation from 
the Registrar, pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of Allotment as approved by the Designated Stock 
Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per the Registrar’s instruction from the ASBA 
Account into the Allotment Account which shall be a separate bank account maintained by our 
Company, other than the bank account referred to in sub-section (3) of Section 40 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The balance amount remaining after the finalization of the Basis of Allotment on the Transfer Date 
shall be unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions issued in this regard by the Registrar to 
the respective SCSB. The Investors would be required to give instructions to the respective SCSBs to 
block the entire amount payable on their application at the time of the submission of the Application 
Form. 

 
The SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of Application Form if the ASBA 
Account, details of which have been provided by the Investor in the Application Form does not have 
sufficient funds equivalent to the amount payable on Application mentioned in the Application Form. 
After the acceptance of the Application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the 
Application on technical grounds as set forth hereinafter. 

 
1)  Mode of  payment for Res ident  Investors  

 
All payments on the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility and Applicants are 
requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. 

 
2)  Mode of  payment for non-resident  Investors  

 
As regards the Application by non-resident Investors, the following conditions shall apply: 

 
Individual non-resident Indian Applicants who are permitted to subscribe to Rights Equity Shares by 
applicable local securities laws can obtain Application Forms on the websites of the Registrar, our 
Company and the Lead Manager; 

 
Note: In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 
Entitlement Letter and the Application Form shall be sent to (i) the Indian addresses of the non-resident 
Eligible Equity Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, who have provided an Indian address to our 
Company; and (ii) the email addresses of the foreign corporate or institutional shareholders. 

The Letter of Offer will be provided by the Registrar on behalf of our Company or the Lead Manager to 
the Eligible Equity Shareholders at (i) the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity 
Shareholders, on a reasonable effort basis, who have provided an Indian address to our Company; 
and (ii) the e-mail addresses of the foreign corporate or institutional shareholders, in each case who 
make a request in this regard. 

(i) Application Forms will not be accepted from non-resident Investors in any jurisdiction where the 
offer or sale of the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may be restricted by applicable 
securities laws; 
 

(ii) Payment by non-residents must be made only through ASBA facility and using permissible accounts 
in accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements prescribed by the RBI; 

 
Notes: 

 
(i) In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from the 

investment in Right Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable according to 
the Income-tax Act; 
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(ii) In case Right Shares are Allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the dividend and sale proceeds of the 

Right Shares cannot be remitted outside India; 
 
(iii) In case of an Application Form received from non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other 

distribution, if any, will be made in accordance with the guidelines and rules prescribed by the RBI 
as applicable at the time of making such Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary approvals; 
 

(iv) Application Forms received from non-residents/ NRIs, or persons of Indian origin residing abroad 
for Allotment of Right Shares shall, amongst other things, be subject to conditions, as may be 
imposed from time to time by RBI under FEMA, in respect of matters including Refund of 
Application Money and Allotment 
 

(v) In the case of NRIs who remit their Application Money from funds held in FCNR/NRE Accounts, 
refunds and other disbursements, if any shall be credited to such account; 
 

(vi) Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Shareholders must submit regulatory approval for 
applying for additional Right Shares; 

 
Application by Eligible Shareholders Holding Equity Shares in Physical Form 

 
Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI 
Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be 
made in dematerialized form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in 
physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares in this Issue are 
advised to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least 2(Two) 
Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their 
respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. 
 
Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, 
among others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not 
available with our Company or the Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened 
by our Company. In the event, the relevant details of the demat accounts of such Eligible Equity 
Shareholders are not received during the Issue Period, then their Rights Entitlements kept in the suspense 
escrow demat account shall lapse. 
 
To update respective email addresses/ mobile numbers in the records maintained by the Registrar or our 
Company, Eligible Equity Shareholders should visit www.mdpl.in. 

 
Procedure for Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form, 

 
Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have 
opened their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following procedure for participating in 
this Issue: 
 
The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send a letter to the Registrar to the Issue containing the name(s), 
address, e-mail address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy of self-
attested PAN and self- attested client master sheet of their demat account either by e-mail, post, speed post, 
courier, or hand delivery so as to reach to the Registrar to the Issue no later than 2 (Two) Working Days 
prior to the Issue Closing Date. 
 

a. The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights 
Entitlements of such Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at least one day 
before the Issue Closing Date; 

b. The Eligible Equity Shareholders can access the Application Form from: 
 Our Company at https://abhaproperty.in/; 
 The Registrar at www.mdpl.in; 
 The Lead Manager at www.intelligentgroup.org.in/; 
 The Stock Exchanges at www.cse-india.com; 
 BSE Limited’s website at www.bseindia.com  

c. Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from 
the website of the Registrar to the Issue www.mdpl.in by entering their DP ID and Client ID or 
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Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) 
and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company  
https://abhaproperty.in/. 

 

The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall, on or before the Issue Closing Date, (i) submit the Application 
Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the 
SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable 
on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. 
 
PLEASE NOTE THAT NON-RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, WHO HOLD 
EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON RECORD DATE AND WHO HAVE NOT 
FURNISHED THE DETAILS OF THEIR RESPECTIVE DEMAT ACCOUNTS TO THE 
REGISTRAR OR OUR COMPANY AT LEAST 2 (TWO) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE 
ISSUE CLOSING DATE, SHALL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO MAKE AN APPLICATION FOR 
RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES AGAINST THEIR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS WITH RESPECT TO 
THE EQUITY SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL FORM. 

 
Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares In Dematerialized Form 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN 
BE ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY 
ACCOUNT IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE 
RECORD DATE. FOR DETAILS, SEE “ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/ UNBLOCKING 
OF ASBA ACCOUNTS” ON PAGE 141 OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER. 

 
General Instructions for Investors 
 

1. Please read this Draft Letter of Offer carefully to understand the Application process and 
applicable settlement process; 

2. Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you; 
3. The Application Form can be used by both the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the 

Renouncees; 
4. Application should be made only through the ASBA facility; 
5. Application should be complete in all respects. The Application Form found incomplete with 

regard to any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in 
conformity with the terms of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 
Entitlement Letter and the Application Form are liable to be rejected. The Application Form 
must be filled in English; 

6. In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning 
all necessary details as mentioned under the section “Application on Plain Paper under ASBA 
process” on page 131 of this Draft Letter of Offer; 

7. In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circular and 
ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily 
required to use either the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions 
applicable to such Applications before making their Application through ASBA; 

8. An Investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have 
an ASBA enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. 

9. Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made 
online/electronic through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for 
authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their 
respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, Applications through 
ASBA process will be uploaded until 5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time 
as permitted by the BSE Limited; 

10.  Applications should not be submitted to the Bankers to the Issue or Escrow Collection Bank 
(assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), our Company or the Registrar or 
the Lead Manager; 

11. In case of Application through ASBA facility, Investors are required to provide necessary details, 
including details of the ASBA Account, authorization to the SCSB to block an amount equal to 
the Application Money in the ASBA Account mentioned in the Application Form; 

12. All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants, 
should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the 
Application. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the 
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residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be 
considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the 
demat accounts for Investors for which PAN details have not been verified shall be “suspended 
for credit” and no Allotment and credit of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be 
made into the accounts of such Investors; 

13. In case of Application through ASBA facility, all payments will be made only by blocking the 
amount in the ASBA Account. Cash payment or payment by cheque or demand draft or pay 
order or NEFT or RTGS or through any other mode is not acceptable for application through 
ASBA process. In case payment is made in contravention of this, the Application will be 
deemed invalid and the Application Money will be refunded and no interest will be paid 
thereon; 

14. For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should be 
either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the 
Constitution of India. Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be 
attested by a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The 
Investors must sign the Application as per the specimen signature recorded with the SCSB; 

15. In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must 
sign the relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen 
signature(s) recorded with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made 
in the first Applicant’s name and all communication will be addressed to the first Applicant; 

16. All communication in connection with Application for the Rights Equity Shares, including any 
change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior 
to the date of Allotment in this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant, folio 
numbers/DP ID and Client ID and Application Form number, as applicable; In case of any 
change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible Equity Shareholders should 
also send the intimation for such change to the respective depository participant, or to our 
Company or the Registrar; 

17. Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular bearing 
reference number ‘CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012 within the periods 
stipulated therein, Applications made through ASBA facility may be submitted at the 
Designated Branches of the SCSBs. Application through ASBA facility in electronic mode will 
only be available with such SCSBs who provide such facility; 

18. In terms of the SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 02, 2013, it is clarified that 
for making applications by banks on their own account using ASBA facility, SCSBs should 
have a separate account in own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account 
shall be used solely for the purpose of making application in public/ rights issues and clear 
demarcated funds should be available in such account for ASBA applications; 

19. Investors are required to ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for by them do 
not exceed the prescribed limits under the applicable law; 

20. An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of the RBI and must 
submit approval from RBI for applying in this Issue; 

Do’s: 

1. Ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application 
number, Investors can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar 
informing about their Rights Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account. Alternatively, 
SCSBs may mention their internal reference number in place of application number; 

2. Except for Application submitted on behalf of the Central or the State Government, residents of 
Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, each Applicant should mention their PAN 
allotted under the Income-tax Act; 

3. Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account 
details and occupation (“Demographic Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects; 

4. Investors should provide correct DP-ID and client-ID/ folio number while submitting the 
Application. Such DPID and Client-ID/ folio number should match the demat account details in 
the records available with Company and/or Registrar, failing which such Application is liable to 
be rejected. Investor will be solely responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided in the 
Application. Our Company, the Lead Manager, SCSBs or the Registrar will not be liable for any 
such rejections. 

Don’ts: 

1. Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to 
your jurisdiction; 

2. Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on 
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this ground; 
3. Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any 

physical Application; 
4. Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order; 
5. Do not submit multiple Applications. 

 
Do’s for Investors applying through ASBA: 

1. Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant and beneficiary account are correct 
and the beneficiary account is activated as the Right Shares will be Allotted in the 
dematerialized form only; 

2. Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details 
of the correct bank account have been provided in the Application; 

3. Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Right Shares (including additional 
Right Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of Right Shares}) available in ASBA 
Account mentioned in the Application Form before submitting the Application to the respective 
Designated Branch of the SCSB; 

4. Ensure that you have authorized the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount 
payable on application mentioned in the Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which 
details are provided in the Application and have signed the same; 

5. Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location 
and the Application is made through that SCSB providing ASBA facility in such location; 

6. Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your 
submission of the Application Form on a plain paper Application; 

7. Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in 
which the beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the Application 
Form is submitted in joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint 
names and such names are in the same sequence in which they appear in the Application Form 
and the Rights Entitlement Letter; 

 
Don’ts for Investors applying through ASBA: 

1. Do not apply if you are not eligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws 
applicable to your jurisdiction; 

2. Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a 
Designated Branch of the SCSB or vice versa; 

3. Do not send your physical Application to the Lead Manager, the Registrar, the Escrow Collection 
Bank (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), a branch of the SCSB which 
is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company; instead submit the same to a 
Designated Branch of the SCSB only; 

4. Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process; 
5. Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order; 
6. Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any 

physical Application; 
 

Grounds for Technical Rejection 

1. DP-ID and Client-ID mentioned in Application not matching with the DP-ID and Client ID 
records available with the Registrar; 

2. Sending an Application to the Lead Manager, Registrar, Escrow Collection Banks (assuming 
that such Escrow Collection Bank is not a SCSB), to a branch of a SCSB which is not a 
Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company; 

3. Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the 
Application Money; 

4. Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form having been 
frozen pursuant to regulatory orders; 

5. Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein; 
6. Submission of more than one Application Forms for Rights Entitlements available in a particular 

demat account; 
7. Multiple Application Forms, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along 

with a plain paper Application; 
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8. Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the 
Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts); 

9. Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except 
Applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the demographic details provided by 
the Depositories; 

10. Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own 
name with any other SCSB; 

11. Application Forms which are not submitted by the Investors within the time periods prescribed 
in the Application Form and this Letter of Offer; 

12. Physical Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Investors; 
13. Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques, and 

money order, postal order or outstation demand drafts; 
14. If an Investor is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any 

interim relief then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe 
to their Rights Entitlements; 

15. Applications which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in, 
electronically transmitted from or dispatched from the United States (other than from persons in 
the United States who are U.S. QIBs) or other jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Right 
Shares is not permitted under laws of such jurisdictions; 
(ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in the Application Form, including to the 
effect that the person submitting and/or renouncing the Application Form is (a) outside India and 
the United States and is a foreign corporate or institutional shareholder eligible to subscribe for 
the Rights Equity Share under the applicable securities laws or (b) a U.S. QIB in the United 
States, and in each case such person is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such 
person in connection with this Issue; or (iii) where either a registered Indian address is not 
provided or where our Company believes acceptance of such Application Form may infringe 
applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot 
any Right Shares in respect of any such Application Form; 

16. Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable 
securities laws; 
Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records available 
with the Registrar; 

17. Applications by a non-resident without the approval from RBI with respect to Rule 7 of the 
FEMA Rules; 

 
DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT AND BANK DETAILS FOR INVESTORS HOLDING SHARES 
IN DEMAT ACCOUNTS AND APPLYING IN THIS ISSUE. IT IS MANDATORY FOR 
ALL THE INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE TO APPLY THROUGH THE 
ASBA PROCESS TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES DEMATERIALISED 
FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN 
WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY THE INVESTOR AS ON THE RECORD 
DATE. ALL INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE SHOULD MENTION THEIR 
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT’S NAME, DP-ID AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT 
NUMBER/ FOLIO NUMBER IN THE APPLICATION FORM. INVESTORS MUST 
ENSURE THAT THE NAME GIVEN IN THE APPLICATION FORM IS EXACTLY THE 
SAME AS THE NAME IN WHICH THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE 
THE APPLICATION FORM IS SUBMITTED IN JOINT NAMES, IT SHOULD BE 
ENSURED THAT THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS ALSO HELD IN THE SAME JOINT 
NAMES AND ARE IN THE SAME SEQUENCE IN WHICH THEY APPEAR IN THE 
APPLICATION FORM OR PLAIN PAPER APPLICATIONS, AS THE CASE MAY BE. 

 
Investors applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the Investors, 
Depository Participant’s name and identification number and beneficiary account number 
provided by them in the Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may 
be, the Registrar will obtain Demographic Details from the Depository. Hence, Investors 
applying under this Issue should carefully fill in their Depository Account details in the 
Application. 
 
These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with such Investors including 
mailing of the letters intimating unblocking of bank account of the respective Investor and/or 
refund. The Demographic Details given by the Investors in the Application Form would not be used 
for any other purposes by the Registrar. Hence, Investors are advised to update their Demographic 
Details as provided to their Depository Participants. 
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By signing the Application Forms, the Investors would be deemed to have authorized the 
Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as 
available on its records. The Allotment advice and the email intimating unblocking of ASBA 
Account or refund (if any) would be emailed to the address of the Investor as per the email 
address provided to our Company or the Registrar or Demographic Details received from the 
Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the 
ASBA Account to the extent Rights Equity Shares are not Allotted to such Investor. Please 
note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our Company, the 
SCSBs, Registrar or the Lead Manager shall be liable to compensate the Investor for any 
losses caused due to any such delay or be liable to pay any interest for such delay. In case no 
corresponding record is available with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the 
Investors (including the order of names of joint holders), (b) the DP ID, and (c) the beneficiary 
account number, then such Application Forms are liable to be rejected. 

 
Multiple Applications 

 
In case where multiple Applications are made in respect the Rights Entitlements using same demat 
account, such Applications shall be liable to be rejected. However supplementary applications in 
relation to further Right Shares with/without using additional Rights Entitlements will not be treated as 
multiple applications. Similarly, a separate Application can be made against Equity Shares held in 
dematerialized form and Equity Shares held in physical form, and such Applications shall not be treated 
as multiple applications. A separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of a mutual 
fund registered with SEBI and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. For 
details, see ‘Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds’ below. Cases where Investor submits 
Application Forms along with plain paper or multiple plain paper Applications for same Rights 
Entitlements shall be treated as multiple applications. 

 
In cases where multiple Application Forms are submitted, such Applications shall be treated as 
multiple applications and are liable to be rejected. 

 
Last Date For Application 

 
The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Application Form or a plain paper Application is 
[●]day, [●],[●]  i.e., Issue Closing Date. The Board of Directors may extend the said date for such 
period as it may determine from time to time, subject to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from the 
Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). 

 
If the Application Form is not submitted with an SCSB, uploaded with BSE Limited and the 
Application Money is not blocked with the SCSB, on or before the Issue Closing Date or such date as 
may be extended by the Board of Directors, the invitation to offer contained in this Letter of Offer shall 
be deemed to have been declined and the Board of Directors shall be at liberty to dispose of the Rights 
Equity Shares hereby offered, as provided under the section, “Basis of Allotment” on page 140 of this 
Draft Letter of Offer. 

 
Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 
5:00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by BSE Limited. 

 
Please ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application 
number, Investors can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar informing 
about their Rights Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account. Alternatively, SCSBs may 
mention their internal reference number in place of application number 

 
Withdrawal Of Application 

 
An Investor who has applied in this Issue may withdraw their application at any time during Issue 
Period by approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Investor, whether 
applying through ASBA facility, may withdraw their application post the Issue Closing Date. 
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Issue schedule 
 

Last date for Credit of Rights Entitlement: [●] 
Issue Opening Date: [●] 
Last date for off market renunciation of rights 
entitlements* 

[●] 

Issue Closing Date: # [●] 
Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about): [●] 
Date of Allotment (on or about): [●] 
Date of Credit (on or about): [●] 
Date of Listing/ Trading (on or about): [●] 

*The Equity Shares of our Company are exclusively listed only on the CSE. Since the trading platform 
of the CSE is not functional, the Applicants shall not be able to deal in the Rights Entitlements using 
the secondary market platform of Limited. The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, 
credited to their respective demat accounts, either in full or in part through an off-market transfer, 
during the Renunciation Period. Such renunciation shall result in renouncement of the Right Shares. 
The Investors should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account 
prior to the renunciation. 

#Eligible Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is 
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the 
Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date. 

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record 
Date, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they 
are required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than 
[●]day, [●],[●], being 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., [●]day, [●],[●], 
to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow 
account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. 

Our Board of Directors may however decide to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time 
to time but not exceeding 30 (Thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue 
Opening Date). 

Basis of Allotment 
 

Subject to the provisions contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 
Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, the Articles of Association and the approval of the Designated 
Stock Exchange, our Board will proceed to allot the Rights Equity Shares in the following order of 
priority: 

 

1. Full Allotment to those Eligible Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlements of 
Right Shares either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has or have applied for Right 
Shares renounced in their favour, in full or in part. 
(a) Eligible Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored and Eligible Shareholders 
with zero entitlement would be given preference in allotment of one additional Rights Equity Share 
each if they apply for additional Right Shares. Allotment under this head shall be considered if there 
are any unsubscribed Right Shares after allotment under above. If number of Right Shares required 
for Allotment under this head are more than the number of Right Shares available after Allotment 
under (a) above, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in consultation with the 
Designated Stock Exchange and will not be a preferential allotment. 

 
(b) Allotment to the Eligible Shareholders who having applied for all the Right Shares offered to 
them as part of this Issue, have also applied for additional Right Shares. The Allotment of such 
additional Right Shares will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to 
the number of Equity Shares held by them on the Record Date, provided there are any unsubscribed 
Right Shares after making full Allotment in (1) and (2) above. The Allotment of such Right Shares 
will be at the sole discretion of our Board in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a 
part of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment. 
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2. Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Right Shares renounced in their favour, 

have applied for additional Right Shares provided there is surplus available after making full 
Allotment under (1), (2) and (3) above. The Allotment of such Right Shares will be made on a 
proportionate basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and 
will not be a preferential allotment. 

 
3. Allotment to any other person, that our Board may deem fit, provided there is surplus available after 

making Allotment under (1), (2), (3) and (4) above, and the decision of our Board in this regard shall 
be final and binding. After taking into account Allotment to be made under (1) to (4) above, if there 
is any unsubscribed portion, the same shall be deemed to be ‘unsubscribed’. 

 
Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send 
to the Controlling Branches, a list of the Investors who have been allocated Rights Equity Shares in 
this Issue, along with: 
1. The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by 

our Company for this Issue, for each successful Application; 
2. The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; 

and. 
3. The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective 

ASBA Accounts. 
 

Further, the list of Applicants eligible for refund with corresponding amount will also be shared with 
Escrow Collection Bank to refund such Applicants. 

 
Allotment Advice or Refund / Unblocking of ASBA Accounts 

 
Our Company will e-mail Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat credit of Rights Equity Shares 
and/or letters of regret, along with crediting the Allotted Rights Equity Shares to the respective 
beneficiary accounts (only in dematerialized mode) or in a demat suspense account or issue instructions 
for unblocking the funds in the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 15 (Fifteen) days 
from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company and the Directors who are 
“officers in default” shall pay interest at 15% (Fifteen Percent) p.a. and such other rate as specified 
under applicable law from the expiry of such 15 (Fifteen) days’ period. 

 
The Rights Entitlements will be credited in the dematerialized form using electronic credit under the 
depository system and the Allotment advice shall be sent, through email, to the email address provided 
to our Company or at the address recorded with the Depository. 

 
In the case of non-resident Investors who remit their Application Money from funds held in the NRE or 
the FCNR Accounts, refunds and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if any, 
shall be credited to such accounts. 

 
Where an Applicant has applied for additional Equity Shares in the Issue and is allotted a lesser number 
of Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be refunded 
/unblocked. The unblocking of ASBA funds / refund of monies shall be completed be within such 
period as prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making 
refunds beyond such period as prescribed under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite 
interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable law. 

 
Credit And Transfer Of Rights Equity Shares In Case Of Shareholders Holding Equity Shares 
In Physical Form And Disposal Of Rights Equity Shares For Non-receipt Of Demat Account 
Details In A Timely Manner. 

 
In case of Allotment to resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form 
as on Record Date, have paid the Application Money and have not provided the details of their demat 
account to the Registrar or our Company at least 2 (Two) Working Days prior to the Issue Closing 
Date, the following procedure shall be adhered to: 

 
a. The Registrar shall send Allotment advice and credit the Rights Equity Shares to a demat 

suspense account to be open by our Company; 
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b. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be required to send a communication to our Company or 
the Registrar containing the name(s), Indian address, email address, contact details and the details 
of their demat account along with copy of self-attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of 
their demat account either by post, speed post, courier, electronic mail or hand delivery; 

 
c. Our Company (with the assistance of the Registrar) shall, after verification of the details of such 

demat account by the Registrar, transfer the Rights Equity Shares from the demat suspense 
account to the demat accounts of such Eligible Equity Shareholders; 

 
d. Our Company shall send reminder notices seeking the requisite details of demat account, in due 

course, to such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who have not provided the requisite details; 
and 

 
e. In case the details of demat account provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders are not of his/ 

her own demat account, the Rights Equity Shares shall remain in the demat suspense account. 
 

Notes: 
 

1. Our Company will open a separate demat suspense account to credit the Rights Equity Shares in 
respect of such Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on 
Record Date and have not provided details of their demat accounts to our Company or the 
Registrar, at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date. Our Company, with the 
assistance of the Registrar, will initiate transfer of such Rights Equity Shares from the demat 
suspense account to the demat account of such Eligible Equity Shareholders, upon receipt of 
details of demat accounts from the Eligible Equity Shareholders. 

 
2. The Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot trade in such Rights Equity Shares until the receipt of 

demat account details and transfer to such Eligible Equity Shareholders’ respective account. 
 

3. There will be no voting rights against such Rights Equity Shares kept in the demat suspense 
account. However, the respective Eligible Equity Shareholders will be eligible to receive 
dividends, if declared, in respect of such Rights Equity Shares in proportion to amount paid-up on 
the Rights Equity Shares, as permitted under applicable laws. 

 
4. Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of 

buying or selling of Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements. The Eligible Equity 
Shareholders should obtain their own independent tax and legal advice and may not rely on our 
Company or any of their affiliates including any of their respective shareholders, directors, 
officers, employees, counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates when evaluating the tax 
consequences in relation to the Rights Equity Shares (including but not limited to any applicable 
short-term capital gains tax, or any other applicable taxes or charges in case of any gains made by 
such Eligible Equity Shareholders from the sale of such Rights Equity Shares). 

 
5. The Lead Manager, our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their 

respective directors and officers and the Registrar shall not be liable in any manner and not be 
responsible for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions, etc., in relation to any delay in 
furnishing details of demat account by such Eligible Equity Shareholders, any resultant loss to the 
Eligible Equity Shareholders due to sale of the Rights Equity Shares, if such details are not 
correct, demat account is frozen or not active or in case of non-availability of details of bank 
account of such Eligible Equity Shareholders, profit or loss to such Eligible Equity Shareholders 
due to aforesaid process, tax deductions or other costs charged by our Company, or on account of 
aforesaid process in any manner. 

 
Payment of Refund 
 
Mode of making refunds 

The payment of refund, if any will including the event of oversubscription or failure to list or 
otherwise would be done through any of the following modes. 

 
1. Unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility. 

 
2. National Automated Clearing House (hereinafter referred to as ‘NACH’) – National Automated 
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Clearing House is a consolidated system of electronic clearing service. Payment of refund would 
be done through NACH for Applicants having an account at one of the centres specified by the 
RBI, where such facility has been made available. This would be subject to availability of 
complete bank account details including MICR code wherever applicable from the depository. 
The payment of refund through NACH is mandatory for Applicants having a bank account at any 
of the centres where NACH facility has been made available by the RBI (subject to availability 
of all information for crediting the refund through NACH including the MICR code as 
appearing on a cheque leaf, from the depositories), except where Applicant is otherwise 
disclosed as eligible to get refunds through NEFT or Direct Credit or RTGS. 

 
3. National Electronic Fund Transfer (hereinafter referred to as ‘NEFT’) – Payment of refund shall 

be undertaken through NEFT wherever the Investors’ bank has been assigned the Indian 
Financial System Code (hereinafter referred to as ‘IFSC Code’), which can be linked to a 
MICR, allotted to that particular bank branch. IFSC Code will be obtained from the website of 
RBI as on a date immediately prior to the date of payment of refund, duly mapped with MICR 
number Wherever the Investors have registered their nine-digit MICR number and their bank 
account number with the Registrar to our Company or with the Depository Participant while 
opening and operating the demat account, the same will be duly mapped with the IFSC Code of 
that particular bank branch and the payment of refund will be made to the Investors through this 
method. 

 
4. Direct Credit – Investors having bank accounts with the Bankers to the Issue shall be eligible to 

receive refunds through direct credit. Charges, if any, levied by the relevant bank(s) for the same 
would be borne by our Company. 

 
5. RTGS – If the refund amount exceeds ₹2,00,000/- the Investors have the option to receive 

refund through RTGS. Such eligible Investors who indicate their preference to receive refund 
through RTGS are required to provide the IFSC Code in the Application Form. In the event the 
same is not provided, refund shall be made through NACH or any other eligible mode. Charges, 
if any, levied by the refund bank(s) for the same would be borne by our Company. Charges, if 
any, levied by the Investor’s bank receiving the credit would be borne by the Investor. 

 
6. For all other Investors, the refund orders will be dispatched through speed post or registered 

post subject to applicable laws. Such refunds will be made by cheques, pay orders or demand 
drafts drawn in favor of the sole/first Investor and payable at par. 

 
7. Credit of refunds to Investors in any other electronic manner, permissible by SEBI from time to 

time. 
 

Refund payment to non-residents 
 

The Application Money will be unblocked in the ASBA Account of the non-resident Applicants, details 
of which were provided in the Application Form. 

 
Allotment Advice or Demat Credit of Shares 

 
The demat credit of Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts or the demat suspense account 
(pending receipt of demat account details for Eligible Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical 
form/ with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.) will be credited within 15 days from the Issue Closing Date 
or such other timeline in accordance with applicable laws. 

 
Receipt of the Right Shares in Dematerialized Form 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHT SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CAN BE 
ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO 

 
1. THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY 

SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE, OR 
 

2. THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT, DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO OUR 
COMPANYOR THE REGISTRAR AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE 
CLOSING DATE BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES 
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IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON THE RECORD DATE, OR 

3. DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT PENDING RECEIPT OF DEMAT ACCOUNT DETAILS FOR 
RESIDENT ELIGIBLE SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL 
FORM / WHERE THE CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS 
RETURNED/REVERSED/FAILED. 

 
Investors shall be allotted the Right Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form. 

 
Investors May Please Note That the Right Shares Can Be Traded on The CSE Only In 
Dematerialized Form. 

 
The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Right Shares in this Issue in the dematerialized 
form is as under. 

 
1. Open a beneficiary account with any depository participant (care should be taken that the 

beneficiary account should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in the 
records of our Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be opened 
carrying the names of the holders in the same order as registered in the records of our Company). In 
case of Investors having various folios in our Company with different joint holders, the Investors 
will have to open separate accounts for such holdings. Those Investors who have already opened 
such beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step. 

 
2. It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Investors and the names are 

in the same order as in the records of our Company or the Depositories. 
 

3. The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-a-vis such 
information with the Investor’s depository participant would rest with the Investor. Investors should 
ensure that the names of the Investors and the order in which they appear in Application Form should 
be the same as registered with the Investor’s depository participant. 

 
4. If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application Form, the 

Investor will not get any Right Shares and the Application Form will be rejected. 
 

5. The Right Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be directly 
credited to the beneficiary account as given in the Application Form after verification or demat 
suspense account (pending receipt of demat account details for resident Eligible Shareholders 
holding Equity Shares in physical form/ with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.). Allotment advice, 
refund order (if any) would be sent directly to the Applicant by email and, if the printing is feasible, 
through physical dispatch, by the Registrar but the Applicant’s depository participant will provide to 
him the confirmation of the credit of such Right Shares to the Applicant’s depository account. 

 
6. Non-transferable Allotment advice/ refund intimation will be directly sent to the Investors by the 

Registrar, by email and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch.’ 
 

7. Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for 
Allotment of Right Shares in this Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the 
Application is liable to be rejected. 

 
Procedure for Application by Certain Categories of Investors 

 
1. Procedure for Applications by FPIs 

 
In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the Equity 
Shares is subject to certain limits, i.e., the individual holding of an FPI (including its investor group 
(which means multiple entities registered as foreign portfolio investors and directly and indirectly 
having common ownership of more than 50% of common control)) shall be below 10% of our post -
Offer Equity Share capital. In case the total holding of an FPI or investor group increases beyond 
10% of the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company, on a fully diluted basis or 10% or more 
of the paid-up value of any series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants that may be 
issued by our Company, the total investment made by the FPI or investor group will be re-classified 
as FDI subject to the conditions as specified by SEBI and the RBI in this regard and our Company 
and the investor will also be required to comply with applicable reporting requirements. Further, the 
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aggregate limit of all FPIs investments, with effect from April 1, 2020, is up to the sectoral cap 
applicable to the sector in which our Company operates. 

 
FPIs are permitted to participate in this Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions 
which may be specified by the Government from time to time. The FPIs who wish to participate in 
the Offer are advised to use the Application Form for non-residents. Subject to compliance with all 
applicable Indian laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the 
SEBI FPI Regulations, an FPI may issue, subscribe to or otherwise deal in offshore derivative 
instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations as any instrument, by whatever name called, 
which is issued overseas by an FPI against Shares held by it that are listed or proposed to be 
listed on any recognized stock exchange in India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the 
event (i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons registered as Category I FPI 
under the SEBI FPI Regulations; (ii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons 
who are eligible for registration as Category I FPIs (where an entity has an investment manager who 
is from the Financial Action Task Force member country, the investment manager shall not be required 
to be registered as a Category I FPI); (iii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued after 
compliance with ‘know your client’ norms; and (iv) compliance with other conditions as may be 
prescribed by SEBI. 

 
An FPI issuing offshore derivative instruments is also required to ensure that any transfer of offshore 
derivative instruments issued by or on its behalf, is carried out subject to inter alia the following 
conditions: (a) such offshore derivative instruments are transferred only to persons in accordance with 
the SEBI FPI Regulations; and (b) prior consent of the FPI is obtained for such transfer, except when 
the persons to whom the offshore derivative instruments are to be transferred to are pre – approved by 
the FPI. 

 
2. Procedure for Applications by AIFs, FVCIs and VCFs 

 
The SEBI VCF Regulations and the SEBI FVCI Regulations prescribe, among other things, the 
investment restrictions on VCFs and FVCIs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI AIF Regulations 
prescribe, among other things, the investment restrictions on AIFs. 

 
As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCIs are not permitted 
to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVCIs 
will not be accepted in this Issue. Venture capital funds registered as Category I AIFs, as defined in 
the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. 
Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds registered as category I AIFs, as defined in the 
SEBI AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of AIFs are permitted to 
apply in this Issue subject to compliance with the SEBI AIF Regulations. Such AIFs having bank 
accounts with SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centres where such AIFs are located are 
mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AIFs are 
liable for rejection. 

 
3. Procedure for Applications by NRIs 

 
Investments by NRIs are governed by the FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs 
that are ineligible to participate in this Issue under applicable securities laws. 

 
As per the FEMA Rules, an NRI or Overseas Citizen of India (“OCI”) may purchase or sell capital 
instruments of a listed Indian Company on repatriation basis, on a recognized stock exchange in 
India, subject to the conditions, inter alia, that the total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not 
exceed 5% of the total paid - up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or should not exceed 5% of the 
paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian 
Company and the total holdings of all NRIs and OCIs put together will not exceed 10% of the total 
paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or shall not exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each 
series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 10% may be 
raised to 24%, if a special resolution to that effect is passed by the general body of the Indian 
company. 

 
Further, in accordance with press note 3 of 2020, the FDI Policy has been recently amended to state 
that all investments by entities incorporated in a country which shares land border with India or where 
the beneficial owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such country 
(“Restricted Investors”), will require prior approval of the Government of India. It is not clear from 
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the press note whether or not an issuance of the Right Shares to Restricted Investors will also require 
a prior approval of the Government of India and each Investor should seek independent legal advice 
about its ability to participate in the Issue. In the event such prior approval of the Government of India 
is required and such approval has been obtained, the Investor shall intimate our Company and the 
Registrar about such approval within the Issue Period. 

 
4. Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds 

 
A separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund registered 
with SEBI and such applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. The applications made 
by asset management companies or custodians of a mutual fund should clearly indicate the name of 
the concerned scheme for which the application is being made. 

 
5. Procedure for Applications by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies 

(“NBFC-SI”) 
 
In case of an application made by NBFC-SI registered with the RBI, (a) the certificate of registration 
issued by the RBI under Section 45IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net-worth certificate from its 
statutory auditors or any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial 
statements is required to be attached to the application. 

 
Impersonation 

 
As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the Investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of 
Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below: 

 
“Any person who makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a Company for 
acquiring, or subscribing for, its Shares; or makes or abets making of multiple applications to a 
Company in different names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or 
subscribing for its Shares; or otherwise induces directly or indirectly a Company to allot, or register 
any transfer of, Shares to him, or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action 
under Section 447.” 

 
The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act for fraud involving an amount of at 
least ₹10 lakhs or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a 
term of not less than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public 
interest, such term shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount 
involved in the fraud, extending up to three times of such amount. 

 
In case the fraud involves (i) an amount which is less than ₹10 lakhs or 1% of the turnover of the 
company, whichever is lower; and (ii) does not involve public interest, then such fraud is punishable with 
an imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or a fine of an amount extending up to ₹50 lakhs or 
with both. 

 
Payment by Stock invest 

 
In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock 
invest scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this 
Rights Issue. 

 
Disposal of Application and Application Money 

 
No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the 
Designated Branch of the SCSBs receiving the Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by 
stamping and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each Application Form upon 
submission of the Application. 

 
Our Board of Directors of the Company reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject 
any Application, in whole or in part, and in either case without assigning any reason thereto. In cases 
where refunds are applicable, such refunds shall be made within a period of 15 days. In case of failure to do 
so, our Company and the Directors who are “officers in default” shall pay interest at the prescribed rate. 
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In case an application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the 
respective ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an application is rejected 
in part, the balance of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Rights Equity Shares 
Allotted, will be refunded / unblocked in the respective bank accounts from which Application Money 
was received / ASBA Accounts of the Investor within a period of 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. In 
case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified 
under applicable law. 

 
For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully. 

 
Undertakings by Our Company 

 
Our Company undertakes the following: 

 
a. The complaints received in respect of this Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously 

and satisfactorily. 
 

b. All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at CSE 
where the Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken by our Board within seven Working Days of 
finalization of Basis of Allotment. 

 
c. The funds required for making refunds / unblocking to unsuccessful Applicants as per the mode(s) 

disclosed shall be made available to the Registrar by our Company. 
 

d. Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be 
sent to the Shareholders within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where 
refunds shall be credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund. 

 
e. In case of refund / unblocking of the Application Money for unsuccessful Applicants or part of the 

Application Money in case of proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the 
Applicants. 

 
f. Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications. 

 
g. Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time 

to time. 
 
Utilization of Issue Proceeds 
 
Our Board declares that: 
 
a. All monies received out of issue of this Right Equity Issue to the public shall be transferred to a separate 

bank account. 
 
b. Details of all monies utilized out of this Right Issue referred to in clause (A) above shall be disclosed under 

an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such 
monies had been utilized; and 

 
c. Details of all unutilized monies out of this Right Issue referred to in clause (A) above, if any, shall be 

disclosed under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in 
which such unutilized monies have been invested. 

 
Important 
 
1. Please read this Draft Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the 

Application Form,  Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the 
conditions of this Draft Letter of Offer  and must be carefully followed; otherwise the Application is liable 
to be rejected. 

 
2. All enquiries in connection with this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights 

Entitlement Letter or Application Form must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number or the DP 
ID and Client ID number, the Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity 
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Shareholder as mentioned on the Application Form and super scribed ‘ABHA PROPERTY PROJECT 
LIMITED – RIGHT ISSUE’ on the envelope and postmarked in India or in the email) to the Registrar at 
the following address: 

 
MAHESHWARI DATAMATICS PRIVATE LIMITED 
SEBI Registration Number: INR000000353 
Address: 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata- 700001 
E-mail ID: mdpldc@yahoo.com 
Website: www.mdpl.in 
Contact Person: Mr. Ravi Kumar Bahl 
 

3. In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic 
dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by 
the Investors will be available on the website of the Registrar: mdpldc@yahoo.com. Further, helpline 
numbers provided by the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties are 
(Tel: 033 2248 2248). 

 
4. This Issue will remain open for a minimum 15 (Fifteen) days. However, the Board of Directors will have 

the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 (Thirty) 
days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing Date). 

 

RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES 

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of 
India and FEMA. While the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of India, prescribes the limits and the 
conditions subject to which foreign investment can be made in different sectors of the Indian economy, FEMA 
regulates the precise manner in which such investment may be made. The Union Cabinet, as provided in the 
Cabinet Press Release dated May 24, 2017, has given its approval for phasing out the FIPB. Under the 
Industrial Policy, 1991, unless specifically restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in all sectors of the 
Indian economy up to any extent and without any prior approvals, but the foreign investor is required to follow 
certain prescribed procedures for making such investment. Accordingly, the process for foreign direct 
investment ("FDI") and approval from the Government of India will now be handled by the concerned 
ministries or departments, in consultation with the Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, 
Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India (formerly known as the Department of Industrial 
Policy and Promotion) ("DPIIT"), Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs, FIPB section, 
through a memorandum dated June 5, 2017, has notified the specific ministries handling relevant sectors. 

The Government has, from time to time, made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press 
releases. The DPIIT issued the Consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2020 ("FDI Circular 2020"), which, with 
effect from October 15, 2020, consolidated and superseded all previous press notes, press releases and 
clarifications on FDI issued by the DPIIT that were in force and effect as on October 15, 2020. The 
Government proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI policy once every year and therefore, FDI 
Circular 2020 will be valid until the DPIIT issues an updated circular. 

The Government of India has from time to time made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and 
press releases which are notified by RBI as amendments to FEMA. In case of any conflict, the relevant 
notification under Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 will prevail. The 
payment of inward remittance and reporting requirements are stipulated under the Foreign Exchange 
Management (Mode of Payment and Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 issued by RBI 
The FDI Circular 2020, issued by the DPIIT, consolidates the policy framework in place as on October 15, 
2020, and supersedes all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI issued by the DPIIT that 
were in force and effect as on October 15, 2020. 

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not require the prior approval of 
RBI, provided that (i) the activities of the investee company falls under the automatic route as provided in the 
FDI Policy and FEMA and transfer does not attract the provisions of the Takeover Regulations; (ii) the non- 
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resident shareholding is within the sectorial limits under the FDI Policy; and (iii) the pricing is in accordance 
with the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI. 

No investment under the FDI route (i.e. any investment which would result in the investor holding 10% or 
more of the fully diluted paid-up equity share capital of the Company or any FDI investment for which an 
approval from the government was taken in the past) will be allowed in the Issue unless such application is 
accompanied with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval from the government. It will be 
the sole responsibility of the investors to ensure that the necessary approval or the pre-existing approval from 
the government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue. Our Company will not be responsible for 
any allotments made by relying on such approvals. 

Please also note that pursuant to Circular no. 14 dated September 16, 2003 issued by RBI, Overseas Corporate 
Bodies ("OCBs") have been derecognized as an eligible class of investors and RBI has subsequently issued the 
Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBs)) 
Regulations, 2003. Any Investor being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and in 
order to apply for this issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance with the FDI Circular 
2020 and Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instrument) Rules, 2019. Further, while investing in the 
Issue, the Investors are deemed to have obtained the necessary approvals, as required, under applicable laws 
and the obligation to obtain such approvals shall be upon the Investors. Our Company shall not be under an 
obligation to obtain any approval under any of the applicable laws on behalf of the Investors and shall not be 
liable in case of failure on part of the Investors to obtain such approvals. 

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company is not liable for any 
amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of 
this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number 
of Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations. 
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STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION 

Please note that the Right equity shares applied for under this Issue can be allotted only in dematerialized form 
and to (a) the same depository account/ corresponding PAN in which the Equity Shares are held by such 
Investor on the Record Date, or (b) the depository account, details of which have been provided to our 
Company or the Registrar at least two working days prior to the Issue Closing Date by the Eligible Equity 
Shareholder holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date, or (c) demat suspense account 
where the credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/ reversed/ failed.  
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION 
 

The following material documents and contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course 
of business carried on by our Company or entered into more than 2 (Two) years prior to the date of this 
Draft Letter of Offer) which are, or may be deemed material, have been entered or to be entered into by 
our Company. Copies of the documents for inspection referred to hereunder, would be available on the 
website of our Company at https://abhaproperty.in/ in from the date of this Draft Letter of   Offer until the 
Issue Closing Date. 

 
I. Material contracts for the Issue: 

1. Issue Agreement dated February 02, 2024 between our Company and the Lead Manager to the 
Issue. 

2. Registrar Agreement dated February 05, 2024 between our Company and the Registrar to the 
Issue. 

3. Bankers to the Issue Agreement dated [●] amongst our Company, the Lead Manager, and 
the  Registrar to the Issue and the Banker to the Issue. 

4. Tripartite Agreement dated February 15, 2017 between our Company, CSDL and the Registrar 
to the Issue. 

 
II. Material documents: 

1. Certified copies of the updated Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association as 
amended. 

2. Certificate of incorporation dated May 10, 1985. 
3. Company Law Board (CLB), Northern Region Bench, New Delhi, order dated October 16, 

2001 for change of Registered Office. 
4. Resolution of our Board of Directors of our Company dated May 29, 2023 authorizing the 

Issue, finalization of Issue Price, Issue Size and Right Entitlement Ratio. 
5. Resolution of our Rights Issue Committee dated March 27, 2024, approving the Draft Letter of 

Offer. 
6. Resolution of Board of Directors dated [●] finalizing the Record Date. 
7. Resolution of our Rights Issue Committee dated [●], approving the Letter of Offer. 
8. Copies of annual reports of the Company for last 3 Financial Years ending on March 31, 2021, 

March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023 and Audited consolidated financial statement for the six 
months period ended September 30, 2023. 

9. Consent Letter dated January 05, 2024 from the Statutory Auditor, namely Rajgaria & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants, to include their name as required under SEBI ICDR 
Regulations in this Draft Letter of Offer and as an “expert” defined under Section 2(38) of the 
Companies Act, to the extent and in their capacity as a statutory auditor in respect of their 
report dated February 23, 2024 on the statement of possible tax benefits available to  the 
Company and its shareholders under the applicable laws in India included in this Draft Letter 
of Offer. 

10. Consent Letters of the Lead Manager to the Issue, Registrar to the Issue, Legal Advisor to the 
Issue, Directors of our Company, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer to include their names in the Draft Letter of Offer to act in their respective 
capacities. 

11. In-principle approval ref no. [●] dated [●] from the CSE. 
12. Credit confirmation of Rights Entitlement received from NSDL  
13. Credit confirmation of Rights Entitlement received from CDSL  

 
Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at 
any time, if so required, in our interest or if required by the other parties, without reference to the eligible 
shareholders, subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant 
statutes. 

  



Santano Kumar Hazra 
(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer) 

. ( 

J Date: March 27, 2024 
Place: Kolkata 

Signed by the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company: 

"Ayushi Khaitan 
Non-Executive Inde endent Director 

L..J A J (lfa-)e.lh.. . 
Sumit Agarwalla 

on-Executive & Non-Inde endent Director 

Mandeep Kaur Jaiswal 
(Non-Executive Independent Director) 

Vishal Agarwalla 
(Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director) 

\J~ 

Amit Agarwalla 
(Chairman & Managing Director) 

~ ·. 

i 
I 

SIGNED BY ALL THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY: 

We hereby declare that no statement made in this Draft Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. We further certify that all the legal requirements connectedwith 
the Issue as also the guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, Government of India, and any other competent 
authority in this behalf, have been duly complied with. We further certify that all disclosures made in this Letter of 
Offer are true and correct. 

DECLARATION 

~ 
I 
! 


